RESOURCE BOOK 1989






TERRARI UM

MATERIALS NEEDED: An empty 1 or 2 liter bottle of Pepsi or zods pop that has the
colored plastic bottom.
Soil
Rocks for drainage if desired
Charcoal for ‘sweetness’ if desired
One or two small plants

TO ASSEMBLE: Cut off neck of bottle to desired heioht. Remove the colored
bottom and the label. (You mav have to soak i1t in boilinag hot
water to do this.) There are now two pieces to use.

Place desired amount of soil in colored bottom. You may wish
to use rocks for drainage and charcoal for ‘sweetness’, also.
Plant plant(s). Place clear plastic dome on top of the
bottom, It fits closely inside the bottom.

This does not take a full 50 minutes, so we suggest vou talk about how a
terrarium works=-condensation and evaporation., Also talk about what charcoal
does in a terrarium, whether you use it or not., There could still be time left
ovar for a tug-o-war.

cuT







33

PATIRICTIC

_PLEASER-TEASERS!

W

g

1. How many full- | 2. Which 3. How long is

time service presidents Lady Liberty's

staff people died on the 4th | | torch-bearing

did the White of July? *arm?

House have in

1984?

4. Who were the | 5. Which 6. The eighth 7. What did 8. Who was the

only father and presidents president was Yankee Doodle King of
son to both have had their the firsttobe | . stickin his England when
serve as faceson born a citizen | - +hat? the U.S. broke
president? American of the U.S. Who| . with the

coins? was he? mother

country?

9, Who was first  |10. What two 11. How are the 50 |12. How many 13. What does E
to sign the future U.S. stars arranged times was the Pluribus Unum
draft copy of presidents on our flag Liberty Bell mean?
the Declaration signed the today? cast?
of Declaration of
Independence? Independence?

14. On what date | 15. Who wrote the [16. What does 17. What are the | 18. During what
was U.S. words to the “Uncle Sam” two newest war was the
independence Declaration of stand for? states to be national
declared? Independence? . admitted to the anthem

Union? written?

19. Where did the {20. Which 21. What country |22. We can see the | 23. Which
flag tirst fly on founding father gave us the Liberty Bell in president had
July 20, 1969? suggested the Statue of what city? the most
(It was planted turkey be our Liberty? children?
there by Neil national

- Armstrong and symbol?
Edwin Aldrin,
Jr.) ]

s 1984 TREND. Teachers may repvoduce this sheet for use with their own students. All other rights are reserv.






YWSUEES:!
[. 90

/1'
;.2 Y I YR V- T Q.0

l oo,
/ L
jrl 1L /MM . .

2. 43 f,f-

7, ] o /40/&,..,@/
j.&/w:, 54404'_7 (daa

"y .
A Erd bbbt /44 Lo-tau
j‘/,& f.\_ ¥ f‘- Y_: (T2 eJCLl

J‘
\.]A/}LJJL L(JGJO[A/(‘( w

\, < LL — //(/(1
\7/15:LL/Z£4~ ,A) /f-—é/-}#U(,zj—'

é- (77'\6)\:&;-\_, d.,r.u_ Jd,(uu_,,,,\_’
7- (L/;?za,f/u/u

7 Mesrge #3
? ):*‘[’4*- /~/¢£4..a,n,(-
/0 cdve Mo
: //.'.Jvh'df/d. %/[ L™
[ S prro o 6 Blaxs
Y frowsa o < adars

by J

/A, D
/3 ‘ @/’W (}—“J 4—5 CZA-LL.}‘

/9. 3‘”‘] 3,17 76
/5. \Slrsreoa jja&w,u

/ﬁ //A,Lup’{ A/ )

s // /‘L_ L f/ J(.(.‘ﬂ/(, g 1T

15, 15712 @
/ q I

‘_1 0. &ru \f/t\-ﬁ--u!ﬂ/}u

s / 44/20.4 .V

22 Riabidelyohia

i s 94’)'/%1. !.:[U&)LJ CI‘J)






COLUMBTA TACIFIC COUNCIL

A —— —— —— W = g - U W T —

jtem

HMATERTA
Q

—_—

——

2 TN Seouery

WU OF CRAFT_

@ = (755 L,ﬁd’j wh 4.3~ Yo
Q’i\' }L'L,_;:e..g bocoeells 16 -Z‘f J&>29
(3D /e/fe.. C’Li‘MC&‘Z;—d IK/ S0
(\' S‘c'j‘}ﬂfﬁ;)c: 5 —‘2?~§‘ s.(f;‘.l.-. 2.¢3 172,40
@ ~ [ L« rocdenes L¥y /¥.90
( Z, D y 2 "‘ihﬁs &0 (2.60
(—f_t B{ /L_J.L-Mi%
(B Gl Ak a7
TS C o (JU’ e ohalle
E Z{/kcﬁﬁ J%« 29
7 Cott ATt
Eol . P J/ f‘«ui—-wr Se . BT
N ot (TS
- 2=/, . S e TS
Z’Z ol etandl, XSG L7
%%
AERD' SPORTS & HOBBIES = %oz
W)
e
oecile
Engtneer
S ciendist
Crattsmaw

BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA

STATION PROJECT

TIME SPAN | He. 95 win







cOLUM3TA PACIFIC COUNCIL BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA

STATION PROJECT

".\:':’\nﬂm TIME SPAN I Ry &~ - S DIAAL
Vo |

[«
iz 0 CaFT_Spaks (soccer )

o

DIAGRAM OF PROJECT
GM\OG.LP Lonit, Ugtacuor b how sSoccee
() 6)\CLLQ<Zi‘ 'tilqlkaa a2 &30#&69 f)hltér & baaedcla
C}giF}a;JD% Qﬁ}4:ﬂ&-(3tg&ﬂﬁ' o

Y)Kcuﬁa, Aus C 1o \*“~T~" T

|
|
f
|
:
|
ﬁ
f
i

|
:
5,

ot

MATERTALS EQUIPHENT OTHER INSTRUCTIONS

{tem Quantity Item Quantity
Q Y

Chn;&axfgﬁcdhq;.__ELSL___







COLUMBIA PACIFIC COUNCIL

SAMP f’lSCC.ICE‘]:IF '
) .

STATION PROJECT

TIME SPAN

NAME OF CRAFT _L.CCC%D(([ZWLB

BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA

g

—

(3o
HO CD
(. ‘?‘]—4& -~ D

2 ¥ 43,900 =

(acL O
DeaelS .OS
Latiey donated

.01 each

43 200 brads per bocj at
8(1460
(4—3 QACO = #90.¢0 =

DIAGRAM OF PROJECT

oy 3438 o ;
53 spoaly %[COLF‘LB oo X.9F per Spcol = 53.47
4G

D=d = 53 speoly

per 6.5 of (ac)

X Q0.0
/ SO. CO
& co acr lacad

MATERIALS
Item Quantity







TUMWATER AREA COUNCIL BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA
HANGING MACRAME PLANTER

MATERIALS NEEDED: 3 7foot lengths of 4 or 5 ply jute, 1 Caol Whip
container, soil, plant, per boy plus 1 template per
" twoboys.

PROCEDURE: Place together all three strands and fold in half. Tie
a simple overhand knot 2 inches from top to make a loop
for hanging. Place bottom of knot over nail. (Illustration #1)

Go down 1 inches to the nail, using two strands, A and B,

rie a square knot under the nail, keeping the jute taut. Still
keeping the ute taut, repeat for strands C and D, and E and F,
asing the middle nail and tar right hand nail. (1llustration #2)

Using strands B and C, go down to next lower nail on left

and tie a square knot under it, keeping the jute taut, Still
keeping the jute taut, repeat for strands Dand E, and A and *.
(1ilustration #3)

Tie another simple overhand knot using all 6 strands under
the bottom nail and pull it taut, (Illlustration #4)

f A and F will not be tied under a nail, but will have to be tied
. on the top, being careful to keep it even w:th the otker strands
% and knots.

Remove from template and place planted Cool Whip container
in hanger,

BE SURE THE BOY'S NAME IS ON TAPE THAT 1S PLACED
? ON THE BOTTOM OF THE COOL WHIP CONTAINER AND
; ON THE JUTE SOMEWHERE.,







f

W

P

iy -_%.‘f‘.{," ;
i iRy~
ot Bt
i 1 Sk
Hmm ?.L,}nni'.

8"

e :5‘.”: l.?k}_&v\:
uapﬂf‘ '
e é
1%

h. G: ; '

Hon

!

5
W

A .
i ¥
i ______7L
8"

For 100 Cub Scouts
=======================I‘======:=======================================
QUANTITY SIZE MATERIAL
100 T TTTTTTTTTI A ket x 8¢ wood for plaque T
100 6" x 6" colored picture
5 16 oz. decapodge
====3====================================================:.—.===========
QUANTITY SIZE TOOL
17 "~ TTTTTTTTTTTIIE TR TTTTTTTTTTTT T Tfoam paint applicators
io..  m===- sanding blocks

PR ————— et

-—— . —— A T —— ———— A S T —— —— ————






CUB SCOUT MOON walL kK RENDEZVOUS

DIRECTIINS: Your tribe is a space crew ori1ginall scheauled to rendezvous with a
mother shio or the lighted surface of the moon. iue to mechanical difficulties,
however., vour ship was forced to land at a spot sume 200 miles from the
rendezvcus point. During the landing, much of thé eaquipment aboard was damaged,
ind since vour survival depends on vour reachina the mother ship. the most
critizal otems avariable must be ¢chosen for the 2(0 miie tr.p,

Below are 11sted the IS5 stems left intact and undamaged after landing., UWhich
tems are the most important to hang onto? Which ones would vou need least, or
last? Plaze the number | by the most important item. the number 2 by the second

m2st important and so on through number 15, which vou consider the least
tmportant, Asgume yOou are wearing a space suit. Your tribe must agree on the

final outceome.
/5-1:)0: of matches

food concentrate

‘é S0 feet of avlon rope

parachute silk

Aﬁ_ portable heating uni!

/L two .45 cali:bre pistals

/é one case dehvdrated Pet milk

_L two L0U6 'b. tanks of oxrgen

\i stellar mep o+ the maorn < o te L ateor

rubber lire afi

/ magnetic compass

é ti1ve gallons of water
ZQ signal flares

_Z tirst aid kit containing 1nie. V. ar needles

i solar-powered FM receiver-tr:nc:  ter

The tribe coming closest 'to NASA s answers gets 3 sSpe, 'al-prnze. Good luck'®

V4






ld
t

——w e b
'

Al
!
|
|
|

CcCUB SCOUT FIELD AaND TRACK

SHOTPUT

OBJECT: ‘Put’ softball into con-
tainers of water.

SCORE: - Points in tub or distance

points for two balls,

= -50

15

JAVELIN THROW

‘ OBJECT: See how §=~ Cub can throw
Javelin and also break balloons,

Y SCORE3 Distance score and balloon
break score (5 pts, each) for total
of four throws.

Q9 6 Q

20

©- 45
- 40
= -35

g a° g
Q Q@ @

10 Q O @ @

=-30
=9- 265
©- 20

'S

s| @ Q9 Q0 9O

START

START

DISCUS THROUW

OBJECT: Throw frisbee through hoop or within a circle.
SCORE: Hoop or circle score and distance for six throws., (2 each target)

- e - e

°
« s o *

.fh@}‘:/'i

TARGET 1

(@

TARGET 2 TARGET 3

START






riﬁTERIALSi'fx~t LpnocéQ“forucarg‘

v 3/3' PR 1/2""x I t/gz-
3 3/4V7% 1 :/2‘ X l 174 F

2 wood oieco(*tut from 3/8°; dowellng, about3/5" |
-5 Q‘iii $6r viheels. i n" : P

X alier,nalﬁsyto Nail pieces’

wood ‘alye”. ; SHSTES

£ \







BULLROARERS

A shingle works well. Shape into a thin wooden feather,

rectangular shape, simply round the end., It must be symmetrical in shape, and the
side edges should be tapered, Sandpaper well, Drill a hole about 1" in from the
end and centered. Attach a heavy cord. You may wish to make it about 6 feet long,
tied in a square knot to make the cord 3 feet long, Tie a knot in the cord about
an inch from the end of the wood, When the boy swings it around his head, it will

roar! Be sure to talk about safety!

Use a 2" x 12" slat of woad.

BUFFALO NECKERCHIEF SLIDE

Put k" brads in for
eyes, Put one brad in
the bottom two holes

to make a circle for
the ring.






MATERIALS NEEDED:

TO ASSEMBLE:

Step

3

RUEBER B&IND GLIN

wood barrel 374° x 3/4" x desired lenath,

wond “handle’ 3/4° x | 374" x 3 5/8"--with the both 2nds at a

slight angle (like a parallelogram), wooden spring-type
clothespin,

2 nails {* lona, 2 nails 1/2° long,

several wide rubber bands for bullets,

wood alue, .,

Slant one end of barrel slightly using the same angle that you
used to slant the ends of the handle. With a pocketknife,

make a hori-ontal notch at the opposite end of the barrel
(muzzle) as shown in Diagram A, Drill 2 holes 1/2° apart
towards the slanted end of barrel and over where the handle
will be., These holes are for the nails to nail the barrel onto
the handle.

Lay the handle sideways as in Diagram B and qlue and nail the
clothespin to the handle, making sure the clip end of the
clothespin will be even with the end of the barrel when it is
attached. (Diagram C.) Twisting the top side of the
clothespin sidewars will make it possible to nail the bottom
side of the clothespin to the handle. If you prefer, use wide
rubber bands to fasten the clothespin to the handle rather than
nail it.

It is best 1§ the barrel is predrilled so that the bovs don’t
have anvy problems nailina the barrel to the handle, Glue and
nail the barrel to the handle., maKing sure that the

predriliad holes in the barrel are placed over the handle. and
that the end of the barrel 13 placed by the clip #nd of the
clothezcin, vDyagram D2

Feed one end of a rubber band into the jaws of the
clothespin, and stretch the other end of the rubber band over
the muzzle end of the qun. Aim and squeeze the grip. The
clothespin will open, releasing the rubber band.

NEVER POINT A GUN, EVEN A TOY, AT ANOTHER PERS(N, BE VERY
CAREFUL WITH RUBBER BAND GUNS BECAUSE THEY CAN CAUSE INJURY,

R —







HAaND \ HEL D\ GLIDER

MATERIALS: | styrofoam meat tray (H10S)
clayr I adult with an exacto
pattern knife to cut airplane
scissors wing and stablizer slots,
sandpaper

T3 ASSEMELE: Trace all pattern parts
Cut out all parts..
Have an adult usk an“exacto to cutlout wing and stablizer

slots. (Care should De taken not to cut them too large.

You may make them biggér,\but not smaller.) I
Sand airfoil shhpe on ingd and stabilizer as shown.
Insert wing and stabilizer\into the\body.

Weight th2 nose| of the pllane with a|small amount| of clay.

-4

'---""'..r\
¥
s3> R o b
P 5% z
’*,n .;?F
R
TS N
nc?
pET
/AP i
Fp"' A
R
e
4
-







'ROPE CANTEEN

MATERIALS NEEDED: 14 oz. soft drink bottle, 27 feet of 4 or 3 ply ute, masking
tape.

DIRECTICNS: Wrap one end of Jute with masking tape on an anqle, so that it makes
a “needle’,

< @Illfn

Make a slip Knot with the other end and slip it over the bottle neck. To make a
slipknot, make a loop (bite) with the running end (the end that continues on and
on) OVER the end. Put your forefinger and thumb through the bite, pull the
running end through the bite, making a loop. Grasp both the end and the running
end and hold them both tight while you pull the loop through the bite, pulling it
tight,

: of a silver dollar (not the Susan B, Anthony
) Place it over the neck of the bottle . Keep it taut, but not tight,

ep it down and out of vour wav. Place the bottle between your legg or on vour
ap so that it is easier to work with, '

Y
A 2]
Q—
s}
I

U

Use the taped end of the jute Iikela needle. Keep it in your hand
throughout the entire proiect. That is vour ‘rabbit’, and don’t let
it go for a second! With the needle end, go down between the
slipknot and the bottle, and bring the needle end out on top of the
jute. Pull it completely through so that you have a loose loop. As
you work, hold vour left thumb on top of each loop to secure the
work vou are doing.

Continue in this manner around the bottle, moving the thumb of
vour left hand to hold each locp as vou go. There will be about
e1aght loops in the first row around the neck of the bottle.







INDIAN DICE

Indians have been playing with dice for at least 2,000 years!'

Indian dice had only two sides. One side was blank and the other was carved,
painted, or decorated with different shapes. The markings were a little
different for each tribe; so ware the dice games played.

To make a stick dice game, cut three thin rectangular pieces of wood or bark, or
cut rectangles from cardboard. Sand the sides so that they are smooth. Leave
one side plain, Decorate the other side'with Indian designs--at least three
different ones,

Toss all sticks. If three designs land up, win ten counters. I[f two designs and
a blank land up,'win two counters. If one design and two blanks land up, win
three counters. If all blanks land up, win five counters.

Use seeds or beans for counters. Play Qith a friend. After everyone has had ten
tosses, see who has the most. Maybe you’ll be the lucky winner,

R )
o il
\ :_" ‘ (
\ 3 :
AAE T ik
¢ sor g po ' A
F / l: '? { :
!
.‘ :__-1“}*“ —
g :j - .\\ ) ‘.
e < b b B
| S AR b
S %
:
Gl /: - : :/






June, July, & August
OBJECTIVES

Encourage good sportsmanship and pride in growing
strong in mind and body.

Improving understanding within the family

Providing fun and exciting new things to do.

Preparing and Encouraging the boys to become Boy
Scouts. _
Fostering a sense of personal achievement by developing
new interests and skills.

Providing fun and exciting new things to do.



Planning Special Events

Following these guidelines will help ensure the success of a special event:

Objective. Why are we having the activity? Does it help to achieve the purposes of Cub
Scouting?

Leadership. There should be adequate adult leadership. In major pack activities, the
pack committee usually appoints a chairman and an event committee is recruited to carry
out various responsibilities.

Facility. What type of facility is needed? Can the event be held in the regular pack
meeting place? Is is an outdoor activity? Are reservations necessary? Will there be a
charge for the facility?

Physical Arrangements. What type of seating arrangement is needed? How much
space is available? if it is outdoors, what is available, and what do we to provide?

Schedule. A written schedule or program will be helpful. When will the activity be held?
What time does it begin? Who does what when? What time does it end?

Alternatives. Plan for backup leadership to fill in for emergencies. It it is an outdoor
activity, have a backup plan in case of rain.

Public Relations. Be sure all pack families are informed about the activity. Is this an
event that could be publicized in local newspapers and other media?

Rules. For competitive events, establish clear and simple rules that everyone can
understand. Be sure everyone knows the rules in advance. This will save disagreements
and help prevent hard feelings.

Judging and Awards. Any special pack activity which takes the place of the regular pack
meeting should include advancement awards, so that boys get recognition promptly. If it is
a competitive activity, will each boy get something for participating? Or will only winners be
recognized? How and when? What type of awards will be used? Who will do the judging?
How (criteria)?

Health and Safety. The plan should include adequate supervision and insure the
proper use of equipment. A harmless object can become dangerous when used in the
wrong way. Take the necessary measures to ensure the health and safety of the boys and
the others taking part.

Materials and Equipment. What materials and equipment are needed? Who will
provide them?

Finances. Estimate the cost of the activity, if any. Will the pack budget cover the
expense? If not, how will costs be covered?

Registration and Check-In Procedure. Most events require some type of check-in
procedure. How will it be done, and who is responsible?

Transportation. Will Transportation be needed? Will each family provide its own? If not,
what arrangements need to be made?

Countdown. Does everyone involved know what is expected? Remember Cub
Scouting's secret word -- KISMIF -- Keep It Simple, Make It Fun.



Cub Scout Fitness Day

The Cub Scout Fitness Day is a fun-filled family afternoon. The Fitness Day is a day of contests that
are aimed toward developing and testing physical skills. [t can close with a picnic supper and
awards ceremony.

Follow the guidelines for planning special events. The eguipment is simple, but it must be obtained
in advance. Score sheets need to be made and prizes made or purchased. Den leaders should know
the events in advance so the boys can practice at den meetings.

Several of the events are also Wolf and Bear badge requirements. Remind parents to pass the boys
on these requirements if they do their best.

Fitness Day Personnel: Chairman, physical arrangements committee (permits, signs,
equipment setup clean-up crew); program committee (schedule, decorations, makes equipment,
conducts events); awards committee; starter; judges; scorekeeper; picnic supper committee.

SAMPLE FITNESS DAY SCHEDULE

The Fitness day committee must arrive early to set up the events, registration table, decorations,
etc.

1:00 - 1:30 Registration and gathering-time activities.
1:30 - 1:45 Opening Ceremonies
1:45 - 4:30 Events
4:30 - 5:00 Wash up
5:00 - 5:45 Picnic Supper
5:45 - 6:15 Recognition Ceremonies
6:15 Clean up area.
PRIZES

Winners could be called to a decorated victory stand to receive their awards. Overall den winners
could be awarded olive branch wreath and trophies. Simple wreaths can be made from coat hanger
wire circles covered with paper leaves. Trophies can be made from tin cans bolted together and

sprayed with gold paint.

Other winners could receive ribbons or medals which can be purchased or homemade. All boys
taking pant should be awarded certificates of participation signed by the Fitness Day Chairman.

OPENING CEREMONY

After a regular flag ceremony, the Cubmaster might say something like this: “"This afternoon you
meet on the field of honor. May you strive manfully to win, letting courtesy and good sportsmanship
guide your behavior. As we light this torch that will burn throughout our Fitness Day, let us
remember it is to remind us to be courteous and good sports.” (He lights a simple torch that will
burn during contests.)

Then the Cub Scouts participating in the contests repeat the Olympic Oath (Cub Scout Version)
together: "We promise that we will take part in the Cub Scout fitness games in fair competition,
respecting the regulations which govern them and with the desire to participate in the true spirit of
sportsmanship for the honor of our pack and for the glory of sport.”

IN]



CLOSING CEREMONY

All Cub Scouts stand and repeat (or read from a card) the Athenian Oath (Cub Scout version): "We
will try hard not to bring disgrace to this, our community, by being dishonest or cowardly. We will
fight for the ideals and worthwhile things of the community both alone and with our friends. We
will respect and obey its laws. We will do our best to do our community duty. In all these ways we
will make our community better and more beautiful than it was given to us.”

FITNESS EVENTS

It is best to let boys compete against other boys of the same age, with prizes for each age group in
each event.

SHOT-PUT Use a softball as the shot and follow regular shot-put rules for form. Shot must be
pushed, not thrown. Count best put out of three for each player. Distance determines winner.

JAVELIN THROW Use a broomstick. Boys throw for distance. Count best throw out of three.

DISCUS THROW Staple two 10- to 12-inch paper plates together to form a discus. A beanbag can
be placed inside for weight, if desired. Use regular form for throwing -- plate should be held flat
in hand, not between thumb and finger. Count be throw out of three.

MARATHON This is a distance relay. The classic 26-mile marathon could be run in 26 yards.
Divide each den into two groups stationed 26 yards apart. Give each den a baton made from a foot-
long section of dowel or broomstick. On signal, the first runner races to the other line and hands off
the baton. The runner who receives it run to the first line, and so on, until all boys have raced.

30-YARD DASH Run in groups of about 10, picking first-, second-, and third-place finishers to
run in the finals.

PENTATHLON This is a special event. Each den enters at least one and no more than two boys,
selected ahead of time. THere is no age limit. Five events run in the order listed below. Al
contestants enter the first event. There is no rest period between events. As soon as one event is
finished, the next starts.

« Standing Long Jump The five boys making the longest jumps compete in the next event.
Javelin Throw The boy with the shortest throw is eliminated.
30-Yard Dash The slowest boy is eliminated.
Discus Throw The boy with the shortest throw is eliminated.
Shot-Put The boy with the longest distance is the champion.

Physical Feats Course Give each boy a card listing each event of the course. Be sure his name
is on the card. A parent is at each station to serve as judge and initial the card. Set a minimum
standard of performance for each station. The events could include:

Running long jump

Vault fence to 30 inches high

Climb tree

Walk 2-by-4 rail

Throw a ball 20 feet to an adult and catch return throw
Do a forward roll.

Do Three push-ups.

Do one chin-up

e o ® e o @& & ©



Physical Fithess

.EREMONIES

OPENING -1

(7 boys on stage, carrying various kinds of muscle building equipment. They use the equipment and, in
turn, speak the lines below:)

Boy 1: To keep you body strong and healthy,
Is more valuable than being wealthy.
Boy 2: WHen you are fit, you feel so good
And try to do the things you should.
Boy 3. It helps you lend a helping hand
To needy folks around our land.
Boy 4. Eating the right foods is always wise,
And everyone needs some exercise.
Boy 5: Stand on tiptoes, one, two, three,
Touch your toes, don't bend a knee.
Boy 6: Run awhile, then slow your pace,
Practice will help you win the race.
Boy 7: Scouting builds young boys into men,
And this is where it will all begin.

OPENING - 2

Cubmaster: Ordinarily, when we speak of fitness, we are thinking of physical fitness; but in Scouting we

think of different kinds of fitness.
(5 Cub Scouts, each with a card with one of the following topics.)

PHYSICAL FITNESS: "Physical fitness demands that a Cub Scout develop and keep his body healthy so
he may have a well-rounded life.”

MENTAL FITNESS: "Mental Fitness is the development of mind, skills and attitudes that will aid in his
learning to adjust to the problems and strains of life.”

EMOTIONAL FITNESS: "Emotional Fitness is the ability to control feelings of fear and anger, to get along
with others.”

SOCIAL FITNESS: "Social Fitness is the ability to work, play and live happily with others.”

SPIRITUAL FITNESS: "Spiritual Fitness is the recognizing of one's obligations to God and fuffilling them.”

Cubmaster: "These elements of fitness are essential in the proper development of a boy today in every
area of America. Since the beginning of recorded history, there have been many frontiers that have
challenged men and generated skills, bravery and strength to meet the challenges.”

"Today there are other frontiers: space, the ocean floor, and time, itself. Times and deeds have
changed, but the challenges is still the same, and the call for various aspects of fitness is still as

strong as ever.”
CLOSING THOUGHT

Cub Scouts, | hold in my hand a pocketknife. This is a valuable tool because it can be used for many useful
things. It is a dependable tool as long as the blade is kept sharp and free from rust and working parts
are in good condition. But, if it is neglected and becomes dull and rusty, it can be a dangerous tool.
THe same principle applies to us. We have a body, which, when kept in good condition, will serve us
well. But if we fail to take care of ourselves, we can become rusty and dull like a neglected
pocketknife. Do your best to keep fit!



Western Festival

The Wild West still holds a fascination for many people.
Playing cowboy can be just as appealing 10 today's Cub
Scouts as it was to their fathers. A pack western festival
will give Cub Scouts and their families a taste of the wild
West.

The festival committee must select a suitable location. It
can be indoors or outdoors. Follow the guidelines for
planning special events. You may want to ask everyone
to come dressed in western costume to add to the

excitement.

If a meal is served, it could include western chow such
as beans and cornbread, chili, or barbeque. It could be
served from a chuck wagon (a table decorated to look like
a chuck wagon).

GATHERING-TIME ACTIVITIES

Branding. As people arrive, “prand” each with a rubbef
eraser branding iron. There could a special brand for each
den. Use water-soluble ink pad so that brands can be¢
washed off.

CORT WANGER WIRE

GUM ERASER —»

CARVE BRAND
MAKE CHAPS AND
CUFFS FROM
LT CANYAS,
P TATION
LERTHER OR
SOFT NINYL .
SEw LOOP Onl

TOP FOR :
Runn NG BELT <
THROUGH

BRANDING

DETORNTE
SIDES WITH
Fo CONCHOD
AND LERTUER

INDIAN TRAIL SIGNS THENES

FOR GRASSLAND

91“17&":.
WOOO LAND

St AN X

‘TR LEFT."  TWNOT -
THE WAY.

-~ DANGER !

TTURN RIGHT.
HELP! "

“TRHIS |S THE WAY."

' INDIAN TRAIL SIGNS. Made In various ways as shown, depending on the

terrain.

-‘-\

PAaNT OR
SKETLH
FOLKLORE
FIGURED
on
BACKDROP
ISiNG GRD
METHOD
TO ENLARGE
THEW.

You CAN CHARGE
A ALl AMOLNT
OF MONEY TO

AD YOUR PACK.

PHOTO GALLERY. Make frame of
scrapwood about six feet high and 10
feet wide. Backdrop may be cardboard

from refrigerator or furniture carton

or stretched canvas. Paint body and

i head of three or four folklore charac-

4 - ters on the front; cut hole for face. (In

N this drawing, the figure has be~~
& 2 4

enlarged by the grid method (par
J Cub Scout Leader How-To Book,
photos with instant camera.

PECOS BILL AND COWBOY. Use flan-
nel shirt or work shirt with Cub Scout
uniform pants or jeans. Make chaps
and cuffs from light canvas, {mitation
leather, or soft vinyl. Sew loop on top
for running belt through. Decorate
sides with foll conchos and leather
thongs.



Roping Post. Cut a slot in a 3-foot post. Insert a wood
cutout of a horse's head. Horse's cars can be made from
scrap vinyl and mane from fringed burlap or yarn. Plavers
are given a 25-foot length of rope which has a loop in
one end and try to lasso the horse’s head from a distance
away.

ROPING POST

o

Buffalo Wheel. Fasten an old bicycle wheel to a post so
that it will spin. Remove half of the spokes and mark
scores on remaining ones. Make the buffalo from two
socks filled with nuts or small pieces of wood, as shown
in illustration. To score, throw buffalo into spinning wheel.

BUFFALO WHEEL

Bronco Riding. The body of the bronco can be a heavy
fiber drum or large metal oil drum. Wooden legs and
rockers are bolted to drum. See illustration for directions.
Steer Lassoing. Cut a steer’s head from plywood and paint
on features. Hang it from a tree branch so it can be swung.
Boys try to lasso it while it’s swinging.

Santa Fe Trail is similar to an obstacle course. Some sug-
gested activities are described below:

Broken Wheel. Roll auto tire around a tree,

Wagon in Mud. Wait for next two players before
proceeding.

Dust Storm. Follow a string while blindfolded.

Trap Beaver. Using a rod and reel, cast small cardboard
cutout of a beaver at a mousetrap until your beaver is
“trapped”.

Wagon UpseL. Play buffalo wheel. s
Narrow Pass. Crawl through 2 barrel.

River Crossing. Wade barefoot through six pans of water.

Repair Harness. Join two ropes using a square knot.

L)



THE BODY OF THIS BRONCO
CAN BE A HEAVY FIBRE DRUM
OR A LARGE METAL OIL DRUM,
THE HEAD AND ROCKERS
CAN BE CUT OUT OF
SCRAP LUMBER,

|
]
|
]
|
1
]
|
1
|
|
!

USE BOLTS TO FASTEN LEGS

TO DRUM; SCREWS TO FASTEN
LEGS TO ROCKERS; BOLTS TO
FASTEN STIRRUPS TO DRUM.

USE BOTTOM OF DRUM FOR FRONT. REAR
MAY BE LEFT OPEN,OR CLOSED IF yoUu
HAVE THE COVER.

BRONCO RIDING

MAKE
STIRRUP OUT
OF CANYAS
STRIP OR
. cl..u"r ROCKERS FROM PIECE OF TaIL:
CUT WEAD OUT of SCAAP WOOD OLD LEATHER. LENGTH Of 5
" PLYWOOD OR BOARD. ROPE, FASTEN

FASTEN TO DRUM
WITH SCREWS,

L ASSOING=

HOLE FOR HANGING
IN CENTER

TOTOP OF DRUM FRAY EWD

2

CUT A STEERS WEAD OUT OF PLYWOOD.
HANG IT FROM A TREE BRANCHSO IT
CAN BE SWUNG. TRY TO LASSO IT WHILE
ITS  SWINGING. STEER LASSOING




BROOM ST

oLD SHIRT
PYED AND
FRINGED

CONE OF

DANIEL BOONE OR MOUNTAIN MAN

BUCKING HORSE CONTEST

POWDER HORN -
HELVY PAPER

SAMPLE WESTERN FESTIVAL
PROGRAM

® Gathering-time activities
* Opening ceremony

¢ Contests and games

e Chuck wagon meal

* Recognition and closing ceremony

GAMES AND CONTESTS

Pony Express Relay. Divide group into equal relay teams.
Then divide the teams into two groups stationed 30 to 40
feet apart. First player in each team is given a stick horse
and Pony Express bag. On signal, he rides to his team-
mate in the opposite line, carrying bag over his shoulder.
The horse receives a new rider and the bag is transferred.
This continues until all players have ridden their section
of the Pony Express route.

Bucking Horse Contest. The bucking horses are pogo
sticks with horses’ heads made of stuffed socks. Riders
can be timed or jumps counted.

Hobble Horse Relay. Divide into relay teams. First player
on each team slips a band cut from an inner-tube over
his ankles, runs up and around a stake at goal line, and
back. He removes band and gives it to second player who
repeats the action.

Chuck Wagon Contest. Each den team has a chuck
wagon. This can be a regular coaster wagon, with a cloth
cover attached to a wire frame. Two den members wear-
ing paper-bag horse masks are the horses. Behind each
wagon is an equal number of pots and pans (or tin cans).
On signal, all den members except the horses load cans
into the wagon. When they are finished, they yell,
“Wagons, ho!” and the horses dash off, pulling the wagon
twice around the track. If any implement falls out, the
horses must stop and wait for other den members to put
it back. First wagon making the circuit twice wins.

Calf Roping. Each den selects one member to be a Calf
and one to be a Roper in this interden contest. The Roper
s given 6 feet of Y-inch rope with a wrist-size loop tied
in one end. When the “trail boss” calls out, “Go Den 1,”
the Calf runs on hands and knees into an open area, and
the Roper pursues him, trying to upset him. When he
knocks the Calf over, the Roper uses his rope to tie the
Calf's hands and feet together. The Calf should cooperate.
Each Roper is timed. Continue until each Calf and Roper
has competed. Fastest time wins,



Harbors) StaTiOT\S, a_!‘\(li Atrpor’l“g

ONE -INCH SGUARE S

ENEEE;
LY

—F =

BOOMERANG. Use grid method to
make pattern. Cut from cardboard.
Sail boomerang by striking with a
pencil as it rests on a book.

%

PROPELLER. Cut propeller from card-
board or stiff paperboard. Put paper
clip on center and insert into plastic
drinking straw. Bend propeller's
blades in opposite directions. To fly
the propeller, place straw between
hands, quickly slide hands past each
other to impart rotation. If it flies
downward, reverse hand directions.

o—0

Cub Scout
did his best in the 1984 Pinewood
Derby of Puck 156.

Cubmaster

CERTIFICATE OF PARTICIPATION.
Here's a sample certificate for a
pinewood derby. Reproduce by pho-
tocopying or mimeograph.

SAILBOAT. Cut strip from tin can for
rudder and leeboards. Smooth edges
with file and emery cloth and tack
onto hull. Drill hole for dowel mast,
Cement into place.

GUTTRR SLUPFORT

RAIN-GUTTER

WHIRLY BIRD. You need an eight-
ounce paper cup. Cut six slits one inch
apart from the top to 1/2-inch from
bottom and fold strips out. On each
_strip, cut a 1/4-inch slit about 3/8-inch
Jrom the inside end; make a flap by
Jolding down and creasing. Punch a

——

MO:J"ORBOAT. Cut propeller from tin
strip and smooth edges. Twist into
propeller shape. Use wire or paper
clip for shaft and a bead for bearing.
Use screw eye to hold rubber band in
front, and eye hooks in rear.

REGATTA COURSE

hole in the bottom. Put a pipe clea.

or heavy string through it and knov
top. Fasten paper clip for weight at
bottom of pipe cleaner or string. To fly
the Whirly Bird. hold straight out and
drop it

|0



LASTIC GLIDER. Enlarge patterns

lastic _foam meat tray and cut out.

[ DRAW A LINE Y/@*
NiNG R PROM THE EDGE OF A
. SHEET OF PaPgl . CUT
p ASTRIP 5 '/ LOWS
u i AND USE FOR AR
% ) M CHAMBER .
¢
THE WING 1S CUT FROM PAPEIL
S sueine. ohaw LR Fei ASSEMBLY

CORMER TO CORNER , CLOT DIAGONA LY.
TWO WINGS ARE

ey W

1 FOLD IN HALF AS SHOWM .
L.POLD WINGS.
3 FoLD TD MORM KEPL . COMPLETRLY
4. UNFOLD AND FLATTEN. PLACE PAPER
BTRIP FOR AIR CHAMBER CVER CENTER LINE .
TAPE USE SHML PIECEDS OF TAPE To KEEP TwE PabeR.

DTRIP FROW MOVING, CAREFULLY CENTER A
AR i 6" PIECE OF TAPE OVER THE PAPER.
CHAMBER STRIP AND PRESS DOWN,

- 4, INSERT A PLASTIC STRAW TO

OPE™N THE AR CHAMBRRE K CREASE
PLASTIC PAFPER TD KEEP AIR CHAMBER. |N
S0DA STRAW OPFEN POSITION  STRAN SHOND

PaPele

AR CHAMBER A;D LODSE ONDER.
RE CREASE WINGS, MODEL ThPE.
MAY BE HAND - LAUNCHED o
AIR LAUNCHED FROM A
SODA - STRAW.

AIR- LAUNCHED
GLIDER

‘\\\\
W“{ moTLH
‘ I s i | 3T ¢

Aiasie GEBID AY GpGA o

PLACE | TWi 9 CXRITRD LN | Avandty BEDID AT ¢
™aY.

WG PATTERN

ASSEWMBLE PARTS AMD FASTEN
PPER CLIP

LY THE PLaE BY
THRON D SENTLY.

1T 18 Iprnm'»ﬂ' me ™
Aot oF TUWE WA ST
RMBHAT TO MAKE THE PLAWE
FLY STRMGHT. TRY
TRYBG IT A LITTLE AND
= WATCH THE PLANE LOOP-
- = TUE-LOOP OR NOBE-DWVE,/

on neose_for weight.

ising the grid method. Trace on rigid

Assemble as shown and put paper clip

BRADS TOo nolp
SHIP IN PLASTER

SHIP IN A BOTTLE. Constr

ship model in a bottle is apai:i‘::;:ign;
Job—unless you do it this way. Boys
may want to show off their raingutter
:'egatu: bontls by this method. Use a

arge. clear plastic soda bottle.

the black bottom. Mix plaster ofc;:::tr?sﬂ-
if desired, tint it with blue food color.
ing to simulate the seq. Lay bottle on
its side. Spread plaster in bottom of
bottle and insert modet ship. For
clouds, you can glue puffs of cotton
around the top. When plaster hardens
glue the black bottom on. '

over the hole in the bottle to keep out
water. Blow into straw to inflate bal-
loon. Set the boat in water and watch it

go. From The Leader, Canadian Scout-

boat’s bottom and tape in place. Tape
ing magazine.

bottom of boat and push straw
through. Bend the straw along the

2

N
BALLOON JET BOAT. Cut long, wide

WEAP TAPE AROU
END OF STRAW.

strip from one side of a one-liter plas-
tic detergent bottle as shown. Wrap
waterproof tape around one end of
plastic drinking straw to increase its
diameter so that you may insert that
end of straw into balloon neck. Wind a
rubber band around neck of the bal-
loon to make air-tight seal. Cut hole in

1






WEBE_OS — 1st YEAR ACTIVITY BADGES

I. FPLAN

AI

Decide which activity badge you will work on.

1. You can use the monthly activity badge themes
listed in the Scout calendar or the Program Helps, or
vary to meet a field trip or other outing schedule.
2. Consider the time of year for ocutdoor activities.
3. Plan activities with other den leaders.

Read the foreword to each activity badge and the

requirements in the Webelos Scout Book. Decide which
requirements you want to work on in the den meeting.

1. PREPARE

A.

B.

C.

D.

1171,

A.

B.

Mare a list and obtain the items you will need.

Have instructions written out for crafts. You may
need instructions or craft patterns for each scout.

TOUR FERMIT, transportation, permission slips for
field trips or cother outings. Have maps, times, and
a checklist of items toc bring for outings.

Try crafts and other activities yourself first.

PRESENT

Explain the activity to the den before you start.
Let the den know what you want to accomplish.

Show a picture or example of crafts. Give examples
for discussion items,

IV. PERFORM

Do the acitivity, mark your den record, and sign each
Webelos Scout Baook.

RESOURCES:

Webelos Scout Book

Cub Scout & Webelos Scout FProgram Helps
Webelos Den Activities - book

Scouting and Boys’ Life magazines

Boy Scout Handbook

Boy Scout Merit Badge Books

FITNESS — Drugs: A Deadly Game
SPORTSMAN - Cub Scout Sports Leader Guide
OUTDOORSMAN — Introduction to Family Camping

Knots and how to tie them

CRAFTSMAN - Kits






ING ACTIVITY BADGE FLANNER

WEBELOS DEN MEET

-

EADGE and Reguirement Number

DATE

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

e

-n

WEBELOS SCOUT NAME

-

-

-

-

-~

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

y badge
Write the name
Write each scout
quirement

place a check mark or an

Use this to plan and keep a record of when an activit
in the box to the right under the date and re

requirement is completed in a den meetin
of the activity badge in the left column.
name in the lower left column and

QXF
when it is completed.






WEBELOS - SPORTSMAN

HOMEIMUSCUENBUIDERS

ON A REGULAR 15 MINUTES A DAY SCHEDULE!

PoLLomING THE SC0UT ADVENTURE

TRAIL AT CAMP, ON HIKES AND AT

MEET.MGFS PROVIDES AN UNBEATABLE,

ALL-ARCUND, PHYSICAL-FITNESS
PROGRAM .

BUT SOME MUSCLES NEED MORE
BUILDING UP THAN OTHERS FOR IN-
CREASED STRENGTH AND STAMINA,

THESE EXERCISES wiLl DO JUST
THAT!...1N ADDITION TO THOSE
DONE AT SCHOOL.

THEY'RE EASY, REQUIRE LITTLE OR
NO EGUIPMENT AND YOU CAN DO
THEM (N YOUR ROOM , THE BASEMENT,
THE BALCKYARD OR CUT IN THE

cmmc = gé;? a?aﬂymo N BICEP BUILOER . NECK BUILDER =uSE A GOOD

sl . ! UILDER —PUSH UP wiTH STRONG BATH TOWEL (OR USE CNLY

DO ALL ATONE TIME. ONE ARM, DOWN WITH THE OTHER . YOUR HANDS). BUSH HARD BGAINGT BUILD ARMS AND SHOULDERS 8
HOLD 10 SECONDS —5 TIMES EACH BACK OF NEZK UNTIL NECK MUSCLES W"‘,g: ‘“5552‘3“5 ;‘WER CR STRONG,
ARM., QUIVER . THREE MINUTES. L SECURED AIPE.

{,f:.

=
B

—

PUSH-UPS BUILD ARM AND SHOULDERS,
Q0.

T DC AT LEAST 20 A DAY, KEZP -
BACK AMND ARMS STRAIGHT WHILE BACK AND CHEST STREMGTHENER. BUILD NECK AND SHOULDERS

RASNG AND LOWERING YOUR BODY. ﬁﬁ%&m‘:&o mLsEEio- LIE FALE DOWN=rANDS AT BACK OF WITH THIS BRIDGE. LIE CN BACK,
cal el NECK, ELBOWS OUT. RAIGE HEAD AND FEET FLAT. PRESS HEAD DOWN.

DOwN CUCH  iEST-mOLD - REPEAT. RAISE BLTTOCKS AND SHOULDERS.

TOES. LEFT AND RIGHT -ELBCWS
AND KNEES STRAIGHT.

STOMACH

BUILD ABDOMINAL ' O

’ 3 MUSCLE STRETCHER =LIE FLAT
MUSCLES, RASE AND SPREAD LEGS LEGS AND THIGHS = BACK &;:‘_Cug,b il ugﬁ‘! i moé‘ﬂ MUSCLES BUILDER = L!E O BACK,
SLow -7 THREE TIMES WITHOUT TQUCH- STRAGHT, HANDS ON HIPS - 262 UNTIL KNESS ~OUCH OHIN, COUNT— HANDS ABOVE HEAD = RAISE, TOUZH
s e IIAECONDS, REST GN TOS5 AND BEND KNEES 5.Cwiy  RETLRN 10 STARTING POSITICN. Tl WITH ABMG BND LEGS: STREIGNT,
REPEAT. HALFWAY TO SQUAT POSITICN. i

REPEAT.

8

Vo4 - ehZy

STRENSTHEN BACK. LIE CN
CONDITION YOUR FEET AND

STOMALH, RAKSE ARMS, CHEST SQUAT THRUST ~CR ALL MUSCLES.
BLo srf.?ﬂ,c' MANEE AND FINGEHS ANC L35, SPREAD LEGS a2 ST IN FLICR, ~ANDS IN FRONT, TOES. WALK PIGECN-TCZD wiTh
EF 72oBEING STILRO STONES: BRUS,  apuwi & THES, RETLRY 10 THALST LE55 BACK NTIL BECY IS TCES SURLED. .N BAPE FZET PICK
PLPER - ANY THING. SQUEELZE SLOWLY START.NG POSITICN AND REFEAT, STRL IAT-RETLRN TD SGUAT, STAND UP AND CARRY STINES MARBLES.
PENCILS, wIT TTES, asvrl

AND =ARD. P —REPEAT.






WEBELOS - SHOWMAN

THE THREE IN ONE HAT STUNT

Directions:
When the Webelos Scout speaks, put on the Webelos hat and
zpeak in your natural voice.

When the Den Chief speaks, put on the Boy Scout cap and speak
in a deep voice.

When the Webelos Leader speaks, put on the campaign hat and
speak in a very low voice.

Memorize the story. It's funnier when you change hats
quickly and speak rapidly. But speak clearly so everyone can
understand what you are saying. Stand behind a louw table as
you tell the story. Place the hats on the table and be sure
to wear one red sock and one blue sock.

The Story:

Ladies and gentlemen, three of us Webelos Scouts were going
to present a play for you tonight, but the other tuwo boys
haven't come. Therefore, I will have to take all the parts
myself. The name of the play is "Webelos Scout Inspection”.
The characters are: - A Webelos Den Leader, a Den Chief, and
Johnny Webelos Scout. The scene is a Den Meeting:

Webelcs Leader: Webelos, line up for inspection.

Den Chief: They all lock fine except Johnny.
Johnny: He?

Webelos Leader: Yes, Johnny.

Johnny: What's wrong with me?

Webelos Leader:

Den Chief:
Johnny:

Webelos Leader:

Den Chief:

Webelos Leader:

What's wrong with him?

Look at his socks.

My socks?

His socks?

Your socks!

Why, Johnny, you have one red sock and
one blue sock.

Iohnny: One red sock?
Den Chief: Yes, and one blue sock.
Johnny: That’'s funny.
Den Chief: What's funny?

debelos Leader:

Johnny:

THE END

What's funny?
I have another pair at home just like

- them.






IF YOU'RE HAPPY

If you're happy and you know it,
clap your hands.

If you’'re happy and you know it,
clap your hands.

If you're happy and you know it,

Then you really ought to show it,

If you’‘re happy and you know it,
clap your hands.

2nd verse
If you’'re happy and you know it,
stomp your feet.

3rd verse
If you’re happy and you know it,
shout "hooray".

4th verse

If you're happy and you know it,
do all three.
(clap-clap) (stomp-stomp)
(hooray-hooray)

I'M A LITTLE PILE OF TIN

I'm a little pile of tin

No one knows what shape I'm in.
Got four wheels and running board
I'm not a Chevy, I'm a Ford.

Honk, honk, rattle, rattle,
crash, beep, beep

Honk, honk, rattle, rattle,
crash, beep, beep

Honk, honk, rattle, rattle,
crash, beep, beep

Honk, honk.

Tune: "Battle Hymn of the Republic"

Ist verse - Repeat throughout melody

HI, MY NAME IS JOE
Hi, my name is Joe,
I've got a wife and three kids
And I work in a button factory.
One day my boss said,
"Joe, are you busy?"
I said, "No."
He said "Turn this button with
your right hand." (turn right hand)

(Repeat verse in similar manner)

Turn this button with your left hand.
{turn hands together)

Turn this button with your right elbow.
(turn hands and right elbow)

Turn this button with your left elbow.
(turn hands and elbows togethseér)

Turn this button with your right foot.
(turn hands and elbows and fott)

Turn this button with your left foot.
(turn hands and elbows and fest together)

Turn this button with your head.
(turn hands, elbows, feet, heid together)

(Last verse)

Hi, my name is Joe,

I've got a wife and three kidse
And I work in a button factory.
One day my boss said,

"Joe, are you busy?"

I said, "YEsilitltl"

As one fresh fish flipped in the fire, the other fresh fish flipped cut.

CHORUS: Glory, glory how peculiar, Glory glory how peculiar, Glory, glcry how peculiar,
As one fresh fish flipped in the fire, the other fresh fish flipped out.

2nd verse - As one busy beaver brushed by the bush, the other busy bea&¥er brushed back.
3rd verse - As one eager eagle eased under the eaves, the other eager €agle eased out.
4th verse - As one black bat blew by the breeze, the other black bat Plew back.



HEAD AND SHOULDERS, KNEES AND TOES

Tune: “There Is A Tavern In the Town"

Head, shoulders, knees and toes,
Head, shoulders, knees and toes,

Head, shoulders, knees and toes,

Directions:

knees and toes,
knees and toes,

And eyes and ears and mouth and nose,
knees and toes,

Ist time -- sing straight through, touching parts of the body

2nd time -- omit singing "head" and touch it

3rd time -- omit singing "shoulders" and touch them

4th time -- omit singing "knees" and touch them

5th time -- omit singing "toes" and touch them

Touch each part of your body as you mention it in the song. For
example, head - put your hands on your head. Each time you start
a new verse, drop another word, but keep the motion. Extra verses
may be added to include all parts of body mentioned.

TONY CHESTNUT

Tony Chestnut knows I love you,

knows I love you, knows I love you.

Tony Chestnut knows I love you,
that’s what Tony knows.

AMERICA (round)
America, America,
How can I tell you how I feel.

You have given me many treasures
I love you so.

SCOUT VESPERS

Softly falls the light of day,
As our campfire fades away.
Silently each Scout should ask--

Have I done my daily task?
Have I kept my honor bright?

Can I guiltless sleep tonight?
Have I done and have I dared,

Everything to be prepared.

I'VE GOT THAT CUB SCOUT SPIRIT

I've got that Cub Scout Spirit up in my
head, up in my head, up in my head.

I‘'ve got that Cub Scout Spirit up in
my head, up in my head to stay.

--~deep in my heart
---down in my feet
---all over me

I've got that Cub Scout Spirit up in my
head, keep in my heart, down in my
feet.

I‘'ve got that Cub Scout Spirit all over
me, all over me to stay.

Motion:
For more spirit, you can point to each

part of body as you sing.



MY BONNIE

My Bonnie lies over the ocean,

My Bonnie lies over the sea.

My Bonnie lies over the ocean,

Oh, bring back my Bonnie to me.

Bring back, bring back,

Oh, bring back my Bonnie to me, to me.
Bring back, bring back,

Oh, bring back my Bonnie to me.

Action Version

Stand up on the first word with a "b"
in it then sit down on the next "b" and
so on with each word with a "b" in it.
The whole group should end the song
sitting down!

WADDLE-EE ACHEE

Waddle-ee achee, Waddle-ee achee,
doodle-ee do, doodle-ee do,

Waddle-ee achee, Waddle-ee achee,
doodle-ee do, doodle-ee do.

Simplest thing, there isn’'t much to it,

All you’‘ve got to do is doodle-ee do it.

I like the rest, but the part I like best,

Is doodle-ee, doodle-ee do.

TARZAN OF THE APES
I like bananas, coconuts, and grapes.
I like bananas, coconuts, and grapes.
I like bananas, coconuts, and grapes.
That‘s why they call me;
TARZAN OF THE APES.

Sing the first part a bit scofter each
time, down to a whisper, shouting
TARZAN OF THE APES at the end.

MULES
Tune: "Auld Land Syne"

On mules we find two legs behind
And two we find before;

We stand behind before we find
What the two behind be for.

When we‘re behind the two behind
We find what these be for;

So stand before the two behind,
And behind the two before.

WORMS

Nobody likes me
Everybody hates me
I‘'m goin’ ocut and eat worms.

CHORUS

Long, slim, slimy ones

Short, fat, juicy ones

Itsy, bitsy, fuzzy, wuzzy worms.

First you get a bucket

Then you get a shovel

Oh how they wiggle and squirm.
CHORUS

First you pull their heads off

Then you suck their guts out
Oh how they wiggle and squirm.
CHORUS

Down goes the first one,

Down goes the second one,

Oh how they wiggle and squirm.
CHORUS

Up comes the first one,

Up comes the second one,

Oh how they wiggle and squirm.

CHORUS

THE GRAND OLD DUKE OF YORK

Tune: "A-Hunting We Will Go"

The grand old Duke of York,

He had ten thousand men.

He marched them up the hill and then
he marched them down again.

And when you're up, you're up;

And when you're down, you‘re down,

And when you’'re only halfway up,

You're neither up nor down.

Actions:

On up - stand up

On down - sit down

On halfway up - stand halfway up






Webelos-To-Scout Transition
The Troop Leader’s Role

A source of new boys is vital to the continuance
of the Boy Scout troop and we know
of a way to get new members.

New Members for Your Troop

Recruiting new members for your troop will create a bette- program of activities,
better experience for your junior leaders, more troop pzre.ts from which to draw
leadership, and a guarantee for the continued future of your unit.

Webelos Scouts Are Being Graduated

In the many Webelos den activities, future Scouts meet weekly, learn Scouting skills,
advance in rank, participate in father/son overnighters, follow the Cub Scout Promise,
earn their Arrow of Light Award, and fill out an application to become a Boy Scout.

That Extra Effort Makes a Difference

When the Webelos-to-Scout transition program is used, more than 84 percent of t..e
boys in the Webelos den join a Boy Scout troop. All that is required is some communica-
tion and cooperation between the Webelos den (where the boys now are) and your

troop.

This Is No Secret!

Webelos den leaders and Cubmasters are also learning about the Webelos-to-Scout
transition plan. They are looking forward to working with you to ensure regular gradu-
ations of Webelos Scouts into the troop.



What'’s In It For You?

HOW THE TRANSITION PLAN HELPS THE BOY

Many Webelos Scouts will go on into Scouting with no help at all. But at least half of them need to
know more about their opportunities for fun and adventure in the Scout troop.

That's really the purpose of the Webelos-to-Scout transition plan: to give the We#:elos Scout a sam-
pling of the troop program, troop leadership, personal advancement, a training and learning experience
and an appreciation of troop organization and relationships.

It will be the boy's (and his family's) decision so we owe it to them to demonstrate some of the fun
experiences and to let him know that he is wanted. Certain key Scouters are better able to show the Webelos
Scouts the various elements of Scouting. So we need to include everyone, starting with the Webelos
Scouts themselves. That makes the transition plan an unlimited opportunity.

The boy's Webelos badge and Arrow of Light Award reach into the requirements bordering on Scout-
ing skills, giving him a view of Scouting advancement. He sees boy leadership at work and senses his own
potential as a junior leader. He becomes more confident and enthusiastic about the patrol method, a
district camporee, about summer camp, and maybe even a national jamboree.

In short, the boy's desire for troop membership is the result of this gradual change in appetite for
troop-oriented activities.

HOW THE TRANSITION PLAN HELPS LEADERS

For the troop leader, it means more boys — boys already versed in Boy cout and Tenderfoot require-
ments and boys whose families have been supporting them in pack activities.

For the Webelos den leader, it means fulfiliment. It means direct help with advancement requirements,
father/son overnighters, as well as a pleasant association with the troop. The time spent with a boy is
productive as seen in the boy’s desire to continue.

To the Cubmaster it means assurance of a stable Webelos den, more graduations and better ceremonies,
the ready access to den chiefs and pack meetings that feature a lively Webelos den and Scout troop guests.

KEY LEADERS IN THE TRANSITION PLAN

For complete information on the qualifications and responsibilities of leaders, see chapter 4, Cub
Scout Leader Book, No. 3220.

Webelos Den Chief
A registered Scout, active in the troop and selected by his Scoutmaster to serve with the Webelos den as

a program assistant to the Webelos leader. He is trained either by the t.oop junior leaders or by the
Webelos den leader. He should be at least a Second Class Scout and skilled in conducting ceremonies,
leading songs, teaching skills, giving demonstrations, leading games and helping to prepare the Webelos
Scouts in advancement for the troop experience up ahead.

Troop Webelos Resource Person
A registered male on the troop committee (or an assistant Scoutmaster). He is appointed to be liaison
between the troop and the Webelos den. He helps the Webelos den leader to plan joint pack and troop
activities, including exciting graduation ceremonies. His principal job is to ensure smooth transition of
Webelos Scouts into the troop by working closely with the den chief, Webelos den leader and Scoutmaster.

Webelos Den Leader Coach
In packs having more than one Webelos den, he is the coordinator between dens. He plans activities,
selects resources, contacts Scoutmasters, participates with Webelos dens at pack meetings, and keeps

the Cubmaster informed.



Activity Badge Counselor :
This adult is usually a family member of a Webelos Scout and has knowledge in one of the activity
badge areas. Recruited by the Webelos den leader or the Webelos den leader coach, this person serves as
a den helper at various times of the year Not to be confused with merit badge counselors in Boy
Scouting. activity badge counselors help Webelos Scouts gain self-confidence in dealing with new
subjects and adults.

In A Nutshell ...

The transition plan utilizes key people in specific roles designed to attract Webelos Scouts into the
Boy Scout troop.

It creates a team spirit for the Webelos den leader, the Cubmaster and the Scoutmaster, and it
enhances the “"Scouting family” concept both in and out of the chartered organization.

HAVE YOU HEARD ABOUT THE JOINT
LEADERS’ ROUNDTABLES?

The Webelos-to-Scout transition plan calls for a joint roundtable for Webelos den leaders and Boy
Scout troop leaders to be held twice a year — one in October and one in March or April.

With the Boy Scout leaders’ roundable staff serving as the host and with the knowledge of the Cub
Scout leaders’ roundtable staff, Webelos den leaders are invited to attend # d cover major subjects related
to pack-troop demonstrations.

This serves as a primary opportunity for Webelos den leaders and Scoutmasters to meet and to share
mutual program ideas affecting Webelos graduations. The agenda is designed to promote good pack/troop
or Webelos den/troop happenings and thereby hold the Webeios Scouts in the program until they reach
Scouting age.

The participants get an opportunity to share with the group any successes in joint activities and
graduation ceremonies.

SUGGESTED JOINT PACK-TROOP HAPPENINGS

1. Invite the Webelos den to attend a traop court of honor.
2. Invite the Scoutmaster and junior leaders to attend a Webelos den meeting.
3. Share an evening campfire.
4. Jointly, attend religious services on Scout Sunday or Scout Sabbath.
5. Participate in a joint community pack/troop Good Turn.
6. Jointly, do a Good Turn for the chartered organization.
7. Invite the Webelos den to go on a day hike with the Boy Scout troop.
8. Plan joint field-trip activities.

. Together, plan parties for the den and troop.

10. Ask troop leaders to help with father/son overnighters for Webelos den.

11. Plan joint den/troop activities — roller skating, bowling, miniature golf, swim parties, etc.
12. Invite the den to attend a troop skilloree.

13. When the troop hosts a district camporee, invite the Webelos den.

14. Invite the Webelos den to attend a performance of the Order of the Arrow dance team.

Y]



iz

The First Things to Do. ..
SCOUTMASTER F&%f\

(] Get the names, addresses, and phone numbers of
the Webelos den leader and Cubmaster in your neighborhood
from your commissioner or from your council service center.

[J Contact them and set up a meeting time and place, if possible.
Establish a plan for regular communication through specific
people such as the den chief, troop resource person, assistant
Scoutmaster, etc., regarding advancement, graduations, joint
pack-troop activities and for troop visitations.

[J Set up a plan for the troop to assist with the Webelos den father/son overnighters in
equipment and junior (or adult) leadership.

[J Maintain an up-to-date schedule of Webelos graduations so a troop representative
can be on hand to welcome new boys into the troop.

Now That Things Are Moving

[l Have a heart-to-heart talk with your Scouts about per-
sonal relationships with Webelos Scouts. Share with them
your concerns about veiled threats of initiations or
harassment, even in jest.

[J Invite the Webelos den leader and his Webelos Scouts to
courts of honor, evening campfires, troop meeting dem-
onstrations, to participate in a joint Good Turn, etc.

LJ Promote the recruitment of a troop Webelos resource per-
son if there is none. Explain to the troop committee the
need for close contact with the Webelos den.

[ Recruit a Webelos den chief for the neighboring Webelos
den. Check into the earliest opportunity for den chief
training and help to make it happen.

[J Participate in Webelos graduation ceremonies after con-
tacting the Cubmaster and Webelos den leader.

[J Recruit an adult assistant to work closely with the Webelos father/son overnighter
and to oversee the loan and use of equipment.

[J Recognize the Webelos den chief in front of the troop and reward his continued
accomplishments with the Den Chief Service Award.

[J Recruit troop junior leaders to assist the Webelos den leader and the den chief
where needed.

L] Visit the Webelos den personally, perhaps once every two months.

[J Each month, contact the troop Webelos resource person and den chief about any
changes in Webelos graduations.



WEBELOS DEN CHIEF

_ Attend a den chief conference or ask the Webelos den leader to
give personal training. Secure a Den Chief Handbook and work
closely with the Webelos den leader.

_ Participate in the yearly Webelos den program planning meeting.

L Participate in districtor council "Webelos Woods" activities and all
joint pack-troop events.

[ Assist with Webelos father/son overnighters, recruiting one or two
junior leaders from the troop to show equipment, proper use,
health and safety, skills, etc.

L Study the Webelos badge and Arrow of Light Award requirements
in order tc assist the Webelos Scouts with their advancement
needs. Help with Boy Scout related requirements.

_ Assist the activity badge counselors at Webelos den meetings.

— Represent the Webelos den to the patrol leaders’ council and the Scouts to the
Webelos den. Show enthusiasm, especially when explaining about the patrol method.

L. From time to time, compare notes with the troop Webelos resource person regard-
ing graduations and joint pack-troop activities.

L Attend pack meetings and assist the Webelos Scouts in their ideas for participation:
den preparation, skits, stunts, songs, activity badge demonstrations, etc.

TROOP COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN
[~ Take Scout leader training at the earliest opportunity.

Scoutmaster is equally aware of the Webelos den as a source of new boys in the
troop.

L Learn all you can about the Webelos-to-Scout transition plan and see that the

[ With the help of the Scoutmaster, recruit a troop Webelos resource person. Share
with him his responsibiliities as outlined in the plan. Check with him at each troop
committee meeting.

[ At each monthly troop committee meeting, inquire about Webelos den chiefs,
Webelos graduations, joint pack-troop activities, and the neecus of the Webelos den.

LJ From time to time, ask the unit commissioner for suggestions on pack-troop rela-
tionships and improved graduations into the trocp.

U Encourage adult troop leaders to attend roundtables and go with them.

L[] Contact the pack committee chairman, sharing with him (her) the objectives in
promoting Webelos graduations into the troop.



TROOP WEBELOS RESOURCE PERSON

[J Visit the Webelos den at your earliest opportunity. Let
your Scoutmaster and unit commissioner know before

you go.

0 If you do go alone, introduce yourself to the Webelos den
leader. Explain your job as the new adult troop emissary.

[J On your first visit to the Webelos den, ask the den leader
(not during the meeting) how the troop can help the
Webelos den to succeed.

[J With the Scoutmaster, arrange for Webelos den assistance -==.
—troop visitations, joint activities, father/son overnighters, K g
graduation ceremonies, activity badge and den chief Y
support. T ]

v o

’.f

-

0J Attend at least one Webelos den meeting each month, if possible.

[J Help to recruit activity badge counselors for the Webelos den from troop parents
and leaders.

[J Help to orient Webelos parents at the graduation ceremonies and to be sure the
parents meet the Scoutmaster.

[J Attend the monthly troop committee meeting and report on progress of pack-troop
relationships and Webelos graduations.

[0 Check with the Webelos den chief at intervals to review wi.h him his effectiveness
with the Webelos Scouts.

ASSISTANT SCOUTMASTER

[l In the absence of a Webelos den leader, an assistant Scoutmaster could volunteer
to serve in this capacity while continuing to serve the troop.

[J Serving as Webelos den leader, (there wouldn't be the same need for a troop Webelos
resource person) he would report his progress to the Scoutmaster and at tioop
committee meetings.

[J As a team, he and the den chief can be excellent resources for Webelos Scouts who
graduate into the troop.

U His position in the troop gives him excellent rapport with the Leadership Corps and
good control of camping equipment for father/son overnighters.

U As the Webelos den leader, he is also registered with the pack, attending pack
committee meetings and working closely with the pack calendar of events. Joint
pack-troop activities are a natural!

No. 3868 BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA 1983 Printing




Webelos-To-Scout Transition
For Webelos and Pack Leaders

A source of new boys is vital to the continuance
of the Boy Scout troop, and troop leaders
are looking to your Webelos den

Troop Leaders Need Your Webe¢los Scouts

The troop is in constant need of new members. Your graduating Webelos Scouts are
exactly the kind of prepared, active, and interested members they want. Moreover, troop

leaders can appreciate your needs.

Troop Leaders Can Help

Ask troop leaders to assist on father/son overnighters, Webelos badge and Arrow of
Light Award advancement, and joint activities.

Cooperative Involvement

When the Webelos-to-Scout transition plan is used, Webelos Scouts want to join Boy
Scout troops. As a part of this program, Boy Scout leaders give you help and support,
participate in joint meetings and campouts, supply a den chief and a troop Webelos
resource person, and establish a pack-troop relationship on a permanent basis.

Are You Interested?



What’s In It For You?

HOW THE TRANSITION PLAN HELPS THE BOY

Many Webelos Scouts will go on into Scouting with no help at all. But at least half of them need to
know more about their opportunities for fun and adventure in the Scout troop.

That's really the purpose of the Webelos-to-Scout transition plan: to give the Webelos Scout a sam-
pling of the troop program, troop leadership, personal advancement, a training and learning experience
and an appreciation of troop organization and relationships.

It will be the boy's (and his family’'s) decision so we owe it to them to demonstrate some of the fun
experiences and to let him know that he is wanted. Certain key Scouters are better able to show the Webelos
Scouts the various elements of Scouting. So we need to include everyone, starting with the Webelos
Scouts themselves. That makes the transition plan an unlimited opportunity.

The boy’s Webelos badge and Arrow of Light Award reach into the requirements bordering on Scout-
ing skills, giving him a view of Scouting advancement. He sees boy leadership at work and senses his own
potential as a junior leader. He becomes more confident and enthusiastic about the patrol method, a
district camporee, about summer camp, and maybe even a national jamboree.

In short, the boy’s desire for troop membership is the result of this gradual change in appetite for

troop-oriented activities.

HOW THE TRANSITION PLAN HELPS LEADERS

For the troop leader, it means more boys — boys already versed in Boy Scout and Tenderfoot require-
ments and boys whose families have been supporting them in pack activities.

For the Webelos den leader, it means fulfiliment. It means direct help with advancement requirements,
father/son overnighters, as well as a pleasant association with the troop The time spent with a boy is
productive as seen in the boy’s desire to continue.

To the Cubmaster it means assurance of a stable Webelos den, more graduations and better ceremonies,
the ready access to den chiefs and pack meetings that feature a lively Webelos den and Scout troop guests.

KEY LEADERS IN THE TRANSITION PLAN

For complete information on the qualifications and responsibilities of leaders, see chapter 4, Cub
Scout Leader Book, No. 3220.

Webelos Den Chief
A registered Scout, active in the troop and selected by his Scoutmaster to serve with the Webelos den as

a program assistant to the Webelos leader. He is trained either by the troop junior leaders or by the
Webelos den leader. He should be at least a Second Class Scout and skilled in conducting ceremonies,
leading songs, teaching skills, giving demonstrations, leading games and helping to prepare the Webelos
Scouts in advancement for the troop experience up ahead.

Troop Webelos Resource Person
A registered male on the troop committee (or an assistant Scoutmaster). He is appointed to be liaison
between the troop and the Webelos den. He helps the Webelos den leader to plan joint pack and troop
activities, including exciting graduation ceremonies. His principal job is to ensure smooth transition of
Webelos Scouts into the troop by working closely with the den chief, Webelos den leader and Scoutmaster.
Webelos Den Leader Coach
In packs having more than one Webelos den, he is the coordinator between dens. He plans activities,
selects resources, contacts Scoutmasters, participates with Webelos dens at pack meetings, and keeps
the Cubmaster informed.



Activity Badge Counselor
This adult is usually a family member of a Webelos Scout and has knowledge in one of the activity

badge areas. Recruited by the Webelos den leader or the Webelos den leader coach, this person serves as
a den helper at various times of the year. Mot to be confused with merit badge counselors in Boy
Scouting, activity badge counselors help Webelos Scouts gain self-confidence in dealing with new
subjects and adults.

In A Nutshell ...

The transition plan utilizes key people in specific roles designed to attract Webelos Scouts into the

Boy Scout troop.
It creates a team spirit for the Webelos den leader, the Cubmaster and the Scoutmaster, and it

enhances the “Scouting family” concept both in and out of the chartered organization.

HAVE YOU HEARD ABOUT THE JOINT
LEADERS’ ROUNDTABLES?

The Webelos-to-Scout transition plan calls for a joint roundtable for Webelos den leaders and Boy
Scout troop leaders to be held twice a year — one in October and one in March or April.

With the Boy Scout leaders’ roundable staff serving as the host and with the knowledge of the Cub
Scout ieaders’ roundtable staff, Webelos den leaders are invited to attend and cover major subjects related
to pack-troop demonstrations.

This serves as a primary opportunity for Webelos den leaders and Scou. nasters to meet and to share
mutual program ideas affecting Webelos graduations. The agenda is designed to promote good pack/troop
or Webelos den/troop happenings and thereby hold the Webelos Scouts in the program until they reach
Scouting age.

The participants get an opportunity to share with the group any successes in joint activities and
graduation ceremonies.

SUGGESTED JOINT PACK-TROOP HAPPENINGS

. Invite the Webelos den to attend a troop court of honor.

- Invite the Scoutmaster and junior leaders to attend a Webelos den meeting.

. Share an evening campfire.

. Jointly, attend religious services on Scout Sunday or Scout Sabbath.

. Participate in a joint community pack/troop Good Turn.

. Jointly, do a Good Turn for the chartered organization.

- Invite the Webelos den to go on a day hike with the Boy Scout troop.

. Plan joint field-trip activities.

. Together, plan parties for the den and troop.

10. Ask troop leaders to help with father/son overnighters for Webelos den.

11. Plan joint den/troop activities — roller skating, bowling, miniature golf, swim parties, etc.
12. Invite the den to attend a troop skilloree.

13. When the troop hosts a district camporee, invite the Webelos den.

14. Invite the Webelos den to attend a performance of the Order of the Arrow dance team.

OCO~NOW A WN—



The First Things to Do

WEBELOS DEN LEADER AND
CUBMASTER

O

O

O

Get the name, address, and phone number of the leader
of a Boy Scout troop in your neighborhood.

Call the Scoutmaster and arrange for both to sit down
together with him to share mutual needs and set up a
plan for regular communication through the den chief,
troop Webelos resource person, or assistant Scoutmaster
regarding Webelos graduations.

Secure assistance with equipment and/or leadership from the troop for your next
Webelos father/son overnighter.

Be sure to give the Scoutmaster the latest schedule and an invitation to attend the
Webelos graduation ceremonies.

Ask the Scoutmaster to recruit a Webelos den chief, if none exists.

Now That Things Are Moving

There are some other things that might be done by den and pack leaders:

WEBELOS DEN LEADER

D
O

O

Use the Parent Talent Survey sheets to identify potential activity badge counselors.

Train the Webelos den chief or help him to register for and attend a den chiefs
conference.

Recognize the Webelos den chief in front of the pack or Webelos den.
Complete Webelos den leader training as soon as possible.

Work with the Webelos resource person and Cubmaster to conduct effective gradua-
tion ceremonies at the pack meeting.

Attend joint Cub Scout and Boy Scout leaders’ roundtables twice a year.

WEBELOS DEN CHIEF

O

O

Receive training from the Webelos den leader and attend a den
chief conference. Secure a Den Chief Handbook.

Participate in the yearly Webelos program planning meeting.

Be familiar with the Webelos badge and Arrow of Light Award
requirements in order to assist Webelos Scouts in their advancement.



Attend all Webelos den meetings and participate in district or
council “"Webelos Woods" activities.

Assist with all pack (or den)/troop activities and participate at
pack meetings with Webelos Scouts in skits, stunts, songs,
demonstrations, etc.

Assist with Webelos father/son overnighters, showing Webelos
Scouts the proper use of troop equipment.

Secure help from troop junior leaders.

Assist activity badge counselors at Webelos den meetings as
needed.

Represent the Webelos den, the patrol leaders' council and
the Scouts to the Webelos den. Explain the patrol method,

enthusiastically.

Participate with the pack, Webelos den, and troop in joint ser-
vice and money-earning activites.

CUBMASTER

O

O

O O 0 0 D0 O 0

Complete your basic Cub Scout leader training at your ear-
liest opportunity.

Sit down together with your unit commissioner, Scoutmaster,
and Webelos den leader to determine what needs to be done
to improve Webelos graduations.

Assist in planning and conducting stimulating graduation
ceremonies, involving the parents, Scoutmaster, den chief,
Webelos den leader, and boy leaders of the troop.

Conduct Webelos den induction ceremonies and Arrow of Light
Award ceremonies.

Support the Webelos den leader in pack-troop activities.

Help establish and maintain strong pack-troop relationships.
Encourage high advancement standards for the Webelos Scouts.
Include Webelos den participation in pack meeting activities.
Attend joint roundtable twice a year with the Webelos den leader. ®
Recognize the den chiefs at the pack meeting.
Support the year-round Webelos den program.

Help to recruit activity badge counselors.




PACK COMMITTEE

U

O

Help recruit and support the Webelos den leader(s) and pro-
vide resources for the Webelos dens.

Promote Webelos-to-Scout transition through the chartered
organization.

At each monthly meeting, keep informed of Webelos den prog-
ress and needs.

Invite families to joint pack (or den)/troop activities.

Promote and support strong pack/troop relationships, sharing
with the troop committee people the need for graduations into
the troop.

Work closely with the unit commissioner in effecting a smooth
flow of boys into the troop.

ACTIVITY BADGE COUNSELOR

O
U

L O 0O O O

Provide activity badge instruction at the Webelos den meeting.

Be familiar with the Webelos Scout Book in presenting activity
badge information and certifying advancement. .

Provide resources and instruction on model building.
Help recruit other activity badge counselors.

Lead field trips related to activity badges.

Provide help and encouragement on collections and specimens.

Hold to the time schedule for activity badge instruction.

WEBELOS DEN LEADER COACH

]
#

O o0 o o o

Coordinate activities between Webelos dens in the pack.

Coordinate father/son overnighters and campouts between
Webelos dens in the pack.

Work closely with the troop Webelos resource person.
Involve Webelos dens in pack meetings.

Help recruit activity badge counselors.

Aid in the training of Webelos den leaders and den chiefs.

Assist with parent orientation in Webelos den operation.

No. 3870 BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA 1983 Printing

6



* 5
ICC
o I
R\
S 3 P

NN

\:;‘3
d

SO

Webelos-To-Scout Transition
The Commissioner’s Role

A source of new boys is vital to the continuance
of the Boy Scout Troop, and
troop leaders are looking for help!

fou’re the Unit’s Best Friend

Although the-unit leader can get help from many places, it's special when it cornes
from you. Being there in person, you're the first one to offer personal support.

Troops Need Boys

Many troops have eight boys or less. Even the larger troops may find recruiting dif-
ficult. Though many Webelos Scouts leave their den when reaching Scouting age,
they're not sure about going into the troop.

You Have the Answer

With little effort, you can be the key person helping both the Boy Scout troop and

the Cub Scout pack to fulfill their needs.
More than 84% of graduating Webelos Scouts join troops when the Webelos-to-Scout
transition program is used. Leaders can do it themselves when someone gets them

started. . .and you're that someone.

Do you want to know how it’s done?



What’s In It For You?

HOW THE TRANSITION PLAN HELPS THE BOY

Many Webelos Scouts will go on into Scouting with no help at all. But at least half of them need to
know more about their opportunities for fun and adventure in the Scout troop.

That's really the purpose of the Webelos-to-Scout transition plan: to give the Webelos Scout a sam:-
pling of the troop program, troop leadership, personal advancement, a training and learning experience

and an appreciation of troop organization and relationships.
It will be the boy's (and his family’s) decision so we owe it to them to demonstrate some of the fun

experiences and to let him know that he is wanted. Certain key Scouters are better able to show the Webelos
Scouts the various elements of Scouting. So we need to include everyone, starting with the Webelos
Scouts themselves. That makes the transition plan an unlimited opportunity.

The boy's Webelos badge and Arrow of Light Award reach into the requirements bordering on Scout-
ing skills, giving him a view of Scouting advancement. He sees boy leadership at work and senses his own
potential as a junior leader. He becomes more confident and enthusiastic about the patrol method, a
district camporee, about summer camp, and maybe even a national jamboree.

In short, the boy's desire for troop membership is the result of this gradual change in appetite for

troop-oriented activities.

HOW THE TRANSITION PLAN HELPS LEADERS

For the troop leader, it means more boys — boys already versed in Boy Scout and Tenderfoot require-
ments and boys whose families have been supporting them in pack activities.

For the Webelos den leader, it means fulfiliment. It means direct help with advancement requirements,
father/son overnighters, as well as a pleasant association with the troop. The time spent with a boy is
productive as seen in the boy's desire to continue.

To the Cubmaster it means assurance of a stable Webelos den, more graduations and better ceremonies,
the ready access to den chiefs and pack meetings that feature a lively Webelos den and Scout troop guests.

KEY LEADERS IN THE TRANSITION PLAN

For complete information on the qualifications and responsibilities of leaders, see chapter 4, Cub
Scout Leader Book, No. 3220.

Webelos Den Chief
A registered Scout, active in the troop and selected by his Scoutmaster to serve with the Webelos den as

a program assistant to the Webelos leader. He is trained either by the troop junior leaders or by the
Webelos den leader. He should be at least a Second Class Scout and skilled in conducting ceremonies,
leading songs, teaching skills, giving demonstrations, leading games and helping to prepare the Webelos

Scouts in advancement for the troop experience up ahead.

Troop Webelos Resource Person
A registered male on the troop committee (or an assistant Scoutmaster). He is appointed to be liaison

between the troop and the Webelos den. He helps the Webelos den leader to plan joint pack and troop
activities, including exciting graduation ceremonies. His principal job is to ensure smooth transition of
Webelos Scouts into the troop by working closely with the den chief, Webelos den leader and Scoutmaster.

Webelos Den Leader Coach
In packs having more than one Webelos den, he is the coordinator between dens. He plans activities,

selects resources, contacts Scoutmasters, participates with Webelos dens at pack meetings, and keeps
the Cubmaster informed.



Activity Badge Counselor
This adult is usually a family member of a Webelos Scout and has knowledge in one of the activity

badge areas. Recruited by the Webelos den leader or the Webelos den leader coach, this person serves as
a den helper at various times of the year. Mot to pe confused with merit badge counselcrs in Boy
Scouting. activity badge counselors help Webelos Scouts gain self-confidence in dealing with new

subjects and adults.

In A Nutshell . ..

The transition plen utilizes key people in specific roles designed to attract Webelos Scouts into the

Boy Scout troop.
It creates a team spirit for the Webelos den leader, the Cubmaster and the Scoutmaster, and it

enhances the "Scouting family” concept both in and out of the chartered organization.

HAVE YOU HEARD ABOUT THE JOINT
LEADERS’ ROUNDTABLES?

The Webelos-to-Scout transition plan calls for a joint roundtable for Webelos den leaders and Boy
Scout troop leaders to be held twice a year — one in October and one in March or April.

With the Boy Scout leaders roundable staff serving as the host and with the knowledge of the Cub
Scout leaders roundtable staff, Webelos den leaders are invited to attend and cover major subjects related
to pack-troop demonstrations.

This serves as a primary opportunity for Webeles den leaders and Scoutmasters to meet and to share
mutual program ideas effecting Webelos graduaticns. The agenda is designed to promote good pack/troop
or Webelos den/troop happenings and thereby hold the Webelos Scouts in the program until they reach

Scouting age.
The participants get an opportunity to share with the group any successes in joint activities and

graduation ceremonies.

SUGGESTED JOINT PACK-TROOP HAPPENINGS

. Invite the Webelos den to attend a troop court of honor.

_Invite the Scoutmaster and junior leaders to attend a Webelos den meeting.

. Share an evening campfire.

. Jointly, attend religious services on Scout Sunday or Scout Sabbath.

. Participate in a joint community pack/troop Goed Turn.

. Jointly. do a Good Turn for the chartered organization.

. Invite the Webelos den to go on a day hike with the Boy Scout troop.

. Plan joint field-trip activities.

. Together, plan parties for the den and troop.

. Ask troop leaders to help with father/son overnighters for Webelos den.

. Plan joint den/troop activities — roller skating, bowling, miniature golf, swim parties, etc.
. Invite the den to attend a troop skilloree.

. When the troop hosts a district camporee, invite the Webelos den.

. Invite the Webelos den to attend a performance of the Order of the Arrow dance team,

OWoO~-NOOUhWN—

SN —



The First Things To Do

U

O

In your commissioner’s notebook, list names, addresses, phone numbers, etc., of
leaders in the Webelos den, pack, and troop.

Contact the Webelos den leader, Cubmaster, and Scoutmaster to set up a time and
place for a common meeting of all three. Let each describe his (her) needs in the
program.

At this meeting, establish a plan for regular communication through specific key

people (den chief, troop resource person, assistant Scoutmaster, etc.) regarding
advancement, graduations, joint events and training opportunities.

Encourage the troop leaders to assist with Webelos father/son overnighters in
equipment and troop leaders.

Maintain an up-to-date schedule of Webelos graduations that the Webelos den
leader shares with the troop representative.

(CHECK OFF EACH ITEM AS YOU COMPLETE IT.)

Now That Things Are Rolling. . .

0O

Since you're feeling successful, there are some other things you might do:

Mark on your Scouting calendar the dates of the troop, pack, and den meetings,
the committee meetings, leaders' roundtables, training sessions and district com-
missioner meetings.

Share with the commissioner (if there is one) the progress of the pack(s) or troop(s).

Attend Webelos graduations with the Scoutmaster(s). See that the Webelos families
are introduced to the Scoutmaster.

Encourage the Scoutmaster to have a heart-to-heart talk with his Boy Scouts about
personal relationships with the Webelos Scouts. Rumored threats of initiations or
harassment, even in jest, can halt Webelos graduations into the troop.

Accompany the troop Webelos resource person on the first visit to the Webelos
den and introduce him (her) to the Webelos den leader. Let each discover what the
other does in the transition plan.

Report progress on pack/troop relationships to the district commissioner. Include
details of how many Webelos Scouts were graduated.

When speaking with pack or troop committee chairmen, explain the benefits of
the pack, Webelos den and troop joint activities.



PROGRAM

O

O

0]

Encourage the Scoutmaster to visit the Webelos den and get to know the boys
personally.

Encourage the Webelos den leader, Cubmaster, and Scoutmaster to attend leaders
roundtables. Discuss your progress with the transition plan.

At the earliest opportunity, get information on “"Webelos Woods” or Webelos Day
(if held in your council) and promote it in the Webelos den.

With the approval of the Webelos den leader, show a training filmstrip, such as
“Troop Meeting Tonight” or "The Patrol Method,” borrowed from the local council
service center.

Have adequate information on the Cub Scout day camp. Emphasize the Webelos
program at day camp.

LEADERSHIP

d

W

L]

]

When there is no Webelos den leader, visit the pack committee meeting as soon as
possible and assist in recruiting a new leader.

Explain and implement the selection of a Webelos den chief when visiting the
troop. If one is not needed now, he soon will be,

On visiting the troop committee, encourage the selection of a troop Webelos
resource person (if not yet selected) to visit and represent the troop at Webelos
den meetings.

Encourage the Scoutmaster to give regular recognition to the Webelos den chief
for his efforts in bringing new boys into the troop.

Explain and suggest to the Webelos den leader the recruitment of activity badge
counselors for help in leadership and activity badge work.

Encourage attendance by the Webelos den leader, Cubmaster, and Scoutmaster at
the twice-a-year joint roundtables (if held).

ADVANCEMENT

O

O

o o

Attend Webelos graduations and ask the Cubmaster to take part in the Arrow of
Light recognition ceremony.

Encourage the Webelos den chief to help the Webelos Scouts in their work on the
Webelos badge and Arrow of Light Award.

Maintain a written schedule of Arrow of Light presentations and encourage Scout-
masters to attend.

Tell the Scoutmaster about the leadership and service of the Webelos den chief.

Make the Webelos den chief aware of his personal responsibility in teaching ad-
vancement requirements.



SEnT Fo
[NDiaw CWIEFS Sware uP
i &

e b2 1Y

Comsn w ATIEWE 5 2 :
Ao, Sepmive & 3
Lt .ih-ﬁ, s

PIONEERS _— = ™ -&
p_i, { wiadlh ]
U } ]
o P

TRAINING ATE= L

O

O

Assist the Webelos den chief in attending the earliest den chief conference in the
district or council.

Encourage and assist the Webelos den leader, Cubmaster, and Scoutmaster in
earning their appropriate training award or key. Check their personal accomplish-
ments, and training progress records. Let them know that you're interested in
seeing them receive this recognition.

Assist the Webelos den leader in the training and recognition of the Webelos den
chief.

Remind the Cubmaster and the Webelos den leader about completing their basic
training.

ORGANIZATION AND RELATIONSHIPS

O

After talking with your district executive, contact the Scouting coordinator and
chartered organization head. Explain the Webelos-to-Scout transition plan and

their roles in making it happen.

Personally assist the Webelos den leader, Cubmaster, or Scoutmaster with transporta-
tion to an outdoor event or activity.

Encourage the district commissioner to use his (or her) influence in setting up two
Cub Scout-Boy Scout roundtables a year.

Offer your personal help and resources to the Webelos den leader, Cubmaster, and
Scoutmaster for use in meetings, training, and advancement.

See that the Webelos den leader is recognized at pack meetings for his help in
graduating Webelos Scouts into troops.

Talk to the Boy Scout leaders’ roundtable commissioner about the joint roundtable
plan for Webelos den leaders, Cubmasters, and Scoutmasters.

Attend the annual pack program planning conference and Webelos planning
conference. Be sure the den chiefs and Scouting coordinator are invited.

Contact the district training chairman for information or get help in getting key
people in the transition plan trained

Give the district commissioner, in writing, any pertinent membership information
regarding the Webelos-to-Scout transition effort for his report to the district com-
mittee and the council commissioner.

If It’s To Be. . .It’s Up To Me!

No 3869 BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA 1983 Prining

8



MR. GOODSAW

Mr. Goodsaw puts wood workling projJects into den meetings.
He works with Wolf, Bear, and especially Webelos dens. He gives
the boys a chance to make things, see the accomplishment of
completinag fun projects, and to "take home" their
accomplishments. Below are some hints and ideas for wood working
projects.

Projects:
To gain the benefit from the projects, the boys need to
complete the projects. Small projects can be completed in
one den meeting. More advanced projects will take 2 or 3
meetings to complete. Large projects may take many meetings
to complete. With boys Cub Scout and Webelos age, typically
20 to 30 minutes is about the maximum for work on a project -
at one setting. Sending an incomplete project home
frequently means that it will never get finished.

Material:
Work out a material list for your project ahead of time.
You will need a list of construction materials: wood,
nails, sand paper, paint, etc. You will also need to make a
list of tools: saws, drills, hammers, pliers, screw
drivers, sanding blocks, etc. Often inexpensive scrap or
used material can be sawed to construct projects.

Resources:
If you have not filled out a Parent Talent Survey form for
your families, now is a good time to do so. Many times
dad's will have power tools and the skills to saw out
projects for the boys to construct. You may find a dad that
will loan you hand tools for the boys to use. You may also
find families that have material that they will donate for
your use. :

Other Hints:
Sample: It 1s 'a good 1dea to make a sample of the project
ahead of time to be sure vt the material needed, the methods
to construct the project, and to have a sample for the boys
to look at.

Give the Project "Steps®: 1If you can, it often works best
to have everyone saw the project, then sand the project,
assemble the project, etc. 1In some cases a lack of tools
such as saws makes this difficult, but as best you can,
steps work good.

Painting and Finishing: Painting can be a mess. We have
found that using water soluble paints is best. =If the
project is to be used outdoors, you the leader can seal it
later with lacgquer or other finish.



Mo e Ry B e

Quality of the Finished Project: Some boys will do a better
job than others. It is important that each boy complete the

project on his own. You should balance the urge to help a
scout do the work versus having him do a really lousy
project. This, dear leader, may take a bit of patience and
experience on your part. Some boys will finish faster than
others. For the really slow boys, it may be well to sugaest
that they come early or stay late to finish the project and
not hold up the rest of the den (and suffer adverse peer
pressure). :

Whittling _Blanket: Whittling is fun. A whittlling blanket
is an old sheet, blanket, or similar materlal, that 1a at
least 3 feet square. It is placed on “he floor. Each
whittler sits in a corner and whittles into the center of
the blanket. It provides a safe distance for each whittler,
and makes for easy cleanup. The basic rule is that the
knife is put down if a whittler moves, gets up, etc. You
can use wood, bars of soap, etc. to whittle.

Oon the following pages are suggestions to help you with your
projects. As well, we have included sketches for several
projects. Try them in your den. Your boys will enjoy them and
so will you. Remember, "know your resources" 1if you feel the
need for 3ssistance in doing these projects.

I —— HAMMER - Striking a nail at an
1.

angle will bend if - Fig.
strike the head of the nail
straight to drive it in - Fig.
2. Long nails may be removed
by placing a wood block under
the hammer head - Fig. 3.

FIG 3




SAW - For c¢utting out wood
projects. [This is a scroll saw
that works best with thin wood.
For heavier, wood, use a hand saw,
or have an:adult cut out the wood
on a power saw.

VICE - A vice may be fastened to a desk,
table, or any other projecting edgqe. A small
machinist's vice is shown. It is for metal
and other hard objects. It may be used for
wood if the jaws are padded with felt or by
placing scraps of wood between the jaw and
the project (to prevent marring).

"C" CLAMP - Used for holding flat objects
together such as two pieces of wood.

PLIERS - For general holding purposes,
bending metal or wire, etc. To cut
wire, place between the jaws as far as
possible and close pliers.

FILE - For smoothing wood or metal.
Hold file flat, with point or handle
toward you. Stroke forward with light
pressure.

HAND DRRILL - For drilling holes in wood
or metal. Twist drills are available in
a varlety of sizes. Turn the drill
chuck to remove the twist drill.

BQCKET KNIFE - For carving wood. A
small knife with blade not over 2
inches long. It should be sharp.

-'& ’
=TT e
- o e =
e - -~ s S [V
[ ] o -— o — o — ©
_— - ] - —
- e e o m e E

- B




5 p“hﬁ}‘ \.'f""f i

MORE TOOLS

Below is a picture that shows many hand tools that may be useful
in crafting projects. In makling the project work, use of the
right tool is important. Also important is the care of these
tools. Keep them clean, well organized, and-sharp.

BASICTOOLS: 9. Handdrill 17. Awl 24, Scroll saw
1. Hand saw 10. Tin snips 18. Leather 25. Plane

2. Draw knife 11. Conunon punch 26. Hack saw

3. Spoke shave screwdriver 19, Scissors 27. Nail set

4. Brace 12. Phillips 20. Openiend  28. Pipe wrench
5. Bit screwdriver wrench 29. Center punch
6. Hand ax 13. Pliers 21. Box wrench 30. Automatic
7. Drill bits 14. Chisel 22, Crescent drill

8. Claw 15. File wrench 31. Square
hammer Wire cutters




Woocd Cooliie Fun

! = e
| ~
| —_— e T ——
i T
i _—___ -, -,
| me— T e— e
) —_—
Tt e —_—
—— ‘\_ ~
- _—
- “-"--_ i \_.
h TTe— T f"‘\__
— / l
-~
g / -
; !
1—

fe @ Lenm Hrog
el the Hitsigs t

N il 2 . g

- = Large Stavcle
Netermine the Age of for Meckerchief

the Leog Meark 'faur Date Slide

of it Make Slide.

[

Paint Picture., Den MNumnibesr oz woaod !

Neclkerchiet Slide Hoelder

e Sy _—5mall Log 15" tn 21

B Insert Deovell
. - - . __b—_—-— b - =T T
i T .ﬁ "——--___\_ ‘\._‘_. "-..A__ :
' s -, ramt == B S
b L Thg o x \ 0w T
| R . o T 10 E . s -
1 - ". = B o4
R | i [}/ =
g \ T
. - . 1 | 1k —-— '\\_
= ‘ -
i l i
} - e h
‘ w ) k-_“" 7_
1y | 18 . B ‘. &= \\_ st
1 s OS] | |
i i "5 S e )l L~
| : -~ ke —
| % = “ LY .7(' -
L i i T v 5
. L ~ 7 -
! [ e

S | 7_,/'4 Yo Tihwal




qecherchlei Slide Idea

Dowell or 0ld Broom Stieck

, F__h__"“‘-m___ﬁ% il Approximately 1Y Dia
X ;/; Approximately 1.5" Long
T {@i | Drill a Hole Through the Dowe.
M Dia

Approximately 0.5
Glue Small Pieces of Wood Make = Drawing on Light
1 Cardboard, Color, and

Onto Dowell to Make Slide :
Paint and Decorate with to Clue onts ihe Dowell

Form Finished Slide
e F:’_. ﬁ;j}__‘ Cardboard

/ r , Cutont

&




5

PINE & F/
CONE B/

T4 LN %- 5
> <Y

i -;;—o ‘-::_i'
&
R S

Ofﬂ -z
MefEMﬂ

PECAN
FOOTBALLS

y PEACH STONE (¢4

CARVINGS

RUBBER STAMPS

Supplies:

1" Dowell or 2x2 lumber cut

into 2" long pieces

Innertube

Rubber Cement

Sharp Scissors

Pens

Draw simple design on a plece of SEED
the innertube that is the same
slze as the end of the dowell or
Cut around design care-
Glue design to the end
of the dowell, let dry and stamp

. lumber.
fully.

away!!

A GOOD IDEA
FOR PARENTS
AND KIDS

Make your own stamps
from foam meat trays by
tracing your design on
with a dull pencil -
making an indentation as
you draw. Glue the foam
shape to a wood block.
You can make cards, gift
paper, fancy lunch
sacks, or whatever! If
you don't have a stamp
pad for the ink, layer
paper towels on a sponge
and pour on watercolor
paint and gently press
your stamp into the ink.

!

CoU/RD
B/RD -

,/ F 5

Al
.‘? 5 v
»

)/

JACK-0

-

PUMPKIN-SHELL

NECKLA

il @
:
o 1‘

N
5l~




Srutiatie
PLASTIC BAG
SLED KITE

flies indeors
and oot !

I. coT KiTe pattem
biqqer or smaller
bLut LSE Hthese

Proq)or'hons .
vse plastic storaqe

ba r qreatenr
s+r%i?[+bs (paper bag wil do)-

2. TApe L. sticks
from X +o T -

Y 3. Attada bridle at aand s.

(Bridle should be +wice
+he wid?i:;\ of +he 'Kife).

4. make& Loop at center
01(; bridle string e¢. -
and tie on FIying sh'mq.

5. Tape on 3 or 5 raq tails.
6. Find @ wind or run fast!




HOW TO MAKE A RUBBER MOLD
MATERIALS :

MOLD TEX - Rubber Mold Casting (Pure 1liquid 1latex) or other
similar product available at hobby or craft stores.

Inexpensuve, small paint brush.
Gauze for reinforcing mold.

PROCEDURE:

To make your own rubber neckerchief slide mold, wuse a plece of
heavy cardboard at least 2 inches larger each way than the plaster
model to be copled. Cover cardboard with aluminum foll. Lay the
model flat on the foll covered cardboard. To keep the model from
s1iding, put a dab of the Mold-Tex on the center back of model and
lay it onto the cardboard.

Brush Mold-Tex over surface of model, being careful to brush out
all alr bubbles (any alr bubbles in this coat will result in alir
bubbles in the f£inished mold). Brush from center of model out
over backing cardboard about 1-1/2" in all directions. Allow
first coat to dry at least 15 minutes, but while tacky, apply
second coat. Apply more coats, allowing each to dry to the touch.
After 3 or 4 coats, apply narrow strips of gauze to fresh coat.

After this dries, brush 3 or 4 coats over gauze. After model lis
coated to desired thickness, allow entire mold to dry for 24
hours. Then peel mold off model. It should now be ready for use.
If it seems a little sticky, wash the mold in warm socapy water.
In between applying the layers of rubber be sure to keep your
paint brush soaking in warm soapy water in a small jar.

When you are ready to use your mold, mix up a small amount of
plaster in a small paper cup, putting the water in first and then
slowly adding the plaster to water, letting it absorb until you
have nice creamy mixture that pours easily. The less stirring you
do of the plaster when mixing the better results you'll get as
stirring <creates air bubbles which will make cavities in your
finished neckerchlef slide. Before plaster hardens in the mold,
insert a pop can ring in back, making sure it does not sink in too
far so that it will not f£it on the boys neckerchlief. Neckerchlef
slides pertaining to the themes each month, make a big hit with
the boys and can be used in various ways as participation awards
within the packs and the dens.

The molds will last for years If taken care of properly. Always
keep a plaster model in your molds for they will shirnk and bend

out of shape if you don't.



|

\

LEAF GLITTER PRINTS

Materials:

Assorted leaves
Glitter - several colors

white glue
constzruction paper

pour glue 1into shallow contalners (saucers O small meat trays
work well). Leave glitter in shaker contalners. Have boys dip
jeaves into glue to cover just the bottom of the leaf and then
press leaf onto paper to leave an impression. Shake glitter onto
glue. Let set a few minutes and the shake off excess glitter. Be

sure to collect excess glitter and re-use!

The boys can lay out a pattern before beginning or just design a
free style design. Den leaders can also prepare a pattern before

\ hand to fit a particular theme (wreaths work very well for

Christmas decorations). Use a variety of leaf shapes.

Cut a bird out of a 6-by-3-
inch piece of light cardboard.
Glue or tape a penny at the
front end of each wing. The
middle of each penny should
be just in front of the bird’s
beak. Set the beak on the end
of your finger. Or put it on the
corner of a table or a book. It
won't fall.




BTRING PAINTING

Materials:

Large Bheets of Construction Papaer
Tempera Paint
1/4" cotton cord (from fabric store)

Fold construction paper in half and cut small slit in center of
fold. 8oak cord in small dish of paint. Open paper flat.
Bqueeze excess paint from cord (don't squeeze to dry). Lay cord
in loops on half of paper and feed loose end through slit. Fold
paper back in half. Have one boy place both hands over folded
paper and hold firmly, but not too tight, while second boy slowly
pulls cord out through slit. Finished painting will resemble
butterflies and other great bugs!

Varlations: cCut slit off-center in fold.
Don't cut slit in fold but run cord out any open side
of fold.
Laminate finished painting with Clear plastic shelf
lining for Blue & Gold pPlacemats!

POSTAGE ETAMP TIE ELIDE

Materlals:

Used Postage Stamps (approx. 8-10 per slide)

Cover from small box of wooden kitchen matches (or make your own
"boxes" from medium weight cardboard, cereal boxes work well)
White Glue

8cissors

Have boys choose one really nice stamp for front of tie slide -
sldes and back can be covered with less appealing stamps. Trim
excess paper around stamps and glue to matchbox cover, Overlap
stamps for a close fit and make sure corners are sharp and well
glued. 8lide onto tie!



CRAFT: Decorative Boxes

Materials: Any size tin container
Acrylic paint
Small brush
Clear nail polish
Glue
Sponge
Stamps

Directions: Paint the outside of the box, including the hinges and
bottom. Let the paint dry, then apply a second coat.
Glue each stamp, star, label, seal or sticker in place.
Pat away excess glue with a damp sponge. Coat the entire
box with nail polish and dry with the 1id propped open
slightly. Apply 2 or 3 more coats allowing each to dry
between applications. The inside can be left as is, or
painted or lined with paper.

CRAFT: Pea and Toothpick Building

[ttty

Toothpick rods and pea connectors let you build the most incredible
structures and abstract versions of anything--flat patterns, domes,
geometric forms, or the Empire State Building. It's very inexpensive
and the structures you build are pernanent. They stay attached, to be
used as ornaments, mobiles, toys, or whatever.

Materials: Dried whole peas
Toothpicks

Directions: Prepare peas ahead of time. Pour dried peas into bowl

of water, making sure the water completely covers the peas by an inch.
Let peas soak at least six to nine hours. Building is done by using
the peas as connectors and sticking the toothpicks into them. The
smaller peas hold best. When construction is completed, set aside to
dry. In about a day, the peas will dry out and shrink, making a
strong joint.

=

G



PAPER FACES

Qw_o_\msanl ..ﬂ_no r%nr
of eapsr ¢ 1o BABIRMEE
/_\ ?Ebﬂn_. Al Siic
€YE § nose
placement
MoOL +..01
doultor
child.

G

Experimen!”
wi+h ‘
cwnier
Mﬁmma
until you
mm:¢€1
some o&
designs

7o
=

L

- fold Lengthwise-

A BN

choose ear shape

G5V

choose nose mrﬁnm

3

!




SLIDE IDEAS

CROSSED SWORD SLIDE

k~ slice of 5/8" PVC pipe, colorful thread for handles,
2 pop rivets, hammered flat and ends snipped,

strip of felt to be glued over pipe with craft glue
after the swords have been stabbed through.

MATCH SLIDE

Thin dowel 2-3" long, salt and flour dough shapped on
the end. Dry, then paint red with a white tip, and
slip through a loop of leather or vinyl.

KNOT SLIDE
Whip the ends of a 10" piece of white clothesline rope.

Tie in square knot or double half-hitch around a 4*
dowvel. Slide off the dowel, suspend from a thread
and dip in urethane for 30 sec., then hang to dry.

CAR SLIDE

Start with 34%"x1"x1" block of soft wood. Drill k-
hole through the middle for neckerkeif. Carve to
desired shape, sand and paint. Wheels are faucet
washers and tacks.

CLIPBOARD SLIDE

A formica sample is the back of this clipbcard. A
clip from a stationary store holds down a few sheets
of paper cut small. Messages on clipboard can be
cHanged s Hot glue a vinyl loop on back.

POSTAGE STAMP SLIDE

Formica gample or thin board is base. Attach any
colorful or theme related postage stamp, and paint
with water and glue or plastic finish to protect it.
Glue vinvl loop to back.

OSCAR THE GROUCH SLIDE

Hot nail or drill two holes through the back of a
gray plastic film can for pipe cleaner loop. Glue
a large green pom pom into top, and large eyes to
this head. Glue lid on at an angle.

LIVE INSECT SLIDE

Use a clear plastic container, hot nail or drill tvo
holes in back for pipe cleaner loop, and in one end
for air holes. Put a small stick and a live tug inside
and replace lid. Release bug after each wearing.

SALT SLIDE
Usc a lunch box size container of salt,cmpty it, anc
Jut a hole through top and bottom for neckerkeif.

WALNUT SHELL SLIDES

Fill hollow with plaster and insert pop-top ring or
pipe cleaner ring. Decorate the top as desired using
markers, paint and felt.

WOODEN SLICE SLIDES

Slice a branch, with barkx, and affix small leaf,
pressed flower or such with water and glue mix or
draw vith fine tipped markers. Staple leather lo03>
to back



adhesive tapes to decorats.

rap materials. Shown are g card. :
d box transformed into a waste-" | ' - G

SV VN A $ S a1 RN S FRFE Saallame

ACHIEYE meN T

Tune: Do-Re-Mi

Do - To us means "Do Your Best, ™
Re - Are cheers for all the fun;
Hi - Is what I do myself
Fa - Means father, mom, and son.
So - What happens to our Pack?

. La - With lots of this and that?

earns carves or TL - Togethar, to the top!

%‘ﬂ“ its symbol on totem. Start from Then that brings us back to Do.

PARADE -

Another type of can crusher;
It uges g 18-inch 224 gng a
— four-:‘nch-louc strap  hinge,
S { Bolts and nults are bege for
fastening the kinge to wood,

_ | T - 4
3 1y g 4
SR e S

TRAY; For Mom. Use W.inch.

LBy

[ADVANCEMENT NECKERCHIEP. | of paper.touel cope. Por ems
" IDES,

lcm.u.n thick -cgupuood{qr wood from'a fryls
Soms boys enjoy wearing badge of rank Jrom small cyp Scout f,',‘,’:,‘},,‘:’,,‘: ::’; fg;:‘;zt:'“ugg,:
ir badge of rank ag q neckerchlef Insigniaq Stickars sheet, Supply No, Plece (s ¢34, by 8%-lnches. Handles
, :hum .‘t‘ad:l. ‘;: shown here but | 4649, OF pictures cut from o Scout cat. are made by W0 %-inch holes
a b‘dﬂ. s 3 alog, ) . P
Woodag Slide—Cut from 1/4-inch | Arrow Folat 8lide— Use grid to enlarge mh.d..p ;lr‘-‘um ;?&chp?wu. {f::
8¢ od with figsa:s or coping saw, | pattern ¢o 2 x 2 Inches. Dray on soft ends to fit bottom board. Nai together|
GL  iloop of umod or leather, wood and whittls. Paing goiq or silver, and paint gg desired and dscorate
Decal Blide—Cug bottom from 35mm Glue on loop of leather or heavy card. decalg, - e
film cannister or Use two-inch section board, . .




ACHIEVEMER T
FARADE

ERSICS FOR CEN AND FACX FLAG CERENMOIIES

The coior guard consist: of a caller, flag bearers, ar
The horior guard's furnction
it does not touch the floor
i3 posted with Ceremony it |

Opeiiing Commands

b

{A
fi
3. Hard salute.

4. Plecze allegiance

« Will the audience pleace rize?
« Color guard, advance OF
Present the colors.
S Arerican flag bearer taKes
rst step caller £aysS... )

LI (VI

(Caller lzads

and rest of color guard iz at
atteation. Pack flzg slightly 4.
dipped to focus attention on '

Amer ican flag.)

S. Coler guard post the colaors.,
{Arierican Tlag postead first -

cuvlor guard =
and steps bac

Tl . (A1l ¢

-J m

aluts

a 3 in unisorn
K. Same with Fack)

slutes
Color guard dizmizsed.

diropped.)

ON TO SCOUTING

d honor suards.,

is to protect the flag. The, make sure that
ahnd i: carried properly. UWhenever the flag
‘KET be retired.

Closing Commands

Will the zudierca Flzasz ri
Color guard, advince.
Retire the colors., {(Color guard face
the American flag. Bearer gives ths
Quiet commard “salute". Color guard
salute the flaz in unisori. American
flag is remcved first, then cthepr
flage are removed in uriizon.,

Color gsuard dismiszed. -

g7

[10)

{Tune: Shell Be Cumin' Round the Mountain) . .

He'll becume a little Bobcat when he's e;ght.
He'll becom: a little Bobcat when he's e%ght. )
lle will cowe tu all our seerings, and he'll smile at all our

gRreerings,

He'l'l be quite a handsowe Bobcat when he's eight.

He'll becore a fearsome Wolf before he's nine,

He'll becume a fearsome Wolf before he's nine. _

HE will snarl aud bark and growl, and he probably will howl,
He will make us very proud before he's nine.

He'll become a
lie'll buecnme a
He will have a
HE will huve a

He'll become a
He'll become a

great big Bear before he's ten,

#reat big Bear before he's ten,
fascination for each item in creation,
million yuestions when he's ten.

Webelos when he is ten,
Webelos when he is ten,

le will learn to give to others and he'll have a den of brothers,
le's a strong and happy Cub Scout when he's ten.

%¥e will send him on to Scouting at eleven,

We will send him on to Scouting at eleven,
We will wish him happy Scouting at a special Cub Scout outing,
This is pretty close to heaven at eleven.



ACHIEVEMENT PARADE .

Here 1s a good simple puppet show. Tre Cub Scout Puppets are made from
Jello boxes Covered with blue and gold paper. One Puppet is made to look
Tike a Boy Scout. As each Puppet says his part, a Cub Scout holds up one
of the large cardboard insignia posters for the appronriate rank.

st CS: I'm a 1ittle‘Bobcat ' A ‘

As you can plainly see, - \ _

, l've learned my Law and Promise _ -~ PPLEL )
S0 a full-f]edged Cub I'd be, Cover 2 C1le _

Gt 2 ow 1 Wolf Cub bores wirh lest, . . Q]

n : Now [ am a Yo u N(7=- Cclored Pa " '
With a gold arrow too, {% Pe pe Te b
S00n I'11 haye a Silver one )

To sew on my shirt of blue,

3rd CS: I'm in my second year now,
‘ And a Bear Cub I'ye become 8
I've even earned some denner stripes Add
When you work, they'11 give you one, Features add papen
4th CS: Webelos 1s the name for me, boAL’
- And now it is the time, - ‘ ,

They teach us to be Boy Scodts,
And the dads keep us in line.

Sth Cs: At last I am a Boy Scout :

o And my Cubbing days are done,
When'I think back the last 3 years,
It really has been fun, "

"6th CS: Once I was a box of Jello

Sitting in a store,

When a lady came and, bought me
And took me out the door,

She used me in a salad, ‘
And | thought my 1ife was doomed,
When she thre me in a basket
Where the other trash loomed,

Then this 1ittle Cub Scout
Came and rescued me, o
And told me that a Puppet I was going to be,
+ He gave me a face and a brand-new name,
hen started teaching me a puppet game..
-Now 1t's time for us to qo,
And we really hope youy liked our show,




OLD MA NATURE
{Tune: Auld Lang Svne)
Froem East tolwest
) ‘Frcnxrbrth to Scuth

Ma Nature's bac

Discovar things You'vg

Just yee Your ears and

K yard lieg,

read aboyt;

VILCANO CEMTER SKIT

(Boys are in & rather straggly 1:-
€agzerly waiting for the Velcano

Y ¥
to open. Add or delzte lines as n,

eeda«

Cub 1: I can't Wwait to szt in and sea
all the exhibits !

Cub 2: Me neither., Thiz iz 3cing to bs
best field trip oFf the whole

rYeanr,

direction

ins, T LY

ds in fr

€ompass; den chief in ron}
-alsg with a compags, .., >
_,On signal, firgt p) yer’
l‘l’lm: to the leé_derp v

o (As they talk, a m
“ixlfront oF the ling)

ection (North,”
Using the tompass, he find
tion, points to it, and runs b
off the ‘next player. If he
rcq;eane Point for hig te

ack to topch
'Wes. correct,
am; if wrong,

8core no points, T th the’ highest

scare wins, If th i
! .-!' T yo T TRen b

Ld
=,

water, In
ase, the needle wijp swin
-South

] Cub B: Hey, mister. You

. Cub ?: When are they goin

rce ls cen-
chief tq help

Cub 3: UWhen are they scing to Cpen ug’
We've beer here TOr agez!

s eub 4: 1 don't Know. It better be soor

wn walKs up to the
Cub 1: Hey! You neead to 30 to the back
Cub S: Yeah, ue were here first,.

(They pu:zh the men back to the €nd, by
he ztarts to uerk his way foruard zgai

can't 3o ahead
of us. Get in back!

(Again they shove the man back)

5 to ope. . 1
can't wait to see that movis., 1
shouws the nouritain erupting!

(One last time the man puches to the
front of the ling)

Cub 1: C'mcn, Mister! Lic've been here
all morning waiting for thic

: . -and how to find
g to @ ‘ "1, By
Mark tha n. dhmufyﬁvmﬂkjwm ] o

nd dark Waterprog bl i

._j;

e

Crater

Caalral veat

7618 of volcanig reck
m pravious lays liows

e . Ash and gas

- Flace to cpen. You've 35t neo
right to move ahead of ue:

Man: (Shrug:s his shouldersz and walks
away) I give upl Somebody else
Wwill have to unlock the dogor: and
Cperi the Canter today.

= CURTAIN -

VOLCANIC ACTION EROSION




MOUNT AIN TKAVLS f AMEL ICH

Yoo
el

SAMPLE NATURE TRAIL

*+

(Cards ara Prapared and placed
‘Y APPropriata iccations in
Varnca.J

1. "liat acuantain?® at spot that
pProvides gcod Viewpoint. 5
E. Mlnat insest?* lying is front |, S P H A
of ant nest. = PR Py leECn?h\ e S ‘ G b fu'e"'f"‘:ﬁd; )
S. "Doés this balong hare?* next gco TRAIL S8IGNS, Scratch themon - wau"”wwyl.uq{'};hh.. i Ria
¥ brokKan chickean ag3shalls., the ground "“'Li_f_‘j"f'f_'_‘_"","&'uﬂ'«, oy he A S dony
4. “LOGK up in trae. What do vou LAYING TRAILS
s€a?" Object s bird's nest.
cggtra SrmGiy mor tdentifying Cub Scouts can laarn to make = tr5§1 i? %éufra*r.
G303 or tree of trie.; § Mars. They can scraich the Scout Trail ngqilxn Thi
> ~?,,ne;:t:f.:e:: ;ﬁegozmgrip& dirt with a stick. A third uway thzt boys i
Teln, &

pow”

in i i3 “p *bload® (corn Karnels sprayed

R T?' o Gade holdi?g cofﬁwn- :?i;yr:; ;Ziiitpor distinctive s&eds alqng t:a_?::-
) :giéCT-TipaSSQprerj-buctlc. A sign might be placed guerr_:G feﬁt fn g:-r::gn:
3 Wp s PAd fo F i trr‘fq- L country, but existing trails may °“1f.”=ﬂ“;‘“ 3ns
> 9?:‘ :h;;r§=iz:gsh:£;ér ay signs at intersactions, forks, or trail eands.

Pl o (1 ]

maple traa,
5. "What living Things do you

5¢2 on this log7» lying up
against decaying log. (May
include moss, lichens, ants
or ant larvae, beatles,funsi,
salamandars, NéW seedl ings)
‘What animal?® at small caga
holding frog or garter snake.

11.%2% tapad to cedar tree,

12."Edible or Poison?® in frant
of foxglove, (Poison!)

PN edd e T

" ‘-=:" A ."1‘1"7'“ gl £ 4 ; :'1?1:‘ ".:.,:: Sl ;

' St Bl i TN L PR

TRttt N 'T‘J“"dg:‘;"h Sk oS . ’-'f.-" TN gt [ i "‘:'f' ; DeER it TR L '

SIT DOWN H IKE INDIAN TRAIL 8IGNS, Made "'Il" various ways as 'h""'{""’.‘l"ﬂfjnn on f"f
T I e S S T R TSR B e Sl g

ine as Hell as mimicKing actions)

Do vou want to go for a hike in the mountains?

All right, let's go)

Let's start walking. (Walking sounds with feat on floor)

Wa'll have to cross a bridge. (Palms on thighs to sourd like a tricze.)

Here we are across the bridge and horsas apa Haiting to take us up the
steepest paprt of the mountain. ¢Holg reins witp hands, Bounca up and doun
On chair while makKing clucking sounds with tongue A9ainst rocf of nouth to
found 1] iKe horses:® hooves on hard trail)

This is the end of the horse trail, Wa'll hike from here ts the glaciapr,

Oh, dear, We've run into a suyarm of mosquitos ¢
nNeck, slapping here and there,)

t's walk faster and get away from those mosquitos, (Walking scunds Spead up)

See cuer there: it's oyp 9lacier! (Shade &Yes and point) .

L »orun, (Running rhythm, slapping Palms on thighs)

Ar._ nou fop the fun...sit down on the 9lacier,
uhooshing sound, ending with & ‘Whee-eei*)

lle came doun a lot faster than ua went up,
back home ., (Walking sounds gradually fad

Start S5¢ratching at face and

and away ue g3 (Cive a

Keap orn trang ing and we'll :¢on be
@« than stop)



MOWRNTHR |0
“TQA&LS

"TAMER|CA

EﬂBﬂAﬁUﬂLﬁ—HIHH
Tune: On Top of Old Smoky

On top of Old Smoky,

All covered with snow.

We learned a great lesson.
All people should know.'

I met a Cubmaster,

A helper of youth,

He was roaming God's mountaias,
In search of the truth.

told me he found it

the red sunset glow,

the voice of the thunder,
the touch of the snow.

His truth was quite simple,
As plain as could be.

I'll never forget what

That leader told me. -

Do your duty te God,

To the red, white, and blue;
To all others be helpful,

To your ownself be true,

LITTERBUG SKIT

Players: Dirty Bugs and Tidy Bugce

(D-Bugs read by line or in unison)

My name is Litterbug Lou

And, OH, what we litterbugs do.

We clutter the country with papers and traszh,
At making & mess we are really a smazh.

The roadsides and parks are scanes of our foal!
We really enjoy it and think it quits Jolly

To leave behind garbage, bottles, and paperp
As little memzntos of our daily labor.

(T-Bugs read by, line or in unizonrn)

I'm TidyBug Ted of the TidyBug clan.:

We work to Keep things spic and Span.

We pick up litter uherever we arec

And aluays carry litter bags in cur car.
We'll K.O. Lou and all of his band,

And make America & baautiful land:

Free of litter, trash, and clutter,

Won't you help us, dear Fadder and Muttazr?:

T m——

"‘.:'T{' ’PAPEE.CU%'W i._ “'._':

BEAR IN TENNIS SHOES

The other day,..I met a bear
In tennis shees...A dandy pair,

I looked at him,..He looked at me
I sized up him,..He 8ized up me,

He said to Be...Y¥hy don't you run?
Cuz I gee you ain't,,..Got any gun,

‘l

And 80 I Tah...Away from there
But £ight behind...Me came that bear.,

Abead of me...I sawv a tree
A great big tree...Oh dearie me!

The nearest branch...das ten feet up
I'd have to Jjump...And

And 80 I jumped...Into the air

But I missed that branch,..Away up there.

Now don't you fret

eeeNow don't you frown
Cuz I caught that

The moral of...This story is
Don
The end,the end...the end, the end
The end,the ond.,.the end, the end.,

(Repeat together)
(Repeat together)
(Repeat together)
(Repeat together)
(Ropgat together)

trust my luck. (Repeat together)

branch,..On the way back down.

't talk to_bears..,In tennis shoes.(Repeat together)

(Repeat together)

LITTER BAG. Use pliers to benda coat
hanger as shawn. Fold topofpaper bag
WMIM wlrel{run;c and fasten :Pgbag
Wikh pager clips. You may want to pro-
tect the paper bag from wet trash with
@ plastic bag inside, Decorate as
degired wdthr,pictura-of.qnimql,‘s,,
birds, flowers, stc, _andAuJ'c“in ecar,

LITTERB UGs BEWARE!-
Tune: “Ayld Lang Syne"

. We are the folks who hunt the bugs
. That litter up our sireets R s w
With papers, bottles, old tin eans
'An\vuppcn?lt 'tbdrlwe_e,t'

We want to keep our Playgrow..u clean
'Without a ot of fuss. ~ - & .. - .
Let's start today to do our shar
No ltterbugs for ust .,

. - awerr d
No ltterbugs, no Utterbugs,
No litterbugs for us.

I-ll'l.llnlﬂ I-odaytod.oourshau 3
No litterbugs for ygt . _

(Repeat together)

(Repeat together)



T T e e e e s e — . — e
.

= B o W e e e SRR

— — —_ y e S T L g n gt :
- J— ot R — L e e P ipt
W e IR e e B e i . ey

. ) l‘l._ S 4 . % i, g | -

€9 T W - Trome I:J..l;!.“i.N@’:..lfil...iu.”lflll,i.!}‘l|s\ T T

"oy 19 1) Jo) a4e3 & ydwane nok

W 3a141n8 flpe aumyeass o 19Y) 22uBY2 31| waudy;
MR CAQIRau Buipiy w sayiow ayy aue wumy)
SUOIR 1) 2483 |RWIUE Aqeq W weoudw ausca L 1]
T 24Pl Aquq RaLl ]

Sjuo uing “jov jwaauny ag
<HNPL P2 Naawa prap

"Paamdaud an

G uo aay) anos Piinq pus
10 42108 ayy Swwe Hwig
S248) Wipw [njaawd agg

Pun Buiyiop waew KLaaw))

WAL UL Mous uaAa S0 ey U183 0) uny woup a¥uwy

NP uiEunows (9 Joy veauye easd Jo 2y
© ¥ A0ul g aauLe ayp Burinp ISWIUT quninp you g
SHIPH® Pupaajupm 1334 g

UBD a0y gy swiog WA “wappna 249y vurmuno
Sppdes sdueysy ues EEUTTLEYTY

Njiwd) paysew uo Amg Ny oy 1ui] umsola

AN sawag

M) ] (1w Moy wimunow v U0 UEI ¥ In0 1 Liawd
—vujmunout uy Yuudy Joyie pue Jdeqiud WA 1,uuq]
Bnqian) ® 2q yuaq

op o) tou

M) U0 1 wun Jey) aaoqe v ImiyIeg (jvwe
LREFL AR ET 4Mag] punoad ayy ue Puj no poom puap

HBW 0} YZAnoud oy iww BaApuny ays
AAum y ANBEAL AADN IaM sosvuaA pus

% wo _..__.::cc__
ELILRULITT T
Hima) upmpunow uo .—.I-U.

V4% pus op u) jeym mouy

DS IS 3y ) wuiejunow [WELLE B AR TITE VIR PR |
A1y 01 op uwa sn 10 Y2 Hunyy sumw aue Ay g

TSurejunow oy ur 91n0A g A

=

LIV 341 21 qoo| tuiod 153y oy 0P Ay m [adpy
[LLEN A LT TL RIS TR Ay iy pue 19ydy 138 nok
S¥ UUIAIS Yawa u) o nogop aftppw JO puty yey g jauy
M1 IY) Anoq ag8 yooq 1 S0P IRY g aoydry Qi nof
U HURY2 15300 21 saup MOH P gy vsoa0w Suranp Iy
SO W UL nof pudajasd Uy § pRos ayy ue Jun
10 LU opRaojory yrey BN Ul ws3aenhpeay
Bl 0 Ny praow Y1 Ul SpRes dnwwRrip pow
PUR ISy Yy jo suo 1 yamd 241 yInoay) peos sy
U AIPIY (1o g, wsaow disy Swutewt un aym RELE
[Runn Ry uiniuno ._.,_.52 ) mop M| 10U 0p nox I

S pea) woade dyay

341 Futmoys wasowy gy

PuT suoneaqnd sayjo pus SHIzENRW Woa) o pprw
Uisjunow jo sdurjured PU® sydeidojoyd tno ny
b o LL PRSI ujRjunopy

PUR Jasap sarswad W) o}

i} parvduwoy Julwunow jo sduwa Yana jo 1Y Bray EIVILTEY]

ON 10 dew aysew.saudmg

® pring uayg n.:.q_.._uc_!:_f. puw NN ) Balidwy
Yldon ur sodumy uwRjunow sofews nwy M zv:.m
SUIRunow jo duw I W gy

OISR Jnng ug xoq Hiy

B Ul 10 pans [ooyas snof Ul uopaed sunlin uw wosy puw

SUIRIUNOW 43 Ul aanp iy ajqu #

NI Yaua woy But)a sasmnd Y1 d3pun suondes
Hsuawwng -:l—-_.:u _w-_._; J.g.qd.—: SER[D W Ed L)

Op ued noA s3109(o1g

QUL DY) ul mosd viam

nuepd g0 spaay 40) puag “aur| aag) Y} droqw Swopeau

3 JO Spury 1mym vl
udpawd duplie yw uwp g

el e o + =

s

08202 "' ‘unrBuryse "U01IEa13Y Joopin() jo nwaing ‘20208
00 “13ruaqg “Pang wen qrrt ‘JuawuciAug uo 4AU3) uivjunopy
L0y gzpgz AM 'Lty ssadivy ‘opz xog ‘0'd “aug ‘aduatajuo)
L'RLL ustyawreddy ‘99120 v ‘uorsog 1eeng fop g ‘qn|J urelunoy
Latuomteddy 2001 AN H104 maN 19301S Y106 15e £ 1 1 ‘qn|) audyy
UBLRWY Ny 1euqey pun APIM urmunow jnoqe pawiojur ag

"AB1aua ayy Butupw ase am AYm 3T PIrm ayy djay 19nw
M “UPIIm uoaamy 14 SlwJautur asayy joyuswdo|anap ayy 123]Ja 18y m
aundy o) £13 puw ‘sa¥ues utelunous yjoq ur punoy sjwsaunw qen|ea
3y £pmg sy ayy Jo 1no 1o ayy 193 01 moy Buiuiwa) st wajqoad
YL, "SANI0Y ay1 uf 10 3[mys PU® 80D st 31313 ‘sumiyorjaddy ay) ul |eod
81 343y [, "wariaut v yraop jo SUIBIUNOW 3y) Ul JurpUNge 318 sa21nosal
£313u3 18y mouy ogfu M 815112 L 13ua ay1 noqe yonw PR3y daey 2 gy

Ayieay uivwal o) aswds Butar y3noua Jamy
[l!M 3p1pim uiwjunow yey) aunsse o Butop a1 L3y yrym jno puij puw
‘0¥20Z "0°qQ ‘unBuiysey ug arasag 15940, s:e1g panun ays jo jaryy
3y} puw Jorzau] ayy jo £1m1a102g ayy o) Ny Btpptw diay oy Auop
2J® sjuawyaedap uoneasasuod 41341 18y M 100 puyy 07 satErs urejunow
34103 114 “swatw padAnd pur ajowras ur Auaig sof payins gt Moy jno
Pulq ‘sutsjunow ayy ur saar( YEHI AN [P(!M 241 Inoge ued nof v UNLE

‘Pasasasaad
SSAUIIP[IM 3Y) JumM nok wiry Bupx UBwisEa18uoy) anos Nidpy ‘seaie
353Y1 ut spunosdduwes agnd to SPHOI OU 3q [[1m 343y [ -ajip[im day
lI!™ 3%y} puw ‘paniasasd aq ([ sBaIB [BAMB N "SuwIUNOW 3yj ut aue
9537 Jo 1Soy ‘sRauR SS3UI3P[IMm Jo uoisurdxa Butsapisuod s ssa1duoy)

JUOUN[OS 9y} ST Jey

|

Bulmunow ayy ojut Juraow ase suonjesado Buwuiw puw
d3quuny ‘safe|[1a ‘sado(s 4§ ‘Juipuedxa aue sfemysIy ‘spum| uigjunow
dofa13p 01 sfem asow Burpuyj s1 uepy "aunssaad 43pun 3w aptipyim jo
Spury fuew sywad Pe33nJay) uruana Ing ‘3alains o) 3P|Im urBjUnOW
40} J315®a 11 apew sey siy ‘21941 sawoy ysijqeisa 03 pus Speod pling
01 M0[s Uaaq sey urws S13UIM y3no ‘Juo) ARy pur yHiy w._uz

£3y3 asnwdag ‘surmunow 341 3uie 01 yn21g51p 91 punoy sey ue

=
0d NOA Ue) yeym




“YUDq urps.ss ‘spoom ' ‘uspuob

40 JYB)URS 11nf v} 3) 398 Snp ynm
vvm'} p!w‘mdo spus YI0q yrim ‘Upo ujy
D 198 do3 LD yymow w77 usho

L

: m— T - e EE > ] i was e e -‘m moas
v, g qno flom ‘et ool SPAT 998 ‘S3Dsf Pq 23420 204 wncP erErd dob *proy
‘umvy weuf 1108 Jusaslfip Aur ‘usdod 3403 101 wo 2avs] 20 pup el wo suspusdsp Pmssey *pnq
®y3 o3uo nof 1nm Asyy. puo proaumop SETID38q snUIIUGS 38 nofl ‘potusd pros fo BumnnBeq v png Buypess yivre
#30b8U} 1jos Buyao)-dimisjors saysp i JOY1 Loquiswsyt Pees pujq Prim yien seurpTucs.

e 502y ML yBy Sioee wp sepm : ‘sof

‘woLps pemeys 40 SXDYENTIW “Yated saf tamop you)-'Y
*o9301d 1)0f wiinupwnge ‘snm 158udyrvos sen ‘w3gEI4 e JILVROLNY
Db i ] W i A Tt T T e el S0 .

.o

3 e e
i L

J e oy

10f maissafs PPV ‘Swoss ssmoyS
03 2116 puv uvoqqs Wodf moq 1yowse
23R ‘dolunq o3uo smb PUD s1amoyf
molis fo 1anbnogq ‘oﬂunuv-:ﬁm.y
Jo 3p1s 3514 01 9m16 pup 3501 dorimq fo
12419 InY 5t UpLMO uIboom D ums
403u12d ‘IN6VId ¥IMOTL TTVRS

5
'v'r x

UGH uULind

pexD

Plox: ‘NoIL

Ayl

o N

R SRR
Puv . Jodod paxbm 4000 sododemeu
And ‘seaps) Jo s40miolf 4900 dodud

- 'HOOH iMooy qnY srom ‘zr sapon gy
‘Bupmvig vy umoys poyjsw jjousys
7 4O ‘sinosg qny 303 ®3381) ‘2p
»6od ‘poyssw. Bupad 33019 oapyod
b ".r.tm:aru BXOVNL TVvRIN

;.7‘ K o

filsys pﬂmﬁvﬂ ‘.‘;m..n.-.tn:ﬁ.q 'mp&zad ‘--&b};‘ '$Bu)qqns suoIssdnsB Jof pesn
~d1ts Y5119 fo 341q Uo 159q sy.iom ohbiu | poyssiu ows 3yl Aig £29.13 yoq-yy0OWE
Y233 Y1 “Uofivio v Jo apitayi yapen Jo sBuyqqni Y| Swisynd Butissunru)
qnd A1inf100 pus 9. ay) 01 sadnd oy | $ADW upo nox ‘SONTEENY $nrve TIer

e, S .

TV ST PP Y (%0 AR wesarar g of £ 0 sy
m-mr—v;a.n-‘vma..’:.n.%;*u.
'!u"'ﬂ;.’v.’w.m.ﬁd'“zlwtvmpmwu
n-wwvmnm'mumwm-o
ﬂﬂ‘mnmmwmwzc‘mofwmu

YOV INWY
ﬂ_o
SNYAL  NIYNNOW

ALER TS T e _‘Saluowaia;)|
%904 puo udq Bu,rSurs'u:o;j_&udmmaa
WSupeay _n_i:uodnquog_ doopinp,
34} wiojied uap SA®H—8uruadg

wmhrqwmup
X O o 1 o s | o Y ppua pum ey
- a5 o o ovem post

R 2oy ey pa BOW-OUTATON X
T Ly oy o | shopad 0 9 mapms o o

R By Bwsw pa | peda o Ldd amand
PP 23y 4w 2 130001 31 8 Hveorsa) 3
D11 05072 1 1 § 1% 0y pum gt oy 5 03y L
Hﬂl‘wm_rt—mmml

Mospr, ey
LAREY P e syt pos gy ds fory e | Tevm
-H-n-l-qruuqqqlq-p-nq
""!-'IFI"MMMIMDI

~ oy Lo op pa | vy 8 gy
3po] Joopyng




WEBELOS - CVERVIEW

TWO YZAR PRCGRAM
A. lst YEAR - 4th GRADERS
B. 2nd YEAR - Sth GRADERS
Ce. 20 ACTIVITY BADGES
1., PHYSICAL SKILLS
a. AQUANAUT
b, ATHLETE
c. FITNESS
d. SPORTSMAN
2. MENTAL SKILLS
a. ARTIST
b. SCHOLAR
Co SHOWMAN
d. TRAVELER
3, COMMUNITY
a, CITIZEN
b. COMMUNICATCR
c. FAMILY MEMBER
d. READYMAN
4, TECHNOLCGY
a., CRAFTSMAN
b. ENGINEER
c. HANDYMAN

d, SCIENTIST






5. CUTCCCR
a, FORESTER
be GEZOLCGIST
Cce NATURALIST
d. OUTDCORSMAN
ITI. STEPS TO CCNDUCT ACTIVITY BADGES
A. BECCME FAMILULAR WITH REQUIREMENTS
B, DEFINE LEARNING OBJECTIVE
C. DEFINE TASK
1, WHO WILL TEACH ACTIVITY BADGE
a. PARENT
b. REGISTERED LEADER
C. PROFESSIONAL
2. WHAT INFORMATION I3 AVAILABLE
a., HANDOUTS
b. BOOKS
ce. OTHER RESOURCES
3. WHERE CAN RESQURSE BE FOUND
a. BUSINESSES
b, PECPLE
Cce. PUBLICATICNS
1. PERIODICALS
2. BOOKS
3. PAMPHETS
4, HCW WILL INFORMATION BE PRESENTED
a. LECTURE
b. BUZZ GROUPS
Ce ﬁ(AMPLES

d. DEMONSTRATION






WHY ARE THERE FIVE CATAGORIES

a. TO FORM WELL ROUNDED PROGRAM

EVALUATS OQUTCOME

a. PRESENTATICN

b. CHANGES NECESSARY

Ce DIFFZRANCEZ IN DELIVERY






II.

III.

IV,

SAMPLE QUTLINE

TRAVELER

DEFINE REQUIREMENTS

Ao

G.

GET A MAP OR TIME TABLZ - LCCK UP PLACES TO GO
USE TIMETABLES TO PLAN TRIP

FIND COST TO TRAVEL

TAKE A TRIP WITH PARENTS OR GUARDIAN

LIST FQUR NEARBY TRIPS YCU WCULD LIKE TO TAKE
PACKX SUITCASE

CHECKX FIRST AID KIT FOR FAMILY CAR

DEFINE LEARNING OBJECTIVE

A, TO UNDERSTAND THE METHODS AND MEANS OF TRAVEL

INTRODUCE INSTRUCTCR

CONDUCT ACTIVITY BADGE

A,

Be.

INTRODUCE SUBJECT AND POINTS TC BE COVERED
DISCUSS REASONS FCR KNCWING HCW TO TRAVEL
1. PLANNING
a, TIME TABLES
b. COST
ce PACKING
2o DURING TRAVEL
a., TIME TABLE
b. LOCATIONS - STOPS
3. ARRIVAL
4, RETURN TRIP
DEMONSTRATICN
l. USING TIME TABLES - PLAN ROUTE

2. FIGURE CO3T

2 P A T A e






CCNDUCT EXERCISE
ZVALUATE

QUESTIONS & ANSWERS






UNDERSTAND BOYS

In 2 diciplined den or pack, a great deal can be accomplished.

A rowdy den or pack, on the other hand, can accomplish little in
the way of program and certzinly offers few chances for nelping
boys develop craracter. One of the attributes of a good citizen
is his ability to_live comfortably within the restrictions of the
law. To train boys fcr citizenship, we must teach them the imper-
tance of discipline within each individual. Baden-Powell said:
"You can only get discipline in the mass by discipline in the
individual®",

It has been glibly stated that a good active program will
eliminate discipline problems in the den or pack. This is true to

2 degree, but even a top-notch program won't solve the protlem of
the individual boy wnho wants to cause trouble, 'Jjust for the heck

cf it'. - Boys cause trouble when they are uninterested, and certainl

a gcod crogram will help keep them interested and active, but it
isn't the whole answer. Here are a few other ideas which will help

maintain discipline.

i....Insist on attention when talking. Boys who want to get on with
the activity will help quiet the noisy ones.

+.Don't shout or yell. Use the Cub Scout sign to get attention.

++...Have 2 good pre-opening activity. Trcuble starts when a few
Cubs arrive early and don't have anything to do. Once you've
lost control, it's hard to regain it.

«+s..Praise in public - criticize in private. Public criticism
arouses resentment.

.Make full use of the advancement program. Boys advancing
usually don't cause much trcuble. ,

-Keep den meetings going at a fast pace with lots of activity
and interesting things to do. Prevention is better than cure.

.Give boys responsibility and expect them to meet it. When
they have responsibility, they don't have to cut up to get
attention.

«++..Get the boys into uniform. A uniformed group has better dis-
cipline than one that is not. Set a good example.

«+...Get to know each boy. Find out what makes him "tick'.

+++..Be impartial. Don't let any one boy get away with something
that you would not tclerate from another.

..Let a new Cub know what you and the den expect of him, such as
regular attendance, advancement, proper behavior, Cub Scout

spirit.

.++..Always mean what you say. Never threaten unless you intend
to carry it out.

+v¢..Be firm in a friendly manner.



BOY BEHAVIOR

Understanding boys can be the key to keeping your sanity at den meetings,
- With this in mind, here are some helpful hints about discipline, preventive
measures, and needs of boys.

WHAT IS DISCIPLINE?
==Discipline is: “ .
getting limits
enforcing limits
letting consequences fit the problem
caring enough about the child to help him shape his character
_ ==Discipline is NOT:
punishment
controlling behavior temporarily
a ‘power struggle you win
--Discipline builde pride, teamwork, loyalty, and gives boys more time fer fun.
~<Discipline helps the boy understand that he needs to be responsible fer
correcting the problem, and not the leader,

NEEDS OF BOYS
-=Recognition
" ==Friends
--Belonging
==Adventure
==Fun
-=Achieving
-=Freedom te experiment
==T¢ be heard

e=iWell=-planned den and pack meetings

--Have den rules, and be sure each boy knows them and the consequences
-=Geod cenduct candle

~=Use the Cub Scout sign

-=Insist en attentien when you're talking

--Have a pre-epening activity

~=Praise in public, criticise in private

--Make full use of advancement

—Oive potential troublemakers a specfic job or responsibility
-<Wear uniforms! Boys and leaders

--Get to know each boy and what makes him tick; families, toe
-=Fegllew through on consequences

--Be FIRM, FRIENDLY, AND FAIR



SEPTEMBER 1990 THEME

THIS TOWN IS YOUR TOWN

{ Tune: This Land is Your Land)
( Words by Mary Shiffer, Pioneer District)

This town is your town.

This town is my town.

From the shopping centers,

To the wooded playgrounds.

From the fire station,

To the church we pray in.

This town is made for you and me.

As I walked downtown,

I looked around me.

I saw my neighbors

And they waved to me.

I thought about it

I'm glad I live here.

This town is made for you and me.

(Repeat first verse)

Den Activities.

This is a good month to explore you community with field trips.
The local fire station, police station, hospital, McDonald's or
grocery store provide good places to visit. 1In town hikes are a
great idea. For new Wolves, a neighborhood hike that goes by each
boy's house is a nice idea to help them all get acquainted. 1E
your pack is church sponsored, you might contact your pastor or
congregation board of directors and visit with them and get a tour
of the church and talk about duty to God.

Make a special board game that centers around your neighborhood.
Fashion it after Monopoly or Life or be creative and do your own

thing as a den.

Bobcat ceremony.

Layout streets on the meeting room floor. Use butcher paper or
shelf paper. make street signs that say Bobcat Ave., Wolf Drive,
Bear Lane, Webelos Blvd. Call up boys who are getting their
Bobcat badge along with parents, line them up on Bobcat Street,
and say: "Boys you are beginning your journey as a Cub Scout.
You have learned about Akela, the Cub Scout motto, the Cub Scout
promise, the law of the pack and what it means to be a Webelos
Scout. This is just the Beginning. Give Out Badges to parents.






Parents will you help your sons reach the next street on their
journey in Scouting? Pack 000, Will you help these boys grow so
that they can reach Webelos? New Bobcats, Will you help the pack
go? Congratulations, Pack 000 Welcomes you and is proud of you.
We want you to keep this plaque to remind you of your journey along
the scouting trail."






PROPS AND COSTUME IDEAS.

Clown: Use rubber balls or tennis balls for clown noses. Use a
plastic foam ball with a depression scooped out to fit the nose.
Attach with invisible tape or a rubber band. Large foam balls can
be carved into any shape. Ears can be made from construction
paper. They should be 6 or more inches in length. Make tabs at
top of ear so that they can be folded over and taped to the real
ear. Shoes can be made out of old inner tube, vinyl or heavy
cardboard. They should be four to five inches longer than the
clown's real shoes. He g)ips them over ankles before putting on

real shoes.

EAL

Calliope: Put various sizes of cardboard tubes in a wagon. Tape
them together and place a tape recorder with a tape of calliope
music in the center of wagon. Use '"calliope" in the pack circus
parade.

Strong man bar bells: Use a broom stick and two equal sized
cardboard boxes painted black. Use white cut out numbers on from
and back of each box to indicate the weight of the bar bells.

Strong man's Costume. Dye old long underwear a flesh pink color.
Stuff arms and legs with cotton or polyester fiberfill to resemble

huge muscles.

Animal Costumes: Donated old long underwear, pajamas or sweats
(may also be purchased at thrift stores. Paint or glue tiger
stripes, zebra stripes, giraffe dots etc. Horse manes can be made
of rug yarn glued on. 2Animal masks can be made from a variety of
media. Refer to the Cub Scout How to Book for mask ideas.







UNDER THE BIG TOP
MAY 1990

Circus Tie Slides

Elephant:

Lion:

ke 0({'5'
L@ﬁh Ch gf\cf( le

L
down

Grey 1 1/2" pom poms, grey thick chenille pipe
cleaners, thick tacky glue, 4mm wiggle eyes.

Wrap one chenille pipe cleaner tightly around a
pencil. Remove and slightly bend to the shape of a
trunk. Glue onto pom pom. Glue eyes onto pom
pom. Make ears by coiling pipe cleaners into a
solid oval shape. Glue end down and glue to

head. Cut a 5" piece of pipe cleaner and make
into a small ring. Slightly flatten the ring and
glue to the back of the elephant head. Allow to
thoroughly dry.

Brown Loopy or Curly Chenille, 1" , 3/8%", 1/2"
beige pom poms. 1/4" black, white and red pom
poms, brown chenille pipe cleaners, thick tacky
glue, 4 mm wiggle eyes.

Cut loopy chenille to go around the 1" pom pom for
the mane. glue to pom pom. Glue 1/2" pom poms
for ears. Glue 1/2" and 2 3/8" pom poms for
muzzle. Glue black pom pom for nose and red pom
pom for mouth. Glue white pom poms for eyes and
glue wiggle eyes on top of white pom poms. Cut 5"
piece of brown chenille and form ring. Slightly
flatten ring and glue to back. Allow to dry
thoroughly.

B/ack







GAMES AND STUNTS:

Purchase a circus print fabric panel. These are available in
clowns and animals for about $2.50 to $4.00 a panel. Use heavy
cardboard or purchase plain white mat board from a framing shop.
Affix the panel to the cardboard using fabric glue or double sticky
carpet tape. Cut out Eyes, nose, mouth of panels using an exacto
knife. Use board for target games such as catapulting cotton balls
through opening or using Q-Tip darts blown through large diameter
straws. Velcro dart games can be made by affixing hook portion of
velcro on parts of the panel and using small stuffed balls made out
of soft material such as velour or felt.

Bean Bag toss games can be made by decorating large cardboard boxes
as circus animals or clowns and having a large opening for the
mouth. The boys can make and design these.

THE FAR SIGHTED TIGHT-ROPE WALKER. Set a ten foot long piece of
rope or heavy string on the ground or carpet. challenge the boys
to walk the tight-rope. When they say, "That's easy", hand them
a set of binoculars and instruct them to look through the wrong
end. This will make everything seem far away and changes the
visual perception field.

A FINE BALANCING ACT. Any boy can be an expert juggler. Attach
plastic plates and cups loosely to a dowel with a thin

nail. They will wobble a little and astound the pack as long as
the boys don't get too daring and try to do the impossible.

MOM AND POP RELAY. Parents of each den make up a team. You may
wish to pre-select 4 or 5 parents who are good sports to
participate. For each team you need an umbrella, bucket, folding
chair, old hat, and ka:zoo. Place the chair and bucket on the
ground in front of each team, with umbrella, hat a kazoo in the
bucket. Establish a turning line about 20 feet away. On signal,
first player on each team picks up the chair and bucket and runs
to the turning 1line. He unfolds chair, sits on it, opens the
umbrella, puts on the hat and blows the kazoo. Then he puts hat,
kazoo and refurled umbrella in the bucket, refolds the chair, and
carries the bucket and chair back to the start. Next player
repeats the action, and son on until all have run. First team
finished wins. Award winning den with a "clowning around" ribbon
for their den doodle. (Program helps 1984-85)

CLOWNING AROUND The object is to make the other players laugh by
making faces, doing tricks, and making funny noises. No words may
be spoken, but the clowns may bark, grunt, whistle hum, etc. A
boy is eliminated when the leader spots him smiling. Last boy in

the field wins.

THE CIRCUS BAND One den or perhaps all the pack parents or all
the den leaders may be the circus band. Each person has a kazoo
and is instructed to play any number of common cub scout songs

during circus acts.






MORE PACK MEETING IDEAS:

The pack circus is a time for family fun. Since May weather is
often fairly good, you may wish to have an outdoor circus with a
hot dog barbecue. Set up your circus ring. The Cubmaster dresses
up as the ringmaster. Set up side show activities and/ midway with
games of skill. Each den can contribute one display for the side
show or a game for the midway. Games should require little or no
instruction so that they do not have to manned. Popcorn , pop,
candy and peanuts are just a few of the items that can be sold for
fundraising. (Of course the circus can be done indoors as well,
but the size and use restrictions of the room need to be considered

when planning is done.)

The pack meeting can begin with the circus parade led by the
Ringmaster. The ring master should introduce den acts with flowery
circus language such as "death-defying", "stupendous",

"first appearance in this country", "Brought to you at staggering

expense."

Den acts may include magic, clowning around and even Bike Rodeo
events of skill done in the center ring.

Advancement Ceremony: Ringmaster or animal trainer announces the
following:

Ladies and Gentlemen, Boys and Girls. This circus is concerned
about the endangered animals of the world. Because of this, I have
let my wild lions, tigers and bears go back to the wild. I have
found though that tonight, right here in Pack 000, we have a group
of well trained Bears and Wolves who may be able to help me out.
These Wolves and Bears have proved that they are brave, strong and
worthy to perform in this famous Circus. Will the following Wolves
and Bears come into the ring with their trainers ( parents).

Have parents line up single file on one side of the ring, boys
single file on the other. Have a large hula hoop ring decorated
with crepe paper streamers. Call each boy's name individually,
wave animal trainer's whip and have boy jump through the hoop while
their trainer offers encouragement. Present- badge to parent.

Repeat for each boy.

If you have Tiger Cubs graduating this month, you may wish to bring
them up and have them jump through the hoop too as part of their
graduation and welcome to the pack.






CuUB SCOUT

PUPPETS
AND
SKITS

Columbia Pacific Council
Mid-Columbia District

For more information or questions:

Florance Ryan 296-5129
Dale Buckles 298-8441
Kathleen Thompson 298-8350

Charles Thompson 298-8350






WELCOME TO THE WONDERFUL WORLD OF PUPPETS!

CAUTION!

Puppets are contagious! They are to all
ages, children and adults alike, probably
more to boys of Cub Scout age than others.
Puppetry is used effectively in education,
entertainment, speech development, drama,
therapy, music and advertising. It helps
develop self-confidence, positive self-image,
social relationships, physical skills and,
most of all, imagination. A shy boy is
willing to participate in puppetry because
the focus of attention is on the puppet
rather than himself.

Puppeteers can open the door to an
exciting, enchanting world of make-be-
lieve. They are a means of self-expres-
sion. The puppeleer can improvise and act
out his feelings of the moment, often shar-
ing thoughts, ideas and feelings he may be
otherwise too shy or hesitant to express.
Puppetry provides wonderful opportuni-
ties to develop and make use of skills.

What is this thing called a puppet?
Simply explained, a puppet is a figure of a
person, animal, or object that is made to
move by the efforts of a human being--
child or adult. It gets its **life"” and **per-
sonality”® from that person’s efforts and
imagination.

Puppets belong in a child’s world be-
cause they are:
fun
educational
entertaining

Puppets have the potential to:
stimulate a child’s imagination
provide ways in which a child can
express his creativity
assist a child in expressing his thoughts
and feelings
help achild develop his listening and
verbal skills
give a child opportunities to use and
develop his small muscles
provide opportunities for socializa-

tion in which children are con-
structively planning, working
and playing together

Puppets can be used specifically
as an art or craft project
to tell or dramatize a story
to teach facts or concepts
to play musical instruments or sing
songs
to recite poems, facts
to ask or answer questions
to impart information
to make announcements
to distribute prizes

to give directions and/or instructions
for role playing

And, puppets can be made and used at
home
school
church
social functions
recreation programs

KINDS OF PUPPETS

There are many kinds and varieties of
hand puppets and each one possesses a
character and personality of its own. The
complexity of the hand puppet is gauged
by the methods and techniques used to
construct the head. There is no right or
wring way to make puppets, but rather
there may be a best way for each individ-
ual. The following ways are those pre-
sented in this paper.

Finger puppets- bare painted features
onor use glove and make several like mice
or one single to fit one finger.

Hand Puppets-bare hand or mitten
same idea. Other hand puppets to fit over
hands: envelop, sock, pieces of felt, box,
paper plate, paper cup, paper sack, folded
paper, moving mouth-hand.

Rod puppets or stick, shadow puppets
cylinder or tube paper mache simple mari-
onettes, wooden spoon, forks, shadow with
hands, puppet partners-bib puppets, stuffed
animals, egg carton, animated alligator-
scissors, coat hand, chatterbox, purchased
ones.

Collectibles to make puppet heads:

Old gloves, paper plates, paper bags
old mittens, cardboard tubes, paper cups,
match boxes, wash clothes, Styrofoam balls,
small cereal boxes, men’s handkerchiefs,
men's/boy’s socks

Fabric: scraps of fabric of various
weights and textures, plain, printed, new
or from used garments, felt.

Bits and pleces: Part of the charm and
individual character of each puppet is created
with this and that. Keep a box on hand
always sort items as they are related:

Buttons, beads, toothpicks, egg car-
tons, old jewelry, clothespins, ribbon, scraps
of yam, pipe cleaners, glitter, string, cord,
rickrack, braids, feathers, sequins, lace,
wire coat hangers, straws, waxed paper,
upholstery fringes, sponges, popsicle sticks,
corks, small boxes, coffee cans, seashells.
There are many more items to collect- use
your imagination, before you throw it away
think can [ use this?

Also needed: pencils, stapler, paint,
glue, felt pens, brushes, tape, crayons, pa-
tience, scissors, rubberbands, pin-straight,
safety, paper clips, rulers, hole punch.

Make all kinds of puppets from all sorts
of materials. Youcan make splendid pup-
pets from inexpensive materials and a very
fine theater, exciting puppets and theater
quickly.

Make Puppets--Have Fun!

LIGHTING FOR PUPPETS

1. Darkening the room and illuminating the puppets or stage with spot lights helps
an audience see the show, it also builds as atmosphere by providing a focal point for

the viewers attention.

2. Caution: too much light wipes out puppets features. Experiment with lighting
in all different ways and from various angles, check for unwanted shadows.
3. Use beam of light from a slide, filmstrip or overhead projector directly onto

stage.

4. Gooseneck lamps, light sockets with clamps or light bars, also are good sources.

5. Special effects can be obtained by using black lights, colored cellophane over
lights, dimmer switches, flickering Christmas lights,

6. Make sure lights are placed so they do not shine in audience eyes. Housing for
lights can be made from tin cans, such as coffee cans, which can be sprayed black.
Caution: Make sure all light cords are set where no one will trip over them. Best to
attach overhead or if on floor- tape cords down.

7. Color, too, plays an important part in creating mood. Note the following: Blue

light on which scenes--ice and cold; Red light on white scenes-- suggests warmth,
mystery; Yellow or Green light-- spring or growing things; Pink light-- fun and
comedy.

8. Lights should support story and action.







SPECIAL EFFECTS

Musical Sounds and sound effects make a puppet or Cub Scout production more lively and vivid. Unusual and comical sounds
can result from the use of bells, drums, gongs, cymbals, castanets, triangles, whistles, horns, rattles, natural objects such as gourds

or coconut shells, and even pots and pans.

Thunder- Grasp a tin or aluminum
cookie sheet at one end, placing your thumb
on underside of tin. Shake so it vibrates.
Bang it against knee for occasional loud
clap of thunder. Or a piece of tin 3/4" long
and 1" wide is suspended. Shake it to
produce thunder. For single crashes, strike
the tin in the center with a rubber hammer
or rubber heeled shoe. Bend a heavy sheet
of cardboard violently back and forth so
that it moves in waves,

Rain- Fill a tin biscuit or cookie jar 1/
3 full of dry peas or beans, rotate slowly.
Or plastic pill bottle or nail container with
BBs inside-rotate slowly or sprinkle dried
peas or rice onto a metal baking dish, or
roll marbles around in a cardboard carton.

Hail- pour rice on pane of glass, tin or
wood-- into microphone.

Wind-Hail-Rain-- Shake alarge sheet
of brown wrapping paper like a rug. The
size and weight of the paper makes the
difference in sound. Grasp a sheet of
waxed paper with a hand on each side.
With an accordion- playing movement,
alternately crush and smooth out paper.
Cut a narrow slit in a sheet of paper, hold
it 1/2" from lips and blow into micro-
phone.

Wind- or pull a smooth stick across the
tightly stretched piece of silky material.
Orcutanarrow slitin a piece of paper, then
holding it about 1/2" from lips, blow to
make sound.

Storm-Combine wind, rain, and thun-
der sounds, then turn stage lights off and
on to produce flash of lightning.

Lightning-Use a flash attachment from
a camera, or flicker stage lights back and
forth (on and off) quickly.

Snow or Magic Dust-Throw up soap
flakes or paper confetti. Small pieces of
white paper fanned off a flat box top will
give a snow effect. Moth flakes or Christ-
mas snow can be dropped from above.

Mist,Fog, or Smoke- Blow corn starch
or baking soda through a narrow tube by
squeezing a container filled with this which
is attached to one end. Dry ice can be
sprinkled with water just prior to the time
for the special effect.

Running Water- A woodenbox 1'x 2'
x 2" is fitted with tin on the bottom and
ends. Finishing nails are driven into the
bottom and ends in a 1" diamond pattern.
Place a small amount of lead into the box,
tilt, and the sound of running water is
produced.

Gurgling Stream or Bolling Liquid-
Put a straw into a cup of water and blow
hard.

Fire- Create dancing shadows in front
of a red light by placing something that
moves in front. Streamers can be placed
on the front side of a fan at low speed. For
sound, crumble cellophane into ball. When
released, it will crackle like flame.

Campfire- (lightning effect)- Wood
piled overalightor flashlight with red cel-
lophane or tissue paper covering the light
for a red glow. Or use red light bulbs.

Spotlight- Flashlight with different size
funnels (which can be made of construc-
tion paper). For different color effects, use
color effects, use colored cellophane or
tissue paper over the end of the funnel.

Animal Roar- Any closed box will do-
cocoa can, coffee can, or two foil pans
taped together. Tie a string in center of a
pencil. Punch hole in container, place
pencil inside box, and pull string out through
hole. Rub string with resin or a green leaf.,
Drag fingernails along string to produce
noise.

Horses Clopping- Two half coconut
shells clapped on a wooden board (walk-
ing or galloping on a hard road), clapped
on wallboard (soft road or turf). Hold a
block of wood in each hand. Strike ends
together, alternating ends. Vary rhythm
for wotting or galloping. Strike upside
down cups on a wooden board.

Puppy Dog- Blow up a balloon, With
two fingers of both hands, stretch neck of
balloon, slowly releasing air.

Crashes-Fill a wooden box with bro-
ken glass and a few stones, then nail on a
top. By dropping or tipping the end of the
box, various kinds of crashes can be pro-
duced.

Trains- Place a small wire nails or shot
inside a flat small box or popcomn inside a
tine band-aid box. Move back and forth, it
sounds like a train chugging along. Rhythm
of movement is important. CHUG-CHUG
chug-chug CHUG chug chug chug.

Train Whistle- For an ear-spliting sound
that can be heard all through the house
place a sheet of paper over top of an 8" foil
pan. Place partly-open mouth against paper
and utter a shriek without moving lips. If
train is far away, make it a small shriek!

Boat Whistle- A wooden or plastic
spool, 3/4" strip of balloon and a rubber
band. Fasten the balloon over the hole end
of the spool. Wrap rubber band around

spool over the ends of the balloon and pull
balloon tight. Blow into open end of spool.
This makes a shrill whistle.

Gong and chimes- Chinese gong sus-
pended by a rope, 4 or 5' length of water
pipe, suspended. Tubes or water pipes can
be cut in various lengths for chimes. Cut
off 1/2" at a time and test for tone. Strike
with rubber hammer.

Creaking Door- same as animal roar.

Sword and Shield Fight- Holding alu-
minum cookie sheet in one hand, hit with
metal spoon.

Knock at the Door- Hit to rap sharply
a 1/2 gallon bleach bottle on the end with
a rubber spatula.

Pistol shot- a rubber bank stretched
around the center of a small foil pie pan.
Pull out the band from bottom of pan and
release. Snap ayardstick or a thin board on

a hard surface. Fire a cap pistol.

And puppets w
and anyplace at any time

1. Dad’s easy chair

2. A doorway-crepe paper, an old
sheet or bedspread, etc. streiched across
door way and taped to door frame.

3. Over turmed cardtable- cover
with cloth or paper - for Scouts too.

4. Two straight chairs facing each
other draped with cloth

5. Large suitcase- instant stage and
also doubles for storage of puppets.

6. Magic box- cardboard box- with
back opened and several holes in top
decorate for theme.

7. Large apron- cook’s worn by
puppeteer and comers lifted up by two
fellow puppeteers.

8. Tray stage- cardboard bend up at
right angles and held by strap around
neck.

9. Folding screen- large for scouts,
small for puppets.

10. Lamp shade.

11. All kinds of boxes, round,
square, rectangle.

12. Ladders and sheets to make
screens

13. Your arm or hand.

14. Banner on a dowel or clothes
hanger.

15. Ice cream bucket, oatmeal box,
elc,

16. Book opened and stood up.

17. Large purse.

18. Bib- puppet stage.







Skits helpchannel aboy’simagination.
He doesn’t PLAY that he's a pirate, he is
a buccaneer sailing under the Jolly Ro-
gers! He is a brave knight riding forth to
slay the dragon. He is the first man on
Mars. Heis! Heis!

Props and costumes for skits should be
few and simple. Just a suggestion is all
that is necessary. Imagination fills in the
details. If you don't believe this try to
remember those radio dramas some of us
listened to when we were kids. Remember
how our imaginations made those stories
come to life?

Skits can come from almost anywhere.
The only limit to skits is your own imagi-
nation.

Things to avoid:

1. Dramatization of undesirable char-
acters.

2. Allowing a Cub to attempt a charac-
terization which is difficult for him.

3. Criticism whichmakes no attempt to
suggest a better way out.

4. The tendency of the more capable
Cubs to do all the work.

HOW TO WRITE A SKIT:

Follow this outline:

1. Boy wants Something--friendship, a
gold mine, a trophy, to find a lost planet,
ect.

2. Boy starts to get it--by canoe, plane,
horseback, foot, or some other way.

3. Obstacles Stop boy--crocodile, na-
tive headhunters, a secret enemy, false
friend, ete.

4. Boy achieves goal-- through an act
of kindness, bravery, wisdom, magic,
unexpected help or some other way.

PLANNING YOUR SKIT:

Knowing your facilities, your subject,
the number of boys who will participate
and which parts they will play gets you off
to a good start in planning a skit. Here are
some ideas:

1. The subject of your skit.

2. The title, whether serious or furmy.

3. The kind of actors you'll use-
puppets or real boys.

4. The names and characters.

5. Time allowed for skit. Write a
twenty minute skit, then reduce it down to
five minutes, saving only the best lines.

6. Will you be performing on a stage,
an open floor, a platform, or something
else?

7. Consider lighting and special ef-
fects. Check for electrical outlets.

8. Let the Cubs help plan and write
the skit.

Brainstorming is listed as a place to get
ideas. It’s simply a time set aside for a

CUB SCOUT SCRIPT WRITING

group of people, maybe your den, to set
down together and throw out ideas, The
catch is - no idea is ever discarded or
labeled as a ‘*dumb'’ idea, suggestions
will jog your imagination. Before you
realize it, you may have the foundation for
a good skit. Maybe several. Also, your
boys feel as though they helped. Keep a
list of all suggestions, or perhaps use a
recorder so as not to miss anything.

When preparing a skit there are a few
things to remember:

1. Keep it simple and short (3 to 5
Minutes)

2. Avoid a lot of dialogue

3. Decide on one subject

4. In some way- use every boy in the
den.

Use simple props, scenery, and cos-
tumes. Usually the boys can help make
what they need. Props can be made from
cardboard and sign can be put up to indi-
cate scenery. Costumes can be made by

adding appropriate accessories to every-
day clothes. Most costumes which are
intended to be cut from fabric and can be
sewn can just as easily be cut form crepe
paper and glued or stapled by the cubs.

Let every boy participate, even if it is
backstage. Be sure, however, that the boy
who works backstage one time, is ON-
STAGE for the next skit.

Make your audience hear. Boys should
speak slowly, clearly, and loud. Use a
narrator, if necessary. Pantomine is great,
too.

A. Actors should never tumn theirbacks
on the audience while they speak.

B. Actors should move around as much
as possible and use sweeping gestures and
exaggerated actions,

¢. Actors should pause a moment be-
fore going on with their lines if and when
the audience laughs or applauds.

Let's write a skit and present it. Have
Fun!

WHY COSTUMES?

Costumes can help set the theme or the
mood of the whole skit. They have the
magical ability to transform a boy into a
man from outer space, a pirate, an astro-
naut, aclown, an Indian, an exotic animal,
or anything else his imagination suggests!

Costumes can be as simple or as elabo-
rate as you and the boys would like for
them to be. Cloth costumes are quite
durable, but the cost is more and also you
( or Mom) spend more time making them,
rather than letting the boys have the fun,

It is important to find the right cos-
tumes, and this isn’t as hard as you think.
There are enough everyday things around
your house to clothe any number of actors.
A nimble imagination helps even more
than nimble fingers. You can find some
real costuming treasures if you know what
to look for.

Old clothing- add extra material or
crepe paper added to change appearance

Men's pajamas, long underwear pro-
vides tights, T-shirts, Dad’s old robe, hats.

Save feathers and sparkly trim for Knights
costumes.

Scraps of bright material or crepe paper
can be cut into capes, scarves, sashes, etc.

Vinyl upholstery can be used for
‘‘leather’’ trimmings, vests for cowboy
themes

Long, heavy stockings for knee high
pants.

Small pillows are just right for that
extra padding.

Cardboard boxes make excellent cos-
tumes for clowns, animals, vegetables,
robots. Cut holes for head and arms in

advance, then let boys paint them with
latex and trim with tempera paint.

Paper sacks can be used for costumes
and masks- paint same as boxes. Latex
paint will add strength to the paper sacks.

Brown wrapping paper and sacks use
for leather-like appearance, crush and re-
crush in your hands until it is soft and
wrinkled, ten spread out and iron with a
lukewarm iron. This lends itself to easy
decoration with crayons, felt markets or
tempera paints, and work well for Indian
and western costumes.

Don't forget that a simple sign to iden-
tify your characters can be as effective as
a costume. Props such as a cardboard
moustache, eye patch, bandana, cardboard
sword for a pirate, can do a great deal 1o
costume your characters and set the mood
for your skit.

Also cardboard boxes are great for cars,
trains, insects, etc. Use your imagination.
Cast-off toy guns, foil for deputy badges.

Use your imagination before you use
your trash can!

Remember to keep your costumes and
props at the Cub-age. The boys will give
their best performance if they are made to
feel that the skit is theirs including the
costume-making!

Den Leaders should not ry to make all
the costumes. Involve the parents. They
will enjoy the involvement. And they will
probably have some good ideas to supple-
ment yours. Take alook around the house,
use your imagination, and you'll find lots
of everyday materials which can be used
for costumes.






SCENERY FOR CUB SCOUT SKITS

Simple scenery is fun for Cub Scouts to
make. It is a good den project. It adds to
the mood of the skit and makes the skit
more believable. Keep these things in
mind:

1. Scenery should be simple. Itshould
provide an idea or suggestion of what is to
come.

2. It can be made from large pieces of
corrugated cardboard. Check with furni-
ture stores, appliance stores, grocery stores,
or warchouses for large furniture and
appliance cartons. Take care in cutting
cardboard.

3. Wooden lathes can be nailed to the
back of the scenery to make it more sturdy
or to help it stand up, and keep painted
cardboard from curling.

4. Letthe boys do the painting. Guide-
lines can be drawn with heavy pencil to
show what colors go where. Latex or
tempera paint are best on cardboard, and it
washes off the boys as well. It is best to
paint on the blank side of the cardboard
rather than on the printed side, so printing
will not bleed through.

5. Felt tip markers can be used on
cardboard that has been painted a light
color, to put in detail work or the whole
design, if you wish.

6. When using latex to cover large
areas, apply it with a roller. Latex paint is
inexpensive. Somectimes the boys can
bring left-over latex paint from home. It
washes off hands and clothes with soap
and water.

7. Tempera can also be used to tint
latex when the desired shade is not avail-
able. Use tempera or wide-line marking
pens for trim and detail work on top of
latex.

8. Always keep in mind that audiences
will see the scenery from a distance. Be
sure it is distinctive enough.

9. Boys should use old clothes or Dad’s
old shirt for paint smocks. Den leaders
should stand back and let the boys do the
work.

10. Create a good mood with scenery.
Paint in grays if skit is spooky or sad;
bright colors if skit is happy or funny.

The following are suggestions for scen-
ery which can be cut from cardboard:

Mountain range, Bushes, trees, Lamp-
post, Skyline of city, Forest outline, Picket
fence, Houses, tents, cabins, Archways,
columns, Sun, moon, stars (suspended
overhead). When creating a skyline, cut
the pieces low - waist or shoulder height -
to give the effect of distance. Children’s
coloring books are good sources for back-
drops.

Old sheets can be used for many cos-
tumes and backdrops. To decorate use
markers or paint or draw and color with
crayons, when design is finished, lay sheet
out flat on cardboard or heavy paper. Cover
design with a layer of paper towels and
using a hot iron, press carefully. The iron
will melt the wax and set the colors perma-
nently. The end result is a design that
looks like it was oil painted.

Pieces of cardboard will give you end-
less back drops, furniture, rocks, logs,
trees and much much more. Boats, cars,
airplanes, trains covered wagons, even
horses and cows.

You have written your skit, selected
your cast, and the boys have been busily
making costumes. Now, what's left? Make-
up, of course! Here are a few simple tricks
to help you use make-up to its best advan-
tage with the boys.

First, why use make-up?

1. It helps to tell the audience what the
character is like.

2. It makes the character seem more
real to the other actors...and as a result,
everyone plays his part better.

3. It hides an actor’s own features,
changes his form, and makes him appear
larger or smaller, older or younger, and
can alter his character completely.

Theatrical make-up can be expensive,
and since most Cub leaders work on a
limited budget, we’re going to concentrate
on inexpensive make-up and substitutions.

MAKE-UP BASE

A simple recipe for a make-up base is
equal parts of liquid cleansing cream and
powdered sugar. Combine the two, first
sifting the sugar to remove lumps, mix
well, and you have a simple white base
which can be used for Clown White. Tint
with a few drops of green food coloring for
Monster make-up. Add red, yellow or
blue...or make all three, and you have
Indian war paint. This make-up is non-
toxic and wipes off easily leaving little
trace of color behind.

Halloween make-up, ordinary lipstick

MAKE-UP FOR CUBS

makes both lip color and rouge and can be
used todraw new wounds. Eyebrow pencil
can be used to darken or change shape of
eyebrows, to line the eyes, to make freck-
les, moustaches and sideburns.

Eye shadow of different colors can be
used not only on eye lids, but under the
eyes to give a “‘hollow’' look, or on either
side of bridge of nose to change shape of
nose, or to make eyes appear sunken.

Toage a character, have him frown and
wrinkle forehead; use grey eyebrow pencil
to mark in creases. More lines add more
years.

Cornstarch powdered into the hair helps
make older characters. Remember, hair
begins to grey at temples first and in
streaks.

Black crayon can be used to simulate
missing teeth.

TIPS... The more light used, the more
make-up necessary. Apply make-up after
characteris in costume. Use make-upcape
or towel o protect costume. Keep plenty
of tissue and cleansing cream on hand for
make-up removal. Remember...boys like
to pretend, but they don't want to be sis-
sies!

QUICK WIGS

These easily assembled wigs are just
the thing for Cubs, masquerades or Hal-
loween. As abase for the wig, use the top
of a nylon stocking, gathered along the cut
edgeto form a skullcap. Or,cutand sue the
crown from an old felt hat. For hair use
cotton yarn, untwisted rope or strips of
crepe paper 1/2" wide.

Curly Locks-For short or long curly
hair, curl narrow gift wrapping ribbon and
sew to stocking base.

Bald Headed Man- Use old bathing
cap (white or flesh colored) for base. Paint
for glue a fringe of yarn hair.

Colonial- Wrap and sew cotton batting
around skullcap to form a puffed hairdo.
Batting rolls for curls added to sides make
wig for Lady. Long batting curl, tied in
back with black ribbon, for Colonial man.

Scarecrow- Sew uneven lengths of
heavy cotton rug yam to cap base, orto a
band which can be sewed inside old hat.

Indian- Arrange black yamn or crepe
paper strips across entire base and stitch
through center to make ‘‘part”’. Bring
strands down to ears, braid, wrap and tie
with bright cloth.

Princess- Follow directions for Indian
wig, using yellow yamn. Do not braid. Add
conical paper hat, with small attached veil.

Old Man- Use white cotton stocking
cut and sewed to form skullcap. Glue
white cotton balls all over skullcap.

Braids- Stretch about three strips of
crepe paper, 3/4" wide. Twist each strip
around and around. Now braid the three
strips together.






COLUMBIA PACIFIC COUNCIL BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA

SKIT WORK SHEET

Give a copy of this to each boy in the den....work from it when writing a skit.

LETS MAKE-UP A SKIT.

MONTH: THEME:
L PLOT:
II. TITLE:

III.  TYPES OF CHARACTERS (Boys or Puppets):

IV. LENGTH OF TIME:

V. STAGING (Lighting, Special Effects, Costumes):

VI. CHARACTERS (Enough for everyone):

VII. LOCATION OR SETTING OF SKIT:

VIII. PROBLEMS TO OVERCOME:

IX. OBSTACLES:

X. CRISIS:

XI.  ENDING:

XII. DOES THE SKIT FIT YOUR AUDIENCE?






JREINDEER
SHOPPING
MONEY
HOLLY
PRESENTS
DREIDEL
ELVES
MANGER
CANDLE
RIBBONS
HUMBUG
Jay
NEW YEAR
STOCKING
SCROOGE
CHRISTMAS
ZRRY
REE
TOXS

L B

G IF
BvYJ
XL C

T P 49T O Wn

O Z W < W C < 4 = O Ww

HOLIDAY PUZZLE

-—ICD(‘J(’J-(I"‘IZDIZIZMU

E:DIJIIU)H—lDH('J'(DOI?l_XXJLﬂr"

-4CF"I£ZEDI|(‘72HIDI'TIFT1"UNUJU1XH

ZXI_XNFH{-(ZITI—'IF‘-(DHCI'_

Z X O 0N 0 O Z 0O W < T

o r» Z ZT Z X UV O —H

TINSEL
SNOW
MENORAH
FRUITCAKE
MISTLETOE
RUDOLPH
STAR
ANGELS
CAROLS
CANDYCANES
LIGHTS
NOEL
CELEBRATE
JANUARY
BOWS

GIFTS
SANTA
HANUKKAH
HOL IDAY

O I » » O <







"I8}s paysiuy ay3 uado-L

"pIoj @y3 ssoaoe [euodeip ayj uo Ajdreys nH—9
"(rey ur xoded ayy pioj ([ styl) apIs

puey-jySur zaddn ayj 1210 a3pa puey-3ja] 13.M0] Y3 p[oJ—<
*V 199w p[oj ay3 Sunjew

‘199Yys doj ay} I2A0 JIBUM0D puey-}J3] J3MO0| Y} P[OJ—¥
"uUMOYys Se y 33pa pury-)Ja]
33 JO I3juad 3y} NIeJy 'P[0) AY) 3seaa) ‘ylew ay)

03 umop 1aded ayj jo Jau10d puey-yy3| Joddn ay) Fuug—¢
*}39ys

P2P[0J 343 Jo 23pa I13.:M0[ Y] JO 133U Y] J& HIeW B BN
"9pls puey-ya|
3y} uo p[oj 3y} pue Iay)af0) SapIS MOYS aY} Yim
Jrey ut xaded ayj pioy -aures ay} suorpiodoad ayy daay
0] 3ans aq jsup ‘sae)s Ia31e[ 10 xaj[euws 323 03 ay nol
Kem Lue ur xaded azis ayy Area ued nog °rIejys your-9

© 9yeul 03 sayour [[ Aq saydut zg Jaded jo adaid v as) -1

POy PAP]O] ADnBUD}IIY—AD}S pAjulog-3alg

"Plag(T JO 18]S 3Y) pa[[ed
ualjo ‘1e}g sJ0jeas)) pajutod-xXIs ay} St awil} jey} I0jaq
asn J10j Iejs [qeuns A[uo ay) 1Y) [93) SALLIOYINE JWOS °9
Axenuep [rjun pasn jou st re)g Aueydidy ay3 saoerd awos uj
‘A1eA IB]S STy} JO asn 3y} jnoqe suoturdo ay ], ‘sxes jo sad.y
JUIIBIFIP Y} JO pasn A[@pLw jsowr 3Y) SI Pue Sauds A
-aneN sauedwoodoe Ljensn 1e1g Aueydidy ayJ, ‘wayaylag
0} UBJN ST\ 3yl Juipedy ‘Ae| pyd ISLYD Y} YN
9[qeIS Y} I2A0 uUOoYyS ey} Jejs Ay} sjuasazdax pue 1§
Aueydidg ay) se umouy A[@pLw st Jejs pajutod-aay ayy,

apduats aymb a3y seunsLIy)
3y} durjerodap ayew ued ) ‘sad} snoLrea Jo SIB}S JINIISU0d
0] fem Asea ue mowy M J] 9IdYmlI3aAd SUO[}RI0IIP
seunsuy) ut ed juerodwr ue pey dABY SIBIS

SYVLS H3adVd






Paper Decorations from Many Lands

PAPER CHAINS

Paper chains are one of the oldest types of Christmas
tree decorations. They can be made from any kind of paper
stiff enough to hold its shape though usually construction
paper is used. To make a simple chain, cut the paper into
strips the width you want your links to be. Glue ends of
strip together to form a link, interlocking each new link as
it is glued with the preceding one. Chains are popular in
many countries. They are very effective made in white
paper and set off against the dark green branches of the
Christmas tree.

Materials

Construction paper

Polish Chain (Basic Rule)

1-Trace a pattern for the double circle.

2-Fold the paper in half lengthwise.

3-Place the edge of the pattern on the fold and cut out.

4-Cut out the center of each circle. Make as many double
circles as you will need.

5-Leave the first circle folded in half. Open the second and
fold it loosely in half lengthwise.

6-Slip through the opening in the first circle. Fold the
second circle in half again, and smooth out.

7-Repeat until the chain is as long as you want it to be.

Keyhole Chain

1-Trace the pattern.
2-Fold strips of paper, 3% inches by 7% inches, in half
lengthwise, then in half crosswise.

3-Place the stem of the keyhole against the lengthwise
fold. Have the short end at the crosswise fold.

4-Cut as many keyholes as you need.
5-To make chain, link one keyhole through another.

Repeat until chain is desired length.

R T

~ =
PATTERN

-

PATTERN






Polish Stars and Straus Chain

A 1-Cut out stars using the pattern illustrated on page 127 or
roN 128 in as many colors as possible. You will need a great
e’ - many stars.
+“| 2-Cut thin paper drinking straws into 1%-inch lengths,
( cutting the ends slightly on the diagonal. You will
i, need twelve lengths of straws for each star so plan on
N

cutting a large quantity.

BATTERM 3-Thread the needle with crochet cotton but do not break it

off.
4-To make the chain, follow a star with twelve segments of

straws, putting the needle through the center of each

one on a slight diagonal. Add another star. Repeat
until the chain is as long as you want it. This chainis a
bit bulky but it is very lightweight.

Variations

1-Cut a simple paper chain from the pages of the comic
section in the newspaper, from a department store
catalog, or from wallpaper samples.

2-Make chain links from self-stick ribbon. Moisten one end
slightly and join. Repeat for the entire chain.

3-Use pinking shears (not good ones!) to cut the links.

Triangle Chain

T " | 1-Trace the pattern.
\ 1 [ 2-Fold strips of paper, 2% inches by 4% inches, in half

1 “ \ crosswise.
I \ “ 3-Place the open end of the triangle on the fold.
I'L_o__13 || 4Cut out as many triangles as you need. Construct chain

as in Basic Rule.

PATTEARN






CORKSCREWS OR CURLS

These simple ornaments are popular with children in
many parts of the world. They may be made in a variety of
sizes and from different materials. Though corkscrews are
usually made from circles, they may be effectively made
from squares or diamonds following the same basic

directions.

Materials

Any stiff paper or decorator foil (do not attempt to use
kitchen foil; it is too light to work well)

Method

1-Draw a pattern on the paper as shown.

2-Start at the outer edge and cut in a continuous line
working in towards the center. Make the coil at least
% inch wide—wider if you are making one from a large
shape. Leave a solid bit at least % inch wide in the
middle.

FALTEAN 3-Fasten an ornament hanger made from a paper clip,

piece of string, or a bent pipe cleaner to the solid bit in

the center.

STYROFOAM?® BALL ORNAMENTS

The next time you visit a craft or artists’ supply store, check
their supply of Styrofoam?®. It comes in sheets or squares that
can be trimmed to various shapes. It also comes in preshaped
forms. Two or more Styrofoam?® pieces can be glued together
with common white household glue (like Elmer’s®). Push two
or more straight pins through the pieces being joined to hold
them tightly while the glue dries.

Once you have found the shape you want, or have made
the figure of your choice, use white household glue to attach
ribbons, sequins, buttons, and bows. Finish the ornament with
a hook stuck into the top of the decoration and held firmly
with a small dab of glue.

You can personalize your Styrofoam® ornaments by spell-

3 out the names of various family members with buttons or

quins (available at fabric, department, and dime stores). Or
you can glue small photographs on the ornaments. They make
great Christmas gifts, too!







POLISH TREETOP ANGEL

There are many types of angels used on Polish
Christmas trees. This one is a particular favorite; she is
characteristically Polish. The angel may be used as either a
tree or treetop ornament. You may decorate the angel as
you like.

Materials

White cardboard, 9 inches by 12 inches
Red and blue felt-tipped pens

Gold paper

Deep yellow paper

Scraps of colored paper, beads, sequins, fringe, ete. for
v decorating the angel

Method

A,

@ 1-Cut the body and wings from cardboard.
2-Cut the wing covering from yellow paper.
3-Cut the crown, skirt, bodice, and star from gold paper.
4-Cut the belt, skirt trim, and shoes from whatever you

like. Glue cut-outs to the cardboard body.
5-Draw the angel’s face with pens.
6-If you are making a treetop angel, fold a %-inch by 2-inch
% piece of cardboard in thirds lengthwise. Glue the
middle section to the center back of the angel. Cut a
piece of fairly stiff wire at least 6 inches long. Bend the
ﬁ other thirds together and pass the wire through them.
I Leave just enough wire to twist together to secure.
Wrap the long end of the wire around the treetop.
Il 7-To hang the angel, cut a hanging loop from fine wire.
Pierce a small hole close to the upper center edge of

the crown. Run the wire through and twist the ends
together to form a loop.






13439309 s33pa ay3 ajde)s pue rejs ayy no uadp—4
"JB)S B ULIOJ 0} UMOYS SEB Jn)~¢
‘sjeafd ay
([ Jo 133u3d 3y} y3no.ay3 mas ‘papjoy syeafd ayy Suidaay—7
"syea[d your-auo ojur ‘esLussosd ‘aaded ay) plof-1

pPoyajy

wdeis
peatyj moqjaf daap 1o pjon

sayoul 0g £q sayour g ‘papis-ajqnop A1qe1aya1d ‘aaded plon
sporiajopy

"way) Bunjew jo Lem Ysue( e SI SIY[, ‘Seae
AuBW Ul SUOHBI093P SBUIISLIY) UOWIWOD BB SIe)S sy,

dVLS d3Lvd1d HSINVA

*3[0Y 3y} y3noayj uru auy uojLu
3o y13uay e 10 dypd 1aded juaqun Aenred e asn ‘Suey o1-),
“juswreu.Io Y3 Jo sa3pa ay} punode Lmpd, 10 ssauyInoa
Y3ys Aue no yjoows Aqryased ‘oyuy 2qe) e 3uisn-9
‘uad jutod-{[eq AIp ® 10 3[paau
Zunyuy e Y adeys ayjy Jo yoeq Yy uo Aquury 23mb

way) Surwelp Aq juemn nok sulisap J3A9JBYM SSOquIF—C
“Iadedsmau

JO S3SSIUNIIY} [BIBA3S UO UMOP 3DBJ JUSWEWIO dY) InJ—p

"yound Jaded e yym ajoy Surduey & axep—¢

"SI0SS1S PO YIm N0 In)-Z

"[to @Y} uo urajjed e ades]-1

poya

yound 1adeyg

uad jutod-[feq A1p 10 3[pasu Suiury

([eap! are s1333n0 3aNj00d) swialjed

(sdoys e ur 3[qE[IRAR) [10] 10}R1003P 10 B pio3 £aeay

s[ouaDly

"ODIX3Y UY U33S UIYJO SJUIUIBLLIO UTY JNIGHP
910Ul 3Y3 03 JE[IWIS ST J[NSAT Y], "S[eLId)ewr paureiqo A[isea
wo.yy spew aq Azw pue juswdinbs [ewads ou axmbaa Layy,
"SUOIBI003D [10j J[dws 33y} aJe eUISNY Ul SJUIUIBUIO
991} seunsLyy) spewpuey jo sadAy ajLioary ayy Jo auQ

SINTIKVNYO TI0d NVIYLISOY






DANISH WOVEN HEARTS

The nineteenth-century author Hans Christian Ander-
sen was also skilled in paper artistry. One of his favorite
shapes was the heart, and he may have been the inventor
of the famous Danish woven heart. It is traditionally done
in red and white, the colors of the Danish national flag.
This indicates that the heart had its beginnings in the
southern part of Jutland, where during wartime, the
border people have frequently resorted to silent symbols in
the Danish national colors to show where their hearts lay.

This method of making a Danish woven heart will
produce a basket. You may add a handle and hang it on the
Christmas tree. If you wish, fill it with some lightweight
candy or cookies or artificial flowers. Using two colors
makes the weaving simpler—as well as typically Danish!

Materials

Red and white or other colors of paper (if possible, use
European construction paper)

Method

-Use two pieces of paper three times as long as they are
wide. Fold each in half lengthwise.

2-Draw a square from the fold. Lightly mark the top edge
of the square. Draw a semicircle in the area above the
square which will be the top of one half of the heart.
Cut out on the curve.

3-To make weaving loops, draw light lines from the fold to
the top of the square to mark as many strips as you
will use for weaving. Cut along the lines from the fold
to the top edge of the square, forming the weaving
loops. The number of strips determines the size and
width of the rows of weaving.

4-Place the folded halves of the heart side by side with the
curved edges up. To weave, start with the top loop of
the white half of the heart. Insert the white loop into
the first red loop. Now open the white loop to insert
the second red loop, and so on to the end of the row.

5-For the second row, turn the heart over and working
with the top red loop, insert into the first loop.
Continue as with the first row.

6-Repeat in this manner until the whole heart has been
interwoven. Be especially careful on the bottom row;
you will have very little room for moving your fingers
and it is easy to tear the heart at this point.

7-Attach a strip of paper 6 inches by 1 inch to form the
handle.

4-6






"33pa ayj 03 asopa ‘Apoq ayy y3no
143 doo
Burduey & uns pue yoeq ayy uo juted asuepeq ayy Ew A
‘ade) aueydopas
Jo sasard Aun yiwm aumdas pue ['e} pue s3uLw ay) Jrasuf—¢
. 'syutod ojur spua
wﬁ 30 pue ‘umoys se duys papjoj ayy jo sadpa yajoN
IPPIW oy} ur aidejg syeard your-z 03Ul JSLMSSOID
taded anssy ayy 3uip[oy £q [rey pue S3uLM 3y} axyep—z
‘PIU3sUL 3q ued [rey pue s3urw ayy ey
08 Yout 9T/T Inoqe 03 Jutuaprw ‘udard saur[apingd ayy
uo £poq ay3 IS *paroqpes wouy paiq ay3 jo Apoq A D[

PoYay

sayaut g £q sayour ¢ ‘4aded anssn sduys z
a1enbs sayaur g ‘paeoqp.e))

sjora)o)y

. "83.13 3y} uo JupuLteyd os[e ae Sp.
Yon[ pood Juriq 03 3[qe} tauurp SBUWIISLIY)) 3Y} 1240 vmv:wm
”wzm Aj[euonipesy st pue YSIpamg st auo Jepnoned sy
Suone1009p sewysuy) endod are syios e u.o wwhw

ayId HSIAIMS

“Juawewro 3y) jo doj ayy e doof urduey e AjepN-L

“9ZIS 3wies Y} sIejs

13yjo yjrw dn payoeq ate [[ "Iels adue[ e pue ‘winipaw
R ‘a3.e] @ ‘wnipaw € ‘93.re[ € ajeuwlaj[e ‘doof 12300 3y} uQ—9
-doof ajpprut 3y} uo saejs Aue jnd jou oq—¢

*SAPIS )0q UO IYI[B SHOO[ JUIWELIO 3y}

0S }Jeq 0} }oeq SIe)S pawwnd pazis-wnipaut Jo $33s
9aay) an[3 ‘doo[ js9[[ewWS 3Y) Jo Yoeq pue U0y ayj uQ—4

. .QS

3y} e J9yyad0} pautof dooy ajduy e Jururroy ‘s3ururof

3y} e 19y31230) [[e ua)sej uayy ‘L1p 137 '13y1a3o} spua
3y} aaLw 1o an(n ‘doo[ & ojur paax jo 3dad yoea urro J—¢

*Juo[ sayaut
0T pue ‘sayaut g ‘sayaut g s33atd 3a1y) ojut paal ay) InH—7Z
*a[qerd yt 3yew 0} SINUIW ()T 10J I3JEM UL PIAL Y} HROS—|

POy}

sIe)s pawwind pazis-adae]
SIejs pawwnd pazis-wnipajy
paax 1ydrmiydry

spo113)o)y
"ay{1[ no{ se suorsuawip Y} Area Kew

nox ‘sae)s pawwnd pue ‘sdoys 1jetd ur I[qe[leAR ST YaIymn
‘paad W3y ‘Buyy SAUIqUI0d JUIWEBUIO YSIUR( SIY[,

TNAIIWENUN (AT HQINE(T






ICE-CREAM CONE HORNS OF PLENTY

Except for the nylon net covering, this horn of plenty is
completely edible. They resemble the cornucopias often
seen on English Chnstmas trees.

Materials

1 pointed ice-cream cone for each horn
Assortment of small, lightweight candies
Nylon net in bright colors

Rubber band

Gift wrap ribbon
Tiny artificial flowers, if desired

Method

1-Cut the net in squares large enough to cover the cone
completely and to form a ruffle around the top when
gathered. Allow one for each horn.

2-Fill the cone with candies.

3-Stand the cone, pointed end down, in the center of the
square. Bring the net up around the cone, gathering
the edges into a ruffle at the top.

4-Secure with the rubber band.

5-Cut the ribbon into lengths about 2 feet long.

6-Fold in half. About 3 inches from the folded end, make a
knot to form a hanging loop. Tie the rest of the ribbon
tightly around the rubber band. Finish with a bow.

7-If desired, place tiny artificial flowers under the ribbon.







AN

MEXICAN LANTERNS

Lanterns are popular, simple-to-make Christmas tree
ornaments which are made in many countries, but they are
special favorites in Mexico where they are used throughout
the house. They may be made from plain construction

paper or decorator foil.

Materials

Colored construction paper or foil
Rubber cement or paste

Method

1-Draw a rectangle the size you want your lantern to be.
Cut it out and fold in half lengthwise.

2-On the wrong side, draw a margin the width desired for
the top and bottom edge of the lantern. Fold each side
outward along the line to make a crease. Open out
these folds but leave the one dividing the paper in half
lengthwise.

3 Starting at the fold, cut slits about % to % inch apart,
going to the second fold lines.

4-Decorate the upper and lower margins of the lantern, if
desired.

5-Make a handle from a long, narrow strip of construction
paper. Paste it in place.

6-Gently push the outer edges of the lantern toward the

center.
7-Open out the rectangle. Fasten the short edges together

with rubber cement or paste.






‘adexyoed
[ELI2EW 3y} UO SUOHIAIIP 3Y) %d3YD) 3wy HOYs e 10} ‘.061
18 ‘U3A0 ay) ul spuawreuo oA adejd ues nok ‘ssasord Suifip
ayj dn paads o] £1p 1te o 9PISe SJUIWIRUIO 3Y} 3G "1aMm [[1is ale
A3y apiym sjuaweuso 943 OJUT SY00Y JUIWEUIO 10 S3L3 MaIds
9IP1d 'SPIOW INOYIIM IO ‘PUBYISIJ SJUIWPUIO SWOS 3)B3ID> Ued
NOA 'SPIOUW 10 $133MD 31300 JO 33P3 19M 2Y) YIMm SWI0J 3o Jnd
pue Jaded paxem jo s33ays om) uaamiaq y3nop ayj [jo1 10
“Bundns juaaaid oy 1uadiajap pmbiy e ypm pauajsiow uaaq
SBY JeY) (31qe[iear st 1aa3jeym 10 ‘Ae1y aqnd adt ue ‘pPlow 31300
®) PlOW e ojut [euajew Aydous ayy yded ‘sjusweuo 3a1)-sewr
YD aYew o] “3jqepjows si 3t [yun s138uy oA yiim i yiom
pue “I3em ppe ‘imoq Sunaw a8re| e ul [euajew ayy Ing
'Sal03s Jjeld pue ‘arempiey
‘Jured je a|qefreae st pue Auedwo) Aepnya) sy 4q painjdej
“NUeWw S1I] “g2Wouy 4a1dvg jupjsu] pajres 1pnpoid [eiawwod e
193 ued noA ‘yaje1ds woyy oydew sarded Suryew jo peajsup
"uapiey o3 aw 3uo] e saxe) uajjo 31 pue
"YItM NI0M 03 [MOYIP saWnaWos st gydew sarded ing ‘suonel
“029p SBUNSLIYT) JO sHOs [[e axew ued nof ayoew tarded SP1VY

SINIWVNIO FHOVIN-¥3IdVd ..LNVISNI,







“Aof{u3 ©1 [{T® 40) 3no 117ds sarpoo? ayi puw B)0BID 37
TT3ILM 37 93136 LIJIPTTYD ayg TRWIIBRWIBTIY) I¥ 33TJOAR]
® sAemMT® BT ApPU®D YItm P3TT1J waeutrd ays ‘ootxey uj

*3ony pood Jjo uwed ®

Aofua T11m utod ayj Ylim @da1d sy3 e1ed Jeasoym -sadw
J18Ul Jo J23pJ0 8yl ul Arruwy ayj JO J3quaw yowe u40j pwaaq
Jo uotisod ® 51N0 Jeyjzwy "943F 8,J®e] MIN uo JuITuUPIm

JO 230415 3yl 319 paIadas ST epyeuy Pax®Q UTOD ® YItM

PeEadq 8,J98% M@y P3ITe ¥ JO pmalsuy 180Q ¥ U} 8punod

STY saxww ‘edoj SRIIRTIYD 83INQTIISTP oym ‘118®g *31s

*8atareed

Te12ade adw ‘Jwol Lpuwo POlOTOO~131TNE ® ‘euUnid0) uURIIIoTs
PUW BUOJAA JO PUAIQ URDTOH °*JTeYs jxeu #Y3 uUo uaJLprIyO
3yl JoJ 318 (Tvws pue jreys J8mO[ eyj uo peowld e%
83unFTJ PAAIVI-PUWY JO Sua0g Jeduvn oyJ *odde)y pedeys
-Prowddd ay3 ewy L1e31 ‘eedy STmIPTIYD ® JO pwejeu]

‘8Poo) TNn2IuPyrep Idw

@ee40 peddiuym YITA PITITJ Puw seidoonusod IATT pedweys
‘8375000 g03uyd Loyde ‘Furppnd unyd *swmIeTIYH uslay.ag
Y3l Jo aJgwd v yonm LJea eJw saoys jaddnd Lpnp puw u.-ung

"EITOWITTOP EWmILTIYS JTOyl

2J®¥ gpunod JI933Nq JNU puUw 2a¥wO J8zuy]  *slevitoy eyl
2394Q9792 03 BOTPUED Y3ITm @RIy IYFTTILY oy] U pesn euaw
puw Butade Fugmoo eyjy J0] edoy Liudype saTdde puw susean

'TEmIeIIY) eJojeq Iydtu eyj uo pededesd egw

e3ewd Lauoy puw pase Lddod Punocua? y3va payTrTs eTIod pass
=fddoy ‘siuameugo L3319ad Ultm mepel ATiawey 81 puw eowed
buw dijuspuata) jo toquis ® 81 2aa3 SPWIBTJIY) Y] aday

‘1equmesoy ut Lepung

IS8T a3yl ‘eEmISTJIYD @[1117 uo BUOTIvI003p AepiToy aseys
Fuiysw uidaq Layyl ‘eiwod PuU® JIaepurar ‘slelue ‘sawys

Jo sadwys Ul SIUITVUIO POOA BITBQ puw MP138 BUT3elJajUy
Buryww uy ujof 11w fjusdedpuwdd uaae pus Ijuaded ‘uULJPTTIYD

"PooJ Jeindod eyj s oxdoqwwys doJpwnd

u2048 y3tm PIIwIodep puw Fuyol Pa10aBT ~TUOMTY HOTY] Y3ia
P3L2402 'aNwO3TNI) UTIQNQg ¥ "PueTaar uy 30efoad Lyymuy

® 87 2ud08 LITATIWH oYl JOJ 03134¥ ® Jo Jurpring eyy

$00IX3

+3233YH

LD WA AR

+ANYTIDON3

YIRLISOY

FaNYI0d

*YIAYNIANYOS

*QANVIIHI

‘Bjuesasded ey Li13umod ayj JO InoIno pJawoqpJdud w
PToy Loq yowa eawy ‘peajsuy 40 EUT{ Iyl ge3[oed JO EPEIL ey eTTun
‘ussoyd swy ay LJ3unoo 2yl Furjuaesadad (3714w ue SPIOY 3INOJS qQn) yow3

JTHOM FHL ANNOHY SYWLSIHAD

iKepyiatq tetoseds Lasa e 23BIQaTaD

01 Aem I30Tu B Jo yuTyi nok ue) "auo yoea uo arpumd ' ind 03 INTT
iy3tTw nox ‘eoq 391BJI003p 031 337U ade sayeadny w"BaYIraq ATyoy, adoju
IYwWe saada7 jutwieads uaaad pue sajpued UomweuUUtd pay -Jyresanok

ayed Jnok 91830030 "B8¥EO POOJ T123ue Trews w Anq pu®R Lauow JnoAk

2ABS PTNOD nok Jp -nod dray ued Jaists F7q Jo Jdayiowpura® anok
sdeyaad ¢prTYD 1s1ayjy ayy 1037 ayed Aepyilyq ® yi3im ATtwey Inok
25TI1dans 03 unj aq 1T 3 ,uUpTnon *ABPYIILqQ ,snsap Aqeg 8T SEBWISTJY)

(uap 3y3 o3 BuiyTel Japeay uaq)
AYOHI¥IE 1vIioads v

(“"*rt'8TTYm B J0F JUTYI 03 aawy Keyi J1 pestadins eq

1.,400) *S8YTTWEJ ITayl UY PIYs[qelEa aABY L9yl BWOI8ND 8yl jo auo
JO 11831 03 paredaad Burissm uap ayj 03 awod 8Loq ayy Buiaey A1y
10U AYym °sSwWOISND 3noqe uap anok uty BAoq @y3 03 YT®] -sBajlIme}
119yl uy swolsnd Fuiyew axe Kayj IzyTeBaJ 3,UOp USIPTTYD BaW}3aWOS

¢ & & SHWOLSND SIYW OHM

*831J12 a3umyoxs o3
ATBwo18nd S} 31 yeyynuey JO 8AEp g 3y} 8IWIQITO Bmep ‘JEak yoe3z

*8kwp g a0J

ATBnoTnoBITW pelrng ey atdway ayy ut punojy ALeyj Yatym TI0 JO
Tel w pejyfRTy Leyg ra1dmey A1oy eyl puw L3112 eyj dn pauseTd puwm
WeTeSN.I8 paJajus 8938qRIDEY 8yl 'Butiydty Jo sawalk ¢ d33)Jy ‘o3Fw
881IN1USD 77 WTIAS JO BNYOOTIUY JBAOC B83QEIIEY eyl 30 £103101A
8Y3 823vIQaTad pue A31eqyT SnolFITer sjuesaadad IBYY (83IYFT JO
15834 ayl) yeyynuey Butazssqo eq [TIm yiiel YsIme[ Jo §3nod5 qn)d

HYVXDINNYH 40 ONI 4

‘4iIIq 8,18TIY) 3O BTIRITW ayy Jo FurFuls Inoyiim

usw TTE pJBmMOl TTimpoo® jo BIPT 3yl 3imaqated srdmexe 103) ‘ETOIBO
Auey +arqissod 87 30UBAIaBQO OU 3IBY) UEdW 30U B8OP BIY] ‘8jafreq
2134l 91BTOTA 30U ‘B354N0D JO ‘}SNW 2IUBAIAEQO SBMIB T.IY) Auw ‘sy3yej]
Ue11I8TIy)-uou yo 8£0q E3IPNTOUT udp ® JI ‘Bidafoxd Trimpoo® £q

pue ‘L1018 BEWMISTJYD ay3 Bufrres Aq ‘Fujroaws Aq euop oq Uwd STYL

"I0TABS 21843 Jo AEpyiIfq ay3 se Fujuvem Twaa 837 Jequewax o3 pedw
-InoJus 8q PTNOYs Y3jej UBFIBTIY) JO 8inedg qn) inq 183119 ejvioqere
Jo Bulal® eyy puwm saeay BRIIBTIY) ‘Bujmod sney) ewiuesg 8w yons
SUOT3TPRI} YITM PTETJIAA0 Udaq EBY 37 8JI¥a4 juedex uj A{JBTNOY3TEd
"ISTIYD Jo Y3aTq ey3 Bujivageted TRATIB0] URTISTIY) 8y} B] SRMIBTIY)

SYWLSIMHD 40 ONINVIW THI
S3IIHINNOD d0 SWOISND SYWISIHHD







‘uml4 TeFnidod 8yl PATTED ST 2TsnW ,[nyyited ax T[TV 2uo) Q.

T¥ONLlH0d

*d1yspuatay pue aaoy '208ad Jo auo BT ucsess sBW
-18Tayy  -yoeads Jarvayy utedax Layiy iyIFtuog ‘puads1 o1 BuTpJIodde a0
S{enb3 B® p31®AIL 3Q 1SNW PUP S13A01J3T Y3Tm Paj ade sTeutu® ayy
"P2INQTIISTIP 8I® SIJTD FUNs aaB STOJEBD puw 'pailyITl 61 33913 'aaddns
Ja1yy ‘zaddrs ayi 1e sucsJad jo Jaqunu paaxted a0 paJaqumu uaAa pue
83Uysip Jo J33Inu ppo um aq sAemie 1snm aJayl Axs8 aya uy sleadde
JI®318 3168J7] SE u00S Se paatas Jaddns aA3 seWIBTIY) ST jutod BI04

QNY'10d

*ssautddey pue A11ed ‘zekead Joj aWT3l ¥ BT SemISTJIY) "AIey

p3weBU ducamos Lq 1no pagynus aq ATuo ued pue ATTWR] ayj Jo Jdaquam

isaFuncd #y3 Aq 1TT ST MOPUTM 1UO0J] ayj Jeau paoeTd aypued afiey v
"ATTOY Yitm ArTeroadsa P83BI0D3p ATYSTAR] aJe BayYIJNYd PUB BISNOH

ONY'IINI

"Spuadal NTOF PUB SITJIOIB 03 UIIETT USIPTTYUD
"K£178103de ® 3TB BANBI patTgy "419 ATenus[ uo paiwvIqatTad 8y swwABTIY)

304340

‘88EW
IYBTUPTH 283139 pakofus st gauuyp ATTwey *a1wvaqatad dyay o3 Buiwiom
SBTISTIY) UO PIBN 318 pUE uUOWWOD are s£o3 Furyemw 9STON *PaIITJ aq o}

MOPUTA ay3 ul Saoys Iray) aderd Aay] PTIYO-1STIY) 03 533313 93TIm

‘B44ma{) pum BINU ‘STTIYB JO

USIPTTIYD “TE®ATISE3] 3UOC 6t PalBJIQITID e S,JE3J mO)N PUEB SEWIETJIY)

H0avnod
2 NOII3T%

SWETOJTN 1US 10 BWRLNJIIIUTS

PUBTTOH

JTB15 JayioW Jo Jelg Jayiley pueTod

8811 pum 83313 Futaq sTaBuy AavFuny

UIW 3asTm Iaayg utedg
150Jd: JI3ylejpusan e15sny
BlUES JO SBUISTIYD Jayley BITRIAISDY
STMISTIYD Jayireq pueTdug

UeW PTO SBCASTJIY) ‘uay oel ayj ung

10 Jayie4 Pro 891N ‘Fuooyy-Fuooyy-ue] BUTY)
oYSoTaloy uedep
3TAUTIY SSTIN J0 PUTHISTIYD Auemtagn

"S1J73 SPUTIQ PITYD 3I8TIY) JO BTPUTHASTIYD

pUBRTJIaZ]IMS

UIsneTyeiues J0 BETONITN 31§ BlII1ISNY
(53312 Butaq) PTTUD 3ISTIYD Jo Taoy 331184 asuely
T9oN eded TI1zeag
BURIag E] Aresl

SEMISTIY) Jayieg

SNY1D VY.INYS

BOTIJY Yinog

STST UITm PR1WIODEpP puw mous 8y pejuted saax] T1eawy
‘E8TPUBD YiTm DPILBI0ISP MOUB JO 8pBW 8] puUBTIOL
‘8313) SEWIETJIY) ON adaaln
*saTpued
Uitm paiydrT  (2aBuel ‘L37ATIEN) djudlmaToBy uyeds
‘ysng SBmMBTIYD B BBY BITRIIENY
*8.18WEE.I3B pUB BUTBYD
Jgaded AvP pus a030T3BTH ‘ATTOY Y3Im Ba331BI028Q pueTiug
suseldrase pue Jaded pastoroo Yim B8IBRIOIE(Q BUTYD
'saels
paJoTod Aueuw pue [3BUT3} ‘SaTpued Y} A B8a31WI0d8Q soueay
‘SPUBRURQ Yj}Im 33J1 BUBURQ ¢ SIS BTpUI
raumiJdog -
Inof YiTm S81X000 adTJ PUE sauiJdeduel Fuey Layl uveder
+1aded jo suteyo pue s§3a yiim @231wI022p LAyl auteaxNn
‘gaTpued are s1YIV]
‘sa3ueto pus satdde 'sayy0od Yiim 21BI023p A3yl Auewaan
*MEILS8
Jo saTfueili puw sajenbs ‘SaTOITY puey Aayg rIUENYITT

(auadg A1tatieN) atdesaad ® ing 23313 ON 132eag pue A1e3l

ETIUL SYWLSI¥HD
. 2
‘yy9 Arenuep *Aueydidiy uo ing SBMIBTJIYD UC 30U ‘B83FpO0
u:doavham YiTm PBTITJ aJd® 3384 JO UUl parred srxef edae] Ateal
‘837712 Yim
Pa3TTT3 2q o3 @derdaayy Jo daisaoop uo 37 ale 880YS asuely
MEBILE Yitm DPBTITJ BOOYS uteds

‘y3g Jaqumadag

aoys ayil Uy Apued S53ARa] SERT¥IIIUTS ‘ueiead SBY 880y

3y} ‘@Bnoy 3y3 1B u3aq aasvYy asJoy BTY pPue SERETHIOIUTS

Ja1Jy ‘(o031 S8qnd Jens samyiawos) ISIOY 3yl Joj 310l11ed
v pus KBY YiTm PafI7T} e (dwmoTy) Sa0us uapoom o BIOYS puUBTIOH

SONINOOLS SYWLSIHHD

©527TI3UN0D 3ATJ JO YO®a JOJ 3FUJd B PUB SWOIBND BpNIdUT { u0y3Ides %€

‘u0f1eIQeT20 SBWIETJIY) 8,AI3UN0D YOB2 3Inoqe )
§30USIUIE M3 B pUR 83TJIIuNod £Qq umop ueyolq B} UCTID8B BTYL 2

(84"s Jo sasn AIIunod YIee 3vym 3jeafpuf an)

BNRI) BIUES '
§993] SEWMABTJIYD 'qQ
sdugyoo03 s svWIBTIYD ‘R

183utpeey BuimorTol .
3y3 Jepun 8wWO3IBNO JIVTTWIE £q UMOP UINOIQ 8] UOTIDeE 3BITJ Y] 1

1smoTT0J 88 sixed saaya
SpUly

01 Ucy131998 mOIBND AY] UINOIQ 2AVY @m 3JOJaJIayjl (8WOIBND JO
u:«%ﬂuhaw Auewm 3124 puR SWOIBND JETTWTE Auvm 3J® aJayl 3IEBY) PUNOJ Bpm
*agward BN Yj}Tm JEaq inq 31817J 38 Buisnjuod Jeadde Lwvw uo}lIdeE EYUL

SITHINA0D d0 SWOLSND SYWISIHHD






‘8311 SBUASTJIAY)H 4yl uo Fuey
pue Apued yY3Tm Ti14 'SI3LE] Om3 Ayl UIam1adq 1J4BIY 3yl O Iajuad
2y 1® 11 @1sed pue Jaded uorioniasuod Jo drais ® 1nd 'Iuey o
"23yisF01 sdery }deq PUE 1UOJJ 3y} Ji1Sed ‘JIYI0 By} Weyj apis Iuo
Uo 8Jom SMOYs 3TOITD 23Tuym 34l pUB 1330 3yl ueYl 3pTS auo Uc aIow
SMOYs a8TJJT0 pal ayil 1ey3 oS JayiaFoy drTs pue JreYy Ul ITIITD udEa
pPTod -a3ded pax Jo i1no aToxto e pue laded 33Tym JO N0 AT2I1D

B 9B °Sinu J0 Lpued Yilm DPITTIJ PUE 3al3 ayj uo Funy aq wed
YoTym sirxeay Jaded Jo wio] ayi uT pappe a8q ued Yonoj ystueg Jayiouy

SLHY3H H3dYd HSINVd

'pawloj ST puoq 3uodis B 1BYl OS 1BY
94yl JO yoeq 3yl 1sutede pProY PuUB BUCD 3yl JIA0 dr1s uaya ‘saossics
Yilm @WIIl pUe palIoy s1 adeys pIeag B 3BYL OF UMOp U01102 ayi TInd
‘IBYY pUTYaq TTBQ uo3ll10d ® ind pue 1uolj ayj isutede adejy ayl jo
dey a3yl ssadd  ‘1eY aya Jo 3Iprsul ayi punoJe 1te 2ased ind -iey
ay3 jo do3 3yl 1® uU0110D JO 3IqQ ® aised -FurFuey Jo0] peaayl sTyi

(007 *aey a8yl Jo doi ayi yBnoayy uayi pue gaded Jo sdelos maj] e ydnoayiy

PEIJIY] pus aTpaau e uny *s15ed pue pawIojy ST 3uUOD B 1BY} OS5 JTIS1T
punoge 17 p1oj pue Jaded paJg moaj jey ayiy an)y -uad B yitm safa pue
yinow ® I¥EW °8s0u pasg v uo aised pue gaded a3Tym woly adey sty 1n)

"83u0d auyd 3ITSENOTJIEBA YlTm IpewW aq ued T8 auod aujd aTIITT ¥

NYW JINA NI YWNEQd
NOILO3S

*Suiuesg
SIN1BIUTW 3XTT X207 pue spasaq 31Tum moJd A3yl pro 199 usuw ayy
*ie FuTw¥ools pas 1uFTag yo odf1 auwes ayl Jeam TT® 1nq SaTTy
-4EI U 8wal L8yl 1D 3yl Y1lm SDPUITJJ pood aJe pue wIeq Jo d1i3e
5% 84T L48SSTU, 3Y]  'PEQ J0 TOOF J3Ylaym 'aIniBU SNOABTYISTU ®

12 2utyifzaane Joj pawerq aa: Kaya 15837 1® Jo siuasaad se [ram BE
‘SSTJ ssaturey 123 arqisuodssg age oym sawoud pazis-qumyl axeT Ayl
fepo1 1ng *saatiEraa Furytp Axoods JO SU3Z0p PBY S3JIn3eaId INTT
-JT2 8s3yl oFe s&Taniuad Luew aoug *K37xerndod ut ,aesstp, ayl 4Aq
FINUBIINO JBF ] 3y 1nQ ‘,UBl 3TNK, 2Y} PITTEO S] BIUES YJewuag uj

MYYANIA

(auass fitatiey) -otdassad Jo ayoadad ayj aaey KLayj peajsut

‘3311 SBLISTIYD OU IABH  "YIITQ S5,3STIYD JO TT23 01 1YFTUPTK 1® A3
SBAISTIYD U0 yoaads Jo Jamod aABY STBUTUR 3yj 1BYI GI1ELS puadey
"31BGETTY LIBM JO ISNEBD3Q SMOPUTM YINodyji asnoy ayjl SIaiua a0y edey

TIZvHd

‘S31iTJoyine ayy £q uodn paumoI)y ST STY} InQ TRATIS3J
i1faAlRy ® aJomw ST SemaETJYD ‘(sorndod %0f) saaTIBU Ayl Ag *UIIPTTYD
Futrdeals Jtayi punose S3379 aoerd pue awoy 31® Aead Jo BSBW IUITUpIN

pusiie aydoad sag sem1stTIy) ‘SayaInyd pur BaWOY Uyl Juads A3JATIeN
81BI003p 03 BJIMOTJ JaYied uaIpTTY) ‘T Jequaddq urdaq suoijeredarq

VIAITOH

"IYFTu 1B 3no 0F 03 pamoTE ag 3ou PINOYS 3IT4 *3IyFTu
.asnoy uadg, 87 31 se 1yFjuptw aJojeq 5317331 U0 OU ‘3AF SEBUISTIYG wo

UNY1L02S

‘@TPUED ® U3 Tm 8pTBuUT paised 1o pajutad Artoney
L10H 3ys jo amn3otd ® ‘a1aded P3.JOTOD Y3 Tm Pagaaod B8Y Yoiym ‘Jeis
uapoom ® ‘euURalS e LI1awd Layl rjydTugao] e Joy spuaBay Bulrre’ pume
£13s0d Buiztoea ‘Buyroled oF sfoq aya 3YFTU BeUSTIY) ug -MIod pum
inelyianes L1rensn 51 Jaddns sewistayy ‘PTTUD 38TJIY) 8yl Jo Bayjo12
Furipems a3yl siussazdaa YEnop paTTOI JO B31BOD UTYY 83] YiTm 3¥Ed B1YJ
'8A3 EBMIBTIIY) UO BU0AIIA3 AQ UBIEA ST BAINY PITTED BYED 1B123ds ¥

YINVANY

CAYUPIN UIITOmME Byl 03 B A& 810J0q sAe

g wWoxy ‘sysam ( S3858T uoswas uqeunﬂu:Uu .Mwwﬂwwuw ucawowa-vcw

wolry pakerd Sy OSysnm aTiym asnoy ayz T11J satazaq A11oy 1ydjaq pue
SI8moTd ‘punode saayied A{Twes ayi pue ino 1Yy3noaq st (A31AT38®YN
Jo _80®BTd Jo wayayyleg aanjejutm) ojdasalgd ayi 8pIBMIdLIIY 1711

81 Fuot arng ayy ‘w'd 7 1y ‘Butise; 107 A®p ® B} aag sewl8TIY)

vt

*S,008T 241 Ul alay wolj pIieuldtic
SpJEOS SBW1STJIY) 1S3ATJ 3yl ‘aJay woxj awed T1e ,T2ON 1SJ74 3ayl. W

LZUTTTESSEMY 3WOD 2m 3I3Y, Ylts Juole ,Se{33duam Fuly poos, PuE ', 3IUl:

ST93UY DPTRJIIK ayl ‘MJey, *,uawariusn KIxay 3i 31say pon, ‘ueBols
5,pueTdUZ ST [TTM pood pue 322a4 ‘uUIIXT;TOoNd) 1B 3J0m 1STJYD SLIoWd
JO yieaam azTToquwAs S300p UO Funy udalBaasad 20 ATTOU JO Syieadw
-3uiitsta pue Jood o1 s3;13 Furaiuassad Joj apise 135 51 pue Aeg
Futxog pATTES ST SBWISIIY) Jarje Aed ‘FOT Ul PUNOJIE pagajuad aJe

597111AT1824 'J07 SPUASTJIY) S,JE3A 1X3U 1Je1S 03 paaes ST 3oy ank 3yl

jo adatd y 'yoanyd o3 TTE TTEd STT2Q YdInyd T13 3A3 SBUISTJIY) uo 3ul
-70J8D 03 UIJIPTIY) °SIYSTP SEWISTIYD utew 33e Fuippnd umid pue 3soor

GNYTONd

CL3UITH

ATOoH ay3 Jo JamoTd, PaTIE2 B1 PU® aIay woxj aJued et33asutod Ayl
‘auads A1TATIEN B 'BIQq36ad B Y3 Tm JeiTe UB BBy awoy AJaAg ‘sulaie]
2aded paloToo pus SuUaaIBIasa ‘ssoy ysiueds 'BATTIT 3ITum jo mcoﬂym
-J00ag ‘9T Jequmedag Aq s353nd Joj ApEaJ pue PIJEJIOIAP 3Q 1SNU IUOK

COIX3NW

*LUOTTTaABY,
Fureq TE2W a8yl JO amweu ayl "TIOU 8p 3ydnq pue 3UTm poo?d ‘'‘s3ijtd
pus pooJ Joj sawoy J7ayi 03 9JI713l1 Spuajly pue A{Twey pue (suads
A1TATIBN) 3YdaI) 03 31TSTA ® SSel JajJy ‘"BBEY IYITUPTIW Aq pamoOTTOl
sFuTaayled Te1o08 JOJ aWT3 B BT aA3 SeMIBTIYD *gaoerdalr] IT1aUl
JO juol] uy saoys adeyTd UAIPTIY) ‘Iedw AVPYITOoY @3fIoary 8T Layany

JONVY

*8a0Ys 8,UaIPTTYD 3yl TITJ O3
§ *09Q U0 S3WOd DTN '3§ ‘JIMOTJ SEMSTIYD Ay} SE pasn 87 dyny 8yl

ONYTIOH

ra0taeyaq poo? J0J plemad aq 03 PIA3TTIq v
pue aal3 ayi Japun paddeamun padserd ale sjuasald "823J1] 3y} 231eIOD
-ap sarpue) °SpooJ SBWISTJIY) JTayl aJe poaqiydntg pIT[Ted 3NED 1TIndj
® pue Isaq ‘sarqeiadaa ‘jaaq ‘daeo payeq pue paddoy) *Je3tn? 3jos L

01 Juns Sem pUEB U3X0Jq SBM Yoany) uf uedlo ayi asnedaq uaTdm Sem 1]
L IUFTIN ATOH 'IUBTN IUSTTS. PTIOm ayy o3 BFutjal?® a0 enoweJ S BIIISNY

YIdlsny

*aag SEWASTJIUD
uo S3TSTA ¥OTN °3S *JUPToIed UaIPTIYD JO puoOIIs IY3 PpuB S3woy ut
Fuyisea] Jjo FUTIBTSUOD 8UO IBITJ AUl Yifam sAEp 8JY)} BIEEB] uUojlIEIq
-a19) ‘sumoy AIaa@ uy punoj 81 ‘Ayojiser ‘susds JeBuew y "s23a)
SEWSTIY) PUR EBU3IBILA® Yiim PIIBIOOSP #JW saydanyd Aeg SEWISTIYD

+aaddns 830jaq

isnf 13 aJe aTqea 8yl uo seTpued usum Byd usproh 3U3 @88 TTI~
huzw ‘Mwu TT® 158] USIPTTYS JI '3yl sdetos 8q 36NW aIayi pue
s31d ay3 oa paj axe sdeyos [TY ‘erqwd Jeddns ey3 uo §3sINOD :o>mm
" axe aiayl 1yBru 1wyl inq KAeg A SRWISTIYD uo 8318} uotiTu ey

VIXVAOISOHDI2D
+N Z 1338

SITHINNOD J0 SWOLSA






b Rmn aanliMve © “Us @TIJ0W Ayl ptoy o1 adeys w 01Ut paistmy

3q 9ste few Jajuey 1e00o ¥) ‘saoueTeq arrqow 3Yyy auns ag S1yfTay
IUaI9ZITP 3e Auey sSTafue ay3 1Byl os 3snipy ‘A9T1s BSTeRQ Yyoea Jo Spua
B Jdnog Jayio ayz PUB 3TLPTIY 1® Tadue auo 9T '8anJIas puw shem
419Q pumoaw PEaIY: unag {9TPPT@ 30EXa e Poom esTeq jJo s3091d ssouap

‘3dTHS uo pur Futm yoes JO 53p1s yzoq uo srers ind ‘*ino

S9WOD pESIY} agaym X2EQ 031 ydeq pway jo PTS ydoes uc Je1s auo ind
‘uotitsod P3ITBap 031 peay isn{py -peay Jo 03 ojur yojrig *sFuTm

JOo 37pptw doy Jeau 2PTSUT woay yd313s ‘a1Paau y3Im  ‘puas ayy 3e

10wy 3¥rIeT axew pue PBaJIyl 1ny ‘Jayio yoea O1UT S3TTS 1J9SUT pue
punocJe 3istm] ‘zaded Uor3onaisuoo wouag wiajjed ayi i3no ‘18due yoma Jd04

‘TeTJd81®eW JeTtwWis a0 poom es
PUeE ‘Jaded prod jo 1iumome TTeus e
§ ut Jaded UoTIonaisuon Jo 1s1suod

Teq jJo sdtaays UTyl yout 21 omi
'SIe1s pamum$¥ 'SJ0700 juagajyyip
211qom 1a3uw ayi Jojg sSTetIaley

'1028p Aeprroy Jnok o3 Aueurian
T T Tqow Ta33ue ue ‘SaTIiunco ueadoangy
Suew ur UotiwvI00ap jo maog Jerndod e aae mmﬂdnoﬁmucqm .mcoapmpoumn

SELISTAY) d0g 83}7J0A®] B age STe3ue Auewiag Ul "JTIE0W TIONY NVW4do

I0 UdN3i v ppe 03 Aewm TB3PT Ue ST ar1qo

‘UdIpTIYD sty 03 AQeTINT ® se

Wiaduey e Uy Aemy, Fues OSTe® 8y -“Artue; 5TY J03 saay SBWISTIY) 35I7)
343 pauutay d3YinT uyigey "S8TpuURd pue SJIIMOTJ YBaJIy *suaadfians Y3 im
F21173 91® sawoy 1nQ uoseas sevulsTIyy d0J pajeaodap jou are sayoanyy
8Je 83300 pum
‘SRWASTIY) Jo Furwoo Y3} SpTRIay yjeaay JUBAPY Ayl

T11EI0ads umo Jray; Fulaey saTiTUNwWOD swos Yitm 1snm e
S3X®2 3pyiiayng

X a0

MM Ul

W50
iYLl NS o

‘I18Y pue saka ‘yinom Ul suotrssaad

-X3 Jo A1atIea mel] -usd X2BIQ Y3tm satoaro
i1uym jo sapts Yi0Q uo saowj axeW cswod-wod se
1BY Ydea Jo 8prs yses uo §3TIIT0 ajtym 3sey
‘i®Yy 181 o
@Wolieq 3e Futais jo PU3 Jje inj -moraq 1wy
3yl aaogm 42Ul ue 31noqQe 1Y 1xayu 3yl 3uriind
‘S80By pue syey TT® Y31m ssaoouad sty 1eaday

‘8UO0 31saT) ayy oy £13%exa 31 yojew PU® 1By puodas
Uc aysed ing "e0eTd ut 80y 1ng  curaiqed uo
UMOYS s®e 11 ssougdse Futais ing "15I17 uo aised
ird "S3®Y 0yl yoejaze 031 utdaq ‘Butaas 94yl jo pua
841 Jeau Futiaeys ‘Youmg aaded e yym §8T0JI10 97
#¥ew pue §32®B] aATI 1n> taded 33 Tum wouay ra1adied
P2Jd wOoly suraiied 1BY OT 3nd aweuw o] t3Jdaym

-due 1souw Funy Q¢ ued [ 37wWo; Jo ariqou, TB2TsSuiym ® *sewistayn 1y

‘1ey Putyoois
P21iods ST ST uaym SUOTISBOD20 aaed

'UP3s wopras st ay
SITQBYUT 1eyy afa
15J8A Ustpams ayg

P31 1yFraq sty o Sey sflem :
¥BOYL uo puy -

'BaJoyd Iyy Ultm sdtay pue a
ATIITT - ‘81moy ayy 87

N3T3ImMS

m.%ZV

t = ajey 31 -Burilaay
$ JE1S 05 ‘A1p o3 wieurd e a0 shep 21 o1 s
gMWmezw mwﬂh:n uado yeaiq pue eieutd aysem Jatded ® ayew prnod sqnj

‘qead o3
- U pu® 'B1EAWUIIIME
K1e J0 unoJdd ayi o1 JUTIamoys ewod s1n
.ﬁuwmmu .Mm:muguvmp:mu:ou it ‘ael syi saysews 1uUB3ISaIUDD mwmmwwhmm
5311 2yl uoym auerdare UEB U3AAD JO Hﬁow -] wﬁNMMdeMMLMxWdeoxmhpm
' ay J
P2ledoDap Jel Ae(d e BT YaTym ‘EIBUT ey e
23 sidwsile prryo ysez +9yO13s J0 ¥oT3 4 et LRty
uaapIIya ‘a3 SBmMISTIY) up *sijuassad Joy ay
wMMoa&dem:md mwmcﬂn 3yl ‘O0IX3Y Ul 'pPaBN ST BWIBUTY Hm:oﬁwwwwmm
3yl YsTym 1E S18813 ayy S7 aJayy SAepPITOY SEWIBTIY)H ayj T

dasop pum
*sfeld TTeWS ayj JoJ aweyy ayj S® pesn u3ajjo 8] y
Krew jyo ?w.zﬁﬂ wma ‘Putm Ul BTYI Y3Tm aammoﬂumﬂmﬁ%wﬂoﬂmhﬁa
81 sAum
“1STIY) JO YilJg 9yi Se SemBTJY) Jaquam reial e s IATAY
-1 ™ Fuo '30uaJasal o8TE 3nq A3eTud y
uwwuuwcu.uwm“: u:ﬁ«uoaoo ‘lUsWTJIJeW JO TINJ BT 02[X3| UT BEWISTIY)

QJIXIW

‘BurTPUTX izoﬂwumu

dysy 37 pue ‘aalioea]

Oyl Im B8ITJ Yyo3wd 03 Fol ayl B
8 mw wmﬂmwuwhwm uzm saazes ujjeaed a8yl ‘Jauuem uEdM ayl Mawuwwnwww
' ATToy pum sauod auyd yowijy ‘ujJBRIRT JO m:umcoonw uuw o ey
‘30®IaNe pIpunod ayi Jaao syInoq e Fuerry aoejan w aaouu D
Teant ity LI N e e R ) Niaal
. 1 @ poyiay) ‘uygesed - s -

:a%mgmwmmmw MMﬁwz mmcﬁn ‘a1y Jo syPnoq ayout 4z 03 Naou nuw¢MWAquwm

=3JTJ 03 3nd poom Furanq pood jo punol JTEH (8TBTJI33EK) 3

.u-uﬂoMn pus
an
POOJ J0J 8WOOT3aM aJe BISTEARI} 3BY) udye ® ww 3ov:~“=MMuLwNa::Mm:M

31337 BT 3UFTT ® 3yITu semsTIyY) ITY ‘puno ay3 gu: Gaom dos o
iuerd ay3 ‘AForoyskm asIoy 03 PFulploddy ‘eomad v:dnxn T oo
Funy sAwmIs Sem 80313[1B8TW '003 ATy3Jeay 3®a ued w wm el M
ureq ay3 doiew Jo pief ayy uy ayod ® doje uodm ay oouuswu g
WOy uTBIF JO BABAIY3 3183q Y} SEWIBTIYD AIeAT eI3y p T i o
-3BTIY) TT® PU® 2A3 S®WIETIY) TTE FOT aTni eyy Fujumq jJ

YMi0

EIQP\ UJSX N

(=)
="
csiavit QHQ.Qh\\\\ wfm.

FI) NOILD

SITHINNOD 40 SWOISND SYWISTYHD






SONGS

CUB_SCOUT GENIUS
Tune: Whistle while you work

Cub Scouts whistle while they work
(whistle)

They pitch right in and laugh and grin
and they whistle while they work.,

Cub Scouts hum a merry tune

{hum)

They hum all day at work and play
They hum a merry tune.

Now take these genius kits

A sack of scraps and gunk

With paint and glue and nails, a few,
Turn them into priceless junk,

Cub Scouts whistle while they work
(Whistle)

They do their best, they never quit
Cub Scouts whistle while they work,

THE [NVENTION
Tune: The Farmer in the Dell

| had a genius kit

Thought lots about it

| laid the pieces side by side
and examined them a bit.

A cork, a beolt, a screw,

A piece of wood, too,

A leather scrap, some furry nap
And a little bottie of glue.

A needle and some thread

A nail without a head

A piece of tire, a bit of wire
and this is what | said;

"I don't see how this mess

Can really quite express

My urge for building something
grand.

But now | must confess;

| sewed and nailed and glued,

Until the thing | viewed

Was something grand, you understand
A mechanical dog that mooed.”

BE A GENIUS

Tune: Are You Sleeping

Be a genius, be a genius

Do your best, do your best, .
Give science your attention,
And make a Cub invention,
Genius does the rest,

Genius does the rest.

WHOOPS, YOUR'RE A GENIUS

Tune: All Around The Mulberry Bush

A block of wood, a piece of wire,
Or junk that seems the seediest,
Just put it all together now,
Whoops, you're a genius.

You never know the size or shape,
From biggest to the teeniest,

But put it all together now,
Whoops, your a genius

CUBBING TIME

Tune: Clementine

'round the table, while were able,
We discuss the things we've done,
Every feller in the cellar,

is a second Edison.

We can hammer, we can hammer,
We can saw a board in two

We can put it back together,

So it looks iike something new.

We like laughter, and the rafters,
Drip with merry Cub Scout yells,

Sounds as if all eight of us had,
Swallowed strings of jingle bells.

Our Den Leader, probably druther,
Teach a kangaroo to dance,

'stead of trying to teach webelos,
Wolves and Bears like us in pants.

Chorus:

We like Cubbing,
We like Cubbing,
Oh, you bet your life we do.
And we're going to keep on plugging,
'til]l we're old and mustached, too.






EXPERIMENTS

SPAGHETTI DIVERS
Into a tall qglass containing 2 cups of water stir 1 tablespoon of baking soda

until it dissolves, Break uncooked spaghetti into 1" pioces and put them into the
glasss They will sink to the bottom of the glass. Then stir in 3 tablespoons of
vinegars

A chemical reaction produces carbon dioxide nas which forms bubbles on the
pieces of spaghetti at the bottom of the glass. The bubbles float the pieces to the
tope There the bubbles break, sending the pieces back to the bottom, . ithen the action
starts to slow down, add a few more tablespoons of vinegar,

GELATIN GUMDKOrS

Pour flavored gelatin dessert powder into a small dish until the gelatin is about
an inch deep. Then with a medicine droprer put a drop of water in the center of the
surface of the oelatin., The water is absorbed into the gelatin. Now add a second
dric to the same spot, Again wait until the water disarpears into the gelztin, Cone
tinue in this way until you've placed 6 drops of water on the same spot in the gelatin,

Now with a fork scoop under the spot and lift it upward. You'll find you've made
a qumuropd

The gelatin mixed with sugar and flavoring has the unusual property of swelling
and holdina water in a network ol protein fibders, The gundrop you've made is actually
a liquid suspended in a solid,

PEA JOINT3

then peas dry, they shrink, Soak them in water and thev'll swell, This oropert)
makes them iceal for the joints of a child's construction set, all the parts of which
are in the supermarket: dried peas and toothpicks.

Soalt dried peas overnight, Using toothnicks as the structural menmbers and the
softened pezs as the joints, you can 2uild almost anything, Yhen you're through,
allow a dav or two for the peas to dry out agaian, They'll shrink and hold the toothe
picks rirmly in oplace,

PIN PIANO

You can play delicate, chamning music on a piano made of pins.

Draw a line on a piccc of wood and pound the first pin into one end of the line,
Stick another pin in the erc3er end of a pencil and with it, pluck the pin in the
boarde It vibrates, sending out a feeble sound, ion't worry, you'll make it louder
later-

The pitch of the sound is determined by the mass of the pin above the board, At
reqular intervals alonn the line, drive pins into the board, Tune them to the pitch of
the notes of the scale by adjusting the heiaght of the pins above the board, You'll
probably have to cut off the pointed end oI the pins for the higher rotes with pliers
because you'll bend the pins when you harmer them into the wond,

Make the feeble sound produced by the pins louder by mounting the board on a box.
Shoe boxes or amy other boxes made of relatively thin material will work. Glue the pin
Jdiano to the upside-down bottom of the box. The object is to trans‘er the vibratisn of
the pins to the entire box and thus amplify the sounds.






SUGAR POWER

Can you use sugar to make a boat go? Here is what you will need: A dish
filled with water; a few toothpicks to be used as boats; a sugar cube,
Float the toothpicks in the middle of the dish. Then put the corner of the
cube into the water just in front of the toothpicks. Hold the cube there
for a minute or so. What happens? The toothpicks begin to move towards
the sugar. Why? As the sugar touches the water, it begins to break up.
This causes little ripples that move the toothpicks. What happens if you

move the cube away slowly?

NEW MONEY

Can you make old money look like new money? Here is what you will need:
An old penny; a tablespoon of salt; 2 tablespoons of lemon juice; a jar
with a 1lid., Put the salt and lemon Jjuice into the jar and drop the penny
in, Put the 1lid on tightly, and shake the jar very hard 20 times. Now
take out the penny and it will look new and clean. Why? The lemon Jjuice
loosens the dirt and the salt scrubs it away so the penny looks new.

THE BOUNCING EGG

Can you make an egg bounce? Here is what you will need: A hard-boiled egg;
vinegar; a glass., Put an egg in a glass filled with vinegar. Take out the
egg the next day. Now you can bounce it. Why? Vinegar is an acid. It
makes the shell of the egg soft.

THE SUPER STRAW

Can you push a straw through a hard potato? Here is what you will need: A
potato; a drinking straw. Hold the potato in one hand., With the other hand
push the straw as fast as you can through the potato. It will go through
easily. Why? When the straw is pushed fast it fills with air, It becomes

so hard it can push right through the potato.

INSEPARABLE GLASSES

Can you glue two drinking glasses together without using any kind of glue

or paste? Here is what you will need: 2 identical drinking glasses; scis-
sors; a piece of blotting paper; a match; a small piece of paper. Cut a
circle of blotting paper so that it is about 3" wider than the rim of a
drinking glass. Now use your sissors to cut a circular hole in the blotter,
leaving a "collar" that is about 1" wide. Wet this collar of blotting paper
and set it on the rim of the empty drinking glass. The blotter will stick
because it is wet., Now take a small piece of paper and light it with a
match. Throw the burning paper into the glass. Immediately place the other
glass rim downward over the first one, so that collar of blotting paper is
between the two glasses. The glasses are now '"glued" together. Lift the
top glass, and it will pull the bottom glass up with it. Why? The burning

match used up the air, creating a vacuum.






LINGdI®

‘u1al)) yeaq o3 L) nok )| siajeaq
3} uy yanys 2l e Aayy se ‘ainyxju
) iUy weyy S Aungs,, uajtaq ay
0] funys 10 peonpy ‘unef jo saa9d uana
10 “1071113 ‘ourdusu 10 saddad oy seo)ds
‘saae] poup pappalys ppe Acw nok
19ded asne1odap aiow Har3 efjewt o,
LAngs, uajeuq 0wy quped viadway pa
-3apmod s ‘sweded porojos ayew o

suonsahibng pappy

+

‘sa1n)id 10
Buydduim 1):3 *L1ovopyeye 10, 20ded apaw
-d1uoY INVA Lo melp 10 NpIm Aeul nok
‘£1p SyEnoiuy) 5| soded ay) voypy ‘g
‘Bupjeaedys 310)9q 11q 8 Lap 31 49
‘ujd dugjjos @ pasn nok )1 "Lip oy apjse
1 195 pue dodzd aprwatucy inok jo
13ad w2y pue ajepowuy 13j01q doy
211) Jjo juod Aew nuf ‘uovs) ue prn nok
J1 01 3326 qjod pus uid Juyjoa € »n ‘19
SNty 03 moj, U0 uol] 3g) dujyas
‘uogf pue | Kings,, ay) jo doj uo sjamoy
jeded 20 19330|q 20yjous 208y g
MeZS S ) Waype o) |, Aungs,, yanoud
iV iNun Duuew sjyy Uy s12ays
LT R TTTHITTS SRR TR S TR TTY
Seens gunpeiq gy oy | Aungs,
TN T YT 130y aaded aeyrvus

Jo aduods Lap ® yjim u22209 ay) Jo yIsq
YY) 550138 (|N1 PUB S|IMO]) Y] OJUQ 10
ud013§ ay) winj, ‘aoejins Jujyiom inok
uo 13110|q ® 10 s[am0) Joded peardg ‘p
‘doy uo ,, Lungs,, yym £ nja1ed uados
MYy N ‘spuvy yjoq Jupn) “woyjoq
Y] ssone 3| doods uayy pum uedysip
2Y) Jo 3p|s au0 wolj aj3us Uk U0 VIS
oYy dip ‘pusy 1nok uj uNE ey jo
pu2 auo Juipjol "ued ay) Jo woyjoq 3y
usy) 13p|M ou 5| Yipia IY) 8ang Jujaq
‘ua1ds mopuim Jo 31d ¥ Iy g
« FONT,, payed
$] nxjw uajeaq oy, 203uc| jmaq ‘eany
-%2) 104,00wWS B 2ATY puB JAUUlY) oq O)
laded inok Juwm nok 5 ‘sanupu sy
nbqe 10) 131330y seded pum Jejem
oY) je3q ‘a0ye2q 382 Limjor @ Bugspy ‘3
“1aded ay) youaiq djay g sy,
"1uad1312p 0 1puld ¥ ppy 1218 m Jo 8dnd
21 £3242 10) 2adudsmau jo Ja3ys suo a5y
‘1318 M 3y} 0) way) ppe pus s23|d |jews
ojuj sadedsmau Jo sjaays ajdujs Jsa ], "19)
"B 10 O] WEMIYN] YitM |[N] % Inoqe
Jauje)uod Jejiwys 10 uedysip w 114 '
"0 pof 1ouejuod ay) jo
3215 oy uo puadap s axcw nok jeded
JY) JO B87|S 1| L MO Uk EUEB ‘UIDIDE mop
UM JO 220id B 'sjem0) ludud 10 aduods

® ‘12aq 32 uw — sjo0)
juadiogap pasapmod )
‘s;adedsmau 218 pasu nok v ‘szaded
SMau Ju no sadud Jupum axpw of
"323[o1d dnoiB 10 jooyds
JU2|0X3 us AEW pinom Sy papPkd
*31 31w s1adedsmau pjo moy o) s8 wop)

pus 2jem

ZItHba
S

b

1]

g

iy

utr
[t
H

s
o]

-

o = =
s “olfk
5 =

M3} v snid  ydnox m wayy and M 3 pue ‘ssazoud

adwis sjyy Sofua Ajjead jim sppy ayg,

i4odod Juyum s Kopo,
ojup 12dodsindu 8, Avpsa)sak Jupuany
~—0p o) unj pue Juycurisofs )y

B






f The Magic
Broom Holder

MATERIALS

Two " plywood scuares, 3" x 3". One of the squares has a 1"
hole drilled in the center of it., Scrap cloth or leather (old
blue yeans work well). One 5/8" screw. -Glue., Sandf..per = 120
qrit. Waxed paper,

T\ TOOLs
; i Scissors
INSTRUCTIQNS
3 le Cut out a small piece of fabric 3" x 4",

2, Put a piece of waxed caper on the wori tahle to crotect its
surface anc keep the project from tecoming qlued to it

D 3, Put glue on one side of the sguare without t-e hole. Put
glue on the top part of the saguare with the hole,

AR NN e

]
ey
| |

4, Lay the square without the hole on the waxed paper, nlued
side up, Now place the fabric over this scuare, and put the
scuare with the hole nixt to it, glued side dosm. Push en the
fabric and squared tc make sure thev bond well, Put samething
heavy over the project and let it dry for four hours,

5. After the broom holder has dried it is ready to be hung
with the 5/8" screw.

f
i

CORIENTS
1thounﬁ this is a simple progect, it recuires careful attention
to line up tie two sguares so that they make a good hinge., Don't
nare the qlue,
The boys will love this after it is hung up,

&bﬂ(‘ aor atp ﬁ!'n( Corer

™ dare wrhout me ruke






HECTOGRAPH
A HOMEMADE DUPLICATOR

HERE IS WHAT YOU WILL NEED:

2 Boxes clear gelatin (2 oz)

1 Pint glycerine

14 Cup cold water

A shallow metal pan (9% x 133)

HERE IS WHAT YOU DO:

1., Heat glycerin in a double boiler.

2. Dissolve gelatin in cold water.

3. Pour hot glycerin into gelatin and dissolve gelatin.

4. Pour mixture into pan and let set for at least one hour.

Here is how to make copies:

Using a mimeograph stencil make your design to be copied.

Peel away the carbon and press the stencil onto the set gelatin.
Rub gently and let set for at least 5 minutes.

Peel off stencil and it's ready to make copies!

(To make copies lay a clean sheet of paper on hectograph and rub.)






13
14.
15
16.
1.7
18.

20.
21,
22,
23,
24.
25 4

26.
27.

Suggestions for Overcoming Fear of Speaking before a Group

Know the material well (be an expert).

Practice your presentation (pilot-test, and possibly video-
tape yourself).

Use involvement techniques (participation).

Learn participants' names and use them.

Establish your credibility early.

Use eye contact to establish rapport.

Take a course in public speaking.

Exhibit your advance preparation (via handouts, etc.).
Anticipate potential problems (and prepare probable responses).
Check in advance the facilities and AV eguipment.

Obtain information about the group in advance (through obser-
vation or guestionnaire).

Convince yourself to relax (breathe deeply; meditate; talk to
yourself).

Prepare an outline and follow it.

Manage your appearance (dress comfortably and appropriately).
Rest up so that you are physically and psychologically alert.
Use your own style (don't imitate somecne else).

Use your own words (don't read).

Put yourself in your trainees' shoes (they're asking, "What's
in it for me2").

Assume they are on your side (they aren't necessarily antagon-
istic or hostile).

Provide an overview of the presentation (state the end
objectives).

Accept some fears as being good (energizing stress vs.
destructive).

Introduce yourself to the group in advance (via a social con-
text).

Identify your fears, categorize them as controllable or
uncontrollable, and confront them.

Give special emphasis to the first five minutes (super-
preparation).

Image yourself as a good speaker (self-fulfilling prophecy).
Practice responses to tough Questions or situations.

Create an informal setting (sit on a table).






geeg L MKOKERE
T VOTE 6ED

- JoeS THUMB DEI
I'{:V!ZP past W&







BRI-\IN TEASERS

2. MAN 3. STAND
BOARD l

4. REIADINIG| 5. WEAR 6. ROAD

A
LONG A
7 v g8 5= g LE 10, wo
VEL
KNEE ., Q
N {GAT 12 & 13 [HM
14 15.\5/ 16@@@ 17
YRRy

18. HE'S / HIMSELF 19- ECNALG 20. DEATH LIFE

77






A382 rev 4/864

[ Y,

N5

1/@@

N

Backpacking
Equipment _
Recommendations:

Ten Essentials:

o Compass e First aid kit (including moleskin, tape)
e Clothing (enough 1o survive most * Sunglasses (goggles or clip-on)
procbable adverse conditions) s Pocket knife
¢ Extra food * Map (USGS topographic)
* Flgshlignt * Waterproof matches (or maiches in
* fire sicrier [candle, heat tab. etc) waterproof container)
Clothing to Wear:
* Socks (eitter cile or wool), e Parka or jacke! (wind and water
twe cair resistant)
e Zoots ¢ Shirts and’o- sweaters (hrave several
* Long cants l'ocse-fiting ard including a wzci ¢ olle one to utize
creferably wogi) me layer systerm)
* Wool o cue gicves or mittens and hat e Bie cap or sun V5o
Additional tems for Day Tnps
* PaQc« s Camera and i~
S g THET B E Mahe Huy * C.astic bogs
il * T55ue Qrg Lo IC e raner
®ITETDET DL T2 er T Lo et nale o _ter bag
edc P8 & Jateh
* rseltrere =7 © EDRCRL AT DRBCL adten 2 “er
Lille = Rot - Rt I R o e " gear
o Jiteg can weiEte B . Hg B
© D e e . 5_“ SEFEES D
§ R . [] alelaid =T PI-S o B Ll | S OB cog g

Addmonol Equipment for Overmght Trips:

e Sreer * T ¢ Twind flashitger Bafery ang B
» TS ::: g e St gwppe

* Stesoing bog v walerproct stuff bag * “aing ulersis

e Sieec:ng cac . -*og for harging fuod

e Stove arg flei s Nylor cord

s Cooxing Ccz * Personal toiiet items

e Water curit, rg«t * 3iodegragable scar

* Long urdeneqr * ‘ain cover 107 cack

Other Things that Are Nice to Have:

e Swimsoit * owe!
e Camp sroes s "lotenock Qna cencil
* Binoculars

Quality Outdoor Gear and Clothing Since 1938







All Trips

In Pack

Ten Essentials
1. map of area (in a case)
2. compass
3. flashlight with eatra cells
and bulbs
4, extra food
5. extra clothing (socks,
mitts, sweater, shirt,
balaclava, down or
synthetic fill garment,
etc.)
6. sunglasses
7. first aid kit
8. pocket knife
9. matches in waterproof
container
10. firestarter

Clothing

boots

socks, inner and outer
underwear

pants

warm sweater and shirt
parka, wind/rain

hats (wool, rain, sun)
down or synthetic garments

Other

ice axe

emergency shelter
metal cup
(insulating seat pad)
water bottle

lunch

sunburn preventive

(lip protection)

handkerchief

toilet paper
whisle

insect repellent
{(nylon cord)
(altimeter)
(inexpensive watch)
(camera and film)
(binocular)

(gaiters)
(wind/rain pants)
(long underwear)
(raingear)

(shorts}

(hot weather shirt)
mittens, gloves

Additional for Overnight and Longer Trips

Frame pack/soft pack,
rucksack

sleeping bag and stuff sack

sleeping pad or mattress

¥shelter—-tent and
accessories, tarp,
groundsheet

¥food

spoon

¥stove, accessories and

fuel

¥pots, accessories, scouring pads

K(water container)

(personal hygiene)

¥repair kit - pliers, wire,
cord, needle, thread,
pins, clevis pin and
split ring

(spare clothing)

(spare underwear)

(camp footgear)

(down booties)

(pack cover)






£9¢

(b
)
ovd =4n1s

«3720¢
¥ INIWLAVEWOD ¥IMOT
ez ,..O-ﬁ./
“ Q“,l LNIWLHTEWOD H3edr
Y
\ﬁ
~3»30¢
=22 P ) 5 ,
yzeen RO R
\

-
ﬂ # ~3»20c¢ dv 7y

13»20¢
1437
AIMNG™

MHV
y/a

T

Phley , . L I
i&t_& [ VIO TR T ST P RT S Y

ONINOVAYOVE

W pre isig
LAMD0d
LHOMN ¥3MOT

FERIRE:
pUIM JA0IG
[9N) A0S
LAX00d
LHO ¥dddn

[omo) [euig
asedyoo]
ysmiqyiooy.

quio))

Joanuw elapy
1aded a0

deog
SUI0d
£ouadiowry
adou
pue feq 1eog
pin)y
INSIYM

Slajae)s ERL}}

pue saydepy

|mog
dn))

LAMO0d Movd

sseduro)y
1oded
pue g

sdepy

nunad guidune )y
LANOOd IV

91 H31dVHO c9¢

feq
Ul SJU3WIPUOD pue poo,
Y10[2> punoin
Saxels Juaf
die) 10 ILET

deq 1a1ep
ped weoy A0S
geq Buidaalg S[ISUdIN pue Iy J00)
Ovd 4d4NLs LNAWLYVAWOD ¥3ddNn
euepuegq salialjeq pue
$3100q 10 qinq azeds yum yydiyse|4

'SI0YSs BUlUUNI ‘SUISEII0N
120D 10 eyiey
19Yel 10 191eOMg

§129sUl UI0J] UOD)0I
uns wodj uogdajoly

LAMD0d L4937 43IMO'1
uoseas ay)
10} ajeudosdde Suyiop
$)20G 133 urey
ded 1o jey UI2)ULd 10 IN0q I31ep
INIWLIVANOD ¥IMO' LAXM00d L4371 ¥3ddn

}oeq 1noA jsutefe Sutuoiysnd apiaoid o) surgiop jo 1akef e yum 1oLl
s yoed ay) Jo Juouy ay) ped ‘ased 1ayyia uj Apaesd jo 193udd Ay Bultamo|
Shyy pue yoed ayy jo wonoq ayy ur Jead Aaeay dueld Aq Aqers
JO 0] € 10] 110jw0d 3| e 3pel) ued nok ‘syan Suussurejunow pue
‘BUIBOYSMOUS ‘Fuliys A1JUN0X-$S0ID 104 "}oeq 1n0A 0} 3s0]> pue yBiy si Apaes
JO 131u9d S)1 yey) 0s yded nok Jo sjuUI) LoD 3Y) aBuetse ‘Buiyiy preay 104
‘APdIND 11 91e20] URD NOA 05 yoed ok J0 19%00d
dy1ads e 0] WaY [[ews yoes winyal sAem|y ‘saiiddns ino4 jo ysa1 ay) wouj
Paie|ost aq ||, A9y} 0s s1apulj£d 1o 3pjoq [9n) oA 10§ 13320d auo Suiasasas
's1ydod apisino sppped ayy wr sydeus [iedy pue ‘uondajoud asur pue
uns ‘aoq Jdajem ‘dew o Aure) “deyj urew ayy sapun 1snf apu pnoys
2UN] NOA PUR *SHD0S UBI|D “13]LIMS © ‘11 pre )1 3y} ‘1eal ures 1nq ‘yoed
241 ut deap 03 ued dwed ayew nok [yun pasu Luom noA Juswdinby
‘[1ouad e pue iaded
sdeysad pue ‘saBepueq aaisaype M3} B 'Saydiew JLWOS ‘BURPUERQ ‘B[ISIYM
ssedwod *ajiuy nod—syaxdod ok ur o8 swdl pasn Apuanbaug ‘rewsg pen
Y} doj 1 yoed o) st dags 1xau Yyl Auied 0] jeym PSUIULI3)3P 3A NOA 3du()

AIVd V DNIAVOT







i RECREATIONAL EQUIPMENT, INC.
E 1798 Jantzen Beach Center
Portland, Oregon 97247
(503) 283-1300

RENTAL RATES

1-3 Davs Week Additional Dav
Flastic Climbing Eoots 9.00/10.00 15.00/16.50 2.50
Hiking Boots . 4.50/5.,00 7.00/7.75 1.25
Ice Axe 3.50/3.85 7.00/7.75 1.25
Crampons ~ B.50/3.85 7.00/7.75 1.25
Helmets I.00/3.50 5.00/5.50 1.00
Summit Pack 4.50/5.00 7.00/7.75 1425
Cruiser Pack 7.00/7.75 12.00/13.25 2.00
REI .Lodestar_ 9.00/10.00 YFT00/16.50 3.00
Junior Pack 4.00/4.50 7.00/7.75 1.50
Stove w/3 hrs. fuel 4.30/5.00 ?.00/10.00 1.00
Timberline Tent-2 Person 14.00/15.50 22.00/24.00 4.50
Timberline Tent-4 Person 18.00/19.00 28.00/30.00 5.50
Flashlight Tent-2 Person 16.00/17.50 26.00/28.50 5.00
Great we;tern Tent 25.00/27.50 S3.00/38.50 7 .00
Sleeping Eag * 5.00/5.50 i1.00/12.oo . 2.00
Front Panniers 4,00/4.50 7.50/8.00 1.00
Rear Panniers 4.350/5.00 8.00/8.50 1.00

¥ Canoes and Kayaks rent for $20.00 per day with a $100.00 deposit.

X% A deposit will be required of all non REI members and members of less

than two months.
DEPOSIT SCHEDULE

Ice Axe, Crampons, Helmets, Junior Packs, Boots and Stoves 15.00
~ruiser Packs, Panniers and Sleeping Eags 25.00
40.00

All Tents






'19z884) ebie| e jJo apisul uuoped Mofoy jo doy
uo paoe|d esam sped ay) ‘beq buidaals moeyy sjen 8JB - UUON e O apisul uinbauuew aAnsues
-einesedwsel e Buiziinn ‘qejisel '3y eyl e uossnubepy 18D Aq pejidwos sem uoneuwuojul sy |

o« LIp ‘20 92 ol .12 ~04 10015 1828814 UQ Sped 8Ir-eng seWIp OM 1
« O'VE ‘20 92 Wk A2 L wJopeld uQ sped eu-eng stuipg omy |
« 962 'Z0 09 . e 52 wiid, 1sey dwe) isey-v-uuey|
-« B'82 20 Q€ SL .02 .69 Ped weo4 peiaaoD) uoiiy
- 962 20 Ly S doj uQ reinBey ewr-emgm
1S8Y-v-wsey) uonmedxy peteyeq
« £°'62 ‘20 6€ o | 02 2L 1S9Y-v-wiey | vompedxs
s P'ES 20 02 SO Isey e8pny Buon )0 do) up
T 1sey eBpiy woys
« 2’12 ‘20 42 AR 02 S~ Buo 1sey-v-uuey ) wbremn
e L2 'Z0 91 5 .02 .6€ Ped wWeo4 pereAo)) uoipn
«PLL 'Z0 6€ SLE .02 . 1s8y-v-wiay) uoipadxy pereyeg
« €21 ‘20 gt .G o .69 1e2Mendby
o P LL 'Z0 G2 .Sl .02 LY ISay-v-uuey] yibuat-r prepuelg
w« AL ‘20 11 .G 2 .85 weod anig 3 avengedioyg
s 'OL 'Z0 g1 wb .02 VA - Wibuan-vt 1sey-v-uuey) woiremn
« €91 'Z0 21 el ol B Buo 1Sy 8bpny
«2'Gl 'Z0 g - .02 -6t Jeinbey 1sey ebpry
e 9PL "Z6 i .G B .9S 3pPIS BUOD UQD W4 BANDBYyBLY M
Jadaels yeed
o VP ‘20 ¢ .G W& .02 ar-enig JeMIAA
e 9CL 'zo g S W bE .95 ureoy anig suailpeiiod
e 9€CIL ‘20 01 .0G" . .95 ledees yeey
« BN ‘20 O} LSLE OB Rer Buo eirt-enig
e 911 ‘20 g WSLE BT .95 seinbey aut-emg
e 88 ‘20 ¢ .S2 WL .49 ssaiuew Jry anysdweyy
«9€E ‘20 05 .G E2 .99 Ssaiuew Iy J0NeS
=0 0 ped oN
(4) vojwod uj _
eswesdou]  yBjlem 888UND|Y | WIPIM yiBuan I390Nn

7 'SAvVd ONIdIITS






LY

B e ARt Bt W e - = -

T e pg A aht W

~ S L S WS B NaiT B . - k- £

cwrs e ---

-+ b Y AP e .

ane you considered taking your wok with
you when you go camping? It may be the
only major cooking utensil you'll need.

A wok works well cradled over an open
fire between a few large rocks. It also cooks
efficiently over a gas or propane-fueled camp
stove, charcoal-heated hibachi, small port-
able barbecue, and standard park fireplace.

In your wok, you can scramble eggs, cook
bacon, fry trout or hamburgers, or stir-fry
any recipe from this book.

Tb cook over an open fire, arrange three
or four large rocks in a ring to cradle the
wok (wok bottom should be about 6 inches
above ground). Start a little fire and wait
until it's burning well —use small kmdlmg
wood for quick, hot cooking and larger p:eces
for slower cooking and steaming.

For wood-burning park fireplaces, set the
wok directly on the grill or stove top. To
compensate for the greater distance between
the fire and the bottom of the wok, build
as big a fire as necessary.

Use portable gas or propane-fueled camp
stoves the same way you would use a gas
range at home. For most cooking, set the
wok directly on the burner; for steaming,
set the wok on its ring stand over the burn-
er. With a very small unit, you may need to
drop back the stove lid and wind shields in
order to center the wok over a burner.

With a hibachi or small portable barbecue,
place a single layer of charcoal briquets in
the bottom for fast cooking. With charcoal in
place, position the wok for cooking. For high
heat, set the wok directly on the hibachi
(without grill)—the wok should be not more
than % inch above the coals, but not touch-
ing. (If coals are too low, add briquets; if too
high, replace grill and set the wok on top.)

For lower heat, set the wok ring stand on
top of the grill and set the wok in the ring
stand; the bottom of the wok should be about
1%inches above the coals. After making these
adjustments, start the fire and let it burn
until the coals are covered with gray ash.

Hamburgers with Onion Rings

Mix 1 pound lean ground beef with 1 tea-
spoon garlic salt, 1 tablespoon instant

Camping wnth awok

. WAL PR W amame ) oy o

minced onion, and ¥ teaspoon
pepper. Form 4 patties, each N
about % inch thick. Place wok over
fire. When wok is hot, lay patties near bot.-
tom of wok. Also p!ace 4 English muffin
halves, cut sides down, in wok slightly
above patties. Cook patties to desired done-
ness (about 5 minutes on each side for
medium-rare). Place each on a muffin half.
Top with canned fried onion rings.
Makes 4 servings.

Ham and Zucchini Stir-fry

Stir together % cup regular-strength
chicken broth, 1 tablespoon soy sauce, 1
tablespoon dry sherry (optional), 1 clove
garlic (minced or pressed), % teaspoon
grated fresh ginger root or % teaspoon
ground ginger, 1 tablespoon sugar, % tea-
spoon salt, and 1 teaspoon cornstarch.

Cut % pound cooked ham or leftover
meat into Y%-inch-thick slices, then into 2-
inch strips. Cut 1 large carrot and 1 large
zucchini into %-inch-thick slices. Slice 1
large onion (optional).

Place wok over high heat. When wok is
hot, add 3 tablespoons salad oil. When oil
is hot, add ham and stir-fry until lightly
browned (about 1 minute). Add carrot, zuc-
chini, onion, and 1 tablespoon water. Stir-
fry 1 minute. Cover and cook, stirring fre-
quently, for 2 minutes. Pour in chicken
broth mixture. Cook, stirring, until mixture
boils and thickens. Makes 2 servings.

Steamed Trout and Vegetables

Slice as thinly as possible 1 large onion, 2
stalks celery, and 2 small carrots. Melt %
cup butter or margarine in an 8 or 9-inch
foil pan; stir in % teaspoon each salt and
Italian seasoning (or thyme leaves). Dip 2
cleaned trout into butter mixture to coat.

Stir vegetables into butter mixture and
lay fish on top. Place pan on a rack or ring
stand over simmering water in wok; lightly
cover fish with foil. Cover wok and steam
for about 15 minutes or until fish flakes
easily when prodded in thickest portion
with a fork. Makes 2 servings.

- S, P T STnTE Y

ha A p - | Fw o

SAtyr = o e

o

- sl

. .

RS
- v

virem

TR s B - --"_—J

e e e |






RECIPES

PLANNING

Meals at camp can be as interesting as they are at
home if they are planned well. There are many fac-
1ors to consider in planning for your group: tastes,
amount of available money, methods of cooking.
Other considerations are the duration of the camp-
ing trip, the mode of transportation, the number of
people to cook for, and the sex and age of the cam- |
pers. if marketing sources are unavailable for a !
week, fresh produce and meat are concerns; if the !
trip entails backpacking, heavy cans are impractical.

e key to planning good, practical meals for your
camp Is to choose your activities and plan your
meals around those activities. For example, it is not
good planning to have a breakfast which will take
:f':;a time 1o prepare if you want to start on an early

Coals | ;

A keyhole fire is excellent because you can move
the coals in and out of the cooking area as needed .
(see chapter on fires). A trench fire Is very good,
especially for the indoor Dutch oven, because the
t+-anch can be dug deep enough to keep coals from

~hing the bottom of the pan and narrow enough

st the Dutch oven on the sides of the trench.

... type of fire would be especially good for either

shallow frying or deep frying because the kettle

remains firm. A dug-out shallow pit, three to four

inches deep, in which you make a bed of coals for
the oven is safe and easy to make.

Charcoal briquets

If you are using charcoal briquets to make coals, -
place the correct number of briquets on both the top
and the bottom of the Dutch oven, according to the
following suggestions. A general rule Is to leave
about a two-inch square between briquets, forming

a checkerboard pattern (figs. 84, 85). ¥

8ize of Oven Teop Bofttom
8* 6-8 4-6 A
107 8-10 68 -
12 10-12 810 . |
147 12-16 10-12 i
16° 16-18 12-16 i

Because charcoal briquets give off a great deal of
heat, check the food periodically until you are sure
how many briquets on both the top and the bottom
will give you the right amount of heat for your Dutch
oven. When you are using more than one Dutch
oven, stack them in order to save briquets. Bake
ltem;ig\ the lower ovens, and fry foods in the top one

A. 96).

The Dutch oven works well in pit cooking for varl-
ety meals, one-pot meals, or stewing. See the sec-
tion on pit cooking for further details. !

Underground '
|
|

So rich and delicious. It takes time, but the
results are worth it

Bake at 350° for 40 minutes.
Makes § servings.

1 pound ground beef
1 medium-slze onlon, chopped
(: cup)
1 clove gerilc, minced
1 can(about 2 pounds) Hallan
tomatoes
1 can(8ounces)lomalo paste .
% cup water i
2 tablespoons chopped parsiey i
2 teaspoons sait . l
1 teaspoon mized Hallan herbe |
crumbled .
1 bayleaf
1 package (1 pound)lasegna
<. noodies .
T tablespoon olive or vegetableoll
1 container (1 pound)ricotia cheese l
or cottage cheese !
2 peckages (8 ounces sach)sliced [
mozzarelle cheese !
% cup grated Parmesan cheess

1. Press ground beeflinto a large patty
in a8 medium-size skillet;, brown §
minutes on each side; break up into
chunks; push to one side.

2. Add onion and garlic; ssuté 2
minutes, or until soft; stir in tomatoes,
fomato paste, water, parsley, salt,
ltalian mixed herbs and bay leal.
3. Bring ‘to boiling, lower beat;
simmer, stirring often, | hour, or until
thick; remove bay leaf.

4. Slide lasagna noodles, a few at a
time, into a large kettle of boiling
water; add oil and salt, following label
directions. Cook, stirring often with
8 wooden spoon, 15 minutes, or just
until tender. (Don't overcook them.)
Drain; cover with cold water. :
§.-Line bottom of a large lasagna dish |
or 13x9x2-inch casserole with a single
layer of drained noodles. (Lift each
strip separately from water with a
slotted spoon and hold over kettle to
drain.) Cover with a third each of
gauce, ricotla or cotlage cheese,
mozzarella cheese and Parmesan
cheese. Repeat to make 3 layers, end-
ing with Parmesan cheese. -

6. Bake in moderate oven (350°) 40
minutes, or until bubbly hot. Let set

For DuTeH OVEN
AASAGNA

Cood mest asucs &
Krme ¥ Bl mopdh.
Coct i toodng 0l 4
d’!u.\, 3 CM, -~

Plodc By dosk
b Wdle 3 ocperita.

PINEAPPLE CITRUS
GLAZED PORK ROAST

1 boneless pork loin roast (3 to
4 pounds)
Garlic salt
Pepper
1 can (20 ounces) Dole crushed
pineapple
1 cup orange juice
% cup lemon julce
Y4 cup sugar
2 tablespoons cornstarch
1 tablespoon grated orange peel
1 tablespoon grated lemon peel
2 teaspoons dried mint, crushed

Preheat oven to 400°F. Place pork ¢
rack In shallow roasting pan, fat side
up. Sprinkle pork with garlic salt
and pepper to taste. Insert meat
thermometer. Roast in preheated
oven, uncovered, 30 minutes. Redu:
oven to 325°F and roast 30 minutes

In saucepan, combine undrained
pineapple, orange and lemon juices,
sugar and cornstarch. Cook, stirring,
until mixture boils and thickens. Stir
orange peel, lemon peel and mint.
Spread half of glaze over pork after
hour of roasting. Continue roasting
and baste with glaze every 30 minut
until thermomeler reaches 170°F
{about 2 hours total cooking time).
Remove pork 1o serving platter. Let
stand 15 minutes before slicing. Ser:
with remaining glaze.

Makes 8 servin



-

T spooy Juryty Jo sarnog

("6 3ndeyd
LA JduuL(,, Ul asoy)
se yoans saysip doy
-2a018 Ul sh>oriod paup
3yl Isn UED NOA 1Ng
‘sowmn unjeq Juoj axinb
-31 Aay1 2snedaq Isn
[ren 10j reonoead 1uare
saxiw orod paup
1SOLW 1210U 120NES YIIm
SAXTW PAXoq ul pagnd
PAMS PIPPIYS SNy
orelod-paysewn ) spom104g
spualq dnog
siaddad pas pue uaoin
$IAIYD ‘SUOIUQ)
SWOOIYSN
%31qgE1330A poLI(
(sdin
IDYIEIM-[O0D UO I8N
A13ED 30}) S9|qe1adsa udzZOoIg
1102204q ‘12M0[)
-jned *a3eqqed ‘sdiu
-1n1 ‘oped0aAe ‘ysenbs
Idwwns ‘ssoieiod
‘SUOIUO ‘SAYSIPED ‘10
-WNOND “AIIID S10IIED
nngy i (ysy Joj)
uoud| ‘sadurto ‘sapddy
([[oM s[oaen
nq ‘Aaeay) sonpoad ysaig
(soomn
-ud e1aads ‘eq-ur-jioq
‘pajoodaid ‘Buialas
-3{3uIs ) SOYSIP UrBW 13010y
(s10AE] puowie
‘umpdiyd ‘eudese| ‘gou
-£80115) S15UUIP DPOON
(1w
pue Huuriicw
padu 2wos Mapdwos dwos)

I$22YD pUE 1UOIEDER
(so1d
-LIPA [EIDADS) SAIXIU IDIY
(sonourea
Me1aaas) sadpay) uayony)
(sona
-LITA [£33498) JodpoH vung
( SONDIBA [2ID
-A38) 1adpH 1»3inquivyy
[SIXIW JIDUUIP paxoy
SpraJy ueog
waygm andng
SIHPOOU UIDIU MO )
(1e2yAMONg 01
umoiq 1eaym 2oym
‘dds) sapoou unswey
(SWI0J [EIDAIS TEOYM
ajoym pue §35) moydrdg
(sadeys pue
SJIOAE[) [EIDAIS) TUOIEIE
( sadeys pue
SIOAE] [FIIAIS) SIPOON
( sw10) FujOOD
-1s921nb oy asooyd) seised
(s$31 JO smnunw
G 1 UI YOOI 1Byl IS0}
asooyd ‘deqg-ur-ploq
‘SJOAT]] [EIIADS ‘Pl
‘UAM0Iq IIYM ) D11 ¥DING)
XIW ULYNLW/PEIIGUIO.)
(SIOAR]] [BIFADS) XU UIgny
xiw Juryeq dseg
SE|[1110] INOJJ PUE UJO))
pEDIQ UMOIJ PIVUE)
PEIY YduILg
pPEIIY 124D0(
SToy
(s10ATy ADUT) [FIDADS
pue uegd) 282040 wedr)
(sw0j
PUET SPUDY [EIIAIS ) I8N

Ofmw

AJp 1Urisul pue X1

20NES WEIID-INOS YIka
asn szoary radaas) xiw dig

( djowedrnd 'as3ayd
oyaeu ‘voruo ‘wep) sdiq

saad0d3o0g Paf-11am IdL

(pa3mbaa >wn 3un
-§00D §$3] JO SIINUIW
1 YA SSUO JO 1UElS
-Utl 2S00YD DNOX3 puUE
PIEPUEIS ‘SIOAB]) JO SUD
-zop) saxiw dnos paiapaod

souurg

(smras
i payord saoary
12408 soyonod Haint nay
(smrals
yitw payord ‘szoary
1210438 soyonod yuup unig
(12msTInN JO Irdns
s ) sopaod yuup inag
N[IW parIu JUBISU|
N{1Ww AJp JUBRISU|
(SJOARY [BIDADS)
Juippnd [enprapun pauue)
(s10AEy [BID
-A2s) x1w Fuippnd 1ueIsSu]
SIvQ E[OURID)
STCETRIPRIN B33 14T¢ |
S MEJOD0Y)
(sdaaey U]
EAIEY "AJ1I0D1] "SUEdq
Aol ssarpued paey yng
pue padeyored siq) spue)
SIJOOD ApInIg
SIXHU [IeI]
SINU UJOT)
sdig» 1Inuodo’)
spoas updwing
S[AUIIY PAIS IdMOJung
SINN
1IEDWDUIL PasUapuo’)
Dyea| unayg

uny pati(g
SUISITY
saysenbs 1owwins
*A12[2> 's1011ED '$H8ue
-10 *sajdde :30npoad ysaig
(sJoAB] 2[qr1280a
Ysy ‘udPIYd J32q)
13paod 10 sagnd uoqinog
( paninbas urnjood
§$3] JO SINUIW ¢ Yim
$3U0 JO JUEBISUT 3500YD
13110X2 pUE pIEpPUEIS
410q ‘SIOAE] JO SU2
-zop) saxiw dnos palapaod
(peaye
axeq ‘12dinquuey it
asn) Buruoseds 1ure|
-vs "Buiuoseas AN1dl paxog
(epEIIYoUua
‘ueaq ‘3s3ayd) sdip pauue)
a8esnrs BUUIIA
(s1addry 'sam
540 ‘vun] 'SdONEs [BJd
-A2S Ul S2UIPJES ) YSI pIUUE)
speasds jeaw pouue’)
SYONS BN
adesnes Jaduniny |
wosaddag
LTRSS AI(]
SIEDW PIYOWS PG
(Spup| [e3243s) WIaf

91



sl

spoag Suryip fo saranog

Aduo}g
wef
ID1INY MNUED
PE3IQ UMOI] pauur’)
("2 ‘yorurad
-wnd ‘241) speaiq dedwon
sugnw ysijdusg
(spuny [e32423s) sjodeyg
PE2IQ 1300

SHOY

SIYED D01y
(sadeys pure saoary

JO SUIZOP) SIMITID Apanig
(s10aep Lour) rioAds

pue uegd) 283000 weay
(syoed-rzaanbs “youd
P02 "$221)S 'SIeq ‘qnq

UT SPUIY [EJDADS) 28204")

SYIPUS puUp Gouny

(smens
yim payoed ‘sioary
Te13A2s) sayonod aon( 1inay
(nny
-adesd adesd Hdueso)
SNULIP ISEJNEIIY PAIIPMO]
(pasop
-mod 1eisut pue s8eq) vo
(s19¥ded renpiarp
-ur) Jap1d padids paiapaod
(s19ded enpraip
-ut) juup doudd> patdpmogd
32[0D kIS
SUnEAQ
y['Ww pajjew JueIsuj
(Aw ppe ‘sioaey [e1d
-AJS) NULIP 1SEP[EIIQ JURISU]
(pw spaau)
Nuup A11agMmens jueisu]
(101 380l SWos ‘Y
PIDU JWOS ) BODOD JWRISU]
FHIDNNY PAIIPMOY
JIWEIID ANEPUON
(1rJjuou
UrL) SNOLIINU 230W
wg-Mop) ypr Lip umsu)
so0110d UMOIG-YsSeEY pati()
2820 )

sqdy
$31Q UODEBY ADY
Aaaf
syuny adusnes payowg
O uepein )y
uOdEY PAdILS Pauur’)y
SYINS DY
(pmbip 10 prjos) sunedaryy
1edns umougg
wef
AJUO} )
(1m
S[2AEL) INY ‘AAEIY) UOPOY
SINN
INUOD0)
JDUIED] 2N
nnyy pati(y
sutsny
(pury Ieam
-§Juo-ppe v asooyd
UM D[OyM pur
NN ) XTI YO |
(proye
ANV ) XIW I BjOURn
(STOAR[] EIDADS) XIWU Uy
surgpn sy
sprasq edwoy
SIT( R[OUrd)

AXYISYIPY pof 1oy Ny

RTNRTRITY
SN PAIS 120Uy

18I A\ JO WEDL)
[EawIro yundy
SPRIS DUESOY (510

WIYT 1EdMm PIIseo |
2011 ¥oInd)

-yoed [enprapur ‘sioaey
[EJ2ADS) [E2WIEO JUEISU|

Sy oIy By [ B!
SMED[] 1EIY W -32 2INUIW-JU0 1O 1UBISU]
wooyz EI[IWE]
[U2Iy URUOY siny -adessy
uols|ey spng uelg
1212 Furyood-yIInd) uesg-[rvy
2O VN EJOUETY)

2100 JO WedI) $[EDIDD PlOD AIEIY

ISPy

TOU PUE S  E 00 payoos it ayeaued iy paup uinoad
ANYradas paanixal canu csoiesd sigdoa podeyordaad ur pros
SPOOF LTS DY) J0] URYT J2M0] INW 2T S0 NG Ul s2[qIpa jo
ADLIEA B YOO8 WOU PUT SID1A10s papuedxd 24rY $19¥41ew 3onpoad
puE s21018 a0 0ad I AUrW S [ERSN Y1 01 UOLIPPE U

JHYOLS AYAD0UD

JASINOA

SISIE AL 01 JUppe aq [1.N0 L IO 01 IAEY §IIN0S TUIIIYIP JEYw
1NOUE SEIPL ILOS 21T DI "D00D) 3 01 nos padan Sulaey

(S20UnO - pue v 1 usdw1q ydas ang sder dond

JeLns 33 SEUnIas poanp-aza0a) dpgraedwo’y) sasuno ¢ sydan

PUL LTS PUL €778 UM NS00 Fuiatds yoeg nos idwyn sew

SN PO IYEa pue doud inoge 23ed 1U0P PUE JJOIELIDED
LYY S0 YRS SSEAY IS WO I0EM NoA uays sdl poys 304

11eam un padaawgns ‘yonod [0y sn

wyEn sieay uotzod Suraaas-o13uws yoryg uonesadiugag oyt

SIeas oM 10 daay Lo saaneadasaad noyits Cpajeas-wnnoe y

SAUOIS AUOIE PUT JOOPINO {104 UL PIOS—_S22J10D 21nuiW-¢

Paeas yonod  payooaad—saysip Uit 10303 JO ARIIE UE S 2J0Y |

SAOOT LYO.LTY

ti



EIGHT FLAVORS
POT ROAST

1 can (20 ounces) Dole pineapple
chunks
2V; pounds boneless beef chuck
1 tablespoon vegetable oll
1 small yeliow enlon, chopped
2 cloves garlic, pressed
1% cups water
% cup soy sauce
¥, cup dry sherry
2% tablespoons brown sugar
2 cinnamon sticks
1 tablespoon minced fresh ginge:
root
1 teaspoon alispice
1 head Chinese cabbage, cut int«
quariers®
4 teaspoons cornstarch
2 tablespoons water

Drain pineapple; reserve juice. Trim
excess fat from beel. Heat large pot
until hot. Add oll, swirling to coat
sides. Cook onion and garlic in hot o
stirring, 1 minute. Add beef; brown

! 2 minutes on each side.

In medium bowl, combine reserve.
pineapple juice, 1% cups water, soy
sauce, sherry, sugar, cinnamon, ging:
and allspice; pour over beef. Bring t
boll; reduce heat and simmer, coverec
turning meat occasionally, 1% hours
Add cabbage; cook 30 minutes longe
adding pineapple last 5 minutes.

Remove meat, cabbage and
pineapple from pot Slice meat and

PORKEE PASSION

1/2 1b bacon 31b meat
8 carrots 4 onions
1/2 cup tacoe sauce

§ potatoes

brown l_)acon - add meat sliced thin - add carrots, potatoes
and onions sliced thin, cook for 20 to 30 min.

‘Camp Chill

Method: Dutch oven or pan.
Time: twenty to thirty minutes.
Yield: 6 to B servings. .
& Brown in skillet

1 1b. hamburger

1 diced onion.
B Add 1 Ilrbe can kidney ‘
beans or red beans
1 can cream of tomato

BOuy
" 2 teaspoons chili

@ Drain off excess fat.

salt and pepper to
taste. "

B Simmer together. spnp READ
Variation: can be served o%r%murger %xotOmeP

buns.

arrange on serving platter with
cabbage and pineapple. Strain
remaining broth. Pour 1 cup into
saucepan. Dissolve cornstarch in

2 tablespoons waler, add to broth.
Cook, stirring, until sauce boils and

thickens. Pour over beef to serve.

Makes 6 servin:

*Or use green cabbage (about 2
pounds). ;

— e i i

Chicken In Dutch Oven

Method: Dutch oven.

Time: forty-five to sixty minutes.

Yield: 5 or 6 servings.

B Mix and place in
bottom of Dutch oven
(soup undiluted)

8 Place on top
B Sprinkle

B Place Dutch oven In
coals and cook.

1 can cream of
mushroom soup

1 can cream of celery
soup

1 can cream of chicken
soup

2 cups white rice.

1 LU I dard

¥ pkg. dried onion
soup. N

Method: pit

Time: three to 3V2 hours

Yield: 4 or 5 servings.
W Mix together

B Stuff

B Spread well on
outside of chicken

@ Add

# Wrap chicken tightly
in three or four layers
of 24" x 24" heavy-duty
foil, using drugstore

_wrap. Newspapers

may be used Instead
of extra layer of foll

B Bury In pit. OR BAKE

T

-

V2 loaf bread

1 stalk celery, cut up
1¥2 teaspoons sage
1 teaspoon salt

1 egg

1 grated carrot

¥z cup milk

Va2 teaspoon pepper.

1 chicken.

butter,
salt and pepper.

IN DUTCH OVEN 3HOURS



H. Guns/Firearms

The Boy Scouts of America adheres to its longstanding
policy of teaching its youth and adult members the safe,
responsible, intelligent handling, care. and use of firearms,
airguns. and BB guns, in planned, professionally managed.
and supervised programs. In carrying out the mandate of
the National Council to provide this vital training, the BSA
will continue to welcome and encourage the participation,
support, and direction of national associations and organi-
zations that promote the safe and responsible use of firearms
and airguns.

Cub Scout Standards

BB guns (defined as a smooth-bore, spring-action, or air
rifle propelling shot known as “BBs” witha muzzle velocity
of no more than 350 feet per second) have been approved
for marksmanship safety programs in Cub Scout resident or
day camps. The range officer must be certified by the local
council as having completed training in BB-gun safety by
a BSA-certified field sports director or a National Rifle
‘ssociation-certified rifle instructor.

Cub Scouts are not permitted to use any type of handgun
or firearm.

Primary reference: Shooting Sports. chapter 1. Additional references: Cub
Scout Day Camp: Resident Camping for Cub Scouts, Webelos Scouts. and
Families; and Cub Scout Leader Book.

Boy Scout Standards

Boy Scouts are permitted to fire .22 caliber bolt-action,
single-shot rifles, air rifles, shotguns, and muzzleloading
long guns under the direction of a certified instructor, 21 years
of age or older, within the standards outlined in current Scout-
ing literature and bulletins. BSA policy does not permit the
use of handguns in the Boy Scouting program.

References: Camp Health and Safety and Shooting Sports.

Handguns

The following guidelines relate to the use of handguns
within the program of the Boy Scouts of America:

1. Handgun use is limited to the Explorer program only.

2. All training and shooting activities must be under the
supervision of an NRA-ertified instructor or the firearms
instructor of a local, state, or federal agency.

3. All participants must complete a basic pistol marksman-
ship course prior to range firing. The NRA basic pistol
marksmanship course (or equivalent training course) con-
ducted by a law enforcement agency, a civilian gun club.
or a US. military department, is acceptable.

4. Explorer handgun shooting “Range Operation Outline”
must be used in conjunction with the basic pistol marks-
manship training. This outline is available from the
Exploring Division or Health and Safety Service (at the
national office).

5. With the approval of the local council. handgun shoot-
ing may be conducted on BSA camp ranges provided the
shooting is done under the auspices of an NRA certified
instructor or firearms instructor of a local, state, or fed-
eral agency.

6. Care must be taken to comply with federal, state, and
local laws.

The following standards are established for rifles to be used
in Boy Scouting:
|. Breech-loading rifles will be single-shot, bolt-action of

the 22 caliber rim-fire type only. They may be cham-
bered for the .22 short or .22 long rifle, but not for the

10



.22 WRF (which is a more powerful cartridge) Air rifles
are also permitted.

L+

. Semi-automatic rifles will not be permitted.

3. Repeating rifles having a tubular magazine will not
be permiited.

4. Repeating rifles having a removable clip-type magazine
will be permitted but must be used as a single-loader.

5. No rifle will be used that has less than a 3-pound trig-
ger pull.

6. Shooting safety glasses and ear protectors are
recommended.

7. All training and shooting activities must be supervised
by a currently NRA-ertified rifle instructor or coach who
is 21 years of age or older.

Primary reference: Shoohing Sporis. chapter | Additional reference: Rifle
Shooting merit badge pamphlel

Shotguns

The following standards are established for shotguns to
be used by Boy Scouts, Varsity Scouts or Explorers:

1. Itis recommended that either 20-, 16-, or 12-gauge semi-
automatic shotguns be used. Gas operated shotguns
are recommended.

2 Ammunition containing No. 8 shot or smaller is recom-
mended on ranges with a protected down range of 600
feet. Additional down range distance of 150 feet (total 750)
is required for No. 6 shot size. Shot larger than No. 6 is
not to be used.

3. Shooting safety glasses and ear protectors are required
on shotgun ranges.

4. All training and shooting activities must be supervised
by a currently certified NRA shotgun instructor or coach
who is 21 years of age or older.

Primary reference: Shooting Sporls, Chapter 2.

Muzzle Loaders

The following standards pertain to use of muzzle-loading
long guns in training by members of the BSA:

1. Muzzle-oading rifles must be recently manufactured, per-
cussion only. Recommend .45 or .50 caliber. Rifles made
from kits must be checked by an expert gunsmith.

2. Recommended loads of .FFFg blackpowder are not to
exceed ] grain per caliber. One half of this amount is fre-
quently sufficient for target shooting.

3. Shooting safety glasses and ear protectors are required.

1. All training and shooting activities must be supervised
by a currently certified NRA or NMLRA muzzle-loading
rifle instructor over 21 years of age.

5 Fach pupil must have one instructor or adult coach under
instructor supervision when loading or firing

Primary relerence Micoting Sports. Chapter 3

Qualified Leadership

The chief instructor must he at least 21 years of age He
must hold a current instructor certification in the specific
firearm in which he is giving supervision or training (rifle.
shotgun. pistol. muzzle-loading rifle, muzzle-loading shot-
gun or muzzle-loading pistol) issued by the National Rifle
Association or its equivalent as defined in the Shooting
Sports manual. The chief instructor or an assistant instruc-
tor 21 vears of age or older and holding an instructor certifi-
cate. will be in charge of the firing line and will not leave
while anyone is on the firing line or the range flag is flying.

It is recommended that no more than five Scouts be per-
mitted to fire breech-loader rifles at any one time under any
onhe instructor or assistant instructor. )

Assistant instructors may be as young as 18 vears of age
and must hold at least an assistant instructor’'s certificate
issued by the National Rifle Association.

NRA/BSA Camp
Posial Malches

A camp postal rifle match program is available with instant
recognition for participants in long-term summer camps.
Immediate recognition is provided weekly to winners in each
participating council camp. National recognition is provided
to top scorers in each division (Junior—first year camper;
Senior—seasoned camper) in each participating camp and
overall top scorers. For additional information, contact the
director, Health and Safety Service.



BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA
COLUMBIA PACIFIC COUNCIL - MAIN EVENT
POSSIBLE AGENDA FOR TROOP JUNIOR LEADER TRAINING
Nov. 4, 1989

This training session is a chance for a Scoutmaster and the troop
junior leaders to meet together and plan the details of a good troop
program and pledge to carry out what they planned. A special place
like a summer cabin or hunting lodge would be a good site for this
work session. The importance of this session is being together and
working together putting into practice the things learned in previous
training such as the one day Junior Leader Orientation. The subject
for this session is the troop's year plan. This format could be used
for any troop planning need such as, camporee, summer camp, high
adventure activity.

NOTE: A more detailed agenda will be found in "The Official

Scoutmaster Handbook", chapter 13, "Training Junior Leaders," pgs.
253-269.
Friday p.m. Troop junior leaders gather at agreed meeting place

to travel to the overnight site.

Set up living quarters.
Set up meeting room.

1st Work Session. Share your ideas. The senior
patrol leader presides.

* QOpening ceremony.

* Review last years activities.

* ‘Scoutmaster comments on past activities and
reviews the planning process to be used.

* Place large sheets of paper and program planning
chart on wall to list troop's suggestions.

* Distribute notebooks and calendars, pencils,
marking pens.

* List suggestions for program from group list on
sheets of paper along with suggested dates and
places.

* Feasibility review -- Scoutmaster reviews the
suggestions.

Evening snack Make it somthing special.

Taps



Saturday a.m.

Lunch

Activity

Dinner
Clean up

Summary and
review

Head for Home

Reveille and breakfast. (use adults for food prep
and clean up)

2nd Work Session. Your Troop Program.

* Agree on program and activities.

* Move approved items from large sheets of paper to
program planning chart.

* Enter approved items in program notebooks.

Game -- try an outdoor game.
3rd Work Session. Training.

* Discuss training needs of troop and patrols.

* Discuss training for adult leaders.

* Look'n'Do -- select a couple of subjects from the
Look'n'Do series.

* Show the group how to use this valuable series
as a way of preparing the patrols for the program
and activities planned.

Look'n'Do -- Camping

Look'n'Do -- First Aid
Look'n'Do -- Cooking
Look'n'Do -- Hiking

4th Work Session. Making it happen.

Review all programs planned.

Select adult advisers and boy project leaders.
Develop material lists and supplies needed.
Decide who will get permits and proper approval.
Develop list of consultants for programs i.e.
first specialist, swimming instructors, etec.

#* % ¥

Scoutmaster Conference - individual visits with boys

Make it somthing special like a barbecue.



BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA
COLUMBIA PACIFIC COUNCIL - MAIN EVENT
TRAINING AVAILABLE FOR Jr. LEADERS
Nov. 4, 1989

In 1987-88 a committee of volunteers began to map the strategy for the
next five years in the Columbia Pacifie Council. One of the
recommendations from the program sub-committee was to begin use of the
National Junior Leader Training (JLT) Conference and reinforce the
three steps of JLT that culminate in this week-long experience.
Partially because of declining enrollment in the "1976 vintage
Brownsea 22" program, the decision was made by the Council Training
Committee (made up of representatives from all distriects) to replace
the Brownsea 22 program with Polaris (a local name for the National
JLT Conference). With small differences, this is the course our
council has called "Polaris" for the last several years. Polaris
relies heavily on leadership skills training and not as much on
Scoutecraft skills training as Brownsea. Although older scouts tend to
gain more from the experience, the conference will be open to any
scout holding a leadership position or likely to assume one soon.

NAME TRAINER'S WHO
Intro. to Leadership Scoutmaster Any troop

Jr. Leader
PERSONAL COACHING This personal coaching session is
conducted by the Scoutmaster with newly selected troop junior leaders.
It is fully outlined in "The Official Scoutmaster Handbook", pgs.
246-49.

Jr. Leader Orientation District Scoutmasters
& Jr. Leaders
] as a group.
ONE-DAY EVENT This one day event is for the Scoutmaster &
his troop's junior leaders attending as a group. The workshop,
usually conducted on a district basis or by several troops, explores
some of the funetions of leadership that junior leaders will learn and
put into practice. It features small group discussions by troopjobs
and time is scheduled for the Scoutmaster and his boy leaders to meet
and plan their troop junior leaders training program.

Troop Junior Leader Scoutmaster & Patrol Ldrs.
Training (Troop Senior Patrol & selected
operations workshop) Leader jr. leaders.

WEEKEND PROGRAM This weekend program is designed to guide
the Scoutmaster & senior patrol leader through the training of their
patrol leaders & other selected junior leaders. It is a get-together
of the Scoutmaster & his leadership team in a location away from the
troop's normal area of activity. The Scoutmaster & senior patrol
leader preside over these sessions and there are opportunities to
involve consultants from the parents, committee members, & chartered
organization. A complete outline for Troop JLT is found in "The
Official Scoutmaster Handbook", (1986 or later printing) pgs. 250-69.




Junior Leader Training Council Sr. Patrol

Conference (Polaris) leaders,
patrol ldrs,
& other trp.

leaders
SEVEN DAY COURSE The seven day course is intended for senior
patrol leaders, patrol leaders, & other youth leaders. It is

conducted in a camping situation. The course is an intensive
experience in Scoutcraft & leadership skills provided by the council.
JLT conference directors are experienced trainers with a recent record
of service as a Boy Scout troop adult leader.

WHY TRAIN JUNIOR LEADERS

1. Gives importance to the job of being a leader in a Boy
Scout troop as well as being a leader in other activities.

2. Builds morale and a spirit of cooperation.

3. Gives junior leaders somthing other scouts cannot have
untill they are junior leaders.

4. Gives the Scoutmaster and his junior leaders the benifit
of sharing ideas with eachother.

5. The only successful way towards a boy-run troop.

FUNDAMENTALS
1. MAKE IT FUN!

2. Primary emphasis is placed upon training key boy and
boy troop officers. This supports the patrol method.

3. Scoutmasters have the primary responsibility to oversee
the training of their troop leaders.

4. The skills of everyone should be used & the Scoutmaster
should participate in the training of his troop leaders
where possible.

5. Vary the activities & locations during training as much
as possible to keep the interest up.

6. ALL attending training (including adults) should be in
complete uniform,

7. MAKE IT FUN!

8. Training should be well planned in advance (The boys
can tell).

9. Is the training producing results? If not, why not?

10. MAKE IT FUN.



IA\ BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA

= =
Y= W &
ey

PURPOSE OF
THE PLAN

NEW
ADVANCEMENT
REQUIREMENTS

NEW SCOUT
PROGRAM

OLDER SCOUT
PROGRAMS

Public Reiations
1325 Walnut (Ll Lane

PO. Box 152079, Irving Texas 75015-2079 FACT SHEET

Telephone 214-580-2000

TROOP OPERATIONS PLAN

The new Troop Operations Plan is designed to increase the tenure of Scouts. It will con-
sist of:

* New advancement requirements to First Class

e A different patrol structure for new Scouts

e Enhanced program features for experienced Scouts

¢ New activities for older Scouts based on high adventure and sports.

The new advancement requirements are easily incorporated into troop meetings. They
are action-oriented rather than classroom-oriented.

The new Tenderfoot through First Class requirements will:

e Provide Scouts with hands-on experience

e Utilize a progressive learning process, whereby each previous skill will be expanded
on as a Scout moves up in rank

¢ Permit a Scout to work on requirements for these ranks simultaneously, although they
still must be earned in order

e Not require earning a merit badge

e Require participation in 10 trocp or patrol activities, excluding regular meetings, three
of which must include overnight camping

e Be more than B0 percent outdoor-related

e Require participation in a service project for Second Class

A patrol for new Scouts (sixth graders) has been developed tc assist them in adjusting
to troop operation. Under the supervision of an assistant Scoutmaster and troop guide,
the new Scout patrol works on skills needed to attain the First Class rank.

A troop guide is appointed by the Scoutmaster to work with new Scouts. The trocp guide

is responsible for:
¢ Acting as adviser to the patrol leader and attending patrol leaders’ council meetings

with patrol leader
¢ Preventing harassment from older Scouts (big brother)
* Working closely with Scouts to acquaint them with troop procedures
e Serving as an instructor for basic Scouting skills

The assistant Scoutmaster who works with the patrol for new Scouts is responrsible for:
e Training the troop guide

e Working with Webelos dens to recruit new members

e Conducting an orientation for parents of new Scouts

* Acting as a skills instructor if needed

Optional programs for older Scouts in troops will be provided through Venture and Var-

sity activities. These programs have the following similarities:

e Recommended for boys 13 and older.

e A Venture crew or Varsity team may be organized if there are at least 3 or more Scouts
interested.

* An assistant Scoutmaster is assigned to advise the program.

* Scouts may earn a letter to wear on their merit badge sash or jacket. After meeting
the necessary requirements, special pins may be worn on the "'V'' letter, which rep-
resent compietion of an ultimate adventure or sports activity.

¢ Troops can have more than one team cr crew.



VENTURE
PROGRAM

VARSITY
PROGRAM

ACTIVITIES
UNIFORM

UNIFORM

MODIFICATIONS

The Venture program emphasizes high-adventure activities. Scouts are organized into
crews. Crews are responsible for selecting and implementing their Venture activity. Eacr
Venture activity consists of 11 sessions, although a session may take more than one
meeting to complete, depending on the skill level of the crew members Each session
brings the crew closer to their “‘ultimate adventure,” which tests the skills they have

develcped.
Venture activities for 1989 are;
Fishing Cycling
Survival Orienteering
Snow Camping
A Venture crew chief is elected by the crew for the duration of the Venture activity. The
crew chief serves on the patrol leaders’ council.
The Varsity program emphasizes sports. Scouts are organized into teams. Teams are

responsible for selecting and implementating a particular sports activity. Competition
can take place between teams, or they can join existing community sports leagues.

Varsity activities to be released in 1988 include:

Basketball Volleyball
Softball Soccer

A Varsity team captain is elected by the team for the duration of that Varsity sport. The
team captain serves on the patrol leaders’ council.

Young men in Varsity or Venture programs are encouraged to serve in troop leadership
roles, participate in troop activities, and work on advancement. Coeducational activities

are encouraged in both programs, but girls cannot be registered in the troop or work
on advancement. They can, however, participate in some of the Venture/Varsity activi-

ties as guests.

An optional activities uniform has been designed for troop use. Warm weather attire
includes khaki shorts, short white socks and a knit shirt representing the particular part
of the troop with which the Scouts are associated. The knit shirt can be worn with the
Scout trousers in cool weather. Knit shirt colors are:

Red—standard troop wear for all Scouts
Burgundy—for Scouts and leaders in the Venture program
Tan—for Scouts and leaders in the Varsity program

All rank emblems, patrol medallions, and troop leadership recognitions will gradually
be replaced by insignia with a khaki background to blend with the uniform shirt color.

A Venture or Varsity identification strip will be worn above the Boy Scouts of America
strip, above the right shirt pocket of the uniform.

1989

May Orientation of council Key 3 at regional meetings

June Orientation of district Key 3 and roundtable staffs

August Orientation of unit Scouters at district/council program conferences
September Implementation of new advancement requirements and Troop Operations Plan
19990

January New advancement requirements become mandatory

1985 Prnting



Name

First Class—First Year Tracking Sheet

Datc joincd

Requircments by Skill
Rank No./Description (summary)

Class Goal (date)

Goal Atainment Datce Datc

Troop Outine Own Scheduled Completed

Qutdoor

Joining Requirements/Scout

5 Demonstrate tving the square knot.
Tendcerfoot
1 Prc-outing camp pack and gear presentation.
2 Ovcernighter in sclf prepared ground bed and tent.
3a  Demonstrate how to whip and fusc rope cnds.
3b  Pitch a tent using two hall hitches and tautline hitch.
4 Explain rules of safc hiking. Explain what to do if lost.
10 Identify local poisonous plants and cxplain how to treat.

Sccond Class

la  Demonstratc how 10 usc a compass and oricnt a map.
Explain map symbols.

1b  Obtain approvals and take a 5-mile hike using compass and
sell drawn map.

2a  Since joining. participale in 5 scparate, non-meeting,
troop/patrol activities including two overnight campouts.

2b On one campout, demonstrate knife, saw, and ax care,
sharpening, and use.

2¢  Use the tools in preparing a cooking firc for a meal.

2d  Light cooking fire—assist in meal prcparation and cleanup.

2Zc On campout, sclect campsite and slecp in pitched tent.

5 Identify or show evidence of 10 wild animals found in
community.

First Class

1 Demonstrate how to find directions without a compass.

2 Using a compass, complete orienteering course of at least 1
mile and requircs measuring heights and/or widths.

3 Since joining, participate in 10 scparate, non-meeting,
troop/patrol activitics, including thrce overnight campouts.

4 On one campoul, sccure ingredients, supervise fire building,
preparc mcals and supcrvise cleanup for breaklast, lunch
and dinncr. Lead patrol in saying grace.

6  Idenlify or show cvidence of 10 kinds of native plants
found in community.

7a  Dcmonstrate 3 basic lashings and related knots.

7b  Use lashing to make a uscful camp gadget.

Physical Fitness
Joining Requirements/Scout

8  With parents or guardian, complete exercise in "How to
Protect Your Children from Child Abuse and Drug Abusc.”
Tenderfoot
9a  Rccord best effort in physical fitness tests.
9b  Show improvement after practicing for 30 days.

Sccond Class

7 Tell precautions for a safe swim. Demonstrate ability to
swim 30 yards using two strokes.

8 Participalce in program on dangers of drugs and other
harmful health practices. Discuss participation in the
program with family.

First Cluss

)

Demonstiate ability to swim 100 yards using resting and
two other strokes and how 1o float for 1 minute.

Eo T ]

oo M M oM =

Eo I ]

B




Requirements by Skill Goal Attainment Date Date

Rank No./Description (summary) Troop OQuting Own Scheduled Completed
Citizenship
Juining Requirements/Scout
3 Rcpeat the Pledge of Allegiance. X
Tenderfoot
5  Dcemonstrate how to display, raisc, lower, and fold the X X
Amecrican flag.
11a  Dcmonstrate and cxplain use of the Heimlich mancuver. X b
11b  Show first aid for specificd cascs. X X
Sccond Class
3 Participate in a flag ceremony. X X X
4 Participate in an approved service project. X X X
6a  Show what to do for "hurry" first aid cases. X X
6b  Prepare a personal first aid kit and take on a hike. X X
6¢  Show first aid for specilicd cascs. X X
First Class
5 Visit and discuss constitutional rights and obligations with X X X
an approved individual.
Sa  Demonstrate tving a bowline and how it’s used in rescucs. X X
8b  Dcmonstrale bandages for specificd injurics. X X
8¢ Show transportation of an individual with specific injuries.  x X
8d  Expiain signs of a heart attack. Explain steps in CPR. X X
Patrol/Troop Participation
Joining Requircments/Scout
2 Submit Boy Scout application and hcalth history. X
Tenderfoot
7  Know patro! name, give yell, and describe patrol flag, X
Second Class
9 Show Scout spirit.
First Class
10 Show Scout spirit.
Personal Development
Joining Requirements/Scout
4 Demonstrate Scout sign, salute, and handclasp. X
6  Undcrstand and agree to live by the Scout Oath, Law, X
motto, slogan, and the Outdoor Code, '
7 Describe the Scout badge. X
9 Participate in a Scoutmaster conference. X
Tenderfoot
6  Rcpeat and cxplain Scout Oath, Law, motto, and slogan. X X
8  Explain why we usc the buddy system in Scouting. X bt
12 Participalc in a Scoutmaster conference. X
Sceond Class
10 Participate in a Scoutmaster conference. X
First Class
11 Partcipate in a Scoutmaster conference. X
Complction

Joining Requirements/Scout
Tenderfoot

Sccond Class

First Class”

‘First Class Recognition Ceremony is held cach quarter at Scouter’s Mountain, 7:00 p.m.
1989 Date:r Sepiember 13th. 1990 Dates: January 17th, May 9th, Scpiember 121h



(abed jxou uo panunuon)

"apjue
pauleids e 10§ pue '‘au0q.e||02 pue ‘wue saddn ay}
‘PeaY 8y} uo saunful so) sabepueq ajensuowaq

'§8NOSa Ul pasn s, || moy
pue jouy (anasas) auimoq ay) Buiky 8jeJjsuoweq

‘19bpeb dwen jnjasn e ayew o) Buyse) asn

‘1ayjeboy
S8ABlS Jo sajod asow Jo om Buiuiof Aq sBu
-yse| [euobeip pue ‘Jeays ‘aienbs uI asn 119y} pue
Uduy aA0jd pue yauy sequi) ayy Buiy ajesisuoweg

“Aunwwod Jnok ui punoj syueid saneu
10 SpuIy Q1 1SE3) 1B JO BOUAPIAG MOYS 1O Apuap)

uazijig
'S’N & se suonebigo pue siybu jeuonnyisuod
~4nok (Jayoeal ‘jediound ‘juenes 1A ‘Aasuwione
‘abpnl ‘jerdiyjo pajoaje) sepea) snok Aq panoidde

a8

‘g

[ENPIAIPUL PalOBIas & yum ssnasip pue WSIA -

"dnuea|o asiasedns pue ‘sjesw
ayy e eoeib Buikes ul joned snoA peaq ‘sjeaw
8y} asedaud pue Buping auy Ul sjuelsIsSse Jnok
asinuadns 'sjuaipaibuy ainoaes ‘Bunjoos sannbai
1eyl nusw Jsuulp pue ‘youn| ‘isepyesiq e esed
-81d "j0093 5 josjed inoA se aasas '1nodwes auo Te}

“WBiusano Buidwes papnjour Y2iym jo aauy) ‘(sbu
-198w |ouied/doon uey) Jayio) SaljAnoe |oned/dooyy

ajesedas ua) ul pajediiued aney ‘Buuiol eoulg -

‘("91@ "youp ‘uohues ‘1amo} ‘aaly)
sway pajeubisap jo yipm Jo/pue yBiay ay; Bu
-inseaw sainbai pue ajw | isee| e s19A00 leyy
851n02 BuuaauaLo ue aje|dwos ‘ssedwiod B Buisn

"ssedwos e Buisn Jnoyym Wb Je pue

Qs

Z

Aep ay) Bunnp suondaup puyy o) moy ajessuoweaq '}

\,

i SSe|D 1su14

"ON dooi)

(abed jxau vo panuyuon)

oy e
uo noA yum axe) o} 1y pie 1541} jeuosiad e asedaly

-Buiuosiod
[Bwaiul pue ‘Buipasiq snouas ‘Buiyjealq
paddojs jo sases JAany,, o) op o) jeym moyg

‘ANunwiwes inoA ui punoj (sysny
10W “ysy ‘sapndal ‘sjewwew ‘spiq) sjewiue plim

10 Spuly 01 1SB3) 1B JO 8OUBPIAG MOYS 10 Ajjuap) -

108loid aoimss

(inoy 1 Jo wnunuiw) pascidde ue eledioipey -

“Auanoe dooyy so ‘Apunw
-o3 ‘uonjeziuebio pasaueys ‘uonnmsuy snoibiai

‘100y3s Jnok 105 Auowsiad Bey e Ul gjedioiuey -

‘Payaud noA eyl aj e doaajs pue
ous joned 1noA 199185 ‘sinodwes asay) 40 auo uQ

"dnues|2 pue uonel
-edaid [eaw ay) yum 1stssy “allj Bunjooa ay; jybiq

"a1y Buiooo e 10j jany pue ‘Buip
-uny “Japun asedaid o) aaoge pajsi| sj00) ay) asn

'XB pue ‘mes ‘ajiuy jo asn pue ‘Buiuad
-1eys ‘sie’ sadoud dlensuowsap ‘inodwed auo uQ

"Wbuiano Buidwes P3apPNIduL yaym jo om) ‘(sbui
-l9auw josed;dooy) uey) 1ayio) samiaoe joned/doon
elesedss aay vy pajedioiped aney ‘Buruiol asuig

‘ueipsenb 10 uased ok pue 1apea) |npe
1noA Aq panoidde (axiq Aq sapw 01 Jo)ayiy ajw-g e
8)ej} ‘umelp ea nok dew e pue ssedwos e Buisn

‘uesw sjoquiAs dew jeym urejdx3 ‘dew e yuauo
0l moy pue syiom ssedwod e moy aleljsuowsa

/. \

p sse|) puooag

Sjuawalinbay yuey

‘a9

‘B9

‘az

‘Pe

‘9z

qe

‘0z

qi

8L

(sbed jxau uo panunuo))

W8l e yond ol sjouy esayy buisn Aq youy

auinel B pue sayony jiey omi buihy eresisuowaq Qg

‘adou

E JO Spua sy asnj pue diym 0] Moy ajeJjsuowag ‘eg

‘pasedaid aaey nok paq punosb
B uo yond padjay aaey noA jue) e ul deais ‘1no

-dwed doos 10 josjed e uo B | Isea] e puadg 2

W Aued pue yoed oy
Aem ybu ayi moys -asn m nok seeb Burdwes ay)
moys “duy Buidwe ybiuiaao ue uo Bujob asojeq

‘Passaup Apadoud ‘1apeey inok o} jlesinoA aseld ‘i

10049puUa |

"83U813ju0d J9ISEWNNOIS B Ul BledidiLey g

..'snqy 6niq pue asnqy piyo woy uaip
"II43 INOA 193101d 0} MOH,, 18)ydwed ays u sesid

-18x3 8y} e19|dwod ‘veipsenb Jo yussed inok yim 8

"abpeq 1noog ay) aquosag ‘2

'8poQ Joop
“INO 3yYi pue ‘uebojs pue ‘ojow ‘meT *asiwoid o
UIEQ IN00S 8yl Aq Ay 01 sasbe pue puesiapun

“(Jouy Buuol) Jouy asenbs oy Buik) sensuowaq ‘g

‘dsejopuey

pue ‘ainjes ‘ubis 1nosg ay) 8leijsuowaq ‘p
‘aaueibayy Jo abpajg ay) leaday ¢

ueipienb 1o uased inok Aq paubis Aoisiy yijeay

pue uonesydde Jnoag Aog paladwod B puqng 'z

‘Plo siesd g1 uey) 186unoA
99 inq 'psemy b1 jo mouy ay) peuses aAey

10 'pjo si1esk || eq io ‘speib yyy ey e@dwon -}

sjuawasinbay Buiuiop

o
(]

N

]

M

1

aweu s 1noag



‘'suoseal Alajes
10 BMpew Joj esjwwed dooy] 8yl AqQ paaiem ag Aew Juewesinbas siy) ,

(e1ep)

pa1ejdwod malaal jo pieog
"80UaI3JU0D 18]SBWIN0JS B Ul ajedidiued
Wids Jn0ag moyg

. alnuiw | 10} ajqissod se ssajuonow se (1sad) Jeoy
0} pue 'S3%0.1S 18Ylo om} pue axous Bunsals auo

Busn spied o1 wims o} Aljiqe Jnok ajensuowaq

"(HdD) uonenosnsal
Areuowindoipied ui (seinpesosd) sdajs ey uiejdx3
oBlE Leay e 4o subis uowwoo Jsow aAly ay} ja

spJed Gz isea) e 10} ‘Baj ueyoIg B UM e

Woos Paj||ij-a)ows B Wolj

:uosiad e ‘uosiad Jayjo

8UO Ylm pue ‘Jjesinoh Aq podsuel) 0} Moy MOYyS

sse[9 1sii4

cl
T
01

‘P8

o8

]

O

Cl

‘suoseal Ajejes
10 |B2paw J0) dalwwod dooy) 8yl AQ psaiem 8q ABW juswelinbal siyy .

(218p)

paje|dwod mainel jo pieog
"92URIBJU0D J1BJSBWIN0IS B Ul ajedidipey
“haids 1n02g moysg

“Ajwey snok yyum wesboad
ay) ur uonedioiued inok ssnasiq “yijeay nok o) |ny
-y 8q pInoa jey) sadnoe.d 1aYlo pue ‘'020eqo)}
pue ‘joyogje ‘sBnip Buisn jo siabuep ay) uo weib

-01d dooJ} 10 *Ajunwwod 'jooyas e u; ejedioiuey

. 'S9404)S Jua1ayp om) Buisn
spieA 0g wims o) Ayjige 1noA slensuowaq "wims

9jes B 10j uaxe} 8q IsNw suonnedaid jeym ey

HI0YS o
uolsSNeYXa JeaH »
(eaiBap puooes) suing snoueg
jooy
ysij pue ‘jieu ‘Iajuijds € woij SpUNOM eInioung e
[ewiue piqes pajoadsns B Jo Blig e
ake ay) ul 190IqQ
:Buimoyjo} ay) soj pre 1S BleSUCWBQ

SSB|) puodasg

T
0l
6

09

O

(aiep)

Paia|dwod malaal jo pieog
"8UBI8JU0D JBISBWIN0IS B ) sledidied
pad|qQasop e

8liQa)BUS SNOUOSIO »

421} pue sjoasul Jo sbuns 10 salig e
(9816ap 1511)) SP|EIS 4O SUING JOUIY o
100} pue puey 8y} uo s19isiig
SaYdeIds pue sind sidwisS »

:Buimojjo} ey Joj pre 151y moys

‘pasn s| |
UBYM ||3) PUB JaANBUBLL YINWISH 8y} 8jeJjsucwag

‘way) o} ainsodxa

10} jeaJ} 0} moy |j9} 'sjue|d snouosiod |eooj Ajuap)

‘shep og 10) Buoyoeid Jaye
8A0qe pals|| sallanoe ay) ul juswaAosduwil Moys

~ spaek 00S dlemuny
‘Ul T 'y dwnf Buo) Buipuelg

— sdnjig — sdnyng — sdnysng

:s1s8) Buimoyjo} eyl ut 1saq Jnok piosay -

‘Bunnoag ur walsAs Appnq ayy esn em Aym uieidxy -

‘Beyy joxned 1nok equosap

pue ‘jjoA joned sy enb ‘eweu josjed inok mouy

‘uebojs pue ‘ojjow ‘meT ‘yieQ NI BY) SPIOM

umo Jnok u; uieidxe pue Lowsw woyy jeaday

‘Bey) uesuswy ay)
Ploj pue 'Jemo| ‘esies ‘Aeidsip 0} moy ajeljsuowaq

IS0 ete noA j1 op o} jeym ueidx3
“Wbiu 1e pue Aep ey} Buunp ‘Ajunos-sso10 pue Aem

-ybiy eyi uo yioq ‘Bupyiy 8yes jo sajns ay) uieydxg -

//

. J00M3pUI |

€L 0

¢l O

qii0

‘BLiQ

a6 O



ENTEERING

Recommended Program Feature for June 199@

1.How many hilltaps do you sce?
2.Which hill is the higher and how can you tell?
3.How many re-entrants can you count?
4.Do the V or U patterns always point up-hill or down-
hill to show re-entrants?

5.How many spurs do you see? Which way do the U
or V patiern showing the spurs always point?

6.0ne of the lines on the map denotes a major stream.
When you decide which one it is, trace over it with a blue
pencil.

7.Which re-entrants look as though they might have
a minor stream? draw a blue line down the middle of
these re-entrants to show a stream.

8.Where do you see a very steep slope?

9.What do you always have between two re-entrants?

10.Where do the contour lines show an area which
has a gentle slope?
11.Do you sce a saddle? Where is it shown?
(answers on page £

Now pretend that the time is early forenoon, so some of
the areas on the map would be in the shade. with a soft lead

pencil, see if you can darken these areas. This may help you
to visualize the picture of the earth as shown by the contour

lines.

John Hanna competes for San Diego OC in the M60
class—there isn't one for M79.

V TR ! A T, L.
P "~ /( \ 1 : D @ 5

I

™

12 Now.i18Eg
¢

vienteering Meet -
"~ Viat
]

o

nam Memorial ~~
~Washington Fark ¢
<% Portland =7
LAV



On 128 Oct 1 sent letters requesting additional information to the
addresses listed in the Orienteering Merit Badge and Venture series
pamphlets; 5 of the B letters were returned by the Post Office.

Runners Shop Nordic Traders The Ski Hut
(forwarding order (out of business) (moved, left no address)
expired)

A call to the Boy Scout Division at the national off'ice produced the
following correcled addresscs:

Silva, Jne Urienteering Services/ USA
1 Harine L'laza P.0. Box 1¥84
P.0O. Bo» 8bb Binghampton, NY 139872

Binghampton, NY 139012

Eastern Mountain Sports, Inc responded but none of their moterial
dealt with Orientecring.

On 11/¥3 k¥l had still not responded.

The United States Orienteering Federation response included a 5-day
lesson plan for the BSA Orienteering Merit Badge at Summer Capp
(adaplable to a theme-of-the month presentation), a packet on staging
a successtful Scouvt (council level) Orienteering Event,

a catalog from and a flyer from
Orienteering Unlimited, Inc. A and E Enterprises
Jan Ridpe Road 74 Decorah Drive
Somers. New York 1588 St. lLounis, Mo B314b6

A1 the Orientecering meet on 23 Septemtier at Tryon Creek State Park. 1
learnced about A & E Enterprises and wrote them at the same time ss the
rest . Their response was rapid with good material and my first

order was speedily and correctly filled.

Good local sources of maps are:

Oregon Washington
Pittmon Map Co. Arnold ‘s Map Service
732 SE Hawthorne Blwvd 118 W 24th
Portland, Or Vancover, Wa

ANSWERS TO THE MAP QUIZ The.Clty of Portland has an
‘ {irom pagi 81 office on the 3rd floor of The
1. Two hilltops - Portland Building where Topo
2. West hilltop, it has one more contour line. " :
3. Five re-entrants maps (1:1200) of most city
4. Patterns point ophill | parks and some other
S.Fmeﬁlp«::;xrz‘ﬂ:;umwwbmdm. properties may be purchased.
1. -
6. The re-entranus open into the streambed, COUI’:It.S.F Off](_:es and other
7. Steep or "pointed” re-entrants may have municipalities also freguently
streams. 5
8. Where the contour lines are much closer to- Dene Eush METE

gether than the other lines, you have & very

steep slope.

9. There is always a spur between two re- ;

entrants. It may be either sieep and narrow =
or quite brosd and rounded. | E;O'B‘ 29)-51D

10. Where the contour lines are quite far spert.
11. Between the hilliops



The Following Books are available at the Scout Shop:

ORIENTEERING merit badge VENTURE ORIENTEERING

BSA no.3385

BSA no. 3439

The Basic Essentials of Be expert with Map and Compass

MAP & COMPASS
by Cliff Jacobson

The Orienteering Handbook
by Bjorn Kjellstrom

Two compass games are also available:

Official Scout Beginner’'s COMPASS GAME BSA no. 1132
This game requires 8 stakes or other markers and a
188ft diameter clear cirecle in addition to
compasses. Unly compass skills are tested (no

pacing).

SILVA Compass Game no. 1133

This game

requires 21 stakes or other markers on a 10@ft E-W

line with a 180 ft open Square to the North in addition to

compasses.

It tests compass skills with pace counting.

In addition to Kjellstroms book the following are avasilable at
the Multnomah County Library:

ORIENTEERING for Sport and Pleasure ORIENTEERING

by Hans Bengtsson & George Atkinson by John Disley
796.52 796

The Challenge of ORIENTEERING This is Orienteering

by Gordon Pirie
7496.5

by Jim Rand & Tony Walker
796.42

The following are the rank advancement requirements that relate to

Orienteering:
Bear achievement 12

14

Elective 23

Webelos Outdoorsman
Traveler

Tenderfoot

Second Claas

l'irast Cla:ss

Cub Scouts:

Family outdoor adventures

b. Go on a hike with your family.
Ride right

f. Ride a bike for 1 mile.

g. Plan and take a family bike hike.
Maps

Hiking 2-3 miles

Lay out 4 trips on a highway map

Navigate one trip at least 25 miles with B or more
turns.

Bovy Scouts:

4. Explain the rules ot safe hiking on the highway
and eross-country, during the day and at night.
Explain what to do if you are lost.

1n.Demonstrate how a compass works and how to
orient a map. Explain what map symbols mesn.

b sing o compass and a map you 've drawn, take a
five-mile hike (or 1@ miles by bike) approved by
your adult leader and your parent or guardian.

1 Demonstruate how to find directions during the
day ond at night without using a compass.

2 Uzsing a compass, complete an orienteering course
that covers at least one mile and requires
measuringg the height and/or width of designated
items (tree, tower, canyon, ditch, ete).



T TMAPSYMBOLKIMSEAME T~ T T T T T T T T - !

| observation Patrol Teams Ouie!
| Equipment: Nine flash cards, each with one map
] symbol. blanket. pencils and paper.

Method Arrange the symbols in any tashion you
| wish. (Keep a record of how they are arranged )
1 Cover the display with a blanket.

Scouts gather by patrols around the display.
! Uncover the display for exactly one minute Then
{ cover it again and tell the patrol fo huddie Give
., patrol leaders pencil and paper and tell them their
patrols have two minutes to write the names of all
| map symbols they remember aad place them in the
{ Proper posilion in the display and write the
meaning
I Scoring: Score one point for each badge fisted by 2
| patrol, one exira point for the correct meaning. I
| there is a tie, the winning patrol is the one with the
most accurate positioning.
I Variations: Use Scout badges or any objects you

| DIRECTION-FINDING RELAY

| Compass Patrol Teams Active

| Equipment. For each patrol, one map with mag-
netic north-south lines drawn on it, one orienteer-

I ing compass, eight cards naming two towns or

| Clearly identifiable map features.

Method Patrols line up near their map and
| compass. On signal, the first Scout runs up,
| selects a card. determines the bearing from firs!
| point on card to second. Scout writes the bearing

on the card and hands to judge. He then runs back
| 1o touch off the next Scout. Continue until all have
i raced

Scoring Ten points for each bearing within five
I dagrees of being comect: five points within 10
| degrees.

MAP SYMBOL aVIZ

rTe ESmssey
'T. 1Cem!
bed bacecaad

0o =
oo o D?

7 P st pedy e

L0 wwvvinss i s

B

12 *S s ste st e

13 e sv A s g,

. —" ' .
ol

|

&) &

T Fiatinige gL
Y AR

15 ..l..o'll:--.

18 cosne T cues

Use gervice gtar pn‘n Y held inner
tirdes against the frent and baek of
this scale.

J TR TR R R

DISTANCE
..I_
COMPUTER

<

4 feo v NP av s




Den Chief’s Pledge

| promise to help the Cub Scouts (or Webelos
Scouts) in my den to the best of my ability. to en-
courage, guide. and protect them in all den and pack
activities, and to show them by my example what a
Boy Scout is. | will strive to be prompt and depend-
able and to cooperate with the leaders in carrying
out the den program. As each Cub Scout reaches
the fourth grade. | will encourage him to join a
Webelos den. (As he reaches 11, | will do all in my
power to interest him in becoming a Boy Scout)

BOY SCOUTS of AMERICA






Duties of Den Chiefs

The duties of all den chiefs are:

00 OO0 gdd

Know the purposes of Cub Scouting.

Help Cub Scouts achieve the purposes of Cub
Scouting. et LI

Be the activities assistant in den meetings.

Set a good example by attitude and uniforming.
Be a friend to the boys in the den.

Take part in weekly den meetings.

Assist the den in its part of the monthly pack
meeting program.
Know the importance of the monthly theme.

Meet as needed with the adult members of the
den, pack, and troop.

g e






‘doo.y

INo4 01Ul $IN03G so[agapy 3dnpoaiu] venpeld o1
IN0QE ale OYm $IN0IG SO[3Gapy INOqe siapea| dooxy
duturiojut ‘dooay anok 10j 130150 Sutimnadal se an18g

SIN00G Aog awW023q 01 SIN0IG SO[2qapy adeanoouy

$a11ane dooa 1noge
pauLtojut s1apea| uap 4nok dasy pue sananoe
yoed 1noge pawiojut siapea| doody anok daay

'doody 1nok ut uostad aoinosag SO[3q3ap, Y7 ST oym

$1N00G S0[8Qap) 2W0I3q 07 §IN0IG qn) a8eamosuy 0
I9ISBWIN00G JURISISSE 8Y3 YIlm J0BIU0D Ul deay]

S19pe3|

9q 0} I9UUIP JUBISISSE Y] PUB IBUUIP Y] ISISSY D
Sa1IAIIOR 1N00g KogAnodg sofaqapy utol yiim diay

ue[d jUaWadUBAPE Y] YIIm $IN0dS qny) diay D
‘saouattadxa

100pIno J8y10 pue s123ySiutaso so[aqap Yim diay s3urjeawr usp e doy ]

SiSlYyD us(
IN0dG qND JO $alN(

S19pesd| aq
03 JBUU3P JUBISISSE PUEB IaUUAD SO[agap oy dieyy

sjuswalmbal pieme
(11348 j93W Jey) sadpeq A11AI08 SO[AQap BYI mouy]

O O 0O og O Odd

‘PIEMY 14317 Jo mouIy aY) pue ‘98peq so(aqapm
91 ‘sadpeq AI1A1308 UIed SINODG SO[AqeM disyg D

‘paIsanbal se s1spea so[agqapy 1SISSY ]

13HD N3G 13HD N3a
mO._m_m_m\,?._.%%_.Um 1NODS dND dHL






DAYS OF THE WEEK AVAILABLE:

TIME OF THE DAY AVAILABLE:

=

oseoner  10)@IM M@

| want to be a den chief. | would like to serve with Pack No. ____ and will do my best to attend weekly den
meetings, monthly pack meetings, and other activities. | will do my best to be a good den chief.

Name Phone
Address City
School Grade
Religious preference Date
Troop No. Patrol
I was a Cub Scout: Yes No (If yes, give pack number and rank J)

APPROVAL OF PARENTS OR GUARDIANS

We understand that our son's service as a den chief, although an important responsibility, will not be so demand-
ing as to interfere with his troop activities. We are aware of the importance of his meeting with a neighborhood
den once a week and with his pack one night a month. In view of the opportunities for leadership development
and service that our son will have, we will encourage him to serve faithfully as a den chief.

Date Signature of parent or guardian

RECOMMENDATION OF SCGUTMASTER

I gladly recommend to serve as a den chief. | have talked with him
about the responsibility of this office and have pointed out that serving as a den chief is a privilege and a
challenge and an opportunity to be a recruiter for Scouting. As a Scout, he will become a troop leader when ac-

cepted. ‘

Date Signature of Scoutmaster Phone
PACK ACCEPTANCE
Scout has been accepted by Pack ______ to serve as den chief and is
assignedtoDen_____ | which meets
Day Time Place
Signature of den mother, den leader, or Webelos den leader Signature of Cubmaster

RECOGNITION RECORD

Den chief certificate and den chief's shoulder cord presented at troop meeting on

Den chief recognized at pack meeting on

No. 4211 BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA 60M474






HOW TO USE THIS FORM

A Scout wishing to be a den chief secures an application from his senior patrol leader :
who reviews the proper requirements with him. He takes the application \home, :
studies it. secures his parents’ approval, and returns it to hus senior patrol leader. i
When the application is approved, the Scoutmaster turns it over to the Cubmaster. :
The Cubmaster reviews the application with the boy, assigns him to a den, and gives
him a Den Chief's Denbook, No. 3211. Applications are filed by the Cubmaster.

6N CHIEFS
DENROH -

Vinw

WHAT IS A DEN CHIEF?

A den chief is a Scout who is carefully selected by his
senior patrol leader in cooperation with the Scout-
master and Cubmaster. He may be of any age or hold
any progress award. As a selected leader of younger
boys, he has the opportunity to help them complete
their Cub Scout or Webelos Scout advancement
requirements and live up to Cub Scouting ideals in
their everyday life.

THE DEN CHIEF'S RESPONSIBILITIES

Nen leadership is a teamwork job. The responsibility
ar the den’s operation rests with the den mother, den
leader, or Webelos den leader, and the den chief;
each provides leadership, enthusiasm, and special
abilities. As a den chief you will:

1. Meet with your den leader to plan your part of the
program tor the den meetings. These meetings
are held regularly at least once each month, or
more often, if needed.

2. Help lead the weekly den meeting. You should ar-
rive on time in proper uniform. )

3. Share respansibility with the leaders of the den in
all den activities. You look to them for adult lead-
ership and inspiration.

4, Assist with assigned den activities at the monthly
pack meetings.

5. Recognize the denner (a member of a den chosen
by his fellow den members) as your right-hand
man by giving him opportunities to serve.

6. See that your den program does not include Scout
activities. Such activities are saved for Scouts.

7. Take part in all training opportunities so you may
become a better leader.

As den chief, you will have a fine opportunity to de-
velop leadership and build a good reputation for your
Scout troop. In working with your Cub Scouts, you
will prepare them and give them the desire to be-
come better Scouts. They will judge all Scouting by
what they see in you. You are your troop’s ambas-
sador to the pack.

DEN CHIEF'S SHOULDER TAB AND CORD

As a badge of his office, the den chief wears a den
chief shoulder tab and cord. It is warn on the right
shoulder of his uniform with the cord passing under
the armpit. One Cub Scout service star may be worn
on the shoulder tab tor each year of service as a den
chief. The shoulder tab without the cord may be worn
with service stars to indicate past service as a den
chief. The cord is presented at a den chief installation
ceremony in his troop (blue and gold for regular Cub
Scout den; red, blue, and gold for the Webelos den).
The den chief is also recognized at a pack meeting.

THE DEN CHIEF'S PLEDGE

If accepted, | will agree to the following pledge:
- _
promise to help the Cub Scouls (or Webelos Scouts)
in my den to the best of my ability, to encourage,
guide, and protect them in all den and pack activities,
and to show them by my example what a Scout is. |
will strive to be prompt and dependable and to coop-
erate with the leaders in carrying out the den pro-
gram. As each Cub Scout approaches 10 years of
age or completes the fourth grade, | will encourage
him to join a Webelos den. As he approaches 11 or
completes the fifth grade, | will do all in my power to
interest him in becoming a Scout.”

—






611 Bl

43ISBUNNOIG 10 U3ISBWQNY) 1apea| uap ayl aq Aeur 1apua, nng armeulig hm_ﬁmm]ﬁ us(
wONmQN\S ..HO NC::NM:C mﬂrﬁ 7ne(q wumwulig
YBYSpURY N0dG qn)) 3y, I8jsBWIqny) J0 I3ISBUIIN0OG
udts 1noog qny) ayJ,
In{es INodg qn) ayjJ, ‘preme ayj Joj Sutyiom utdaq 0} paredaid
0330W IN02G qny Ay, MOU S1 PUB SN Y3Im JB1Yd USSP JO 9[0X 3y} POSSNISIp sey
HUBd P4 JO MBT AT,
dsTwoLd 1N0odg qny) ay, aurwy anog 1005 Aog

‘udp ayy uryatm Jurmor(oj sy
$aSN pue Smouy J31yo usp ayg, ‘Sunnoog qnp }ooq s1y3 asn pue ‘Aired ‘aseyaind 01 paapn
Jo sasodand ayj aasmyoe snoog qny dppy ——— yord o) 07 9014198 Jo Y1BUS

‘dunnoog g :
qnQ jo sesodand ayj spuejsiapun jaryo uap usp ay3 uryitm drysiopeal Jurpredal opmIy e
ayL "3unnoog qn jo sasodand ayj mouy —— Sunnoog Log utylim
s diysiapea] 3urprs8ar apnige ays jo soueirtodw] e

PEREETISED 13pEa] USP 2y} 03 201a18s BuIpIedal SPNIIY

J13s Surpie8as apnjt N
SINIWIYINOIY IDIAYIS usp Y3 Uiyim 301Al98 Sulpredal spmmy
Junnoog
I9jsewIqn)) ayy Aq pautedy sepy Aog uIyjIm 801AI3S JO apnine ay3 Jo souelrodw] e
HO

‘8Y3 8pnN[ouUl pINoYs UOISSNISIP INOK “JOIYd uap ayj
Jo @oueqroduil pue 3[01 Y3 I2ISBWIQN]) 10 II}SEWIN0IG
INOA I9Y)1a pPUB 19PEa| UBP INOK Yjlm SSNISIP ‘pIems

901AI0S S1Y] U0 Hlom utdaq nok aiojeg ‘NOLLVHVdAUd

(8014138 JO 1AL utylim Iqe
"[TBAB JT) 90USI8JU0D SUlULRL} JBIYD UBP B PIapuany

ONINIVYL
PIOMY 9D]AISG J3IYD U3(

aeak [y
1 105 Anjy3jte; yoed U} paaJdas sey Jays ua(g

plodaY

S, lapeayoleq

3D1AY3S 40 QOIY3d wu_zwm .‘_Do>






1el

'sdurjeawl pajnpayoss

pualje 01 a[qeuUn JI PaUIdIUOD SI9PBI] PI[[ed

sey Jaryo uap ayJ, 'yooqajou sy ssedaid 03 1apio
Ul 19jsEWqny) Ay} YIM W 10 3DUAIFU0D Suru
-ueld yoed [enuue ayj papusalie J3YIIa sBY JAryd
uap ayJ, Ieak 1 l10j suoljounj usap [[B Jo sawn
PUE §31BP a8} UMOp HJIEBUI 03 Pasn uaaq sey
jooqajou styJ, Jepes] usp ayj £q pawreu sped .10
doo1j ayj jo Jaquiaw j[npe 13430 AUe pue ‘19Iseul
-no2g 1ajsewiqny) Iapea| uap ayj jo siaquinu
auoyda[al 2yl Yim (‘y00QajoN wn.idosd 1apva]
1moag qn) 8yl K[qeiajaid) yooqajou e paute]
-utew sey ay I9y31ado} yiom 0) pasu 3yl spueis
-19pun jatyds usp ayJ, 'dooay 1o ‘yoed ‘uap ayj
JO SIaquIaW jNPe a3y} Yim papaau se 139N

‘gourizodwll §31 SPUBISIIPUN AY pue
awaY} A{Yjuow ayj passnosip sey Jatyd uap ay[,
uway} Ayjuow ayj jo aouslrodull ayYyj) mouy

sowny a4y jsea] je weudoxd yoed Ayjuowt
8U31 € u9p ayj paIsisse sey Jaryo uap ay], ‘wrsad
-0ad yoed Aqyjuow ayj je uap ayj IsIssy

syjuow g 10§ sdurjeawr Apyeam ut red 300l

oet

jotyo uap ayJ, ‘sdunpeawr Ap{aam ul ped axel, —

skoq ay3 dn pring pue asteid 01 paau 3y,
2y!] a1e sAoq 93e-1n03g qn) 1BYM
- dryspuaty jo Sutueawt ay]J,

:JUIMO[[0] AY3 SPUEBISIIPUN JBIYD
uap ayJ, ‘uap ayy ut sAoq ayl 03 pudly v ag

uap a3 Jo sdunesuwr je Jurwiojiun 1adordg

usp a3 UM apnityie Julnodg [MEEYd Y

:syjuow g jo potrad B 10§ 3UImO]
-]0} 2U3 pautejulew sey Ja1yd uap 3y, 'Bunuioy
-iun pue apninie Aq ajduexa pood ® 33§

sa111A110® §310ds AT

sowed aalg

SIS 10 SJUNIS ALY

sduos aAl]

:5311A1108 SUIMO[[0) Y] P3| SBY JAIYD Uap Y],

'sfUn9oW UIP UT JUBISISSE SINIATIOR 3Y) 3






oA

Yoed paplemy aje(]

13]5eWN0og

‘Auowarad ajetidordde
18 uoneiuassald 10j I91SEWIN00G 10K 0] SIY} MOUS

neq ansudig

1apea] ua(g

neq anmruiig

Iajsewqny))

‘PIBMY 921AI3G JA1YD) UB(] 3YJ IeOm pUR 3A19IL 0} Pa)
-13Ud ‘a103819Y3 ‘St 9y sy03load pue ,mEmEm.::UE RIS
‘dururedy ‘pottad aotatas ‘uorjeredaad ayy pajarduwod sey

doogy, jo

JAryY ua(
TVAOYddY QYVYAV 3DIAYIS 43IHD N3g

131SBUWIN02G N0k 03
JAIYD uap e 2q 03 102G Aog JaYIOUB PUSWIWOIY

‘K11a1308
dooa3-yoed jutof e jno Aired pue ueid o3 dioyg

'SOUIBN

'dooaq B utof 07 $IN0OG SO[QaM B3IY] ISISSY

'SaWeN
'SIN0DG qn) Mmau 9a3ay) FulIinadaL ut ISISSY
"{UEBL JN0G A0 AUO IDUBAPY

duren
Aep IN0dG qN)) B JO JOQWBW }JBIS B SE 9AIAG

32 ‘09pod 3[24d1q ‘moys U100 B SB YONS ‘JUIAI

[e1oads 100G qnQ e Jo Jaquialu JJels B SB 2Al9S

$153rOYd 3S3HL 4O ¥YNO4 3137dWOD

ccl






20 MINUTES
(FOR CUB SCOUT DEN CHIEFS)

HOW AM | DOING?
AS CUB SCOUT DEN CHIEF:

10.

14

1.

13.

4.

15.

Do | meet with my den leader to
plan my part in the den meeting
programs?

Do | always arrive on time at the
weekly den meetings?

Do | wear my uniform to all den
and pack meetings?

Do | make the denner feel
important?

Do | meet with the den leader
after each den meeting to discuss
the plans for the next one?

Do | make Cub Scouting fun, using
different games and ceremonies
instead of doing the same old
things every week?

Do | help lead my den at the
monthly pack meeting?

Do | make sure that my den
activities do not include Scout
activities? , .

Do | cooperate with my den
leader in every possible way?

Do | always treat my den leader
and assistant with respect?

Do | encourage my Cub Scouts to
advance in rank?

. Do | consult with my den leader

on all disciplinary problems?

Do | build up the den leader In
the eyes of the Cub Scouts (brag
about him or her at every oppor-
tunity)? -
Do | carry my share of the
responsibility for den activities?
Do | have the Cub Scouts pay
special tribute to the den leader
on birthdays or other special
occasions?

YES NO

g
O
o
HpN

O g

04
O

0 O
00
OO
0O
uln

Oag
HEN

Ll B

HOW AM I DOING?

YES NO

16. Do | conduct myseif with my Cub
Scouts in such a way that they
like me and will want to become
Scouts?

17. Do | find opportunities to tell the
Cub Scouts in the den about
Scout activities so they will want
to join a troop when they are old
enough?

18. Do | redlize the den leader is the
one most responsible for the den
because he or she is the adult
leader?

19. Do | realize that he or she wants

me, as the den chief, o be the

activity leader?

Do | keep my eyes open for

clever tricks, stunts, and activities

to suggest to the den leader?

21. Do | encourage my Cub Scouts to
join the Webelos den when they
become 10 years old or com-
plete the fourth grade?

04

0

O d
0
o g

20,

N

THIS SHEET MAY BE REPRODUCED LOCALLY—
Instructions for presenter. Make clear to your den
chiefs that this Is not a quiz or examination, but a series
of questions on procedures and personal conduct to
help each Scout evaluate himseif and how he is func-
tloning within his pack’s structure. They do not sign
thelr names, so we want them to tell it as it ks. Invite
each adult to mark one independent of his or her den
chiefs.

Procedure. Duplicate coples of this page without
these directions and the closing statement. Distribute
for den chiefs to mark. Have extra pencils. Before you
collect these shests, have each den chief look at his
sheet and count the yeses and nos. Close exercise
by giving this statement: "Congratulations on all those
'yeses. Let's go fo work now to make each 'no’ a 'yest”






HOW AM I DOING?

HOW AM | DOING?
AS WEBELOS DEN CHIEF:

I

10.

1.

12

13.

Do | meet with the Webelos den
leader before each mesting in
plenty of time to plan my part
init?

Do | always arrive on time for
Webelos den meetings?

Do | wear my uniform to all den
and pack meetings?

. Do | find ways to make the den-

ner feel important?

Do | make the Webslos program
fun by using different games and
ceremonies each week flavored
with the skills and terms related to
the Webelos activities badges and
program?

Do | help my Webelos den at
pack meetings?

. Do | make sure that my Webelos

den activities lead up to but do
not include Scout activities?

. Do | ccoperate with my Webelos

den leader in every possible way?
Do | go dleng to help the den
leader when my Webelos Scouts
are on a hike or outdoor event?
Do | always treat my Webelos den
leader with respect?

Do | encourage my Webelos
Scouts to earn the Arrow of Light
and activity badges?

Do | consult with the Webelos den
leader regarding the control of
disciplinary problems?

Do | build up the Webelos den
leader in the eyes of the Webelos
Scouts (brag about him)?

YES NO

0 d
1
O
14

N
L1

L1 O
1

01 d
0 O

0 d
O d
01

20 MINUTES
(FOR WEBELOS DEN CHIEFS)

YES NO

O O

14. Do | carry my share of the
responsibliities for Webelos den
activitles?

15. Do | conduct myself in such a
way that the Webelos Scouts will
like me and will want to become
Scouts?

16. Do | tell my Webelos Scouts about
Scout activities in @ way that will
make them eager to join a troop?

17. Do | realize that the Webelos den
leader is the person most respon-
sible for the den?

18. Do | redlize that the den leader
wants me to be the activity
leader?

19. Do | coach my Webelos Scouts

on the Scout and some of the

Tenderfoot requirements so that

they will be ready to pass them

when they become Scouts?

Do | help my Webelos Scouts to

join my troop by inviting them to

visit meeting with their parents?

01O
0O
N
OO

L1 O
-0

THIS SHEET MAY BE REPRODUCED LOCALLY—

Instructions for presenter. Make clear to your den
chiefs that this is not a quiz or examination, but a series
of questions on procedures and personal conduct to
help each Scout evaluate himself and how he is func-
tioning within his pack’s structure. They do not sign
thelr names, so we want them to tell it as it Is. Invite
each adult to mark one independent of his or her den
chiefs. ‘

Procedure. Duplicate coples of this page without
these directions and the closing statement. Distribute
for den chiefs to mark. Have extra pencils. Before you
collect these sheets, have each den chief lock at his
sheet and count the yeses and nos. Close exercise
by giving this statement: “Congratulkations on all those
yeses. Lat's go to work now to make each 'no’ a yest”

15

20.






&
B>
B - VI

JIINI N3Q

IYD AVD J0SLYTID JUOA






TN RLLAAM KM SIYML

THOHRNAN IVIS VMRV CSNOTLSAND 80 SWATAOUd ANV
AAVH GOX JT  *SLO00S AAHNNOX THL HNILTIH
TTINM ‘NAJT TAVH OL NOX INVM TIM  *dWVD NT
NOTLIVAIDIINVLS MN0X MO0 TJALYTYH XA TIVIAN TUY TN

*MOTIOL
A7INOHS SEND AHL LVHL ATdWYXT FHIL JIAS
ANV JONLILLY TAJUIAHO V 4TAN OL A¥L *9

*STIINS MIN AL Ol QIdIN S€ND
T CWIHL MO IDACLONd THL 0od LON od
100 ‘SLOALOMd ¥IAML HLIM SEnD THL JTAH  *C

CAWVD
NI S1I1NGY JNNL 00 XITHL SY NOA ILVINL OL
WAL LOWAIXE Sand JHL HIIM ATLSTUM LiNOAd  ° 1

CINITITIOSIC J0 YUYD ANV.L VTAAYIT NId TRL
LaT CaNAOAY SATM AHL SS0Y 0L Aul LiNOO *€

TTHLIL IHL T1Id 0L AV STWYD MNIND IWOS
JAVH ATMYE 1DACOMd ¥V HSINIJ NOA JdTI "¢

TITHN0NI A0 1N0 SdNd JHL
TAFAN LI ‘SONOTYV ONIS FAVH ONINIH TTIHM 1

PSLNTH TAGaTaTT

SALON






11 1ONILNOOS AddVH “dJdWVD AVA ¥NO
J0 1¥Vd ILNVIYOdAWI NV ONITE ¥0Jd NIVOV SMNVHL

*dTEH NYD NOX MONM ¥Iaval
NIQ JHL 1T7T ‘Jd0 LHOAOHL L NIAVH I SITWVDH ANV
SONOS MONX NOX 138 TTiI ‘NOILYNIOVWI ¥NOL ASN

(uotr3ztsod sTY3z utr spaemyoeq dumf

ATuo ued noj *'s903 JITOYU} QeI puw JISAC puaq

wayz ajew) CSQUVMTUOI WAL NVO AIHL NVHL
SAQUVYMNOVE HMIHIYVIL dWAC NVO NOX SENO AHL TIIL -~ *h

(x28uty
InoA yYyiIm asou anof yonojz pue anduoq anok

1IN0 M9T3s) 'SASON YIFHL HONOL ANV SIANONOL
MITHL LNO MOILS NVD WIHL J0 ANVW MOH MSV °€

AmEHu dwes 3Y3 3w §903 JINnoA Yonojz pue wIiy
pPuTtyeq pue3s ‘sarTal 8y LWE3 Yoeyg) -'JITISWIH
K8 SIOL SIH HONOL L.N¥O IH €nd FHL TIAL °2

(moqT2 3397 8ay3 uo sa0? puey 3ydta a3 )
*II- 19D L NVDO ONVH JIJTd71 THL
JUIHM ONVH IHOIY HIJHL Ind 0l S€9nd AHL 7TI1a1L °'T

SHWVD IL.NVD VHOLIA

‘U0J ONIDNIS NOol HYY

MOIH JHL LVHM 0S
JHOW ON 3 ¢NIV JUIHL
SI TUYIHI 11TV S,LVHL

NMOQ MOVE AVM FHL NO
HONVYE LVHIL LIHO9AVD I dsSNvo
NMO¥WJL NOA L:NOQ MON

JIYd NOA LiNOT MON

JUIHL dN AVM HO

HONVYE JLVHIL JISSIW anNv
IV THL O.LNT

qadiwnr I 0S NV

a0NT OL ISN¥L ANy
dWNr OL FAVH P I
A0 LATd NIL SYM
HONVYA JISTHVIN HHI

q4 01O HO
JIYL DI LVIUD Vv
JIEL V MVS T
dW J0 dVIEHY

gvad LVHL SVM JN
CNIHAG JHOIM 1nd
JUYAHL WOHA AVAV

NVd I 0S5 aNY

NND ON JOD. JAN0A
IS NVD I UOd

N N0A INOQ XHM
IW 0L aIVS dH

Jouurl WBS UT SNUTJUOD

(s3esdaa dnoad) FUIHL JN AVKY
um@gohmsonmvmaooaafprmp

(

1eadaa dnoxd) WV VO LAN T
F1 AR Yidio mhg

358 NTN P

s
(
(sawador dnoax

AACS RCH N

Ty






TIV IV
NO ONIHION HIIA SIAAHS THL NITMIZE dHAL I

FHYINT STNTIANOS ANV TIWILONIULS THI NI STWILIWOS
NOA OL II S IVHM ANOTD *AAOTO

UVITNOAd MOH X¥OTH ‘XNOTID
*1TV IV NO ONTHION HLIM SIFTHS AHI NIAIMIAL dWHT T

TIVAd dHL
NI SAWILIWOS ANV ‘IWILONIYAS FHL NI STWIIINWOS ANV

LON
SLI NIHM YIINIM THL NI JTILHOIN TINNVTI AW HVIM T

LOH SII NIHM ¥AWINNS FHL NI SYWVLVd JMNId AW dVIM I

SVHRVIVd MNIJ

*TId 0l HIVIA ATITVYIL V SII

HIVIQ Ol QIMIVI &4 Ol HIVIAQ JTdI¥NAL V SII
FI0 Ol HIVEQ ATdIU¥AL V SII

AT Ol HIVAQ ITIWMHAL V SII

SINAWIONNONNY ‘SINIWIONNONNY ‘SINIWIONNONNY

SLNIWITINNONNY

dO1d=-¥3 vV aNV X1IATHOASd JIIA
do ‘dian ‘dAIV ‘dIT NV HIIM
JMNYE 01 MANVE WO¥d dWAL SHONJITING ITHL FUIHM

AMNYd AMNVH JHIL J0 S3INVH THIL NO NMOQ

AJINV I ANV

‘ONINIAT JHI NI ATYVd
MINOOS MNOH NV a9 0L WIH Jad °C

SQUVMIDVH
NO SINVd STIH HLIM INVT FHIL NI WIH MOYHL ‘2

DNINYOW FHI NI ATIVH
SYISIY™ HA .m&%d AdH AVAM
SYASTY FX ‘AILVI XIH AVM
SYASTY TX ‘TLVT ATH AY¥H

rsnIoyd

(3uocd) YPIAIWVD AdIAIS

; *ONINYOW FHL NI ATUVE
LUTINYD AJTATS ¥V HIIM 0 NOX OQ LVHM
LUTIWYD AJEATIS ¥V HILIM 0d NOXA 0Q LVHAM
LUTAWYD AJEIIS V HLIM 00 NOA 0Q LIVHAM

UIIWYD AJTHTS

SYM=-MOD-WN LVIAJIAN

HNIDNIS
*SANVNS THI ¥OdL dN QAIL WIHL 1337 ANV

ATONAL THIL OLNI 100 S¥ISOT THLI TIV MO0L IA
(deto-deto) :SANVL LI IYHA JFAVH L1.NOIQ AFHL INH
OMVLONVHITIM WOMJd IN0 NIW NIFLXIS X00L IM

= VH=-YM=-HOD-WN
VM-MOD-WN ‘YM-MOD-WN ‘VM=MOD-HN
VM=MOD=WN ‘VYM-MOD-WN ‘VA-HKOD-WN
DNIONIS

YM=VN-NOD-HN

VM-NOD-KN ‘VM-MOD-WN ‘VM-HOD-HN
© YN~MOD-HA ‘VM-MOD-WA ‘VA-HOD-WA

va AHL NO &M TIM ANV IGONIVN WOodd U IM asnvo
P@_m YAAIN T1AFHL Ing ‘Sn IVA XYW STVEINNYD JHL
ITVL I1A3d NIATS THAM ‘TISNLYM THL 04 IAM

ANO dO0H V ST WVAL AN0 ‘THOYIVN WO¥Jd J¥dM HO

IE0UIVN WOMJ M .dA

|1 1S3dV dld 40 NVZuvl
ONITIZX SAVMIV lnd ‘ISVT THL NVIL
YALIOS TWIL HOVA ‘SAWIL € DNOS ITHI LVIJTN

*SAdY THL J0 NVZY.L

IW T1TVD AUHIL AHM SJIVHL

Sa@AVYO ANV ‘SINNOD0D ‘SYNVNVE FNIT I
SAdVYD ANV ‘SINN0D0D ‘SYNVRNVE d)NIT L
SAIVID ANV ‘SINANOD0D ‘SYNVYNYHE INIT 1

SIUdY AMHL Y NVZEVL






0D IM JJO
OOHM ‘OOHM ‘J4uand ‘Jdand
ATANVH dTLLIT THL NINL

YIATHA INIONA FHIL JAS :
MO¥ V NI T1IV

SATITIIE YTAINd TTLLIT HIHL JTS ‘ CANYD
DNINYOW ¥HI NI ATEVI TIHL SNIM ‘II dod Q2< ‘LI NO IIS ‘NOOTIVE JHL dN
‘NOTILYLS FHI A9 NMOQ MOTE Ol IS¥IJ THI ‘NOOTIVE V NIAID SI €n) HOVE

SHHT NO ODNILLIS

STITTIIE ¥YITJ4Nd
*YAINNIM FHL SI NOOT1VH V HLIM

HO=AVS =AYV d =XV S =My YIAVId ISVT THL *NOOTIVE SAND YIAHIO FHL d0d Ol A¥L
P S MO A= =1y SYAAVId EHL TVNDIS NO ‘@TINV SIH Ol QIIL SI ANI
erpeherlimeniigshieiiiemiiad YIHLO FHI ONV *NOOTTVE FHL Ol SIIL SI OHNIYLS THL
eligetipmmiionl d0 GNZ ANO “ONI¥IS V ANV NOOTIVE V SIID €nd HOVA

_ dWOLS NOOTTIVd
JAS IFS 1T ‘YONOASYUYS ‘YaNOJISWVIYE ‘VOHDASVIVS

JETOITS Ay YYD ISWYIIVS 'YANOJSVIYS  fVANOdSYHVS E .mmmmHz ANOIWOS

TIINN ONAOYV IANIINOD ZO 0S aNV °‘NMO SIH J0 INO
VANOJSVAVS SAaVv dNV SNOTILOV OMI IS¥IJ4 JTHL SHOA €ND QIIHL FHL

*NMO SIH J0 INO SUdVy NV NOILOV SIHIL STOA €N0 IXIAN
AHL *(*°%3@ ‘peey pou xo ‘edouo spuey deid) NOILOV

. HHHHHHS ITIWIS V 0d ANO IS¥TJ FHL TAVH *SdNO FHL dn INIT
104 d3aq F9 A0€ HO mom<mmowguwm-mwm | | S T RAR TR
ATINTTAWNVIOS ‘TINITAWINAA i _
AINTIWY ‘HY=-000 ‘HV-000 o *SNIM
AINTAWIOAA ‘TINTAW ‘TINIT TIVI V HLIM JJAIT ANO ISVT THL ‘*SUHAAVIL HTHLO
AVISTA HHI A0 440 STIVLI FIHL T1Ind Ol XYWL SUTAVIL TV
AVISIA AVNDIS ¥V IV - *IN0 SHNVH JUVOS THL J0 ISOW LVHL
AVISIA THL ION ‘ON ‘ON *ON ‘HO . 0S ‘171349 FYIAHL NI SIAYVOS WIFHL MNONL SEND AHL
AVISIA VIVAWND ‘VIVAWAD ‘VIVWWAD
SALVL
AVISIA
. *ULVIId HNIJAATS FHI SAWODIL ‘duns
=VIYL FHI TVALS Ol NOSUId ISUId FTHL °JOVId HNIL
*qALITIA NIAG NV SHUALIAT IHL TIV =¥VIS SIH 0L NYNIAY ISNW dH IV dIINIOL ST JIIHL V
TIINA ‘dVTI0 V HLIM 1T DONIOVIdTM ANV UALLAT CJI *AATHL THIL J0 NOILOTUIA AHL NI SINIOd TIVHId
¥ ONILITIA ‘¥WTAO0 ANV YIAO HNOS ITHIL IVIIITU JHL “TANSVAYL FHL TVIALS ANV dO JATYD Ol XAl Sud
=AVId JHIL ‘TINSYIYL V SAIT WIH JO0 INO¥YA NI °F7D
O-IWVYN SIH SYM ODNIH ONV =¥I0 V J0 ¥ITINIAD HHL NI SIIS IFLVNId QIQTOJANITE V
0=-9=N-I-g ‘0-95=-N-I-gd ‘0-H-N-I-d
O=-IWVN SIH SYM O-9HNIA IIVYId DNIJIITIS

(INV D00 V OVH YIMWYVJA ¥V SVM TUTHI

AnNTa 2 SAWVD






NMOQ ¥YON dN YIHLIIIN IA.n0ol
dn AVMA JTVYH X7INO TH1N0X NIHM ANV
NMOQ JY.NOX NMOQ MU NOX NIHM ANV

dn d9,N0X dN YNOX NIHM ISNVD

NIVOV NMOO WIHL QIHOUVYHK

HH ANV TTIH dHL dN WIHL dIHOYVW FH
NIW ONVSNOHL NIL dVH IH

MUOA 40 IMNA 710 ONVID dHL

MYoA 40 INNA TO ANVYD THL

ino moqTe Inodk 3Ngd--SYANA0D
SI83Uuty .99ay) .dn PTOH-TAUHL
.352yd anod delS-r---iN

vwmn anok 03, pcﬂoa|||9<:

‘PEd3SUT SUOT3OoW puey

Butsn pue spaom 3no BuyaesaT pajzeadsa st Suos ayl

IYH AW IiNST 1T NIHL
SYANYOD TTUHL TAVH I,NEFOA LI JI ANV
IVH AW SYH S¥@NNOD IAAHL
SYINYOO FTWHL SVH IVH AW

LVH AR

@& FHL S LYHL 0C=HJHON ON S dH MON
QNITYS FW EVHR HH====-- I¥vd AW SV 3H

NAOHA FAVI ISAW HH-=-S3dId AW HONOMUHIL ‘['IY
NMOQ INEW JH ANY======JIS ¥ 3OouI I

dI'ld Xix¥ns 'I'TiN0X-=-a80d NOX 41 YHOJ
dIS NO0X &L,MNO0d MON-=--==3K OJ dqIVS HH

HEALUOOL HSHEA HMINNE YL Ivuday

(3eedeu) MYYLS YQ0S XY
(3eedeua) JAISNI MONLS SYA
(18edea) MYS MHEAH I
hpmoampv WHOM JSITTLLIT &HT,

WHOM LSIFILLIL GHT

¢QUIYYdIHEd BT 0L ONTHLAYEAY

AI¥va I JAVH dNY ENOQ T HEAVE

GLHOINOL L GHY SSWILTIING I NYD
SGLHDINE HOH0H AM Lo I EBAVA
GASYWEL RIIVA AM ENOQ I EAVYYH

&wd qinoiiS ILNOOS HOYE ARILNTIIS
CAVAY SAVA ZUTIALHYO HMNO JAH::
LﬂQQ. g0 .H_._..HUH._. HUHT H.H¢ﬁm H_fom

"ONOS- HHdSTA LNODS

HOIN SI QOO---MONM &M SIHT ‘0D IM SY

XIS THL HIVIN ‘SYVLS SYIL HLYEN ‘NNS ST HILYEN
SAVQ dNO0 HOJ ‘ASIVHL Y SYNVHL

HOIN SI QOD---ISHY XIFAYS ‘TISM ST 11Y

RIS AL MoUd ‘STIIH THL MOMA “HMYI AHT 1OHd
NAS "L dgNOD “3NOd SI R¥d

SV

*puUnNoOd B Ul Juns eq AeW 1Y,

0S NCX HNOL I

SUUNSVAML HNOX [TV M NIATD FAYH NOX
THEL T MOH NCX TIAL T NVYD .10

YOI WMy ‘yOIVmMY

VOIHENY






CEREMONIES

MAIN EVENT 1989 COLUMBIA PACIFIC

Pack Ceremonies
» Dramatic and Flamboyant
» Short and Effective
« Use Music and Songs

Used to:

*« Open and Close Meetings
« Start and End Special Events

« Recognize Achievement

Typical Times:

« Announcements » Announcing New Leaders
* Introduce Guests + Recognize New Denner

» Introduce New Families e Time for Refreshments
*» Advancement Recognition - Attendance Awards

« Boy Joins the Pack « New Den Chief

« Entire Blue and Gold Banquet « Parent Attendance Award
« Roll Call & Inspection » Graduation to Boy Scouts
+ Welcome Tiger Cubs e Just for Fun
* Pinewood Derby Weigh-in * Charter Presentation

« Someone is Moving Away *» New Webelos

+ Leaders’ Training Awards * Religeous Awards

« Summertime Pack Award * Quality Unit Award

» Service Star Awards

Do you have ceremonies at your picnics,
summer ball games or other outdoor events?







CEREMONIES

MAIN EVENT 1989 COLUMBIA PACIFIC
Den Ceremonies
Frequent Spontaneous
Short Informal
Personal Individualized
Varied Fun
Used to:

- Signal a Change of Action
+ Start and End Meetings

- Make Someone Feel Better
-« Change the Mood

Typical Times:

« Check Advancement « Den Closing

« Introduce a Theme « Thanks to a Host

«+ Add to the Den Doodle - A Birthday

- A Prize for a Contest » Instant Recognition

- Everyone Completes Wolf + Welcome a New Member
- Introduce a Guest - Install the Denner

+ Lighting a Campfire « A New Den Chief

+ Uniform Inspection * Someone’'s Moving Away
- Den Meeting Opening « Time for Refreshments

- After a Den Service Project
« Welcome a New Activity Badge Counselor

« Light the Good Conduct Candle

Does your Den have a Ceremony to honor
a member who gets a badge at the Pack
Meeting? Den yell, high—5's or whatever.







Cub gcout Signd
candle Flame

campfire
AmericaD Flag
Scout Handshake
Uniform

Badges

pen Flag

pack Flag

Flag Ribbons3
Akela

Wolf /Bear Books
Neckerchief
Denner's Cord
Den Chief
Arrows

Compass
Salute

arrow of Light
Bridge
Webelos
Pledge of Allegiance
Qutdoor Code

The United States, Citizenship, Liberty.

Democracy, World Brotherhood, Good will.
Accomplishment, Growing, Learning.
Membership, Friendship. Belonging:

pack Members, Blue and Gold, Spirit.
Accompiishment, pack History-

Good Leader, Respect, Law of the pack.
Accomplishment. Goals, Literacy-
Qutdoor Program, pioneering Adventure.
Leadership, Responsibiiity.

A Friend in the Troop:

pirectioD: Leading. Communicetion.
pirection, Goals.

Do Your Best Every Day.

Growing, Changing, Communication.
we'll 32 Loyal Scouts.

Respo..sibiiity, Dedication:
Respot-sibiiity, Love of the Qutdoors:

ey






CEREMONIES
MAIN EVENT COLUMBIA PACIFIC CNCL

Props and Eqipment
It Adds Pizazz.

Introduce symbolism, dramatic effects, and participation

by using props such as advancement ladders, den doodles

and artificial campfires (or real ones on a camp-out.)

Look in Staging Den and Pack Ceremonies and the Cub Scout
Leader Book for ideas.

Use your Imagination.

Be imaginative; adapt and improvise materials you have

on hand. Almost anything looks impressive when sprayed
with gold or silver paint. For example, medals can be made
by spraying the plastic lids used on take-out drinks.

Get Help.

Making props and equipment may be a good job to delegate
to parents who otherwise would not "get involved.” Invite
talented parents to Den Meetings to help the boys make
their own Den Ceremony gear.

Be Practical.

Before you start, think of how will you carry it, and where
you will store it. Will it have to fit in a closet or be
loaded into a van between meetings? What will it look like
in the lighting (candles, campfire etc.) used during the
ceremony. Make it safe — be careful of electrical and
fire hazards.

KISMIF: Keep it simple enough for boys
to understand and have a hand in making.













Blue & Gold Banquet

Steps To Planning A Blue & Gold

I. Planning Committse

A, Select, dats, time, place and thenme

1. Banquet often takes the place of the Felmwuary pack zeeting;
although it 1s not necessarily held on the regular zeeting
night.

2. In selecting place consider the following:
a. Adequats space for seating and displays.
b. Avallability of parking space, restrooas, coat racks.
c¢. Program needs, such as »:crophone, stage, etc.
d. Convenience for food preparation and/or serving.
e. Reserve meeting place well in advance.

II. Dinner Committee

Ao Select meal plan - catered or pot luck.

B, Determine serving needs - kitchen and utensils.
c. Select menu and estimate cost.

D. Assign serving and cleanup Jjobs.

III. Program Committse

Ao Entertainsent
1. Dens may perform skits or stunts. These should be short.
2.: From within the Pack is better than outside entsrtainment.
3+ Include "Happy Birthday to Cub Scouting".
B, Props for skits and csremocnies.
c. Recognition of boys and leaders.
1. Present certificates of appreclatlon to pack & den leaders and
Parents who have helped the pack.
D. Make assignments for various parts of the progranm.
1. Invocation
2. Welcome and introduction of guests
3. Ceremoniss
4, Recognitions
5. Entsrtainment
6. Program handouts
7. Thank you

Iv, Decorations Committee

A. Room decorations

B. Table decorations

c. Displays

D. Arrangement of tables, head tabls

V. Publicity Committee

A Inforn all pack families of date, time, place and cost.
B, ° Invitations .
1. Consider inviiing guests such as Head of sponsoring instiiution;
School Principal; Institutional Representative: Scoutzaster;
District Commissioner, Church Minister, Former Cutmaster, Pack
Alumni, and District Executive, )



Blue & Gold Banquet
Suggested Agenda

l. Gathering Period - Have displays and exhibits. Also have games or something
to keep the younger children busy until the meal is served.

2. Opening Ceremony - This peed not be lengthy or elaborate. Remeaber to involve
ths byso .

J. Invocation = This may be given by a pack leader, a Cud Scout, or a minister.

4, Dinner - If possidble, use two serving lines., Serving plan :Sould be quick and
efficient.

5+ Group Singing - The whols group should join in singing. It's usually best to
provide coples of the words of songs.

€. Velcome and Introduction of Cuest = The master of ceremonies will want to
Tecognize pack leaders, guests, hesad of chartered organization. etc. at this
time. Keep the comments short, with plenty of applause.

7. Greeting from Institutional Representive.

8. Songs or Entertainment - Dens may perform skits or stunts, These should be
short. The whole group should join in singing. It': usually best to provide
coples of the words of songs. Entertainment from wiznin the pack is better
than outside entertainment. You'll want to include “happy Birthday to Cub

Scouting”. Be sure that all dens have a part on the program.
9. Review of past year. . -,

10. Awards Ceremony - Make this memorable. It should be impressive and well exe-
cutsd. This 1s the part most boys and parents have bteen waiting for.

1l. Recognition of Leaders - Present certificates of appreciation to pack and den
leaders and parents who have helped the pack.

12. Announcements and Thanks.

13. Closing Ceremony - At this point in the program, the ‘tone' of the meeting
should become more serious. Close with something inspirational or patriotic.

The agenda can be adjusted to fi: your own pack's needs., Try to limit the total
prograa tims (not including geal) to 1 to 1 1/2 hours. Keep the progran moving
and interesting.

The Blue and Goll Fauyur: ia a g0od time to call all your registered adults to
the front of the ro.z an. ofier a public thank you and perhaps a certificate of
appreciation. Don't forget to include your Den Chiefs.

Thank you notes are thoughtful and appreciated by merchants that have contributed
in any way to your banquet. Also the organization loaning their facility should
te remenxbered in this way.



OPENING

:he flags are brought forward by the honor guard, the Pledge
is repeated and the audience is asked to be seated.

SCQUT 1: WE REPRESENT DEN OF PACK
SCOUT 2: PACK BELONGS TO DISTRICT.
SCOUT 3: DISTRICT BELONGS TO THE COLUMBIA

FACIFIC COUNCIL.

SCOUT 4: COLUMBIA PACIFIC COUNCIL BELONGS TO THE WESTERN
REGION OF THE BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA. WE ARE
GATHERED HERE TO CELEBRATE THE BSA°s BIRTHDAY.

BEOUT &+ THE BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA IS A VERY IMPORTANT
PAET OF THE WORLD BROTHERHQOD OF 3COUTING.
LEADER: THE WORLD BROTHERHOOD OF SCOUTING IS A WORLDWIDE

ORGANIZATION THAT AIDS SCOUTS IN THE POORER
NATIONS OF THE WORLD. IF ANYONE WOULD LIKE TO
MAKE A BIRTHDAY DONATION TO SCOUTING, PLEAGE US3E
THE CONTAINERS DEN . HAS PROVIDED ON EACH
TABLE. THANK YOU FOR YOUR SUFFORT.

Each table should also have World Brotherhood of Scouting
brochures available for reading.

CLOSING

SCOUT 1: OUR THANKS FOR AN EVENING OF FUN
VSCOUT ONE THAT SCOUTING HAS BEGUN

SCO0T 3: WITH MEMBERS GATHERING FROM COAST TO COAST

&~

SCOUT &3 ALTHOUGH WE LOVE OQUR PACK THE MGOS3T!

.he colors can he retired and the announcer thank everyone
for attending.



MARDI GRAS
BLUE & GOLD
ADVANCEMENT

SCENE: KING NEPTUNE"S COURT

NEEDED: KING NEPTUNE 4 CANDLES
PITCH FOERK MATCHES
SEAWEED CROWNS AWARDS

ANNOUNCER: HEAR YE HEAR YE ALL RISE FOR KING NEPTUNE
RULER OF THE OCEANS AND HOST OF THE MARDI GRAS.

KING NEPTUNE: WELCOME TO OUR MARDI GRAS BLUE & GOLD BANQUET
PLEASE BE SEATED AND ENJOY THE FESTIVITIES.
AS YOU KNOW THE OCEAN HOLD3 MANY TREASUERES.
EACH YEAR I SEND SILVEE INTO THE RIVERS OF THE
WORLD. THESE SALMON FEED THE BOBCAT, WOLF AND
BEAR. FROM THIS THEY CAN GROW STRONG IN THEIR

FACKS.

(Candles can be lit to signify the ranks mentioned)

KING NEPTUNE: I HAVE HEARD TALES OF THE WEBELOS, THE OLDEST
AND STRONGEST OF THE PACK. THE STORIES OF
THEIF ACHIEVEMENTS ECHO THROUGHOUT THE FOUR
OCEANS AND THE SEVEN SEAS.

(A candle is lit to signify the Webelos)

KING NEPTUNE: TONIGHT MY COURT WOULD LIKE TO HONOR THE

, THEIR JOURNEY DOWN THE

TRAIL HAS BEEN DIFFICULT, THEY
WORKED HARD AND WITH THE HELP OF AKELA, THEY
HAVE SUCCEEDED IN EARNING THEIR
BADGE .

ANNOUNCER: The announcer calls the names of the scouts
and their parents, badges are handed out and
the parents are asked to return to their seats

KING NEPTUNE: BECAUSE OF THEIR ACHIEVEMENTS MY COURT WILL
NOW HONOR THESE WITH A TOKEN
OF OUR PRIDE IN THEM. YOU ARE NOW HONORED
MEMBERS OF KING NEPTUNE'S DOMAIN.

(The tokens given can be seaweed wresthe or shell tie slides)



Blue & Gold Banquet

BLUE AND GOLD SKIT

NARRATOR: I represent the spirit of Lord Baden=Powell, the founder of
Boy Scouting, I am also the spirit of Scouting past and present,
Here is our futureseesee the Cub Scouts of Americal

(1st Cub enters carrying a Bible, Stands to left of narrator)

1st CUB: We take turns praying in our dense. I like to wear my uniform
to church on Scout Sunday. Nearly half of all Cub Scout Packs in America
are sponsored by churches,

(2nd Cub enters carrying a hlue and a gold piece of paper)

2nd CUB: The two colors of the Cub Scout wniform have a meaning, Blue
stands for truth and loyalty; gold for good cheer and happiness.

(3rd Cub enters carrying a Wolf book and Kipling's The Jungle Book)

3rd CUB: Early Cub Scout ceremonies were based on Kipling's Jungle Book,.
When Cub Scouting was organized in America in 1929, Indian themes were useds

(4th Cub enters carrying a craft project of wood)

4th CUB: Cubbing is fun, We have lots of fun, but I like making things =
especially wood projects and things we can use to follow our themes,

(5th Cub enters carrying a nature collection)
5th CUB: I like to go on hikes and collect things for nature projects.
(6th Cub enters carrying a buddy burner)

6th CUB: I like to go on picnicse We Cubs sure like to est | This is a
small burner I made.

(7th Cub, smallest in the den, enters with Americanflaé‘)

7th CUB: I am proud of our country and proud of our flage We learn how
to show respect for our flag in our den meetings,

NARRATOR: Yes I represent the past and the present of Scouting. These boys,
Cub Scouts now, are the future.They.will bhe the preservers both of our .
Scouting traditions and our American heritage.

Adapted from original « Scouting magazine



Blue & Gold Banquet

THE STORY OF THE BLUE & GOLD

Personnel: Eight Cub Scouts

Equipment: Blue Flannel Board; cards for flannel board (TRUTH,
SPIRITUALITY, STEADFAST LOYALTY, WARM SUNLIGHT, GOOD CHEER,
HAPPINESS); yellow sun for flannel board.

1st Cub: Back fn the good old days, the waving of school colors gave
people a feeling of school pride and loyalty. Today, the
blue and gold of Cub Scouting helps to build this spirit
among Cub Scouts.

end Cub: (Pointing to blue fannel) The blue reminds us of the sky
above. [t stands for truth, spirituality, and steadfast
loyalty.

3rd Cub: (Placing "TRUTH" card in upper left corner of board) Truth

means we must always be honest.

4th Cub: (Placing "SPIRITUALITY®" card in upper right corner) Spiritu-
ality means a belief and faith in God.

Eth Cub: (Placing "STEADFAST LOYALTY" card across bottom) Steadfast
loyalty means being faithful and loyal to God, Country, anc
your fellow man.

6th Cub: (Placing sun in center of board) The gold stands for the
warm sunlight. (Places "WARM SUNLIGHT®Card across top of sun.)

7th Cub: Gold also stands for good cheer and happiness. We always
fee] better when the sun is shining and so will these to whom
we give good will. (He places "GOOD CHEER" and “HAPPINESS"
cards on each side of sun).

g8th Cub: As we wear our Cub Scout uniforms, may the meaning of the
blue and gold colors make us remember our Cub Scout ideals,
the Cub Scout Promise, and the Law of the Pack.

Each boys "speech" may be written on back of card and.reac before placing on
board.




¢ YOUR CUB SCOUT 1.Q.
Have a copy avallaple for each person. Good gathering-time activity,

1. Lord Baden Powell, founder of world Scouting, modeled a program for
younger boys based on: '

a. Lord of the Flies by Golding

b.. Treasure Island, by Stephenson

c. The Jungle Book, by Kipling

d. Siege of Mafeking, By Baden=Powell

2. In the above book, a wise old befriended and raised
small boy who strayed from his parents. (a)owl, (b)1lon, (c)wolf, (d)bobcat

3. Akela Is a Cub Scout term for: (a) only the Cubmaster, (b) only a den chief,
(c) only the den leader, (d) all good leaders and parents.
4, A Cub Scout den chief must be at least: (a) 13 and never have been a Cub

Scout, (b) 11 and have been a Cub Scout, (c) 11 and needs no prior Cub
Scout experience, (d) 14 and have been a Cub Scout.

5. The two raised fingers of the Cub Scout sign resemble the alert ears of:
(a) jackal, (b) bobcat, (c) wolf, (d) bear.
6. How Is the Webelos uniform different from the Cub Scout uniform?

(a) cap, neckerchief, slide and colors, (b) cap, neckerchief, colors and
lanyard, (¢) neckerchief, colors, belt, and cap, (d) neckerchief, colors,

and cord.

7. Which rank was dropped from the Cyb Scout program In 19687
(a) fox, (b) llon, (c) bobcat, (d) buffalo.

8. A bobcat Scout has to complete how many achievements to earn the Wolf
,Cub Scout rank? (a) 4, (b) 8, (c) 12, (d) 16.

19;‘Hhen a 10-year-old jJolns Cub Scouting, what is the first badge he earns?
(a) Wolf, (b) Bobcat, (c) Bear, (d) Webelos

10. The Webelos Colors are: (a) red, white and blue, (b) red, green and brown,
(c) Red, gold and blue, (d) red, gold and green.

11. What is the highest rank a Cub Scout can earn?
(p) Webelos Badge,

(b) Arrow of Light

BADEN-POWELL
(e) Lion
(d) Certificate of Appreciation

BADEN POWELL GAME = How many words of three or
more letters can be made from BADEN-POWELL? Set

time limit of 3-5 minutes.
[N

swers: l=c, 2=¢, 3-d, U-c, 5-¢, 6-a, 7-b,
8-c, 9=b, 10-d, 11-b)

10



T'WERN'T ME

CAST: 6 Cub Scouts
PROPS: Lawnchalr, sunglasses, glass of lemonade, beach towels :

SETTING:

Cub #1:
Cub #2:
Cub #1:
Cub #2:
Cub #1:
Cub #3:
Cub #1:
Cub #4:
Cub #1:
Cub #5:
Cub #1:
Cub #6:
Cub #1:
Cub #2:

H

Cub #2 seated In lawnchalir with lemonade and sunglasses on; other
cubs are sunning themselves on beach; one cub comes running onstage..

Hey George.

* Yea, John?

| just saw a man get run over by a train = and | thought It was you.
How tall was he?

Oh, about your height.

What color of hair did he have?
Same as George.

Did he have on a red shirt?
Yeah.

Did he have on a ball cap?
Yeah.

Did he have on blue levis?
Nope, tan.

Whew, it wasn't me then.

(all cubs wipe forehead and walk of f stage congratulating him)
KARKRARKKRRRRR KRR R MR ARRRARAKKARKKERKRARRRAARRARRRRKKKRKKKRK KKK

PICNIC

CAST: Z-Cub Scouts
PROPS: Picnic basket

SETTING:

Cub #1:
Cub #2:
Cub #1:
Cub #2:
Cub #1:
Cub #2:
Cub #1:
cub #2:
Cub #1:

Cub #2:

One cub onstage the other comes 0n§tage carrying a plcnic basket

Hey, where are you going with that picnlc basket?
Oh, I'm going on a picnic.

Byt It's night timel

| know, but It's a moonlight plcnic. ~
Hhat have you got in the basket?

Guess.

Now let me see. Is It a big cake?

Nope.

Now let me think. (looks down and notices basket Is leaking) Ahal It's
leaking (reaches in and tastes fingers). Is it pickles? :

No! Puppies. .
(Cub #1 looks sick and chases Cub #2 offstage)

1A



hialie a Bamb o@ 7 e

Have you ever made a BAMBOOZLE?

onthe )Clwr- oue.r-faptﬁrec
P'e.ces of old newspaper,

=

@ Roll them Inte o tbe, patting them even on the and,
Now 1ear or cvt in half abond:.s hird ef 5 Wiy down

liKe thrs
And then this weay in halfaaa!n:

—7)

9 With Yeur ﬁnﬂer‘hke_ hold of an inside piece. .
and pull. .

@f%q@/

$ Un&! vou have a Bamboozls.
ITS GREAT FOR PARADES!




1« Cover a lsrge blown-uv balloon
newspaver strip puper mache. Four of
five coats are necded.s Let dry in box
between coalse

2. Defizte balloon by cutting off ailr
tute, Cut heole in bottom 5! pader

nache k211, 1large enough for heand to

fi: through.

3, Rough in features. Cat two shallow
CUrves..cone immediately heclow earcn esr,
which will let the mask eit snugly om
skoulders.

4e Try om mask,
Make any adjuetments
to curves that are
needed %o fit,
Msrk out side of mask with pain® brush, where
line of vision will be, Remove mask and ent
*hin s1it for eye holes. Make several small
holes in back of mask for ventilation.

5. Decorate mask as desired, adding features,
bair, hat, etc. Construction paper or paint
can be used,

€. Add a suitalle costume to go with your pack,
and you're all ready for the Mardi Gras pareade,

HANDY HINTS FOR DEN LEADERS. ® Lint from automatic l %
dryers makes good, clean stutting for puppets. (Ask your
commercial laundries, diaper service, or your neighbors to
save their lint.) Another.good stutting for puppets is thin
plastic laundry bags. - S
& Uracked marbles — Reat in pan in fainy hot oven. Re- .~
~move and pour imo bowt of ice water and watch them 7,
.crack, ; B
~e Costume meke-up — tn 8 Jar mix some tiquld deep kin_ "~
i cleaner and powdered sugar for thickness, then tint with =
|#008 coloring. Wipe right off after yee, _° .~ . - -




THERE"S A HOLE IN THE BOTTOM OF THE SEA

There s a hcole in the bottom of the sea

There s & hole in the bottom of the sea

there’'s a hole.

there’ s a hole. . .

There s a hole in the bottom of the sea

There's a leg in the hole in the bottom of the sea
There s & log in the hole in the hottom of the sea
there’'s a log

there's a log

There's a log in the bottom of the sea.

Add a frog, a wart, a fly, a wing, and finally.

There's a hole in the wing, of the fly, on the wart,

on the frog, on the log, in the hole in the bottom of the
sea., (repeat)

there' s a hole

there’ s a hole

There s a hole in the bottom of the sea.

SONS OF THE SEA

Sons of the sea

Bobbin up and down like this
Sailing the ocean

Bobbin up and down like this

Oh you can .safil a ship my boys
Bobbin up and down like this
But you can't beat the boys

in the bull dog pit

Bobbin up and down like this

Add: Hitchin up your pants
Pullin on your boots
Swabbin the deck
Rowin the boat




MARDI GRAS--GAMES

BLINLFCLDED MOTICN GAMI--

Form 6-8 persons in a line with hands on shoulders, 1ead person is
blindfolded., Last person in line signals left or right around objects
by tapping person in front of him with left or right hend..Taps are
passed along the line to blindfolded person. You have to be pretty

guick to keep the line from running into the cbstacles.
336 3 36 36 FH A 3 I I 3% I I I3 I I3 I I I I I WK KK

GIVE ME A HAND--

BEQUIPNZNT: 12" x 6" plastic bag for each team,
Divide the players into teams and arrange in line formation with the
teams facing each other. Give the first player of each team a plastic
bag which he slips over his right nand. At signal the first player
shzkes hands with the second player. The second player while sheking
hands with his teammate, transfers the bag to his own right hand
using his left., In effect, he turns the bag inside out as he slips
it off his teammate's hand and cn to his own, Player #2 turns and
shakes hands with player #3, who does the same thing with the plastic
bag., v¥hen tne bag reaches the last player, the game is over and the
first team tc finish wins.

69 B 36 96 36 3 3 I3 H 3 I I6 I 36 I I I I3 I K KK KK Ko

KROCE CFF ZIE EBIUCK==-

= UIPFEIKT: 1 pop bottle, 1 srall table, 1 ping pong ball,

Paint the ping pong ball with magic markers to look like a face,
Place the pop bottle on the table and the ping pong ball on the small
copening of the pop bottle. Contestants stand 15 feet away from the
table and walk rapidly towards it. The object of the game is to
flick the ping pong ball off the pop bottle with the thumb and fore-
finger., This is much more difficult to do than it first appears,

3696 36 3 4 A I I I I K I HIH KA I I K I H KR

CORCERTRATION==-
This is a rhythmic game done in 4/4 time., Fach player has a spoon in
each hand, This game is played around a table cr in a circle on the
fleoy 1st beat - Eit the grcund with both spoons,

2nd beat - Hit the ground wivh tovir «poons,

3rd beat - Hit the spoons together,

4th beat - Hit the spoons together,
IN = TRA = TICN,q e
CCIICEN = TRATION = AGRI = VATICH....
LB DF7 = RHY = DEH, . oy
LEEP TEF - REYTHEM - GO = ING....
DOLTT STCE'!! (Fass spoons to the person to your right and pick up
gpoons that have been passed to you.)
4 pleyer leaves the circle when he breaks the rhythm, Keep the rhythm
going faster and faster until all but two boys are out of the circle,

MCNSTER FACE BARK
MATERIAJLS: 2 paper cups, scissors, tape,
crayons, or markers.
Carefully notch about 14" long fromw rin
of each cup. Fit cups together, top to
top so nctches form slit., Tape cups
together around, leaving slit open to
form the monster's mouth. Draw a horrid
face, and feed him pennies when heg kungrjl.




PACK ADMINISTRATION

The pack planning process is never completed. It is a circular process of
organizing, determining issues, setting plans, performing activities,
evaluating activities, refining approaches and starting again.

Planning Circle

Define Issue Set Plans
Organize Perform Activity
Refine Approach Evaluate Activity

Chapter Six in the Cub Scout Leaders Book provides a very useful reference in
putting together an annual plan. The next few pages give a methods that can
be used in whole or in part to define and deal with critical issues in your
pack administration.




Group Involvement Processes

In any group presentation and/or planning session there is a requirement to
have free flow of ideas. Four method of dealing with this need are described
below are: brainstorming, small groups, individual documentation, and
structured analysis.

Brainstorming:
This method works well to present ideas, options and prevent arguments.
Large pieces of paper on a flip chart or wall where all can see are used
to write down ideas. Ideas come from an open group discussion where
they are presented by individuals. Discussion of any idea is restricted
to only enough to define it for the group. A moderator writes the idea
down and keeps the group from critiquing the idea. When the listing is
complete, group consensus is used to determine what ideas will receive
additional discussion.

Small Groups:
This method works well in getting individual group members to interact
with other individual's ideas. Small groups of people gather at
different sites (tables, under a tree, etc.). One group member keeps
notes in order to report back to the larger group. Try to keep the
group membership different than the natural groups that form in a pack;
this allows more variety of ideas to come forth. The small group
consensus can be used to select what ideas are to be reported back to
the large group.

Individual documentation:
This method works well in getting fuller participation from individuals.
Each person is to think through a topic and write their ideas down on a
piece of paper. Then a rotation is taken through the group in which each
member of the group is given the opportunity to tel]l of one idea from
their list. The rotation is performed several time until all ideas are
exhausted and all have an opportunity to finish their lists.

Structured analysis:
In an open forum use a group discussion to present the Strengths (those
things your pack does well), Weaknesses (those things that your pack
need improvement doing), Opportunities (those things that because of
special timing, resources or circumstances your pack has the ability to
do) and Threats (those people, circumstances, or events that could have
an adverse impact on your pack) that are part of your pack environment.
These ideas should be placed on large pieces of paper around the room so
that all can see. This provides a specific approach to get ideas
flowing. Starting with Strengths provides a positive and rewarding
approach to open discussions.



PLANNING WORKSHEET

Think for a moment about the Cub Scout program in the Pack - the activities,
the outdoor program, advancement, recognition, the boys, the leaders, the
parents, training, etc.

1. List the Pack's greatest successes in Cub Scouting.

2. List the Pack's needs, problems, hangups, obstacles which affect the
Scout program.

3. Study the list under No. 2 and underline the items which you:
- see as important and perhaps urgent
- think you can probably do something about
- really want to do something about

Since it is better to solve one problem at a time, select the one item
which best meets those three standards.

4. Now, define the problem more fully.

a. Who has the problem? What groups or persons are involved?

b. When and where is it a problem?




c. How does this problem affect the boys?

d. What do you hope to accomplish by solving this problem?

Describe the things you are doing, which seem to be influencing this
problem:

Locate the problem. Sometimes it helps to actually map it out. Let the
large circle represent the entire Cub Scout program.

With a pencil, write the persons and groups that are affected by the
problem. Put those most affected near the center; those least affected
towards the outside.

Then with a pen, write the persons or groups with the power to influence
the problem. Put those with the most power near the center; those with
the least power near the outside.

The
Problem



10.

11.

List those people or groups who 8. List those people or groups you
can be counted on for support in think are blocking the solving of
solving the problen. the problem

___Training __Better promotion
___Different Approach __Material Resources
___Better Communication __People Resources
___More Information __Financial Resources
___Different Organization __Other

Rate the people and groups in No. 7 8.
- Which of each side are most powerful and influential? Put a big

"P" by each of these.
- Which people or groups on each side are most likely to change? Put

a big "C" by each of these.

Check the items below which will help you in solving the problem. Then
identify the person or group who can provide this help.

You have done the following:

- Identified the problem.

- Described your connection with the problenm.

= Indicated the people affected by the problenm.

- Identified the people with power to influence the problenm.
& Identified the people who are blocking solving the problem.
- Indicated what and who will help solve the problenm.

Now ask yourself - Is there anything you can do to help solve the
problem? Yes _ No ___
If yes, what?




12.

Show below your plan of action:

Goal:

For this reason:

I hope to accomplish this:

By this date:

1 plan to take these steps:
1.

2.

1 will need the help of these people:

It will cost this amount:



& i
/a ‘3. \
S 0 O
S SAFETY INSPECTED -

S -— a
< N
0 Ny

CuB SCOUT

| BICYGLE SAFETY
PROGRAM

‘YCUR CUB SCCULT3 AND BICYCLE SAFETY

National Emphasis

Jne summer, packs ail over the nation
join in the Cub Scout Bicycle Satazty
Program, a month long Cub Scout activity
involving coperation with the Naticnal
Satety Councii and other agencies znd
companies.

why the big empnhasis on bicycle safezy?

The death toall in bicycle accidents

is about 1,000 z vear. 3oys betwe2n

tne ages of & and 1ld are invoived in

the majority of serious bicycle accidents
0

- and these of Cub Scout age most 7
aii.

Over 100 mill<on geopie in America now
drive bicycles. Most of them zrz2

cnildren. (A person on a bicycle s
not merely a rider; he is a driver in
The same sense that you are an au<d
ariver.) We want Cub Scouts to leirn
this month that when they are on bicycles,
they are drivers and must obey the szarme
traffic rules as other drivers.

Cub Scout:z are most vulnerable to acz7izznis
on bicycies. It is impeortant tnat Ioey
ars trained in how to keep their bicryc zs
in good working order, how tc crive
them safely, and in the "rules o7 =tnhe
road". Experience has show that wnere

good triininag is given in bicvcie sazty,
the accicdent rate drops by S50 cerc=nt.
The main purpose of the Cub Scout Bicrci2
Safety Program is- to give this triining
to all Cub Scouts.

Some elementary schools are using =zie

National Safety Council "Al%l About Bikes",
bicycle safety course. [t is a classrcem
experience and will not conflict with
the Cub Scout program, which  is
action-oriented. It may affsct your
den meeting plans because boys who nave
taken the "A1l About Bikes" course wiil
know the rules of the road and otner
things recommended for learning in <tne
activity periods of your den meetings
this month. Find out what the schools
are doing and adjust your activity
accordingly.






OBJECTIVES OF THE PROGRAM

A+ +he end of the month, your Cub Scouts
s 1d:

+ Know how to keep their bicycles in
safe condition

+ Drive their bicycles safely

+ Know traffic signs and rules of the
road

Your den and pack activity this month
will include bicycle maintenance and
safe driving. As with any other Cub
Scout activity, the bicycle safety program
calls for plenty of fun and games, as
well as educational activities. You
should provide the action.

The activity period of each den meeting
includes instruction and practice in
skills aimed at these objectives. During
the month, have a bike clinic to inspect
your Cubs' bicycles - and those owned
by other children and adults in your
community. The program will be climaxed
by a bike rodeo at the pack meeting
where Cub Scouts show their skills and

ete in  bicycle-driving contests
a..u Safety tests.

ACTIVITY RESOURCES

You will find den meeting outlines
covering the Cub Scout Bicycle Safety
Program plus a number of supporting

ideas, games and contests in Cub Scout

Program Helps from year to year.

Secure from a local bike dealer or repair
store copies of bicycle maintenance
manuals for use in each den by den
leaders, den chiefs, parents of Cub
Scouts or other adults who will be invited
to check minor servicing problems and
show simple bicycle maintenance.

The National Safety Council, Youth Dept.,
425 North Michigan Ave., Chicago, Il1.
60611, also has available a "Bicycle
Safety Maintenance Manual No. 450-20.

Other resources are “The Bicycle Trail",
"~ qe 18 in the new Cub Scout Fun Book,

.ch 1include games and contests that
can be used by a den.

2

Buys' Life has some special helps designed
to support this program. Put this in
a bike folder for reference:

December '73 "Make it Safe to Ride."
April '74 "“Long Life for 1Yuur Bike",
"Rodeo on a String", and the "Pedro
Patrol”.

The March-April '74 Scouting magazine
included an article on conducting a
bike clinic.

This month's den activity should include
practice in safe driving skills. It
is not necessary that every Cub Scout
have a bicycle. Many boys will have
their own bikes, but if you arrange
to have at least two at your practice
sessions you will have no trouble.

SAFE BICYCLE DRIVING PRACTICE

The first consideration is safety. Don't
use a street that carries through traffic.
A large yard or long private driveway
will be satisfactory. A school play
area, a church parking lot, a city
playground, or a vacant lot are other
possibilities. Bikeways are marked
routes, paths, and-trails that can be
used only for bicycling. To find out
whether there 1is one near enough for
your den to use, call the police
department or parks department.

wWherever you hold driving practice,
be sure that there is no danger to your
boys - and that they are not a hazard
for others.

Begin by checking your Cub Scouts' present
driving skills. If you find that one
or two boys have not learned to drive
a bicycle, ask the others to help them
during the preopening periods of the
first two or three den meetings. Unless
they have other opportunities for
practice, they may not be skilled drivers
by the end of the month, but they will
be able to compete in the bike rodeo.



U/



BICYCLE MAINTENANCE

Fc the activity period of your first
or second den meeting, there should
be instruction and practice 1in minor
maintenance problems and the servicing
of a bicycle. Here {is where you refer
to the activity resources previously
listed.

If you are not familiar with bicycles
or handy with an adjustable wrench,
turn this instruction over to your den
chief, father of a Cub Scout, or a
neighborhood handyman. This 1is minor

maintenance and servicing, not a full

course in bicycle overhaul,

Begin by discussing with your Cub Scouts
the importance of keeping a bicycle
in good condition. Ask what can happen
if - brakes fail? handlebars are loose?
a wheel is wobbly? a tire is cut or
bruised? the pedals feel floppy?

Have the boys explain what they would
do to correct these conditions. Their
ar—ers will tell you what they know
a. . maintenance. Let your discussion
and maintenance exploration prepare
boys to respond to the quiz to follow
which you can make into a challenging
game.

Using the maintenance materials you
have, show and Tlet the boys practice
checking:

+ Saddle adjustment

+ Handlebar adjustment

+ Spoke tightness

+ Wheel trueness

+ Brake operation

+ Tire condition

+ Frame straightness

+ Chain tension

+ Bearing adjustment

+ Lights, reflectors, and bell or horn
operation

+ Gear operation

If possible, have two or more types

or bicycles (middleweight, lightuciyht,
and .high-riser) for instruction and
practice.

Give the date, time, and place for the
bike clinic and explain what will be
checked and how the clinic will be run.
Urge the boys to make any necessary
adjustments or have vrepairs made by
a bicycle serviceman before the clinic,
if they can. Show the iJllustration
of the sticker that will be put on
bicycles that pass the clinic safety
tests.

To find out how much your Cub Scouts
have learned from the instruction, you
may want to give the following quiz.
You can read the questions and have
the boys write their answers, or you
can make a copy for each boy.

MAINTENANCE QUIZ

1. True or False: Your saddle should
be low enough so that you can put
both feet flat on the ground while
in the saddle. (False. To check
saddle adjustment, set the pedal
crank so that one of the pedals is
in its lowest position. With one
foot on the ground, sit in the saddle
and place the ball of the foot on
the low pedal. The 1leg should be
almost straight. It is true that
you should be able to stand with
both feet flat on the ground while
straddling the bar - off the saddle.
Have a Cub Scout show how to adjust
a saddle to the proper height.)

2. True or False: Your bike chain should
have about a half-inch of play and
should be oiled to keep it from
rusting. (True. If you own a coaster
or 3-speed bike, does not apply
to 5 or 10-speed bikes. Have a Cub
Scout show how to adjust chain
tension). '

3. True or False: Spokes help keep
the bicycle wheel straight and true.
(True. Ask a Cub Scout to show how
to tell when a spoke is loose.)

Tue e






FOREREEDPERRIIDN

COASTER BRAKES
AND HAND BRAKES
Check before your first
ride. Must brake evenly
every time, no slippage.
The purchaser should
periodically inspect and
maintain brakes, The
coaster brake arm must be
securely fastered to the
frame.

HAVE YOUR BICYCLE !NSPECTED TWICE A YEAR BY A COMPETENT PERSON

4

True or False: On bicycles with MAI

hand brakes, the wheel rims must

be kept clean. (True) 1.
. or False: Your handlebars can

be a little 1loose without danger.

(False. Handlebars should aiways

be tight. Have a Cub Scout show

how to tighten them.)

True or False: You can make brake

repairs yourself, (False. An
experienced bicyclist may be able
to make some cable adjustments on
hand brakes, but for safety's sake
it's best to leave brake repairs

in the hands of a bicycle serviceman.)

True or False: A bicycle must have
a front light, eight (8) reflectors,
and a bell or horn. (May be either
true or false. Check with your local

police department.)
True or False: As long as there
is some air in your tires, it doesn't

matter how much. (False. They should

be inflated to the correct pressure

far safety and longer wear. As a 3
> Scout to show where to find what

the correct tire pressure should

be.)

SADDLE

Adjust frequently for comfort and —
growth. Tighten saddie and seat

post nuis securely, leaving at least

27 inches of seat post down in

the frame.

FENDERS
——

®-—_ B8MA/6 SEAL Look for it

/(

an your new bike.

Za\

Be sure they are
undamaged and securely
fastened.

[
PEDALS

CHAIN
Chain shouid be checked frequently
fcr damage and stretch, and be
readjusted if necessary. It sheuld
be lubricated frequently with

light oil.

reflectorized pedals.

e

This bicycle is equipped with
reflectorized pedals for added safety
in nignt riding, It is imperative

that the shoulder of the pedal axle be
securely tightened against the crank
arm. |f pedals become worn or
damaged, replace them with

NTENANCZ QUIZ

True or False: Your saddie shou’a
be 1low enough so that you can :cut
both feet flat on the ground whi'e
in the saddle. (False. 7o check
saddle adjustment, set the Jecal
crank so that one of the pedals is
in its Tlowest positicn. With cre

foot on the ground, sit in the caczle

and place the ball of the foot 2n
the low pedal. The 1ieg shouid :ze
almost straight. It 1is <true tna:
you should be able to stand with

both feet flat on the ground while
straddling the bar - off the saddle
Have a Cub Scout show how to adjus
a saddle to the proper heignt.)

.
-
-

True or False: Your tike chain snoud

have about a half-incn of play and
hsould be oiled to keep it from
rusting. (True. If you own a coaster
or 3-speed bike, doues not apcly
to 5 or 10-speed bikes. Have a Cub
Scout show how to adjust chain
tension).

True or False: Spokes helt ksep
the bicycle wheel straight and true.
(True. Ask a Cub Scout to show how

to tell when a spoke is loose.)

HAMOLEBARS AND GRIPS
Handlebar snouid ce
agjusted freauently ‘er
comfort and groats. Kess
at ‘east 2tz .nzres ot
handlezar ste™ cawn in
the frame, then tigntent
secureiy. Harolebar grics
should fit snug:y 3nd worn
ones replaced.

BELL OR HORN

Be sure it works
properly, loud and
clear,

LIGHTS AND REFLECTORS

This bicycle is equipped with
reflectorized pedals and other
reflective materials. If these
materials are damaged or lost,
replace them immediately for your

own safety. Lights and reflectors

should be visible at dusk ard at

night; headlights from 5C0 feet. rear
reflector from 300 feet. e sure
reflectors are state aporoved.

¢—TIRES

Should be inspected ‘reauentiy for
wear and feans, Remove :mbeaded
stones, nails, glass. Zinoers. etc,
Keep inflated to the zsrrec: cressure
which is stamped an the sidewall

of the tire.

b
WYEELS
Shobig rotate smoothly without wcobiing

from s¥de to side. |f necessary, ‘nev snould Se
realigne @m nuts shou'c e soot tignt,
SPOKES

Repiace broken ones promptly.

Keep them tight.






SAFE-DRIVING INSTRUCTION

Yo~ last two den meetings this month
W concern safety in driving - traffic
signs, rules of the road, and driving
skills.

The bike rodeo which will be the pack
highlight activity this month will be
a test of driving knowledge and skill.
Games and contests are found in various
program books. You may want to use
some of them in den meetings to check
and improve the driving skills of your
Cub Scouts.

BIKE CLINIC

The bike clinic is one of two highlight
events during your month on the Cub
Scout Bicycle Safety Program. The other
is the bike rodeo, which climaxes the
month with fun and competition in bicycle
driving.

The bike clinic is a safety inspection
of all Cub Scout” bicycles and everyone
else in your community - children and
i ts. Announcements should invite
a.. bicycle owners.

Hold the clinic in the middle of the
month during an evening or on a weekend,
by your pack alone, by two packs working
together, or even by a single den. Adapt
the program to local conditions.

The pack chairman should appoint an
assistant Cubmaster, pack activities
chairman, or parent to serve as
coordinator. He is in charge.

The coordinator should appoint chairmen
for the three committees - facilities,
manpower, and publicity. He informs
the local police of plans for the clinic.
This 1is particularly important if you
expect to have a large number of bicycles
to inspect and is desirable even for
a small clinic. Your police chief may
offer useful suggestions and perhaps
volunteer assistance.

*< your community licenses bicycles,
: police may want to have a separate
registration area at the clinic.

ORGANIZATION

Line up sufficient helpers to man the
clinic, seeks support from  other
organizations as the Jaycees, Optimists,
service clubs, in addition to pack
fathers, and sees that the 1nspection
team is trained.

Inspectors need not be bicycle experts
since inspection covers only basic safety.
Parents of Cub Scouts can do the job
with a little advance coaching.

Have a bicycle serviceman on hand to
make minor on-site adjustments beyond
the skill of your inspection team, and
to recommend shop repairs when needed.

The number of inspectors and other workers
depends on the number of bicycles you
expect at the clinic. For a one-pack
clinic, you probably will need two persons
per station, plus two or three for the
repair stations, two at the clinic
registration table, and one or two at
the recognition table where the inspection
forms are checked and the
"safety-inspected" decals are applied
to bicycles that have passed. Several
workers should be assigned to arrange
and  conduct bicycle games for children
waiting to go through the line.

You will need 8+ adults running the
clinic. Most may be parents of your
Cub Scouts. Troops and Explorer posts
may provide assistance as a service
project. They can be helpful 1in many
ways as orderlies, recorders, games
leaders, etc.







Another adult may arrange for a site
for the clinic, prepare the inspection
forms, and see that tools and other
p° ~ssary equipment are on hand.

Provide adjustable wrenches, spoke
wrenches, other hand tools, and
lubricating oil for use by the service
team at each check station or at the
end of the inspection line if the group
is small.

A large area is desirable because bicycle
games and contests are recommended to
keep children occupied while they are
not going through the inspection 1line.
A large school yard, playground, or
public park would be suitable.

Plan a rain date or secure use of a
large gym in case of bad weather.

TRAINING FOR INSPECTION TEAM

The coordinator should arrange a brief
training session for the 1inspection
team. Hold a night or two before the
clinic, or an hour or two before the
- ¢linic. Cover:

hniques of bicycle inspection. What
tu look for. How to tell a youngster
what repairs are needed.
+Practice in_inspection. Set up stations
as shown on the checklist, and run a
few bicycles through. As some stations
require more time than others, you may
want to have two stations which take
more time feeding into one which takes
less. It will take about 5 minutes
for a bicycle to go through station
1; 3 minutes for station 2; 5 to 7 minutes
for station 3; 3 minutes for station
4; and 3 minutes for station 5.
+Using the checklist. Show how to mark
the safety checklist, both at the
inspection stations and at the "service
repair stations".

PROCEDURE FOR BIKE CLINIC INSPECfION

The bicycle owner goes first to the
registration table to sign up for the
inspection. A registrar takes his name,
address, age, and phone n'mber, and
notes if he 1is a Cub Scout. This
information may be useful for recruiting.
He 1s given a number to be called when
it is his turn to start the inspection
of his bike.

Meanwhile, a second registrar fills
out the top of the Bike Clinic Safety
Inspection Checklist 1in duplicate, and
gives it to the bicycle owner.

The owner then goes to station 1. One
inspector takes his checklist and checks
off the items while another does the
actual inspection and «calls out his
approval or disapproval. A Scout,
Explorer or parent could serve as the
recorder,

The bike "clinic committee must decide
when a "NO" 1is checked whether to Tlet
the bicycle owner proceed through the
other stations with repairs at the end
or to report for minor adjustments to
the nearby repair service team for that
station and then proceed. Immediate
repair may avoid a bottleneck at the
final station. At the end of the
inspection 1line, a bicycle serviceman
might tend to more major adjustments
and recommend shop work, if necessary.

After the final station, the owner takes
his bicycle to the recognition table
where officials look over his checklist
and decide if it has passed all tests,
and keeps a copy of the checklist for
pack leaders reference.

Recommend that the owner have repairs
made as needed. Plan a "makeup check"
during your Bike Rodeo later this month.

While the inspection 1is going on, bike
games and contests should ULe held to
amuse waiting children. The play area
should be apart from the inspection
line but near enough so that they can
be called easily when it's their turn
to go through the line.






GAMES

BL S-EYE NEWSBOY

You need a canvas newspaper bag and
six to eight newspapers, rolled or folded.
The course should be about 150 feet
long. At 15-foot intervals, place large
baskets or cans. The '"newsboys" drive
their bicycles along a parallel line
about 8 feet from the containers and
try to toss a newspaper into each one
as they pass. Winner is the Cub Scout
who scores the most hits.

COASTING RACE

Object of this race is to see who can
coast the longest distance. Cub Scouts
compete in turn. Each pedals as hard
as he can for a distance of 15 feet
to the starting 1line. Then he must
stop pedaling and coast. Mark the spot
where his foot touches the ground. Longest
distance wins.

BIKE SLALOM

Set out three to five cans or paper
¢r~< to make a winding course of any
¢ ince. The cans or cups should be
at least 10 feet apart. The driver
must go around each object and return
to the starting line. If he hits an
object or fails to go around it, he
is disqualified. Fastest time wins.

HELP NEEDED?

The International Association of Chief
of Police, Inc., has agreed to assist
in the Cub Scout Bicycle Safety program.
Their monthly bulletin carries a
recommendation to Chiefs of Police to
participate and assist in this Bike
Safety project. Contact your Chief
of Police for assistance in your Cub
Scout Bicycle Safety program.







tate-Driving True/False Quiz

la y1cycle should be driven on the

. .ght-hand side of a street or hignway.

(True)

2. Bicycle drivers should obey all
traffic signs and signals. (True)

3. Stop signs are round in shape.
(False. They have eight sides.
Railroad crossing signs are round.)

8, Pedestrians have the right-of-way
on sidewalks and crosswalks. (True)

(4]
.

Bicycles should be "walked" across
busy streets. (True)

6. The signal for a right turn is stretching

the right arm straight out. (False.
[t's extanding the left arm, with
forearm raised and the palm of the
hand facing forward.)

7. Driving a bicycle at night without
a front light or rear reflector
s unsafe. (True)

8. It's safe for a bicycle driver to
carry a passenger. (False)

9. You don't have to stop at an intersection

if there is no traffic. (False)

10. Hitching a ride on another vehicle
is safe if the driver is careful.
(False)

11. Bicycle drivers should give a hand

signal before making a turn or stopping

on the street. (True)

12. It's safe to drive a bicycle that
is in poor condition if you're
a good driver. (False)

13. If you're driving bicycles with
friends, you should go single file.
(True)

14.

15,

16.

17

18.

12.

20.

Yuur chain should be luuse ehuuyn
to slip off easily. (False)

It's OK to drive a bicycle in either
direction on a one-way stireet.
(False)

If you live in the country, it's
OK to drive on either side of the
road. (False)

Even a good driver should "walk"
his bicycle through heavy traffic.
(True)

The faster you drive, the safer
it is. (False)

Bicycle drivers should stay at least
3 feet away from parked cars. (True)

If you don't ride on busy streets,
you don't need a horn or bell.
(False)

Y
Ny
|5
5

)
VTS
e _.JL" b

JA .

e

‘-

- /'l' ‘.‘ >







BIKE CLInNtC
SAFETY INSPECTION CHECKLIST

Owner's Name Age -

Address State ZIP

Phone Number

Bicycle Make and Model Color Freme Size Wheel Size

License Number (if any) Serial Number

Inspection Check Service Check
0K NO CK NO*

STATION 1

Size - Fit of bike to driver.

Can driver straddle frame with both feet
on ground?

Check height of seat post (2" minimum in
frame). :

ndlebars - Tight and in line with wheel?
Height below driver's shoulder level?

Check height of stem (2" minimum in frame).

Grips tight and ends in good condition?

Frame - All tubes in line, not bent?

Front fork straight, in good conditicn?
Pedals - Tight, intact, no binding?

STATION 2

Wheels - Both run true side to side and round?
Spokes - good tension, none missing?
Rims - no dents or kinks?

Tires - good tread, no sidewall damage, :
valve stem straight and properly inflated?

STATION 3

rearings - No looseness or binding.

Front wheel

700 0 Q00 QOOQQEo O Qe
700 0 OO0 NRDOOOn QO

Front fork

§QQ 0 QR0 ROOOOQnOQQ
OO 0000 oonoouan Ono

!
l
1

(Vo]






STATION 3 (Contd.)
Hear wheel
;edal crank
Chain - l/2-inch play, no excessive looseness

Chainguard - unbent, free of chain.
Chain clean and free of rust?

. STATION &

; Brakes

Coaster brakes - operate within 20
degrees of horizontal?

Hand brekes - sufficient reserve when
lever is engaged, and brake lever tight?

Caliper brakes centered and tight?
Nuts tight on brake shoes?
At least 3/16-inch rubber on shoes?
Cable taut, no frayed ends?
Shift control operating properly?
(;); Multi-speed mechanism operating properly?
STATION 5

*NOTE: Follow local laws in approving or
disapproving bikes at this station.

Rear reflector - conforms to local laws?
Additicnal reflectors, if required.

Front light - battery or generator and bult
satisfactory? (*If applicaeble under locel
laws or ordinances.)

This picycle /_/ approved for night riding.
‘1::7 not approved for night riding.

Rell or horn - working and audible?
- Accessories, other.
Tllegal or unsafe accessories?
Unsafe modification of bicycle
This bicycle has passed this safety inspection

(f This bicyclehasnotnassedthissafetyinspecticn

Final Inspector's Name

QQQDQnn 0 0 QQAkQ

QUOOQLQ O O Q0AOOAQ

Q0
N QC

N|NERIRNRR

QQAQ

QnRRRon o 0o 0Ghba

RIRRIN
0 Q0

QRRon

QooQooo o 0 Qoibin

RN

10 Date







;e 17,6 r 73!'0

BIKE RODEOD

‘ignaling. Demostrate all hand sig-

als  while driving and

properly

Xecute all the signaled stops and

4rns.

In a bike rodeo, winners are se.
lected for their skill in avoiding
path lines and obstacles, making
Proper signals, and for staying in
full control of the bike. Scouts can
be trained as scorers and instruc-

Stopping Accuracy. Drive in the
street parallel to the curb and stop
within 3 inches of a line running
out from a mark on the curb.,

.

Change Direction by Sound. Ad-
vance in a straight path and change
direction on command.

tors, and adult leaders can be re-
cruited from fire departments, bike
dealers, school industrial arts de-
partments, service clubs, police

departments and other groups.

Reversing Direction. Go to the left
side of a 12-foot wide lane, turn
around clockwise, drive in the op-
pusite direction and turn around
counterclockwise,

Quick Direction Changes.. Change
direction quickly on signal from the
lester, giving proper signals.

e e e e e ———






GLE Sq,

A
)
PN ‘@ & P

SAFETY INSPECTED

A
]
[~ ]
(%]
(7]
2
v

Jalance Tesi. Coast for 30 feet fol
owing a straight line not more than
i inches wide. with the body cn-
irely on the left side of the bike.
[he left foot is on the lett pedal.
ind the right toot pushes oll the
rround to provide momentum.

py
q
=
=
=
»

X
 f

DN

/07 jggt

Pedaling and Braking—Mount and
drive 100 fcet at average specd.
pedaling and braking correctly, and
then dismount and park the bike.

Changes in Balance. Drive ihrec

Drive a Straight Puth—Drive 30 feet
on a straight path 8 inches wide

E2 Y PO P R = 2
A B B e

EESTURI TN TREC SRR

_ ~ Emergency Stop. Drive directly to-
feet before turning the pedals more  \ward an obstacle and stop 10 10 14
than a half turn. inches from it.

times around a Figure 8 formed by Maneuvering. Mount and coast 12

two touching circles each 20 feet in
diameter.






10.

SAFE BIKE DRIVING RULES

Obey all applicable traffic regulations, signs, signals and markings.

Bicycles should be driven as safely as any road vehicle, and they are subject to the
same rules of vehicular traffic, wherever they apply. A good 'rule of thumt' is to
avoid congested streets and use bikeways, lanes or paths where possible.

Observe all loccal ordinances pertaining to bicycles.

Registration and licensing, inspections, driving on sidewalks, etc. may all be
covered by local laws. It is your responsibility to know them and abide by them.

Keep right: drive with traffic, not against it. Drive single file.

Keep as close to the curb as practical. Most states require you to drive single
file. When driving two abreast, a minor swerve could force you into traffic.

Watch out for drain grates, soft shoulders and other road surface hazards.

Be careful of loose sand or gravel, particularly at corners. Watch out for potholes.
watch out for car doors opening, or for cars pulling into traffic.

Don't carry passengers or packages that interfere with your vision or control.

A good rule is "one person, one bike," unless it's a tandem. Use baskets or luggage
carriers for packages.

Never hitch a ride on a truck or other vehicle.
Be extremelu careful at intersections, especially when making a left turn.

Most accidents happen at intersections. If traffic is heavy, get off and walk your
bike with pedestrian traffic.

Use hand sicnals to indicate turning cr stopping.

Let the motorist know what you plan to do by giving the appropriate hand signals for
turning left or right, or for stopping.

Protect yourself at night with the reguired red reflectors and lights.

Again, state laws vary. Most require a headlight, tail light or red rear reflectors
for night cycling. Others require reflective pedals, additional side reflectors or
other reflective material. If you are going to drive at night, use maximum protection.
Drive a safe bike. Have it inspectec to insure good mechanical condition.

Make sure your bike fits you. See to it that brakes, pedals, lights, reflectors,
shifting mechanisms, sounding devices, tires, spokes, saddle, handlebars, and all nuts
and bolts are checked regularly.

Drive your bike defensively; watch out for the other guy.

Observe the car in front of you, and the one in front of him. Leave yourself room
and time to take defensive action.






1 fire
.oned to help your local 1
ASSIGNMENT: You nzr?‘u:s;ﬁ:) 4 O tarts, Use this Official

department by i ank to check your home for fire

spection Bl
ggﬁggs I'Ir"lhle:n help correct any dangers you find.

Do you make sure clothes or curtains or furniture are kept away from stove
or heater in your house?

VES & HEATEES If you have electric baseboard heaters, are they kept free and clear of

e papers, furniture, toys, curtains, etc.?
If you have an oil stove or oil heater, is it kept level and clean and does a
regular stove man inspect it for leaks and trouble at least once every year?
If you have a gas stove or gas heater, and you smell escaping gas, are you
ready to call the gas company right away?
If you have a fireplace, do you keep a screen in front of fire?
If you have a wood-burning heater, is it clear of the wall, furniture,
curtains, etc.?

Worn out electric cords can start fires. Are all electric cords in your house
in safe condition?

Have you checked around your house and removed extension cords from
under rugs or hanging over nails?

Ask dad to go with you and inspect the fuse box if you have one. A
15-ampere fuse is right for most lighting circuits. Is the right size fuse in
every fuse socket?

MOKING — MATCHES ;o
-*’1_“ - 2, > s

Are matches and lighters kept out of reach of small children?

You know playing with matches is very dangerous. Have you promised
your parents never to use matches unless they say so?

Are plenty of ashtrays kept where people smoke in your house?

Have old papers, boxes, clothes, paints cans and other old things been
cleaned out of your basement, attic, closets, and garage?

Is rubbish thrown out regularly at your house?

Has everyone been warned never to use gasoline or similar flammable
liquids for cleaning clothes and other things?

Are oily mops hung up, and are oily rags kept in a tightly closed -
or thrown away safely after use?

oo o|o oo

0 80 €0 o

Be sure to ask your dad and mother what you should do in case of fire. It
your home caught fire when you were asleep, do you know what you
would do to save yourself?

Does your family have fire escape drills from bedrooms, so you will
remember two ways to the outside from your room?

In case of fire, do you know how to call the fire department?

Clothing can catch fire easily. Do you keep a safe distance from bonfires,
heaters, stoves, fireplaces, and anything hot enough to start your cloths
burning?

If your clothes ever catch fire, you must never run. Do you know how to
smother a clothes fire by rolling on the floor or ground, or covering fire
with a coat or blanket?

Do you have smoke detectors installed at or near ceiling level next to all
sleeping areas of your house?

oo

(]

ad o

My son/daughter has carefully inspected our residence for the above hazards.  Parent Signature






